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1. Letter to Shareholders

Dear shareholders, ladies, and gentlemen,

Following the mitigation of the global pandemic in 2022, however, the global dynamics of economic
growth are still weak due to the effect of inflation and interest rate hike. The demand of the terminal market
is sluggish, and the industry chain continuously adjusts its inventory. In addition to uncertain factors such
as the unsettling of the Russo-Ukrainian War and the ongoing US-China Tech War, major international
forecasting institutions generally believe that this trend will continue till 2023.

According to the import and export statistics of customs from the Bureau of Foreign Trade, Ministry
of Economic Affairs, Taiwan's textile imports and exports in 2022 experienced negative growth. This is
mainly caused by the rising cost of necessities, thus consumers had to cut down the expenses in the non-
essential categories, which included clothing and furniture. Moreover, inflation in Europe and US markets
extended the inventory turnover time of customers, and since August and September, customers' ordering
momentum had slowed down, and the sales atmosphere of the whole market was at a state of "cheaper prices
and reduced volumes". Even facing the rise in the cost of raw materials, it is difficult to fully transfer it to
brand customers.

And another point of notice is that there is a change in the way of ordering of brand owners. Orders
have shifted from long-term contracts to short-term orders, and there is an increase in demand for urgent
and short-term orders. Therefore, scheduling and quality management are becoming more complex and
crucial. We will also sustainably integrate external resources, keep on innovating, and adjust our response
strategies to cope with these challenges.

The annual consolidated operating revenue of Honmyue in 2022 is NTD 3,189,020,000, which has a
decrease of 8.99% compared to the previous year. The consolidated net profit of the current period is NTD
80,569,000, which has a decrease of 42.87% compared to the previous year.

The following is a brief report to the shareholders on our operating results in the previous fiscal year
and the business plan and direction for the coming year:

1. Operating results of the previous fiscal year (2022)
(1) Results of the implementation of the business plan
Unit: NTD Thousand

Year

Changes
Ttem 2022 2021 Amount Changing
percentage

Net operating revenue 3,189,020 3,503,869 (314,849) (8.99%)

Operating gross profit 406,044 515,652 (109,608) (21.26%)

Operating profit 58,889 140,813 (81,924) (58.18%)

Net profit of the current period 80,569 141,039 (60,470) (42.87%)

(2) Analysis of financial profitability

Hem ez 2022 2021
Return on assets 2.41% 3.75%
Return on equity 3.81% 6.91%
Ratio of net profit before tax to paid-in capital (%) 8.06% 13.68%
Net profit margin 2.53% 4.03%
Earnings per share (Dollar) 0.60 1.11

(3) Status of research and development (R&D):

The company is dedicated to researching and developing high-quality products that fulfill
market demands, and follows the direction of environmental sustainability, safety and
protection, functionality and comfort, and technological fashion in product development.
Facing the uprising of global environmental awareness and the target of net-zero carbon
emissions, the company actively develops environmentally friendly products that comply with
the concept of circulation economics and continuously increases the ratio in development and
sales of environmental recycling new products. At the same time, Honmyue also focuses on
projects of researching and developing pioneering new products and exploring new market
demands for textile applications, so that the overall effectiveness of product research and
development can be enhanced. In the textile industry, Homnyue plays a significant role as an
international professional supplier of environmentally friendly and functional textile products.
Through research and development of new materials and the improvement in techniques of
environmentally friendly manufacturing processes, the company continuously develops
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sustainable and innovative textile products with a focus on low carbon, circularity, and
regeneration.

Significant R&D results of Homnyue in 2022 are as follows:
1. Nylon High-Tenacity Eco-Friendly Dyed-Yarn Fabric
2. Lightweight High-Tenacity Recycled Nylon Fabric
3. Eco-Friendly Lightweight Solar Screen Fabric
4. Recycled Textiles Regenerated Fibers Fabric
5. Fine Denier Eco-Friendly Mechanical Stretch Fabric

The company is planning to establish a sustainable innovation research center for
upgrading the R&D mindset, training advanced R&D talents, and introducing interdisciplinary
and integrated capabilities of R&D resources. We also adopt strategic planning toward the
establishment of the field in forward-looking eco-friendly and functional textiles. We are
transforming from cooperative development to forward-looking and cutting-edge
development, cultivating technical-independent R&D capabilities and matching them with
brand design and development. This enables us to create high-value-added products and
enhance the competitiveness of the company.

Moreover, we continuously introduce international environmental verification and
evaluation tools and improve the product digital platform, which assists the R&D team and
clients in jointly evaluating the environmental impact of new materials during the early stages
of product design and development. By expanding more product lines that fulfill
environmental certification, the company's image in eco-friendly and green energy products
can be enhanced and application markets of new products can be explored.

2. Overview of the 2023 Business Plan and future development strategies of the company

(1) Overview of the 2023 Business Plan and future development strategies

Homnyue possesses multiple production lines and can react quickly and provide
customers with products of expected qualities and on time. In a highly competitive and
challenging industry environment, Homnyue adheres to its company mission of "creating
customer value", and actively utilizes domestic and foreign production and marketing
resources as well as external supply resources, striving for sustainability from the material
side, processing side, and equipment. This includes carbon reduction equipment, easy
decomposition and reusability, and biomass materials. Through these efforts, sustainable
development can be achieved.

Meanwhile, by applying digital tools and improving technologies, production capacities
such as production efficiency and quality can be enhanced. Furthermore, we continuously
cultivate the industrial and furniture fabric markets and expand the markets in garment fabrics
and medical textiles. Through service-driven production, we actively enhance our core
competitiveness and lay the foundation for the long-term and stable growth of the company.

(2) Expected amount of sales and its foundation
Despite the global economic environment is still full of uncertain factors, we will actively
explore new customers and new markets. We will also strengthen the value uplift for our core
customers and maintain customer relationships. It is anticipated that the company's operations
will maintain steady growth in the coming year.

(3) Effects from the external competitive environment, regulatory environment, and overall business
environment

There will be still a high level of uncertainty in 2023, especially the status of demand
exceeding supply in labor and energy, and it is anticipated that the labor and energy costs will
continue to rise.

Homnyue will maintain a cautious yet proactive approach in addressing these challenges.
We are committed to the value maximization and sustainability of textiles and explore new
application areas. We firmly believe that all employees can uphold the business philosophy of
"Integrity, Proactivity, Initiative, and Innovation." In view of an uncertain business
environment in the future, we will fulfill our social responsibilities through concrete actions
and achieve our operational performance goals. We collaborate with our supply chain and
customers, seeking mutual benefits and prosperity. Homnyue is committed to becoming a
blissful enterprise that encompasses both material and spiritual well-being.

Finally, I would like to wish you all good health and everything goes well with you.



2. Company Profile

(1) Date of establishment: 4th September 1970
(2) Company history:
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Established by our founder, Mr. Ye Zhao-Cheng (3£ 7 33 ), with a capital of NTD 3
million, purchasing 60 looms and starting the business as an original equipment
manufacturer (OEM) in weaving services.

With a capital increase of NTD 20 million, the machinery and equipment were
expanded, and Homnyue became a significant professional manufacturer of short-fiber
industrial base fabrics in the country.

A capital increase of NTD 60 million to strengthen the financial structure.

Purchased an industrial land of 14512.89 ping in Chuansing Industrial District and
actively engaged in the expansion of the long-fiber fabric manufacturing plant.

A capital increase of NTD 120 million to build the Shengang Plant and purchase long-
fiber weaving equipment.

The construction of the 2100-ping long-fiber weaving plant in Phase One of the
Shengang Plant was completed, and the most innovative set of TSUDAKOMA
warping, sizing, and beaming machines from Japan was introduced, as well as 64
water jet looms. We were officially entering the area of long-fiber fabrics.

A capital increase of NTD 60 million to strengthen the financial structure.

The equipment of the Hemei Plant was renewed and with the introduction of 32 Swiss
gripper looms, the capacity of short-fiber fabrics was expanded and the quality was
also improved. The Shengang Plant had installed a set of warping and beaming
machines and 64 water jet looms to expand the capacity of long—%ber fabrics.
Directors and supervisors were re-elected, and quotas tor these positions were
increased to strengthen the management lineup.

The capital increase and public offering were approved by Letter No. 51871 of the
Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission (Type One), 1ssued by the Securities and
Futures Bureau, Ministry of Finance (1987).

A capital increase of NTD 380 million to build the administrative office building,
purchase the Taipei Office, and strengthen the financial structure.

The Shengang Plant had renewed its equipment and imported 64 water jet looms from
NISSAN, Japan to expand its capacity.

The long-fiber products from the Shengang Plant of the company had passed the
(TUV) ISO-9002 Certification of TUV Rheinland.

The equipment of the Hemei Plant was renewed and with the introduction of 51 air jet
looms and the renewal of the whole set of warping and sizing equipment, the capacity
of short-fiber fabrics was expanded and the quality was also improved.

The Shengang plant introduced 32 French loom shuttles to increase the product types
of long—ﬁ%er %a%rics and its R&D capabilities.

The capital increase was approved by Letter No. 55972 of the Taiwan Financial
Supervisory Commission FType One), issued by the Securities and Futures Bureau,
Ministry of Finance (1987). The paid-in capital was NTD 429,400,000.

Applied for stock listing on the Over-the-Counter (OTC) market.

Completion and inauguration of the newly constructed administrative office building.
The OTC Review Committee approved the application for stock listing.

The company's stocks were officially listed for trading on the OTC.

The capital increase was approved by Letter No. 56519 of the Taiwan Financial
Supervisory Commission (Type One), issued by the Securities and Futures Bureau,
Ministry of Finance (1989). The paid-in capital was NTD 485,222,000.

The Shengang plant introduced 28 double-nozzle water jet looms from Toyota, Japan,
and 32 single-nozzle water jet loom as well as 60 multi-arm shuttle looms from
France.

The short-fiber products from the Hemei Plant of the company had passed the (TUV)
ISO-9002 Certitication of TUV Rheinland.

The capitalization of retained earnings, capital surplus, and employee dividends was
approved by Letter No. 58476 of the Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission
(Type One), issued by the Securities and Futures Bureau, Ministry of Finance (2000).
The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 608,862,120.

The stock had been transferred from the OTC to the Taiwan Stock Exchange and was
officially listed for trading.
Overseas investment holding company "HONGYU HOLDINGS L.L.C(USA)" was

actahlichad
The capitalization of retained earnings and capital surplus was approved by Letter No.

144127 of the Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission (Type One), issued by the
Securities and Futures Bureau, Ministry of Finance (2001). The paid-in capital after
capitalization was NTD 730,634,550.

Completion and inauguration of the newly constructed Shengang Plant, with a size of
5000 ping.
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The capitalization of retained earnings was approved by Letter No. 0910137456 of the
Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission (PF ype One;, issued by the Securities and
Futures Bureau, Ministry of Finance (2002). The paid-in capital after capitalization
was NTD 818,310,700.

Purchased 56 TSUDAKOMA water jet looms.

The authorized capital was raised to NTD 1,418,310,700, and proposed to conduct a
cash capital increase of NTD 150 million and issue convertible corporate bonds of
NTD 300 million.

The cash capital increase was approved by Letter No. 0920118578 of the Taiwan
Financial Supervisory Commission (Tﬁpe One), issued by the Securities and Futures
Bureau, Ministry of Finance (2003). The paid-in capital was NTD 968,310,700.

Issued a first 5-year domestic unsecured convertible corporate bond of NTD 300
million on the OTC market.

The capitalization of retained earnings was approved by Letter No. 0920143501 of the
Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission (Type Onegl, issued by the Securities and
Futures Bureau, Ministry of Finance (2003). The paid-in capital after capitalization
was NTD 1,036,092,450.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. %9301 121290, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2004). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,051,629,350.

To expand the capacities, the land, factories, and equipment of the Chuansing Plant
originally owned by Rui Yuan Fiber Co. Ltd were acquired in May 2004.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. 09301075500, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2004). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,067,662,120.

Invested and established Honmyue Textile (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd in Jiaxing City,
Zhejiang Province.

The process of amending the Articles of Corporation was approved by Business
Permit No. 09301121290, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (2004). The
paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,838,310,700.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit N0.09301139710, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (2004).
The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,069,562,940.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved b

Business Permit N0.09301139710, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (2004).
The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,111,928,930.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. 09301202500, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2004). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,112,432,240.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. 09401016450, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2005). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,119,909,710.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. 09401074050, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2005). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,124,504,300.

The capitalization of retained earnings was approved by Letter No. 0940129600 of the
Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission (Type One), issued by the Financial
Supervisory Commission of the Executive Yuan. The paid-in capital after
capitalization was NTD 1,214,443,020.

Invested and established Dongguan Homnyue Textile Technologies Co., Ltd. in
Dongguan City, Guangdong Province.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. 09501166150, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2006). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,323,907,880.

The process of issuing new shares through convertible bonds was approved by
Business Permit No. 09501221720, issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
(2006). The paid-in capital after capitalization was NTD 1,325,715,100.

Invested and established the joint venture Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., Ltd. Textile
(Zhejiang) Co., Ltd in Jiaxing City, Zhejiang Province.

Passed the official certification of ISO14001 Environmental Management Systems.

The capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 53,028,610 was approved by Business
Permit No. 09701254920, issued in October 2008. The paid-in capital after
capitalization was NTD 1,378,743,710.

Passed the bluesign certification which encompassed the Swiss high standard of
environmental protection, health, and safety.



53.
54.

55.
56.

57.

58.
59.
60.
61.

62.
63.

64.
66.
67.

68.
69.

70.

71.
72.

73.
74.

75.

76.
77.

78.

79.
80.
81.
82.

&3.
84.
85.

86.
87.

88.
&9.
90.
91.
92.

December 2010
March 2011

May 2011
July 2012

December 2012

January 2013
July 2013
September 2013
September 2014

October 2014
July 2015

August 2015
December 2015
January 2017

February 2017

November 2017
January 2018

February 2018

March 2018
May 2018

July 2018
July 2018

August 2018

November 2018
December 2018

February 2019

June 2019

July 2019
August 2019
September 2019

November 2019
January 2020
May 2020

November 2020
January 2021

April 2021
January 2022
August 2022
October 2022
January 2023

The Hemei Plant introduced 4 Swiss rapier looms, while the Shengang plant
introduced 12 water jet looms from Yiin Chuen.

The Shengang Plant introduced 140 water jet looms from Yiin Chuen, while the
Chuansing Plant introduced 20 water jet looms from Yiin Chuen.

The Chuansing Plant introduced a Swiss automatic drawing-in machine.

Passed the GMP certification for surgical gowns and surgical drapes, and obtained the
Certificate of Quality Manufacturing in Medical Devices from the Ministry of Health
and Welfare, Executive Yuan.

Obtained the medical device permit from the Ministry of Health and Welfare,
Executive Yuan for " 'Homnyue' surgical drape and its accessories."

Obtained the medical device permit from the Ministry of Health and Welfare,
Executive Yuan for " '"Homnyue' surgical gown."

Obtained the new patent for "Photocatalyst yarn thread".

The cancellation of treasury stocks of NTD 40,864,020 was approved by Business
Permit No. 10201180180, 1ssued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs. The paid-in
capital after the capital reduction was NTD 1,337,879,690.

The cancellation of treasury stocks of NTD 38,910,000 was approved by Business
Permit No. 10301185980, 1ssued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs. The paid-in
capital after the capital reduction was NTD 1,298,969,690.

Invested and established Wen Fa Comprehensive Development Co., Ltd.

Passed the Global Recycle Standard ( GRS) for recycling textiles globally.

Obtained the new patent for "Section dyeing gauze material structure".

Overseas investment holding company "Home-e Holding Co., Ltd." was established.
Wen Fa Comprehensive Development Co., Ltd. invested in Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd.
with a shareholding of 70%.

Participated in the 2017 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award,

in which four of our products were selected as "Top Ten Products".

Obtained the new patent for "Light efficient composite mesh fabric structure".

Obtained the new patent for "Roller shutter fabric with luminous display", "Sieve
cloth structure featuring tensile strength improvement", and "The embossed structure
of PVC rolling curtains".

Participated in the 2018 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award,

in which three of our products were selected as "Top Ten Products", and two were
selected as "Outstanding Piece".

The Chuansing Plant introduced a Swiss automatic drawing-in machine.

Obtained the new patent for "Composite water pressure cloth", "Cloth body with
three-dimensional layer", and "Cotton-like elastic yarn".

Obtained the new patent for "Improved PVC-coated yarn".
Invested in Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. with a shareholding of 70%.

Obtained the new patent for "Environmental mesh" and "Composite yarn with
reflective effect".

Awarded the 3rd 'Group Award for Exemplary Labors' from the Ministry of Labor.
Invested and established Jiujiang DeYu Textile Technologies Co., Ltd in Jiujiang
City, Jiangxi Province.

Participated in the 2019 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award,

in which three of our products were selected as "Top Ten Products", and eight were
selected as "Outstanding Piece".

Engaged in the cash capital increase of Utex Innovation Co., Ltd., and the
accumulated shareholding ratio became 80%.

Obtained the new patent for "Light fabric with paper feeling" and "Color-halo-free
printing cloth with wear resistance".

Obtained the new patent for "Fabric with color mixing effect by double-layer
adhesion" and "Repairable and artificially restoring fabric".

Obtained the new patent for "Three-layer laminating structure for double-sided bag
material" and "Wrap yarn structure with cool feeling".

Awarded Four-Star Award for "Energetic Changhua Blissful Workplace" by the
Changhua County Government.

Participated in the 2020 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award, in which five of our products
were selected as "Top Ten Products", and three were selected as "Outstan(ﬁng Piece".
Engaged in the cash capital increase of Utex Innovation Co., Ltd., and the
accumulated shareholding ratio became 83.33%.

Awarded "2020 Sporting Enterprise Certification" by the Ministry of Education.
Participated in the 2021 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award, in which one of our products
were selected as "Top Five Products"”, and five were selected as "Outstanding Piece".
Engaged in the cash capital increase of Utex Innovation Co., Ltd., and the
accumulated shareholding ratio became 86.67%.

Participated in the 2022 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award, in which three of our products
were selected as "Top Ten Products", and one was selected as "Outstanding Piece".
Awarded 2022 Taiwan Technical Textiles Innovation Award by the Taiwan Technical
Textiles Association.

Awarded Outstand Piece in the Golden Like Award of Labour Proposals.

Participated in the 2023 ISPO TEXTRENDS Award, in which two of our products
were selected as "Top Ten Products", and two were selected as "Outstanding Piece".



3.1 Organization

(1) Structure of Organization

3. Corporate Governance Report

Audit Committee

Shareholders Meeting

Board of Directors

Remunerations Committee
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Audit Office
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Workers' Retirement Reserve Funds Supervisory Committee

Committee of Occupational Health and Safety

Committee of Employee Welfare
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Human Resources Review Committee
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Committee of Cyber Security and Risk General Manager's Office
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Department of Production . Department of Administration Department of Finance
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(2) Business Operations of Major Departments

Department Major Responsibilities
* The preliminary planning operations for the business blueprint of the company in the
Chairman's Office | future ) , . .
* Execution of special project tasks assigned by the Chairman
*Responsible for the audit, anomaly analysis, and improvement recommendations for
Audit Office each company within the group to ensure the integrity of group assets, compliance

with laws and regulations, and effective risk management.

General Manager's
Office

* Assist the group in planning future business directions and key factors for sustainable
operations of the company, and integrate group resources to help each company
within the group improve operational performance, establish relevant operational
mechanisms, and optimize current operational processes.

*Based on the company's mid to long-term development strategy planning, an
information platform that aligns with the development strategy is established,
developed, and maintained. This can assist the group to achieve the valuable goals of
enhancing efficiency, reducing costs, and eliminating risks.

* Legal affairs and credit-related affairs management

* Establishment of a complete su{:»plier management system and the procurement
operations of main raw materials.

* Promote production and marketing activities, increase production and sales volume,
mer;)_ve production efficiency and quality, reduce costs, ensure profits, and increase

enefits.

e Formulate, plan, supervise, and promote safety and health management affairs

* Organize the implementation of production management work in a planned manner,
responsible for t%e exact execution of factory-related production management
systems, and conduct monitoring

* Responsible for the implementation of production plans, monitoring production
progresses, controlling production processes, and utilizing manpower and resources
properly to optimize efficiency and fulfill the requirements of business targets.

I]?I%Pd%fglilggt of * Responsible for implementing standardized quality management and cost control
management. Ensure reasonable and effective inputs, improve production capacity,
enhance quality, reduce costs, and deliver on schedule

* Disaster prevention and emergency response treatment
* Environmental safety and hygiene, environmental production management, fire
safety management, labor safety management
* Management of water, electricity, gases, and other energy sources
* Sales estimation and planning, management of business activities, management of
purchased finished products, management of accounts receivable, and after-sales
service
. * Planning and management of the shipment of finished products, integrating and
Business constructing essential resources to provide products and services that meet market
Department demands, and increasing market shares through the creation of customer values
* Planning and execution of marketing activities
¢ Planning and production of marketing tools
* Market surveys and product merchandising
* Research products that conform to market and customer requirements, thus

D increasing market shares and achieving the goal of revenue and profits for the

epartment of compan

ReSﬁarch and 'Researcﬁ planning and pilot executions of new products

Technology ¢ Construction and management of product technology capabilities

* Management of product testing and verification
* Optimize the human resources system, integrate human resources management with
organizational goals and other management strategies to improve operational

Department of performance and shape the competitive advantage of the group

Adminstration * Management and planning of personnel, general affairs, and assets

* General operations of Frice inquiries, negotiations, and procurement for materials,
equipment, and centralized purchasing items

* Establish and promote the implementation of accounting and cost management
systems in each company witﬁin the group, ensuring compliance with the laws and

Department of regulations as well as management requirements, and enhancing management

Finance performance

* Planning of funds and management of accounts receivable, accounts payable, and
asset risk management




3.2 Information on Directors, General Manager, Deputy General Manager, Associates, and Head of Departments and Branches

(1) Directors
Information of Directors (1)

28t April 2023

o Shareholding at Current shareholding Current spouse & Sharehol.dmg by EXS-CUUVSS‘ directors, or
3 . . . nominee supervisors who are Spouses or
® appointment minor shareholding L X .
8 3 . arrangement within two degrees of kinship
—_ o =1 Iz}
Q. o =] = o )
5% Gender Date 2 :: £ = = on 8 Major Experiences Other Positions in the Comy d g
. g o o & 8 0 1 p S pany an
Tide _E’ Z Name Age effective ; ; '§ =N B No. of TR s £ (education) another company £ E
ER 5 ] = No. of shares | 2.2 | No. of shares | 2.2 0-© 28 & 3 Title Name E ~
S = N °F o E | shares ] S < S
e 25 £= = s Zs =
Z 17} 7] 17} Z S8 3
Department of Banking and Chairman of the company, Director of
Ye Ming- Male 2 e Insurance, Ling Tung Yeh-Meng Metal Ind. Co., Ltd.,
Chairman | R.O.C. Zhou 7180 2021.8.27 28 1997.6 4,251,421 3.27 4,297,421 3.31 0 0 0 0 University None|N o ne|None
(Ep ) s Independent Director of
InterServ International Inc.
Department of Public Finance, | Deputy Chairman of the company,
Feng Chia University Chairman of Po Yu Invest Co. Ltd., Direct
Chen Jin ” Chairman of Yeh-Meng Metal Ind. Co., Hrector FDR
- ] N .
Deputy | poc. | Feng | ToM® | 5021827 | § 2011.6.28 5,591,080 | 4.30 5,886,080 | 4.53 0 0 0 0 Ltd, Director of Yu Yuang Textile Co.,
Chairman 5 & 61~70 :; Ltd., Chairman of Li Sheng Associat
(m£h) Entrepreneurial Investment Co., Ltd., ssocla (E#3) FDR
Supervisor of Li Ding Entrepreneurial ¢
Investment Co., Ltd
Department of Fiber and General Manager of the company
Composite Materials, Feng
Guo ” Chia University
4
Dircctor | RO.C. | Zheng-Pei | M€ | 2021827 | § 2018.6.27 608,856 | 0.47 654,856 | 0.50 | 12,047 0.01 0 o |Plant manager of Formosa None None None
ot 61~70 :; Chemicals and Fiber
() Corporation
Chairman of Utex Innovation
Co., Ltd.
De Anza College Special assistant of the General Manager's BEZiurtxi;a Chen Jin-
Ye Jun- - Office of the company, Chairman of n Feng FDR
Director | RO.C. Lin Male 1 51827 | 8 2021.8.27 6,097,088 | 4.69 | 6,314,088 | 4.86 0 0 0 0 Honmyue Textile (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd., (th)
(F %1% 41~50 e Chairman of Li Ding Entrepreneurial
i Investment Co., Ltd., Director of Po Yu Associat Ye Bo-Yu SDR
Invest Co., Ltd. . (EE3)
Master of Management, Director of Acelon Chemicals & Fiber
National Changhua University |Corporation
Lai Ming- Male 4 of Education Deputy General Manager, Spokesperson
Director | RO.C. Yi 4150 2021.8.27 18 2015.6.30 344,000 [ 0.26 344,000 [ 0.26 0 0 0 0 Director of Acegreen Eco-Material None None None
[GRE )] e} Technology Co., Ltd., Director of
Acenature Biotechnology Co., Ltd.,
Chairman of Jukang Business Corp.
Department of Transportation
Tsai Chen- - and Logistics, Feng Chia
. T Male 5] University
Director | RO.C. | Hui (3 2021.8.27 18 2021.8.27 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L None None None None
) 61~70 e Team Leader and Specialist of
the Investigation Bureau
Supervisor of the company
Hsu Ren- Hsiao Yang Commercial and |Chairman of Fulltide Enterprise Co., Ltd.
. . Male £ Vocational School
Director [ R.O.C. Xing 7180 2021.827 | § 2021.8.27 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 None None None
(35 =) ~
Department of Economics, J.J. Wang International Investment Ltd.
Wang Male 4 Soochow University
Director | R.O.C. | Mao-Lin 61~70 2021.8.27 g 2021.8.27 631,000 | 0.49 409,000 [ 0.31 0 0 0 0 None None None
(2 510 e




Shareholdin: Executives, directors or
= ° Shareholding at Current Current spouse & b .AIng supervisors who are
S = ] B E appointment shareholding minor shareholding y NOmInee spouses or within two
1) s Z5) arrangement P P ]
2%2 ) = e . . Other positions in the degrees of kinship o
Title S8 E Name Gender Date b BE Major Experiences company and another g
= S g
ES3 Age effective '3 RS 2 e ERI R RS (education) company g 2
5% cho g 5 & No. of g -%D.QO No. of g ‘%ooo No.of |’ 4%0; z E g 4%0; Title Name B E =
Z = « shares SE8E shares S8 E shares | ESZ 2 S| E3E o @
172} = 172} ~ 175) ~ 2| A = ~
Department of Nutrition and | Audit Committee member and
5 Health Sciences, Chinese Remuneration Committee
5 Culture University member of the company,
B Chairman of Hsin Hung Yang
e Lin Hong- Male 4 Inner Decorations Co, Ltd.,
5 R.O.C. Zhao 51-60 2021.8.27 | 2 | 2015.6.30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Chairman of Hong Yang None None None
] (+k 2 B2) o Construction Co. Ltd.,
2 Chairman of Jie Cheng
3 Management Consulting Co.
g Ltd., Chairman of Hsin Hung
Yang Investment Co. Ltd.
Advanced EMBA, Feng Audit Committee member and
Chia University; Remuneration Committee
Department of Accounting, [member of the company;
National ChengChi Independent Director, Audit
University Committee member, and
Accountant of PwC Taiwan [Remuneration Committee
and Director of Taichung; |member of United Recommend
5 President and Executive Co., Ltd.; Supervisor of Yeong
5 Director of Taiching Chin Machinery Industries Co.
= Certified Public Ltd.; Director of TONS
e Hsiao Chen- Mal 4 Accountants Association;  |Lightology Inc.; Independent
5 R.O.C.| Chi (&% 6137(:0 2021.8.27 | 2 | 2018.6.27 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Vice-President of R.O.C. Director, Audit Committee None None None
] %) m Certified Public member, and Remuneration
2 Accountants Association Committee member of Horizon
3 Part-time teacher: Securities; Independent
g Department of Accounting, |Director, Audit Committee
Feng Chia University and  |member, and Remuneration
Department of Accounting, |Committee member of Yaoi I
Providence University Fabric Co. Ltd., Supervisor of
Independent Director: Kian |[Ruo Pu Construction and
Shen Corporation, China Development Co. Ltd.,
Motor Corporation Director of Plum-Monix
Industry Co., Ltd.
General Manager of Audit Committee member of
Corporate Synergy the company, Director of
Development Center, Taiwan Textile Research
Deputy Commissioner of  |Institute, Drafting Committee
Intellectual Property Office, [Member of National Standards
M.O.E.A., Part-time in Textiles, Bureau of
o Associate Professor of Standards, Metrology and
% National Taiwan Ocean Inspection, M.O.E.A., Review
o University, Managing member of "One Town One
A Zhu Xing- ® Director of China Product" (OTOP) of Small and
g [ROC| Hua_ | Male ] o001827 |8 | 2021827 | 0 0 0 0 0 0 | o | o [ProductvityCenter, —Medium Enterprise ' None | Nome | None
< (4= ) ~ & anaging 1reqt0r [\) mlI}lStrathl’l, O.EA,
g Precision Machinery Associate Professor of Asia
153 Research & Development  |Eastern University of Science
= Center, Director of Taiwan [and Technology, Secretary
- Testing and Certification General of Taiwan Plastics
Center (ETC) Industry Association,
Independent Director, Audit
Committee member and
Remuneration Committee
member of Tex-Ray Industrial
Co., Ltd.




Information of Directors (2)
1. Disclosure of directors' professional qualifications and information on independent directors'

independence:
Number of
riteria ) ) . ) ) _concurrent
Professional qualifications and experience Status of independence independent
Name (Note 1) (Note 2) director positions
in other public
companies
Ye Ming-Zhou .Operation decisions and strategic
() management, leader of the organization 0
.Experience in textile-related industries
.Operation decisions and strategic
Chen Jin-Feng |management, leader of the organization 0
(&h) .Experience in textile-related industries
.Finance and accounting
. |.Operation decisions and strategic
%%?E%t%%ng-Pel management, leader of the organization 0
.Experience in textile-related industries
Ye Jun-Lin .Operation decisions and strategic
(% m5) management, leader of the organization 0
.Experience in textile-related industries
Lai Ming-Yi .Operation decisions and strategic
(47 P 2 management, leader of the organization 0
R .Experience in textile-related industries
Tsai Chen-Hui |.Operation decisions and strategic . .
(RR"H) management, leader of the organization Comply with the independency 0
Hsu Ren-Xing .Operation decisions and strategic ) )
(3% = &) management, leader of the organization Comply with the independency 0
e .Experience in textile-related industries
. |.Operation decisions and strategic
xa%g *I;Q/I)ao—Lm management, leader of the organization 0
- .Experience in textile-related industries
Lin Hong-Zhao |.Operation decisions and strategic . .
(=% B’ésg malilagement, leader of the orgzﬁlization Comply with the independency 0
. . |.Operation decisions and strategic
?%?g Ig)len'Chl management, leader of the organization Comply with the independency 3

.Finance and accounting

Zhu Xing—Hua
(= a)

.Operation decisions and strategic
management, leader of the organization
.Experience in textile-related industries

Comply with the independency

1

Note: @ The professional qualifications, experiences and major education, and career history
of directors (including independent directors) can be referred to the relevant
information on pp. 8~9 of "Information of Directors (1)"

®@All company directors (including independent directors) are under none of the
circumstances listed in Article 30 of the Company Act.
2. The diversity and independence of the Board of Directors
(1) The diversity of the Board of Directors
The company has stipulated the "Procedures for Election of Directors", and the Board of
Directors has passed the "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles" on 12" November
2021. The composition of the Board of Directors should consider diversity and draft
appropriate diversity policies based on its own operations, business models, and development

needs.

Currently, the Board of Directors has only one female director, and in the future female
director positions will be gradually increased following the principle of gender equality. The
tenure of independent directors in the company is evenly distributed in terms of years of
service. There is one director who has been serving for 8 years, another who has been serving
for 5 years, and a newly appointed director on 27" August 2021. And there is overall 72% of
directors possess experience in textile-related industries.

10




The implementation of diversity among members of the Board of Directors is as follows:

iversified Basic composition ' Industry experience and professional capabilities
core © Length of service - - =
2 as an o B o e w 2 o s
> o an = = - = 9
5 | €43 director ZZ =€ ZE =8 Sz §E = o0t
s S g 52 S & 858 5= HE =37 ¢ 8w
5|54 e |z |z | 22 25 25 25 25 =42 |52
o} 59 o = o o g g S g8 52 g4 g2 2¢F 22 ¥ 2 2
2 @ S = o 5] o 5] o5 2.z 2g 98 2= o8 9 S =
Name of =N PO A B A A A e gggéggggj Cha 25
. EQ Eo EEE
director ﬁ = e © = 2 & & & g §
Ye Ming-
Zhou M v v v v v v v v v
)
Chen Jin-
Feng F v v v v v v v v v v
(W& h)
Guo
Zheng-Pei | M | v v v v v v v v v
("L i)
Ye Jun-
Lin M| Vv |V v v v v v v v
(i & )
Lai Ming-
Yi M v v v v v v v v
CE P #)
Tsai Chen-
Hui M v v v v v v v
(34 45)
Hsu Ren-
Xing M v v v v v v v v
GrE®)
Wang
Mao-Lin M v v v v v v v v
(€551
Lin Hong-
Zhao M v v v v v v v v
(2 R)
Hsiao
Chen-Chi M v v v v v v v v v
(BZ#)
Zhu Xing-
Hua M v v 4 v v v v v v
(hBE)

(2) Status on the compliance of independency (Note2)

The directors and independent directors of the company, their spouses, and relatives within
two degrees of kinship do not hold positions as directors, supervisors, or employees of the
company or its affiliated enterprises; the directors and independent directors of the
company, their spouses, and relatives within two degrees of kinship (or by nominee
arrangement) also do not hold company's shares and positions as directors, supervisors, or
employees of companies that have specific relationships to the company. In the recent two
years, the directors and independent directors of the company, their spouses, and relatives
within two degrees of kinship do not acquire remunerations by offering legal, financial, or
accounting services to the company or its affiliated enterprises and businesses.

11



(2) Information on the General Manager, Deputy General Manager, and Head of Departments and Branches

28™ April 2023

Managerial officials who are

2 . . Spouse’s/minor’s Shareholding by o
= 5 Current shareholding sharcholding . 7 " Mai . d Oth L h spouses or within two degrees of
Title ] Name = Date effective shareholding nominee arrangemen ajor experiences an ther positions in another kinship Remark
% @ _ _ _ education company
< No. of shares Shareholdmg No. of shares Shareholdmg No. of Shareholdmg Title Name | Relationship
ratio % ratio % shares ratio %
Department of Fiber and
Composite Materials, Feng Chia
. University
General Manager RO.C. G"‘;’flft_,‘g')l)e‘ M |2021.09.14 654,856 0.50 12,047 0.01 0 0 |Plant manager of Formosa None None None None
Lt Chemicals and Fiber Corporation
Chairman of Utex Innovation Co.,
Ltd.
Exccutive Deput Department of Business
General Mana; per}(,)f Hong Jin- Administration, National Taipei Director of Honmyue Textile
nag R.O.C. Chang M |2022.04.01 503,241 0.39 908 0 0 0 |University of Business - Y None None None
the Business v . L . (Zhejiang) Co.,Ltd
Department GEdh b)) Director of Jia Lien Textile Co.,
P Lid.
Chairman of Wen Fa
Comprehensive Development
Department of Electrical Co., Ltd., Supervisor of Yu
e g a Engineering, University of Yuang Textile Co., Ltd.,
B“*‘“ZZ(I)JCT;’;"“”“‘ roc. | ¥¢ ]j;’ z ; G| M | 2020.02.01 5,731,132 441 1,788,507 138 0 0 |Southern California Director of Po Yu Invest Co. None None None
- - Director of Jia Lien Textile Co., [Ltd., Director of Rui Lian
Ltd. Weave Co., Ltd, Director of
Yeh-Meng Metal Ind. Co.,
Ltd.
Department of . . Junior College in Chung Chou . -
Production ro.c. | CaiYoubian |\l 5652 01.01 123,000 0.09 0 0 0 0 |University of Science and Director of Jijiang DeYu None None None
X (FErL) Textile Technologies Co., Ltd.
Associate Technology
Business Department Pan Cai-Juan Department of Business, National
Associat R.O.C. (& 40) F 12022.01.01 53,000 0.04 0 0 0 0 |Fengshan Senior Commercial and {None None None None
ssociate i Industrial Vocational School
Manager of
M::;%:?; ::i:[[“d Executive Master of Business Supervisor of Jiujiang DeYu
p Zhuo Su-Qing Administration, Department of | Textile Technologies Co., Ltd.,
ﬁ:r?;ere’r'(zeongf{lile ROC. (% %97) F ] 2019.07.01 149,968 0.12 0 0 0 0 Accounting, National Changhua |supervisor of Utex Innovation None None None
Head ng Corporate University of Education Co., Ltd.
Governance
Manager of
Information Chen Shao-Rui Master of Business
Management Center, R.O.C. o M [2020.02.01 21,000 0.02 0 0 0 0 [Administration, National Chin-Yi |None None None None
(PR3 %)
General Manager's v University of Technology
Office
Manager of the
Department of RO.C Pan Li-Zhe 2022.01.01 134.036 0.10 04 0 0 0 Department of Accounting, Feng None None None None
Finance T (& =4 T ’ . Chia University
Head of Accounting
. . Industrial Engineering and
Business Department | g o.c. [, Oz:ar(’il;f‘, )| M | 2022.02.01 55,000 0.04 0 0 0 0 [Management, National Chin-Yi ~ [None None None None
& 2 v University of Technology
Business Department Hsu Wei-Fang Mastf:r.of Bgsmess
M R.O.C. (% %) 2022.04.01 48,000 0.04 0 0 0 0 | Administration, Chung Yuan None None None None
anager e Christian University
Manager of
Department of Guo Yan-Hong Department of Textiles and
Rescarch and R.O.C. 657 %) M [2022.09.01 53,000 0.04 8,000 0.01 0 0 Clothing, Fu Jen University None None None None
Technology
Chief and supervisor Department of Insurance and
pervis Hsieh Hui-Na Finance, National Taichung
of the Department of R.O.C. e F 2022.11.11 33,000 0.03 0 0 0 0 . ? X None None None None
Finance (3 4%) University of Science and
Technology
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3.3 Remunerations of Directors, General Manager, and Deputy General Manager in the most recent fiscal year
(1) Remuneration of general directors and independent directors

Unit: NTD Thousand

Director remuneration Relevant remuneration received by directors who are also employees
Total remuneration Total Remuneration £ 8.8
Direct. (A+B+C+D) and its (A+B+CHDHEAF+G) | S § 3
Base rrectors Fees for business ratio to net profit | Salary, Bonuses, and | Severance Pay (F) | Employee Compensation (G) (Note |and its ratio to net profit| < £E
. Compensation (A) Severance Pay (B) Compensation operations (D) after-tax Allowances (E) (Note 1) 2) after tax 232
Title Name (C) (Note 2) g= z
Q
= All companies in g g £
o & g ,|ed|=&F o & g = 0 & 1% ES 8|, 8 g8 0 & g8 ,|e&|- &€ The company | the Financial | o & 82 ,/E%%
= w = w2 = w 2 > g == wn 2 > = n 2 = »n 2 2 = w218 2
EE|<E8E|FE|<E8S|FEF|<E8S|FEF| ECE|EEFR|I<ESS|EER|RESS|EE|<EES Statement |E EF |<ELE|Rz%
o o = 3] o = o o = 3] o = 3] o = 3] o = o o = 3] o <
Cash | Stocks | Cash | Stocks
. Ye Ming-Zhou
Chairman (P )
. Chen Jin-Feng
Deputy Chairma ik h)
Guo Zheng-Pei
(38 i)
Ye Jun-Lin
(E &) 4,629 | 4,629 12,271 12,271
Lai Ming-vi 0 0 0 0 3,349 3,349 1,280 1,280 5.08% | 5.98% 7,429 7,429 63 63 150 0 150 0 15.85% 15.85% None
. CEES)
Director Tsai Chen-Hui
(B4R )
Hsu Ren-Xing
-8
Wang Mao-Lin
(€30 5iD)
Lin Hong-Zhao
(2B
Independent Hsiao Chen-Chi 2,360 2,360 2,360 2,360
Director B2 %) 1,080 1,080 0 0 0 0 1,280 1,280 3.05% 3.05% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3.05% 3.05% None
Zhu Xing-Hua
Ch& )

1. The payment policy, system, standard, and structure of remuneration for independent directors shall be explained, and according to the duty assumed, risks, time input, and other factors, their relationship to the amount of remuneration paid shall be

explained:

A. According to the regulations of the Articles of Incorporation of the company, the remuneration of directors of the company is determined by the Board of Directors based on industry standards.

B. The payment of directors' remuneration is conducted in accordance with the "Procedures for the Payment of Director and Functional Committee Remuneration". Since independent directors also serve as members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee and participate in the discussions and resolutions of relevant committee meetings,
therefore they have higher remunerations than general directors.
2. Besides the disclosure from the table above, remuneration received by the directors of the company for providing services (such as serving as non-employee consultants in the parent company/ all companies in the Financial Statement/ invested businesses)
in the most recent fiscal year: NONE

Note 1: The amounts listed are the pension contributed/paid under the New Labor Pension System.
Note 2: The Board of Directors of the company approved the amounts for the distribution of director and employee remunerations on 28th March 2023.
The listed amounts are the proposed figures.

Table on Range of Remuneration

Range of Remuneration

Name of director

Total of (A+B+C+D)

Total of (A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The company

All companies in the Financial Statement

The company

All companies in the Financial
Statement
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Chen Jin-Feng (M £ ), Guo Zheng-Pei (5% |Chen Jin-Feng (it £ & ), Guo Zheng-Pei (38 & |Ye Jun-Lin (¥ % M%), Lai Ming-Yi|Ye Jun-Lin (¥ % &%), Lai Ming-Yi
Less than NTD 1.000.000 & i), Ye Jun-Lin (¥ % R}E), Lai Ming-Yi (¥ | /), Ye Jun-Lin (ﬁ_ ’é;ﬂg‘i), Lai Ming-Yi (] /" | (# P 3), Tsai ppen—Hui (GF4RE),| (P ), Tsai phen—Hui (iR H),
U %), Tsai Chen-Hui (%% 4% *&), Hsu Ren-|#.), Tsai Chen-Hui (%% 4&*&), Hsu Ren-Xing|Hsu Ren-Xing (37 i= ), Wang Mao-|Hsu Ren-Xing (3 i= #), Wang Mao-
Xing (3 iz #) Wang Mao-Lin (2 §1F), Lin|(3F = #) Wang Mao-Lin (2 §4%). Lin Hone-| Lin (% ’§4%). Lin Hong-Zhao (4%| Lin (2 5¥4k). Lin Hong-Zhao (3
NTD 1,000,000 (Inc.)~NTD 2,000,000 (Not inc.) Ye Ming-Zhou (¥ 7 #+') Ye Ming-Zhou (£ B ') Chen Jin-Feng (Mt £ ) Chen Jin-Feng (Mt £ &)
NTD 2,000,000 (Inc.)~NTD 3,500,000 (Not inc.) 0 0 0 0
- . Ye Ming-Zhou (¥ P’ #+'), Guo Ye Ming-Zhou (£ P +'), Guo
NTD 3,500,000 (Inc.)~NTD 5,000,000 (Not inc.) 0 Zhene-Pei (38 & i) Zhong-Pei (3% & i)
NTD 5,000,000 (Inc.)~NTD 10,000,000 (Not inc.) 0 0 0 0
NTD 10,000,000 (Inc.)~NTD 100,000,000 or above 0 0 0 0
Total 11 people 11 people 11 people 11 people
(2) Remuneration of the General Manager and the Deputy General Manager Unit: NTD Thousand
. Severance Pay Salary, Bonuses, and . Total remuneration 25 o=
Base Compensation (A) (B) (Note 1) Allowances (C) Employee Compensation (D) (Note 3)  [(A+B+C+D) and its ratio .5 QE, £ §
to net profit after-tax [£ 595 g g
. . e All 58855
Titl N . All . All companies in the . L2 2=8S49
itle ame The All companies The ci?lr?}[l):nles The All companies The company Financizri) 1 Statement The companies é E qgﬁ g =)
company | P the Financial | mpany | Financial | company | i the Financial company inthe 12 §'5 2 g
Statement Statement Statement Cash Stocks Cash Stocks g tle?t?rlr?; ¢ MEE &

Guo Zheng-Pei (3%

General Manager )

Business Department
Executive Deputy
General Manager

Hong Jin-Chang

i E 8,924 8,924
(B4 b) 4,956 4,956 156 156 3,522 3,522 290 0 290 0 11.53% 11.53% None

Deputy General Chen Cang-Jun
Manager (MiA &) (Note 2)

Note 1: The amounts listed are the pension contributed/paid under the New Labor Pension System.

Note 2: Deputy General Manager Chen Cang-Jun (F# ;& & ) retired on 31st October 2022.

Note 3: The Board of Directors of the company approved the amount for the distribution of employee remuneration on 28th March 2023. The
listed amounts are the proposed figures.

Table on Range of Remuneration

. Name of General Manager and Deputy General Manager
Range of remuneration
The company All companies in the Financial Statement

Less than NTD 1,000,000 0 0
NTD 1,000,000 (Included)~NTD 2,000,000 (Not included) 0 0
NTD 2,000,000 (Included)~NTD 3,500,000 (Not included) Hong Jin-Chang (3 'ﬁ‘(ﬁg;gfn Cang-Jun (A i) Hong Jin-Chang (:% 4 & ), Chen Cang-Jun (Fi % ) (Note 2)
NTD 3,500,000 (Included)~NTD 5,000,000 (Not included) Guo Zheng-Pei (58 i) Guo Zheng-Pei (58 & i)
NTD 5,000,000 (Included)~NTD 10,000,000 (Not included) 0 0
NTD 10,000,000 or above 0 0
Total 3 people 3 people
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(4) Name of managerial officials who distribute employee remuneration and the status of distribution
Unit: NTD Thousand
. Cash Ratio of total remuneration to
Title Name Stocks (Note) Total net profit after-tax
Guo Zheng-Pei
General Manager Gha i)
Executive Deputy General Manager of Hong Jin-Chang
the Business Department (54 8)
. . Ye Bo-Yu
Associate of the Business Department g
GE =)
Associate of the Department of Cai You- Dian
Production (EimL)
Associate of the Business Department Pan Cai-Juan
P G 348)
" Manager of Management and
= Administration Center, General Zhuo Su-Qing
é Manager's Office (4 % 9T)
o Head of Corporate Governance
= 0,
‘g Manager of Information Management Chen Shao-Rui 0 700 700 0.90%
§" Center, General Manager's Office (% %)
§ Manager of the Department of Finance Pan Li-Zhe
Head of Accounting (&=
Manager of the Business Department Zhang Pil-,l:long
(5 %)
Manager of the Business Department Hszl,,w Yel:)F;ing
o
Manager of the Department of Guo Yan-Hong
Research and Technology (%3 %)
. Hsieh Hui-Na
Head of Finance (3 8 47)
Note: The Board of Directors of the company approved the amount for the distribution of employee remuneration
on 28th March 2023. The listed amounts are the proposed figures.
(5)  For remunerations paid to directors, supervisors, General Manager, and Deputy General Manager by the

company and all companies in the Consolidated Financial Statements in the past two fiscal years, an analysis
of the ratio of the total amount of remunerations to net profit after tax of the Individual Financial Statement
shall be provided. The analysis shall also explain the policies, standards, and composition on the payment of
remunerations, procedures for the setting of the remuneration, and the correlation with business performance
and future risks.
1. The analysis of the ratio of total remunerations paid to directors, supervisors, General Manager, and
Deputy General Manager by the company and all companies in the Consolidated Financial Statements

in the past two fiscal years to net profit after tax:
Unit: NTD Thousand

2021 Total remuneration

ratio to net profit after tax

All companies in the Consolidated
Financial Statement

2022 Total remuneration

ratio to net profit after tax

All companies in the Consolidated
Financial Statement

Title

The company The company

Director 18.90% 18.90% 10.44% 10.44%
Supervisor (Note) 0 0 0.79% 0.79%
General Manager and 11.53% 11.53% 5.97% 5.97%

Deputy General Manager

Note : On 27th August 2021, the company established the Audit Committee to replace supervisors.

2. The policy, standards, and combinations on the payment of remunerations, the program for determining

the remuneration, and the relationship between the remuneration and the company's operational

performance:
For the paid remuneration to directors by the company, the director compensation and traveling
allowances for participating in operation businesses of the company and attending Board of Directors
Meetings are included. According to the Articles of Corporation of the company, if there are profits
in this fiscal year, a ratio of not less than 2% of the profits shall be appropriated as employee
remuneration, and they will be distributed in stocks or cash by the resolution of the Board of Directors,
and the recipients include employees from subsidiaries who fulfill certain criteria. And for the
aforementioned profits of the company, a ratio of not more than 5% shall be appropriated as director
remuneration by the resolution of the Board of Directors. Distribution of employee and director
remunerations shall be submitted for report at the Shareholders' Meeting. However, if the company
has accumulated losses, the profits shall be retained to make up for the losses first, and the remainder
allocated as employee and director remunerations afterward according to the ratio of the preceding
paragraph.
The remuneration provided to managerial officials is allocated in accordance with the various salary
and bonus systems of the company. The distribution is based on factors such as the scope of
responsibilities associated with the position, the achievement rate of the overall operational goals of
the company, individual performance, and his/her educational background and experiences. The
remuneration level is also determined by considering the salary benchmarks of positions of similar
nature in the industry market. The proposed remuneration is subject to review by the Remuneration
Committee and then submitted to the Board of Directors for resolution.

(D).

).
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3.4 Implementation of Corporate Governance
(1) Information regarding the operating status of the Board of Directors
6 Board of Directors meetings were commenced in the recent fiscal year and the presence and
attendance of directors and independent directors are as follows:

- Presence (Attendance) | Attendance on | Actual attendance rate
Title Name . o Remark
in person (B) proxy (%)
Chairman R g Thou 6 100%
Deputy Chairman ggeg .gn)-Feng 3 50%
Guo Zheng-Pei
(352 %) 6 100%
Lai Ming-Yi o
(57 P 42 6 100%
Ye Jun-Lin o
| (G %) > i
Director Tsai Chen-Hui
sai Chen-Hui
(FE4R E) 6 100%
Hsu Ren-Xing
Wang Mao-Lin o
(2 5 1) > s
Zhu Xing-Hua
(4 2 %) 6 100%
Independent director %‘;’?5 gil)g-Zhao 6 100%
Z Fe
Hsiao Chen-Chi 0
(BT 1) 6 100%

Other mentionable items:
1. If any of the following circumstances occur in the operation of the Board of Directors, the

dates of the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, all independent directors’ opinions and the
company’s response should be specified:

(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Date of meeting

Content of motion

Opinions of all

The company's treatment
of the opinions of the

of the 19" term)

independent directors

Session independent directors independent directors
2022/1/18 1. Proposal on the distribution of year-end bonuses and operation Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
(The 4" meeting| performance bonuses for managerial officials for the year 2021. by all attending by all attending directors

2. Proposal on the appropriation ratio of director and employee
remunerations for the year 2022. (Director remuneration 3%,
Employee remuneration 3%)

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2022/3/22
(The 5" meeting
of the 19" term)

1. The 2022 Individual and Consolidated Financial Statements of
the company.O

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2. Proposal on the change of CPA for Financial Statements after Q1
of 2022.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

3. Evaluation of the independence and suitability of the CPA of the
company.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

4. Proposal of the issuance of 2021 Statement on the Internal
Control System” by the company.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

5. Proposal on the amendments to “Operational Procedures for
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

6. Proposal on the loaning of funds to the subsidiary.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

7. Proposal on the distribution of director and supervisor
remunerations and employee remuneration for the year 2021

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors
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Date of meeting
Session

Content of motion

Opinions of all
independent directors

The company's treatment
to the opinions of the
independent directors

2022/5/12
(The 6" meeting
of the 19" term)

1. The Q1 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2. Proposal on the distribution of the 2022 Dragon Boat Festival
(Mid-year) performance bonus to managerial officials.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2022/6/21
(The 7" meeting
of the 19" term)

Proposal on the adjustment of suspension period for conversions
and converting prices of the Homnyue second domestic
unsecured convertible corporate bonds.

[ For the adjustment of converting prices of the second domestic
unsecured convertible corporate bonds, it is proposed that the
chairman is authorized to handle with full authority ]

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2022/8/12
(The 8" meeting
of the 19" term)

1. The Q2 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2. Proposal on the appointment remuneration of CPA for the year
2022.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

3. Proposal on the distribution of "Director and Supervisor
Remunerations for the year 2021".

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

4. Proposal on the distribution of "Employee Remuneration for the
year 2021" to managerial officials.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

5. Proposal for the amendment of the company's "Procedures for
the Payment of Director and Functional Committee
Remuneration".

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2022/11/11
(The 9
meeting of the
19" term)

1. The Q3 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

2. The company proposes to revise the operational schedule for the
self-preparation of the Financial Statement.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

3. Proposal for the 2023 internal audit plan.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

4. The appointment of the "Head of Financing" of the company.

Approved unanimously
by all attending
independent directors

Approved unanimously
by all attending directors

(2) Except for the aforementioned matters, other matters which have been resolved by the
Board of Directors Meetings but are objected to by independent directors or having
reserved opinions with records or a written statement: None

For the status of implementation of directors' recusal to proposals with conflicts of interests,
the name of the director, the content of the motion, reasons for recusal, and status of voting
participation shall be disclosed:

Date of meeting N?me of Content of motion Reasons for recusal Status 9fv9t1ng
director participation
2022/1/18 Ye Ming-Zhou |Proposal on the adjustment of the salary of Interested party of this Approved unanimously by
(Ep managerial officials for the year 2022 proposal all remaining attending
Guo Zheng-Pei directors
("2 i)
Ye Ming-Zhou |Proposal on the distribution of year-end Interested party of this Approved unanimously by
(Ep bonuses and operation performance bonuses |proposal all remaining attending
Guo Zheng-Pei |for managerial officials for the year 2021. directors
GrE i)
2022/5/12 Ye Ming-Zhou [Proposal on the distribution of the 2022 Interested party of this Approved unanimously by
(Em ) Dragon Boat Festival (Mid-year) performance |proposal all remaining attending
Guo Zheng-Pei [bonus to managerial officials. directors
G )
2022/8/12 Guo Zheng-Pei |Proposal on the distribution of "Employee Interested party of this Approved unanimously by
(FRE i) Remuneration for the year 2021" to proposal all remaining attending
managerial officials. directors
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3. TWSE/GTSM listed companies shall disclose the evaluation cycle and period, scope and
method of evaluation, and content of evaluation of self (or peer) evaluations. The status of
the implementation of the evaluation by the Board of Directors shall be filled out:

Evaluation Once annually

cycle

Evaluation Evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors from Ist January 2022 to 31st
period December 2022

Evaluation Evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors, individual Board members, and
scope functional committees

Method of | Including self-evaluation of the Board of Directors, Board members, and functional
evaluation committee members

Content of Evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors: at least include the  level of
evaluation involvement in company operations, quality of decision-making by the Board, the

composition and structure of the Board, the election and continuing education of directors,
and internal control.

2. The performance evaluation of individual Board members: At least including the
understanding of company goals and missions, awareness of director duties, participation
in company operations, internal relationship management and communication, director's
expertise and continuous education, and internal controls.

3. The performance evaluation of functional committees: Participation in company
operations, awareness of member duties of functional committees, quality of decision-
making by functional committees, composition and election of members of functional
committees, and internal control.

Status of implementation:

The self-evaluation is conducted in the form of a survey, and the contents are presented in 5
levels (No.1: Very bad (Strongly disagree); No.2: Bad (Disagree); No, 3: Neutral (Average);
No.4: Good (Agree); No.5: Very good (Strongly agree)).

Combining various evaluation results of different categories, the average score is 4.49,
evaluation items of " level of involvement in company operations, improvement of the quality
of decision-making by the Board, the continuous training of directors, and the awareness of
directors' duties" are all slightly lower than the average value of different categories. But
overall the Board of Directors and the functional committees are working well, and will
continuously improve according to this evaluation result, and lead to the enhancement of
corporate governance effectiveness.

4. In the current and most recent fiscal year, the goal of strengthening the competency of the
Board of Directors (eg. establishing the Audit Committee and increasing information
transparency) and the evaluation of the status of implementation:

1. The company has stipulated the "Rules of Procedures for the Board of Directors" to
strengthen the operation of the Board.

2. Increasing the transparency of information: Crucial resolutions of the Board of Directors
will be announced promptly on the Market Observation Post System (MOPS).
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(2) Information on the operation of the Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee of the company is composed of all independent directors, and four
meetings were commenced in the most recent fiscal year (A), and the presence and
attendance of independent directors are as follows:

Title Name A;t:rnsierlln(cBe)in Attendance on proxy Attendar]130;3 AR ate (%) Remark
Independent Hsiao

director Chen-Chi 4 0 100%
(Convenor) (BLE)
Lin Hong-

Independent Zhao 4 0 100%
(G2 )
Zhu Xing-

Independent Hua 4 0 100%
G %)

Other mentionable items:

1. If any of the following circumstances occur in the operation of the Audit Committee, the dates
of the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, all independent directors’ objections, reserved
opinions, and significant recommendations, as well as the resolution of the Audit Committee and
the company’s response to it should be specified:

(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Date of meeting

Content of motion

Independent directors’
objections, reserved

Audit Committee

The company's response
to the opinion of the

Session opinions, or significant Resolution results . .
. Audit Committee
recommendations
1. The 2022 Individual and Consolidated None Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
Financial Statements of the company. by all attending members |by all attending directors
2. Proposal on the change of CPA for None Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
Financial Statements after Q1 of 2022. by all attending members |by all attending directors
3. Evaluation of the independence and None Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
2022/3/22 suitability of the CPA of the company. by all attending members |by all attending directors
nd :
(The2 f{n " Proposal of the issuance of Approved unanimousl Approved unanimousl
of the I*term) |50 | “Statement on the Internal Control None PP . Y PP . Jousty
N by all attending members |by all attending directors
System” by the company.
5. Proposal on the amendments to the . .
@ . Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
Operational Procedures for None by all attending members |by all attending directors
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”. Y & Y g
6. Proposal on the loaning  of funds to Non Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
the subsidiary. one by all attending members |by all attending directors
2022/5/12
(The 3 1. The Q1 Consolidated Financial None Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
meeting of the |Statement of 2022. by all attending members |by all attending directors
1* term)
1. The Q2 Consolidated Financial Non Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
2022/8/12 Statement of 2022. one by all attending members |by all attending directors
th 3
(The 4% mecting 2. Proposal on the appointment . .
of the 1* term) . Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
remuneration of CPA for the year None . . .
2022 by all attending members |by all attending directors
1. The Q3 Consolidated Financial None Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
Statement of 2022. by all attending members |by all attending directors
2. The company proposes to revise the Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
operational schedule for the self- None . . .
2022/11/11 . . . by all attending members |by all attending directors
(The 5™ meeting preparation of the Financial Statement.
of the 1* term) |3. Proposal for the 2023 internal audit Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously
None . . .
plan. by all attending members |by all attending directors
4. The appointment of the "Head of None Approved unanimously  |Approved unanimously

Financing" of the company.

by all attending members

by all attending directors

(2) Except for the aforementioned matters, other matters which have not been passed by the
Audit Committee, but have been approved by over two-thirds of all directors: None
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2. For the status of implementation of independent directors' recusal to proposals with conflicts of
interests, the name of the independent director, the content of the motion, reasons for recusal,
and status of voting participation shall be disclosed: In 2022, the Audit Committee did not
have proposals with conflicts of interests that needed the recusal of independent directors.

3.  Communication status of independent directors and the internal auditor and accountants
(Should include material matters that involve the communication on the financial and business
conditions of the company, its methods, and results)

Recommendations

3. Audit responsibilities of in-charge accountants

Audit supervisor

Method of L Personnel by the
Date L Matter of communication .
communication present independent
directors
2022/11/11 Meeting 1. The Q3 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022 CPA Unqualified
2. Communication plans with the governance unit in Independent opinion
2022 director

4. Auditing scope and the annual audit service plan of the
fiscal year

5. Audit and non-audit services in the fiscal year

6. Important amendments to the International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants

7. Confirmation of the independency of PwC Taiwan

1. Implementation of the 2022 Audit Plan

2. The way of presentation of the Audit Report and

discussions on the method of communication
3. 2023 Audit Plan

(1) The internal audit unit submits audit reports and follow-up reports on the
improvement of audit deficiencies to the independent directors on a monthly basis.
Additionally, the internal audit supervisor regularly presents the audit activities, audit
results, and progress of follow-ups to the independent directors at least once per quarter
during the Audit Committee meetings and holds individual meetings with the
independent directors at least once per year.

(2) Our company's external auditors hold meetings with the Audit Committee and have
separate meetings with the independent directors at least once a year. During these
meetings, they report on the review or audit results of the financial statements of our
company and its subsidiaries, internal control audits, the impact of revisions and
publications of IFRS standards on the company, and other relevant regulatory
requirements. They also communicate regarding any financial reporting adjustments or
changes in accounting practices due to regulatory amendments.

(3) The head of the internal audit and the accountants, as well as the independent directors,
can directly contact each other at any time as needed, ensuring the communication
channels are smooth.
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(3) Status of the implementation of corporate governance and its discrepancy from the "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies' , and the reasons accounted for the discrepancy:

Item of Evaluation

Status of Operation

Discrepancy from the
"Corporate Governance

Best Practice Principles for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and reasons
1. Has the company established and disclosed the v The Company established the "Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles" on 12th November 2021, and disclosed it [Comply with the
Corporate Governance Best-Practice Principles on the company website and Market Observation Post System (MOPS). "Corporate Governance
based on“Corporate Governance Best-Practice Best Practice Principles for
Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies™? TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"
2. Shareholding structure & shareholders’ rights Comply with the
(1) Has the Company established an internal (1) Besides the appointment of a professional stock agent to handle stock affairs, the company has established a spokesperson|"Corporate Governance
operating procedure to deal with shareholders’ v system and set up a channel of "Stakeholder contacts" on the company website to properly collect shareholders'|Best Practice Principles for
suggestions, doubts, disputes, and litigations, and recommendations, doubts, disputes, and litigations. TWSE/TPEXx Listed
implemented based on the procedure? (2) The company has assigned a specific personnel in charge responsible for stock affairs and has entrusted a professional| Companies"
(2) Does the company possess the list of its major stock affairs agency to assist with the process. This allows the company to have real-time access to the shareholding
shareholders who actually control the company as status of major shareholders. Moreover, the company regularly discloses information regarding shareholders who hold
well as the ultimate owners of those shareholders? more than ten percent of the shares, including pledges and changes in equity ownership, in accordance with regulations.
(3) Does the company establish and implement risk (3) The company manages the transactions with affiliated enterprises in accordance with its internal control system. The
management and control measures between v company stipulated regulations such as the "Supervision and Management of Subsidiaries", "Operation Procedures for
affiliated enterprises and set up a firewall Acquisition and Disposal of Assets", "Operation Procedures for Loaning Funds to Others", and "Operation Procedures
mechanism? for Endorsements and Guarantees". The risk management and the firewall mechanism between each other are well
(4) Does the company establish internal rules to implemented.
prohibit insiders from using undisclosed (4) The company has established the "Operating procedures for handling material inside information and prevention of insider
information in the market in securities v trading" to regulate all employees of the company, managerial officials, and directors, as well as anybody who acquires
transactions? information about the company from his/her occupation or controlling relationships. All possible acts that involve
insider trading are prohibited to protect investors and maintain the benefits of the company. The company organized 3
sessions of relevant educational training on the prevention of insider trading and ethical managements, with a total of]
260 participants attending the sessions.
v
3. Composition and Responsibilities of the Board of Comply with the
Directors (1) The company stipulated the "Policies on the diversification of members of the Board of Directors" and "Corporate|"Corporate Governance
(1) Does the Board develop a diversified policy with | v

substantial management goals and put it into
implementation?

governance best practice principles". The consideration of composition of the Board is diversified, and a suitable and
diversified approach is designated according to its own operations, operating model, and development requirements.
Article 23 of the regulation stated that the Board of Directors should possess the following capabilities: 1. Capability of]
operations judgment; 2. Accounting and capability of finances; 3. Capability of management and administration analysis;
4. Capability of emergency responses; 5. Knowledge of the industry; 6. Global market perspective; 7. Leadership; 8.
Capability of decision-making. Currently, the Board of Directors has only one female director, in the future female
director positions will be gradually increased following the principle of gender equality.

For the implementation status of diversification in gender and age of the 19th Board of Directors members, please refer to
p-11 of this Annual Report.

Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"
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Item of Evaluation

Status of Operation

Discrepancy from the
"Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and reasons
(2) Besides the establishment of the Remuneration (2) The company has established the "Remunerations Committee" and the "Audit Committee" according to the law. In the
Committee and the Audit Committee in v future, other functional committees may be established depending on evaluations of the requirement of the business
accordance with the law, does the company environment and provisions of laws and regulations.
voluntarily establish other functional committees?
(3) Does the company stipulate procedures for (3) The company passed the "Procedures for evaluating the performance of the Board of Directors" on 10th August 2020
evaluating the performance of the Board of and implemented it accordingly.
Directors and the evaluation methods, conducting The company has completed the performance evaluation of the 2022 Board of Directors, its director members, and
regular performance evaluations every year, and functional committees. The evaluation results and directions for sustainable enhancement have been submitted to the
reporting the results to the Board of Directors, 4 Board of Directors on 28th March 2023. The results of the Board of Directors' performance evaluation serve as a
which will be used as a reference for individual reference for the selection or nomination of directors; The performance evaluation result of every individual director is
director's remuneration and nomination for also taken as a reference when determining their respective remuneration.
reappointment? For the evaluation results of 2022, please refer to p.18 of this Annual Report.
(4) Does the Company regularly evaluate the (4) The company's Accounting Department submits the "Review and Assessment Form for CPAs" annually and regularly to
independence of CPA? assess the independence and suitability of CPAs. The CPAs are also required to provide a "Statement of complete
independence" and "Audit Quality Indicators (AQIs)." The AQI indicators include professionalism, independence,
quality control, supervision, and innovation capacity, which are assessed based on these five dimensions and thirteen
indicators. The evaluation results were discussed and approved by the Audit Committee on 28th March 2023, and
subsequently submitted for discussion at the Board of Directors meeting. The results of 2022 and 2023 on the
independency and suitability of CPA were approved by the Board of Directors on 22nd March 2022 and 28th March
2023 respectively.
v
v The company has appointed Zhuo Su-Qing (4 # ), the Manager of the Management Center of the General Manager's Comply with the

4. Does the company appoint a suitable number of
competent personnel as corporate governance
officers, and assign a supervisor responsible for
corporate governance matters (including but not
limited to providing information for directors and
supervisors to perform business operations,

assisting directors and supervisors to comply with

regulations, handling work related to meetings of
the Board of Directors and the Shareholders'
Meeting in accordance with the law, and taking
minutes of Board of Directors meetings and
shareholders' meetings)?

Office to serve as the Head of Corporate Governance, and this decision was passed by the Board of Directors on 10th
August 2020. Manager Zhuo Su-Qing (% % %) has participated in internal audit businesses and law compliance businesses
and serves in a supervisory position for over 3 years, thus meeting the qualification of being the Head of Corporate
Governance of the company. The Head of Corporate Governance is primarily responsible for corporate governance-related
matters. This includes handling affairs related to the Board of Directors and Shareholders' Meetings in accordance with the
law, assisting in the appointment and continuous education of directors, providing the information required for directors to
carry out their duties, and assisting directors in complying with the laws and regulations.

For the status of implementation and continuing education of the Head of Corporate Governance in 2022, please refer to
Note 2.

"Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"
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Item of Evaluation

Status of Operation

Discrepancy from the
"Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and reasons

5. Does the Company establish a communication v In order to properly respond to the interested parties, the company has set up communication channels and provides contact [Comply with the
channel and build a designated zone on its website information such as corresponding telephone numbers and specialized email addresses on the company website. "Corporate Governance
for interested parties (including but not limited to The company discloses on its website the concerning issues raised by its employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers, Best Practice Principles for
shareholders, employees, customers, and local residents, and government agencies, as well as the response methods and communication records/frequency. The TWSE/TPEx Listed
suppliers), as well as responding appropriately on status of engagement of interested parties is also disclosed on the company website. Companies"
important corporate social responsibilities issues The status of engagement of interested parties in 2022 can be referred to the company website. (https://www.textile-
that they care most about? hy.com.tw/ & ¥4+ € F =/912 B % A B *» 3% 3L html)

6. Does the Company appoint a professional stock v The company has appointed professional services from the "Stock Agent Department of Fubon Securities Co. Ltd." to [Comply with the
service agency to deal with shareholders' meeting handle shareholders' meetings and different stock affairs. "Corporate Governance
affairs? Best Practice Principles for

TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"
7. Information Disclosure The exception is that the
(1) Does the Company have a website to disclose v (1) Through the "Investors' Zone" on the company website, finance information, business operations, corporate governance, |Financial Statement had
both financial standings and the status of corporate and other material information are disclosed whenever needed. The website address of the company is: https://www.textile- [not been publicized in
governance? hy.com.tw advance
(2) Has the Company adopted other ways of (2) The company has set up a spokesperson system that the Spokesperson and Deputy Spokesperson publicly release
information disclosure? (eg. set up an English v financial and business information about the company, conduct regular earnings calls, and disclose relevant information on
website, designate a specialist to be responsible for the company's website.
the collection and disclosure of information about (3) The company publicizes and files the Annual Financial Statement before the filing deadline in accordance with the
the Company, implement a spokesperson system, relevant laws and regulations. It also publicizes and files Q1, Q2, and Q3 financial statements and monthly operation results
and put the transcript of the Earnings Call on the before the specified deadline. The aforementioned information is all disclosed on the Market Observation Post System
website) (MOPS). https://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/index
(3) Does the company publicize and file the annual
financial statements within two months after the
end of each fiscal year, and publicize and file Q1,
Q2, and Q3 financial statements and monthly
operation results before the specified deadline?
v
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Item of Evaluation

Status of Operation

Discrepancy from the
"Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and reasons
8. Does the company has any other important v The company has set up a "Corporate Governance Zone" on the company website to help interested parties understand Comply with the

information to facilitate a better understanding of
its corporate governance operations (including but

not limited to employee rights, employee wellness,

investor relations, supplier relations, rights of

interested parties, continuing education of directors

and supervisors, the implementation of risk

management policies and risk evaluation measures,

the implementation of customer policies, and the
purchase of liability insurance for directors and
supervisors)?

various internal control systems and management regulations of the company. They can also get a gist of the status of the

implementation of corporate governance through the corporate governance column of the Market Observation Post System

(MOPS) (Stock code: 1474)

Website: http://mops.twse.com.tw/mops/web/t100sb07

(1) Implementation of employee benefits, employee care, and the retirement System: The company allocates a budget
annually to take care of employees' physical and mental well-being, welfare measures, organizing work-life balance
activities and seminars, and the appropriation and payment of retirement pensions. Please refer to "5.5 Labor Relations"
of this Annual Report. (p.69)

(2) Investor relations: The company has established a spokesperson system and set up an "Investors Zone" on the company
website, promptly disclosing information about the company. This acts as a connecting window between shareholders
and juridical person investment institutions.

(3) Supplier relations: The company values highly the suppliers' requirement for sustainability, and especially focuses on
the requirements from the environmental perspective, social perspective, and corporate governance perspective.
"Procedures for suppliers management" is stipulated. All suppliers must pass the suppliers' evaluation and regular
performance reviews, as well as receive guidance and track the improvement status of suppliers.

(4) Rights of interested parties: The company has set up an "Interested Party Zone" on the company website. The website
also provides the contact information of the spokesperson and every business window that act as a communication
channel for interested parties. They are handled by specialists, and the related concerning issues of interested parties
are properly responded to.

(5) Status of continuing education of directors: Please refer to "Status of continuing education of directors" in this Annual
Report. (Note 1)

(6) Implementation of risk management policy and risk measurement standards: The company commits from top to bottom
to continuously deepen risk awareness among the management level and employees. It ensures that risk considerations
are incorporated into decision-making processes and fosters employees' risk management capabilities. The
implementation of risk management in operational processes is confirmed.

(7) The purchase of directors' liability insurance by the company:

The company has purchased liability insurance for directors (including independent directors).

"Corporate Governance
Best Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"

9. Please explain the status of improvements and the prioritized improvement items and measures on areas that have not yet been addressed, regarding the most recent corporate governance evaluation results published by
the Corporate Governance Center of Taiwan Stock Exchange Co., Ltd.
The results of the 9th Corporate Governance Evaluation for the company in 2022 ranked within the 51-65% range among listed companies. For the measures that have been improved and the prioritized improvement areas

for the future, please refer to Note 3.
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Note 1: Status of continuing education of directors:

Title Name Date of Study Organizer Name of course H:;;syof
. . Training course on corporate
2022/08/20 ;?;;?;Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
Chairman Ye Ming-Zhou operations of enterprises
() Taiwan Academy of Bankine and Training course on corporate
2022/9/23 . Y & governance and sustainable 3
Finance . .
operations of enterprises
. . Training course on corporate
2022/08/20 ;?;;?;Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
Deputy | Chen Jin-Feng operations of enterprises
Chairman (m4&h) . . Training course on corporate
2022/09/23 T?llwan Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
Finance . .
operations of enterprises
. . . Training course on corporate
Director Guo}her}g-Pel 2022/08/20 Tglwan Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
(R ) Finance . .
operations of enterprises
Ethical Corporate Management
Best Practice Principles
Taiwan Corporate Governance and How to Avoid
2022/06/29 Association Accidentally Crossing the Red 3
Di Lai Ming-Yi Lines of Director and
irector (¥ PP 3) Supervisor Responsibilities
Seeing sustainable corporate
2022/11/08 Talwap Corporate Governance governance from the risk 3
Association perspective - from corporate
governance to ESG
. . Training course on corporate
2022/09/23 giari:s;a;Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
Direct. Tsai Chen-Hui operations of enterprises
irector | .o, ., - - 5
(59 ) Social seminar of directors,
2022/12/02 Securities and Futures Institute supervisors, and corporate 3
governance executives
. . Training course on corporate
2022/08/20 ;aman Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
inance . .
operations of enterprises
. . . Training course on corporate
Indgpendent Lin HOEg-Zhao 2022/09/23 Tglwan Academy of Banking and govemnance and sustainable 3
director (HZ ) Finance . .
operations of enterprises
Social seminar of directors,
2022/12/02 Securities and Futures Institute supervisors, and corporate 3
governance executives
New forms of crimes in
2022/06/09 Taiwan Securities Association securities and manipulation of 3
markets (Corporate
governance)
. . Training course on corporate
2022/08/20 ;iix; Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
ti f ent i
Independent | Hsiao Chen- Oiera lf)(?sl,o n er[;lrlses -
director | Chi (%% 3) The guidelines on the exercise
of authority for independent
2022/10/06 Taiwan Stock Exchange directors and audit committees 3
and the Publicity Meeting for
directors and supervisors
Securities and Futures Institute Social seminar of directors,
2022/12/02 supervisors, and corporate 3
governance executives
. . Training course on corporate
2022/08/20 Tg1wan Academy of Banking and governance and sustainable 3
Finance . .
operations of enterprises
lnd;pendent Zhu Xing-Hua The guidelines on the exercise
director (2 %) of authority for independent
2022/10/11 Taiwan Stock Exchange directors and audit committees 3
and the Publicity Meeting for
directors and supervisors

Note 2: Implementation status of corporate governance in 2022

25



1. Handle the related affairs of meetings of the Board of Directors and Shareholders'
Meetings according to the law.

A. The Board of Directors Meeting agenda is drafted, and all directors are notified at
least 7 days in advance with information for the meeting. If a motion involves
conflicts of interest, directors shall be notified in advance, and minutes of the
meeting shall be distributed to all directors within 20 days after the meeting.

B. The date of the shareholders' meeting is registered in advance in accordance with
the law. The meeting notice, handbook, minutes, and announcements for processes
are prepared within the statutory period. Changes in company registration can also be
handled during the amendment of the Articles of Incorporation.

2. Providing relevant laws and regulations regarding corporate governance to members of the
Board, with regular updates.
3. Arranging Board members to enroll in training courses
4. Providing directors with the information needed for business operations.
5. Assist directors to comply with the laws and regulations.
Based on the evaluation indicators of the "Corporate Governance Evaluation" by the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, we collaborate with each unit to review and discuss the
proposed plans to enhance corporate governance, and also track the implementation
and results of the responsible authority units.
7. Evaluation on the purchase of liability insurance for directors of the group.
8. Arranging communication meetings between independent directors and CPAs or internal
audit supervisors

The status of continuing education of the Head of Corporate Governance in 2022:

Date of Study Hours| Total study
Name of course Organizer of |hours of the
Start End study year
2022 Cathay Sustainable  |Co-organized by
Finance and Climate Cathay Financial
2022/11/142022/11/14|Change Summit Holdings, its 6

subsidiaries, and
Taiwan Stock

Exchange
Four Seasons Lectures Cho—organ.lz.ed by d
"Carbon reduction in the Secur1t1§s an 12
2022/12/02 {2022/12/02 . Futures Institute 3
enterprises and Net-zero .
I and Tung Hai
transformations . h
University
;Fl?setgrrlz%éilfig?elpoofrts and Accounting
Research and

2022/12/28 |2022/12/28 |the basis of disclosure - key
explanations on the rules of
IFRS ISSB S1, S2

Development
Foundation

Note 3: Regarding the evaluation results on corporate governance, areas in which improvement has
been made and other unaddressed areas and measures that need to be improved on the highest
priority are explained as follows:
1. Maintaining shareholders' equities and treating shareholders fairly
A. The English version of the meeting notice has been uploaded simultaneously 30 days
prior to the date of the Annual Shareholders' Meeting
B. The Annual Report has disclosed the link between the performance evaluation of
directors and managerial officials and their remunerations
C. The English version of the handbook and supplementary information for the meeting is
planned to be uploaded 30 days prior to the date of the Annual Shareholders' Meeting
D. The English version of the Annual Report and Annual Financial Statement is planned to
be uploaded 16 days prior to the date of the Annual Shareholders' Meeting
E. Planning on the record of critical contents of shareholders' questioning and the response
by the company in the minutes of the Annual Shareholders' Meeting
F. The uninterrupted audio and video recordings of the entire shareholders' meeting are
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planned to be uploaded after the meeting

2. Strengthening the structure and operation of the Board of Directors

A. Formulated the succession plan for Board members and important managing officials

B. The interim financial statement has been approved by the Audit Committee and
submitted to the Board of Directors for discussion and resolution

C. The Board of Directors regularly references the AQIs to evaluate the independence and
suitability of CPAs.

D. The company has developed an intellectual property management plan that is aligned
with the operational goals. The plan will be reported to the Board of Directors.

E. A written set of guidelines that is relevant to the financial and business operations with
interested parties is stipulated. These guidelines are submitted to the Board of Directors
for resolution.

3. Increase the information transparency
Two Earnings Calls have been convened in 2022

4. Promoting sustainable development

A. A human rights policy and substantial management plans have been formulated, taking
into consideration the provisions of the International Bill of Human Rights

B. Planning and stipulating workplace diversity or promoting policies on gender equality,
and their status of implementation is disclosed

C. Planning and collecting items for the preparation of the sustainability report

D. Promoting suppliers within the supply chain system to make commitments to sustainable
development and stipulating a supplier management policy.
Suppliers are required to adhere to relevant standards in environmental protection,
occupational health and safety, and labor rights.

E. Expected to introduce and construct the ISO 45001 occupational health and safety system

F. Planning to adopt corresponding measures for community risks or opportunities and
disclose the specific measures taken and their effects upon implementation
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Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd
Review and Assessment Form for CPA
(MFinancial MTax)
Subject of assessment: Current CPA nominee: Hong Shu-Hua (j% & #), Wang Yu-Juan(2 %

)

1. Evaluation items on independency

Ite Please tick
m Content of evaluation Yes | No | N/A | Remark
No.

If the appointed accountant of the company has a direct or significant indirect
1 conflict of interest that may affect their impartiality and independence | .
regarding the assigned matters, they should recuse and abstain from
undertaking the assignment.

The accountant provides the audit, review, re-audit, or project examination of
financial statements and issues a letter of opinion. In addition to maintaining
substantial independence, the accountant should also maintain formal
2 | independence. Thus, do members of the audit service team, other co-practicing | v
accountants, or shareholders of juridical person accounting firms, accounting
firms, affiliated enterprises of the firms, and alliance firms maintain
independence from the company?

Does CPA appointed by the company maintain the following items:

(1) Integrity: Accounts should execute professional services with integrity and
a rigorous attitude. In professional and business relationships, accountants
should be honest, sincere, fair, and trustworthy.

(2) Fairness and objectivity: Accountants should execute professional services
with a stance of fairness and objectivity, avoiding bias in professional

3 judgments from prejudices, conflicts of interests, or vested interests. The v
stance on fairness and objectivity entails impartiality and staying
professionally aware in providing information to and interacting with
users.

(3) Independence: Accountants should maintain both formal and substantive
independence when performing the audit, review, re-audit, or project
examination of financial statements and issuing a letter of opinion. They
should express their opinions impartially.

The independence of accountants is related to their integrity, fairness, and
4 objectivity. If independence is lacking or compromised during the appointment, | .
it may affect their ability to maintain a stand of integrity, fairness, and
objectivity.

5 The independence of accountants may be influenced by self-interest, self- |
review, advocacy, familiarity, and intimidation.

Independence affected by self-interest refers to situations where accountants
obtain financial benefits from the company or experience conflicts of interest
due to other vested interests. Whether the following circumstances impacts
have occurred:

(1) Direct or significant indirect financial interests associated with the

6 | company. v
(2) Financing or guaranteeing activities with the company or its directors.
(3) Considering the potential for loss within the company.

(4) Have a close business relationship with the company.

(5) Have potential employment relationships with the company

(6) Related to the audit case of the company or receiving audit-fees.

Since independence is affected by self-assessment, the reports issued or
judgments made by accountants in performing non-audit cases are important
evidence for evaluation conclusions during the process of audit or review of
financial information. Additionally, if a member of the audit service team has
previously served as a director of the company or held a position that directly
and significantly affects the audit case, it may also affect independence.
Whether the following circumstances of impacts have occurred:

7 (1) The issuance of an assurance report on the effective operation of financial v
information systems designed or assisted in implementation by the firm.

(2) Significant or important matters for the preparation of source documents
by the firm that will be used in assurance engagements.

(3) Members of the audit service team who have held positions as directors or
managerial officials of the company, or positions with significant influence
on audit cases currently or within the past two years.

(4) Non-audit services provided to the company that will directly affect
significant items of the audit case.
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The impact of defense to independence refers to members of the audit service

team becoming defenders of the company's stance or opinions, which raises

questions about their objectivity. Whether the following circumstances of

impacts have occurred:

(1) Promoting or brokering the issuance of stocks or other securities issued by
the company.

(2) Except for businesses that are permitted by law, representing the company
as the defender against third parties in legal cases or in other disputes.

The impact of familiarity on independence refers to the situation where close

relationships with the company, directors, or managerial officials lead the

accountant or the audit service team to overly focus on or sympathize with the

interests of the company. Are there any situations stated below is under effect:

(1) Members of the audit service team have familial relationships with
directors and managerial officials of the company, or individuals holding
positions of significant influence on audit cases.

(2) A former co-practicing accountant who has served as a director or
managerial official of the company, or held a position of significant
influence on audit cases within one year of resignation.

(3) Receiving valuable gifts, or special offers of substantial value from the
company, its directors, managerial officiers, or major shareholders.

10

The impact of coercion on independence refers to the situation where audit

service team members are subjected to or perceive threats or intimidations from

the company or other circumstances that prevent them from maintaining
objectivity and clarifying professional doubts. Are there any situations stated
below is under effect:

(1) The client threatens to file a lawsuit.

(2) The client threatens to revoke the appointment for non-audit engagements
and coercively demands the accounting firm to adopt improper accounting
treatment for a specific transaction.

(3) The client threatens to terminate or not renew the appointment for the
audit case.

(4) To reduce fees, pressure is exerted on the accountant to inappropriately
reduce the necessary audit procedures.

(5) In the stance of a professional, a client personnel pressurizes the audit
personnel to accept a particular professional judgment on a disputed matter.

(6) The accountant requests members of the audit service team to accept
inappropriate choices in accounting policies or improper disclosures in the
financial statements made by the management level, with the condition that
refusal will result in no promotion.

11

The firm and the members of the audit service team have a responsibility to
maintain independence. When maintaining independence, they should consider
whether the nature of the work being executed may impact independence and
take measures to eliminate or reduce such impacts to an acceptable level.

12

When impacts on independence are confirmed to be material, the company, the
firm, and the members of the audit service team have adopted appropriate and
effective measures to eliminate or reduce these impacts to an acceptable level,
and the conclusions are recorded.

13

If an accountant or accounting firm fails to take any measures or if the measures
taken are unable to effectively eliminate the impacts on independence or reduce
them to an acceptable level, it may be necessary to consider replacing the
accountant in order to maintain independence.

14

Currently or within the past two years, whether the accountant and their audit
team members have provided professional service reports that contain
significant errors.

2. Evaluation Item on suitability

Content of evaluation

Please tick

Yes

No

N/A

Remark

Whether possessing accountant qualifications so that becoming eligible to
execute accounting services.

Whether there are no disciplinary actions imposed by the competent authority
or accountant associations, or no penalties under Article 37, Paragraph 3 of the
Securities and Exchange Act.

Whether possessing industry related-knowledge of the company.

Whether the audit work of financial statements is conducted in accordance with
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generally accepted auditing standards and the "Regulations governing auditing
and attestation of financial statements by Certified Public Accountant".

5 Whether there is no misuse of the accountant's position for improper |
competition in commercial activities.

3. Evaluation of AQI

In the need for high-quality audit services to increase the credibility of financial statements and ensure outsiders'
confidence in the financial information of the company, the company has adopted the Financial Supervisory
Commission's AQI (Audit Quality Indicators) disclosure framework, issued in August 2021. It includes five
dimensions: professionalism, independence, quality control, supervision, and innovation capability, along with 13
indicators. These indicators broadly cover items relevant to audit quality and assist audit committees in more
effectively and objectively assessing the audit quality of accounting firms and audit teams when selecting CPA.

After reviewing the Audit Quality Indicators (AQI) of PwC Taiwan, there are no abnormal circumstances regarding the
independence and suitability of CPA.

4. Assessment and audit opinions

MAudit passed, recommended to appoint/ maintain tenure
[] There are doubts in the audit, reccommended not to appoint/ change the accountant: Explanations:
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(4) Information on members of the Remuneration Committee

28™ April 2023
Number of
concurrent
Identity Criteria Professional qualifications and experience Status of remuneration
(Note 1) independence committee
Name members in other
public companies
Inde.pendent Lin Hong- .Operation decisions and strategic management, C.O mply with the
Director Zhao leader of the oreanization independency 0
(Convenor) | (3£ % B2) & (Note 2)
Hsiao |.Operation decisions and strategic management, Comply with the
Independent . . .
Director Chen-Chi |leader of the organization independency 3
(# ¥ 3£) |.Finance and accounting (Note 2)
Ye Gui- .Operation decmogs apd strategic management, Comply with the
leader of the organization .
Others Zhu Experience in textile-related industries independency 0
(k) | b (Note 2)

.Finance and accounting
Note 1: The professional qualifications, experiences and major education, and career history of
independent directors can be referred to the relevant information in "Information of
Directors (1)" on pp.8-9.
Committee member Ye Gui-Zhu (ZEFEER):
International Master of Business Administration (IMBA), National Changhua University
of Education
Specialist of The Second Credit Cooperative of Changhua
Deputy general manager of the general manager's office and spokesperson of Taiwan
Paiho Limited
Status of Independence (Note 2):
The members of the company's Remunerations Committee, their spouses, and relatives within
two degrees of kinship do not hold positions as directors, supervisors, or employees of the
company or its affiliated enterprises; the directors and independent directors of the company, their
spouses, and relatives within two degrees of kinship (or by nominee arrangement) also do not
hold company's shares and positions as directors, supervisors, or employees of companies that
have specific relationships to the company. In the recent two years, the directors and independent
directors of the company, their spouses, and relatives within two degrees of kinship do not acquire
remunerations by offering legal, financial, or accounting services to the company or its affiliated
enterprises and businesses.

Information on the operation of the Remuneration Committee

1. The Remuneration Committee of the company consists of 3 members.

2. The term of office for this committee: From 27th August 2021 to 26th August 2024. The
Remuneration Committee has convened five times during the latest fiscal year (A). The
qualifications and attendance of committee members are as follows:

Title Name Attendance in Attendance on Attendance Rate (%) (B/A) Remark
person (B) proxy
Convenor Lln(ii);gﬂ-;z)hao 5 0 100%
Committee | Hsiao Chen-Chi o
member (B E) > 0 100%
Committee Ye Gui-Zhu 0
member (E£#3%) > 0 100%

Other mentionable items:

1. Ifthe Board of Directors does not adopt or amend the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the date of the Board of Directors meeting, session, contents of motion, Board
of Directors resolutions, and the company's response to the opinion of the Remuneration
Committee (If the remuneration approved by the Board of Directors exceeds the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee, the difference and the reasons for it
should be disclosed: None
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2. If there are members who object or have reserved opinions with records or a written
statement on the resolutions of the Remuneration Committee, the date of the Remuneration
Committee meeting, session, contents of motion, opinions of all the members, and the
response to them should be specified: None

3. Important resolutions of the Remuneration Committee in 2022:

Date

Proposal

Result of resolution

The Company's response to the
opinion of the Remuneration
Committee

2022/1/18

1. Proposal on the promotion of
managerial officials of the
company.

Approved by all present
directors, the promotion of]
associate Pan Cai-Juan (G§ %%
4§ ), associate Cai You-Dian
(3 % &), and manager Pan
Li-Zhe ( #% = 47 ) were
effective starting from 1st
January 2022; the promotion
of manager Zhang Pei-Hong
(5% 8 % ) was effective
starting from Ist February
2022

Submitted to the Board of Directors
and approved unanimously by all
attending directors.

2. Proposal on the adjustment of the
salary of managerial officials for

the year 2022.

Approved unanimously by all
attending members

Summited to the Board of Directors,
and the interested party abstained
from voting. The proposal drafted by
the Remuneration Committee was
approved by the resolution of the
remaining attending directors.

3. Proposal on the distribution of
year-end bonuses and operation

performance bonuses for

managerial officials for the year

2021.

Approved unanimously by all
attending members

Summited to the Board of Directors,
and the interested party abstained
from voting. did not participate in the
voting. The proposal put forward by
the remuneration committee was
approved by the remaining attending
directors.

4. Proposal on the appropriation
ratio of director and employee

remunerations for the year 2022.

Approved unanimously by all
attending members, the
estimated appropriation rate
for director and employee
remunerations in 2022 was
set at 3% and 3% respectively

Submitted to the Board of Directors
and approved unanimously by all
attending directors.

2022/3/22

1. Proposal on the distribution of

director and supervisor
remunerations and employee

remuneration for the year 20210

Approved unanimously by all
attending members

Submitted to the Board of Directors
and approved unanimously by all
attending directors.

2. Proposal on the promotion of
managerial officials of the
company.

Approved by all present
members, the promotion of
executive deputy general
manager of the business
department Hong Jin-Chang
(7% 44 &) and manager Hsu
Wei-Fang (4 5 >) was
effective starting from 1st
April 2022

Submitted to the Board o Directors
and approved unanimously by all
attending directors.

2022/5/12

Proposal on the distribution of the
2022 Dragon Boat Festival (Mid-

year) performance bonus to
managerial officials.

Approved unanimously by all
attending members

Summited to the Board of Directors,
and the interested party abstained
from voting. did not participate in the
voting. The proposal put forward by
the remuneration committee was
approved by the remaining attending
directors.

2022/8/12

1. Proposal on the distribution of

"Director and Supervisor
Remunerations for the year
2021".

Approved unanimously by all
attending members

Submitted to the Board of Directors
and approved unanimously by all
attending directors.
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The Company's response to the

Date Proposal Result of resolution opinion of the Remuneration
Committee

2. Proposal on the distribution of  |Approved unanimously by all |Submitted to the Board o Directors
"Employee Remuneration for the |attending members and approved unanimously by all
year 2021" to managerial attending directors. Summited to the
officials. Board of Directors, and the interested

party abstained from voting. did not
participate in the voting. The
proposal put forward by the
remuneration committee was
approved by the remaining attending
directors.

3. Proposal on the promotion of Approved unanimously by all |Submitted to the Board of Directors

managerial officials of the attending members and approved unanimously by all

company. attending directors.

4. Proposal for the amendment of |Approved unanimously by all |Submitted to the Board of Directors
the company's "Procedures for  |attending members and approved unanimously by all
the Payment of Director and attending directors.

Functional Committee
Remuneration".

1. Proposal on the change of the Approved unanimously by all |Submitted to the Board o Directors
Head of Financing of the attending members and approved unanimously by all
company. attending directors.

2. Proposal on the amendment of  |Approved unanimously by all |Submitted to the Board of Directors
the company's "Procedures for  |attending members and approved unanimously by all

2022/11/11| the reward of employee attending directors.

performance".

3. Proposal on the amendment of
the company's "Procedures for
the appropriation and distribution
of employee remuneration".

Approved unanimously by all
attending members

Submitted to the Board o Directors
and approved unanimously by all
attending directors.
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(5) Progress of implementing sustainable development and its discrepancy with the '"Sustainable Development Best Practice Principle for
TWSE/TPEX Listed Companies'', and the reasons accounted for the discrepancy:

Promoting item

Status of implementation

Discrepancy from the
"Sustainable

Development Best
Practice Principle for

of efficient energy use and the use of renewable
materials that have a lower impact on the burden of]
the environment?

(2) The company complies with relevant environmental regulations and actively procures various high-
performance equipment to enhance the efficient use of resources. It also adopts global standards and
platforms, such as the HIGG Index, as a management framework.

1.Regarding waste management, the company prioritizes waste reduction, followed by reuse, and finally
disposal. To ensure proper control over the flow of waste, the company cautiously selects qualified
waste transportation or recycling vendors.

2.The company continuously utilizes various recycled materials to develop eco-friendly fabrics, aiming to
reduce its impact on the environment. In 2022, the sales proportion of products that use the eco-friendly

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and its
reasons:
1. Does the Company establish a governance| v/ The company established the "ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance) Sustainable Development|Comply with the
framework to promote sustainable development Committee" in June 2022, under the approval of the Board of Directors. The committee is headed by the|"Corporate
and set up a specialized (part-time) position to General Manager and consists of three sub-committees focusing on environmental sustainability, social| Governance Best
promote sustainable development? Has the Board responsibility, and corporate governance, coordinated and led by the Head of the Department of Production, |Practice Principles for
of Directors authorized senior management to Head of the Department of Administration, and Head of Corporate Governance respectively. The committee| TWSE/TPEx Listed
handle this, and what is the status of supervision by holds quarterly meetings and the chairman reports the annual plan and progress of implementation to the|Companies"
the Board? Board of Directors.
2. Has the Company conducted risk assessments on v" | Although the company has not conducted risk assessments based on the principles, it upholds the business|Comply ~ with  the
environmental, social, and corporate governance philosophy of "Integrity, Proactivity, Initiative, and Innovation", and combines various risks within the|"Corporate
issues relevant to its business operations based on company to conduct comprehensive management. In the future, assessments will be conducted in|Governance Best
the principle of materiality? Has the Company accordance with laws and regulations, as well as operational needs. Practice Principles for
established related risk management policies or TWSE/TPEx  Listed
strategies? Companies"
3. Environmental Issues Comply with the
(1) Does the Company establish a suitable| v/ (1) The company's Taiwan factory plants have established a management system based on ISO 14001 "Corporate
environmental management system according to Environmental Management System and ISO 9001 Quality Management System. They have also Governance Best
the industry characteristics? stipulated management policies and conducted an initial inspection of the plan for the progress of Practice Principles for
carbon reduction after energy-saving initiatives. The company is gradually moving towards the goal [TWSE/TPEx Listed
of achieving net-zero carbon emissions. Companies"
The company has obtained industry-related environmental certifications: the Bluesign (A high
standard from a Swiss international organization for environmentally friendly production processes)
and the Global Recycle Standard (GRS) certifications.
(2) Has the company been dedicated to the enhancement| v/

yarn "Recycle" as raw materials or in processing reached more than 25%.
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Status of implementation

Promoting item

Discrepancy from the
"Sustainable
Development Best
Practice Principle for

(4) Has the company calculated the volume of]

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and its
reasons:
(3) Has the company evaluated the impacts of climate v {(3) The company has not yet conducted an evaluation of the current and future potential risks and
change on current and future potential risks and opportunities posed by climate change. However, the company is actively implementing various
opportunities of the company, and adopted relevant energy-saving and carbon-reduction proposals. These proposals include green projects in the plant,
measures in response to them? replacing staircase lighting with motion-sensor controls, setting temperature thresholds to activate fan
operation, replacing cooling towers with energy-efficient fans, and implementing solar panels. The
company also encourages its employees to adopt low-carbon and plastic-reducing lifestyles.
B 4)

greenhouse gas emissions, water used, and the total
weight of wastes generated in the past two years?
Has the company stipulated management policies
on greenhouse gas reduction, reducing water use
and other wastes?

1. The company has inspected the factory plants in Taiwan, and the statistic figures for 2021 and 2022 are
as follows:

(1) Volume of greenhouse gas emissions:
Unit: (Metric Ton CO2e/ Year)

Year Category 1 Category 2

2021 4088 16057

2022 1447 14678
Target of 2022 Compliance level of 2022 Target of 2023
Reduce the The annual greenhouse gas emissions have been Reduce the
volume of reduced by 4,020 metric tons (a 20% reduction), volume of
emissions by and the target is reached. emissions by
3% 3%

(2) Volume of water used:
The amount of wastewater produced and treated: 989,130 metric tons in 2021 and 957,544 metric
tons in 2022.
The amount of wastewater recycled: 794,926 metric tons in 2021 and 785,372 metric tons in 2022.

Target of 2022 Compliance level of 2022 Target 0f 2023
Wastewater The annual reduction in wastewater production is | Wastewater
recycle rate approximately 31,586 metric tons (including recycle rate 80%
80% adjustments for strategic production reductions);

The recycling and reuse of wastewater in

production processes reached 82%, achieving the

targets.

(3) Wastes:

Harmful wastes: None; Harmless wastes: mainly sludge
| Year | Harmful wastes | harmless wastes

| Total volume of |

35




Promoting item

Status of implementation

Discrepancy from the
"Sustainable
Development Best
Practice Principle for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and its
reasons:
wastes collected
2021 None 786 metric tons 786 metric tons
2022 None 732 metric tons 732 metric tons
Target of 2022 Compliance level of 2022 Target of 2023
Reduce the The volume of sludge collected Reduce the volume of sludge
volume of sludge | reduced 70.9 metric tons(a reduction | collected by 2%
collected by 2% of 11%), and the target is reached.
2. In addition to formulating environmental protection policies and disclosing them on the company
website, the company continuously promotes energy conservation and carbon reduction strategies. We
prioritize environmental care and have set specific improvement goals to track our progress. The
substantial energy conservation and carbon reduction measures are as follows:
Indicator Major measures for reduction
Greenhouse | The implementation of ISO 14064-1 Greenhouse Gases Emissions
gases Inventories System is under process and is expected to obtain verification
in 2023.
Management | The factory plant continues to introduce and optimize water recycling
of water use | equipment to improve water recycling rates. Preventive maintenance
practices are also implemented to ensure the proper functioning of
wastewater treatment equipment.
Volume of To reduce the impact on the environment and effectively manage industrial
sludge waste | wastes, the company implements waste classification, collection, storage,
produced management, and disposal. According to the environmental regulations,
the removal, treatment, and recycling of wastes are conducted, and the
company expects to progressively increase the recycling rate of wastes and
minimize environmental burdens.
4. Social Issues Comply with the
(1) Has the company established management policies| v/ The company complies with local labor regulations in all the global business locations, adhering to "Corporate

and procedures in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations and the International Bill of Human

Rights?

internationally recognized human rights standards such as the "International Bill of Human Rights",
the "Core Labor Standards of the International Labour Organization.", and the Social Accountability
Standard System. Besides treating all employees, including current staff, contract workers, temporary
personnel, and interns respectfully,

the company also discloses its policies on labor rights (eg.

respecting human rights of labor, gender equality in the workplace, safety measures for female
workers during night shifts, and the prohibition of child labor) on the company website. We are
committed to concerning human rights issues and continuously raising awareness among its
employees to further reduce the occurrence of potential risks.
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Promoting item

Status of implementation

Discrepancy from the
"Sustainable
Development Best
Practice Principle for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and its
reasons:
(2) Does the Company establish and implement| v/ (2) Employee remuneration: The company will reflect its operational performance properly in employee
reasonable employee welfare measures (including remuneration. According to the provision of the Articles of Incorporation, if there are profits in the
salaries, leaves, and other benefits), and fiscal year, a minimum of 2% of the profits should be appropriated for employee remuneration. In
appropriately reflect business performance or 2022, the appropriation rate was 3%. And according to the provision of the "Procedures for the reward
results in employee salaries? of employee performance", 10%~12% of the mid-term and end-year net profits after tax are
appropriated as employee performance bonuses.
Measures for employee welfare: The company has established the Employee Welfare Committee to
implement various measures for employee welfare. Please refer to "5.5 Labor Relations" of this Annual
Report. (p.69)
In 2012, the Retired and Resigned Employees Association was established to provide care for our retired
and resigned employees. As of 2022, a total of 294 individuals have joined the association. In the event
of a major or emergency incident affecting any of our retired or resigned employees, appropriate
financial assistance will be promptly provided.
(3) Does the Company provide a safe and healthy| v/

working environment, and regularly implement
safety and health education to employees?

The company provides a safe and secure working environment for its employees, ensuring compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. It has established the "Regulations on Safety and Health
Management", "Regulations on the Use and Management of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)",
and other related guidelines of work to prevent occupational hazards.  Fire regulation compliance
and disaster emergency response drills are conducted regularly (twice a year) and the entire factory
and office buildings are completely disinfected annually. All employees undergo annual health check-
ups, and periodic seminars and courses on physical and mental well-being are organized. The
company supports the balanced development of its employees' physical, mental, and spiritual
wellness. In consideration of employee safety, the company also places electronic blood pressure
monitors and Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs) at fixed locations. In the event of an accident
or emergency, these measures aim to strive for critical time to save employees' lives and ensure a safer
working environment for all employees.

A waste reduction and sorting competition is organized to encourage colleagues to classify their wastes,
thus reducing the environmental burden.

Noise inspections are regularly conducted every six months to ensure a safe working environment. On-
site professional nursing staff are employed to safeguard employee health and safety. Additionally,
annual visits from occupational physicians are arranged to the factory plant. In 2022, there were 10
visits of such nature, totaling 20 hours.

In 2022, there were a total of 3 work-related accidents among our employees, which comprised 0.6%
of the workforce. Apart from handling the incidents properly, reviews on their causes and promotional
education sessions are conducted to let our colleagues understand the reasons behind the incidents and
take preventive measures to avoid their recurrence. To ensure working safety, the ISO 45001 system is
introduced to systematically identify potential risks within the factory plant and implement risk control
measures to minimize the occurrence of accidents.

In 2022, the training and education on work safety were carried out as follows:

For orientation and training of new employees as well as education and training on occupational safety
provided by day/night shift firemen, a total of 5 training sessions were conducted with a participation
of 120 individuals.
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Status of implementation

Promoting item

Discrepancy from the
"Sustainable
Development Best
Practice Principle for

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and its
reasons:
(4) Has the Company established an effective training| v/ To implement employee training and career development, various job-related educational training
scheme for the development of career skills? programs are provided for employees. From the company's mid to long-term strategies to the annual
policy plan, the gaps in achieving strategic objectives are assessed and corresponding training course
plans are proposed.
2022 Status of implementation:
1. New employees: To facilitate the quick integration of new employees into the company and let them
understand the company culture, two orientation training sessions for new employees are organized,
with a total of 24 participants.
2. For key executives, the company plans and implements a course on system leaning. And in alignment
with the company's three definitions of values, namely "increasing profits, reducing costs, and
eliminating risks", diversified and advanced training programs are launched. Throughout the year, a
total of 128 internal and external training sessions were conducted, with a participation of 720
individuals and a total training duration of 566 hours. Additionally, there were 457 on-the-job training
sessions conducted on-site, involving 2,514 individuals.
Regarding issues related to customer health and safety,| v/ (5) The company complies with relevant laws and regulations and international standards in the marketing
customer privacy, marketing, and labeling of] and labeling of products and services. We have established a customer service unit and a zone for
products and services, does the company adhere to interested parties to act as a channel of complaint, and protect consumer rights.
relevant laws and regulations and international
standards and develop related policies and appeal
procedures to protect consumer or customer rights?
(6) Has the company established a supplier| v/ The company conducts regular written and on-site evaluations of suppliers. In the future, we plan to
management policy that requires suppliers to leverage our influence to promote standards in environmental protection, occupational health and
adhere to relevant standards in environmental safety, and labor rights and gradually require our major suppliers to sign a "Committee Letter on
protection, occupational health and safety, and labor Supplier Social Responsibility".
rights? If so, what is the implementation status?
5. Does the company refer to international reporting v’ |The company has already set up a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) section on its website. And|Comply with the
standards or guidelines when preparing its according to the actual status of implementation, the relevant information is disclosed on the company|"Corporate

sustainability report and other reports disclosing
non-financial information? Has the aforementioned
report been assured and verified by a third-party

accreditation unit?

website and the Market Observation Post System (MOPS). Such reports will be prepared according to the
future development needs of the company and regulatory requirements.

Governance Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"

6. If the company has adopted its own sustainable development best practice principles based on the" Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, please
explain the discrepancy, if any, of the operation principles:
Although the company has not adopted the "Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies”, we are still committed to fulfilling corporate social
responsibilities in three major areas, namely corporate governance, environmental protection, and social welfare. We strive to go beyond mere compliance with textual regulations and aim to
achieve mutual benefits between the company, customers, society, and the environment.

7. Other important information that helps to understand the implementation of sustainable development:
The company is committed to continuously caring for society and assisting the underprivileged. In addition to our business operations, we also actively contribute to education, industry-academia
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Discrepancy from the
"Sustainable
Development Best
Promoting item Practice Principle for
Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies", and its
reasons:

Status of implementation

collaboration, creating friendly environments, and social welfare initiatives.
In 2022, the company continued to promote and donate to the "Changhua Homnyue Charity Association" for various social welfare initiatives.
1. Care for the underprivileged:
(1). Providing winter relief for low-income households in nearby towns (Shengang Township, Xianxi Township). In 2022, a total of 299 households were assisted.
(2). Providing emergency assistance to neighboring towns (Hemei Township, Xianxi Township, Shengang Township). (In 2022, a total of 19 individuals were case beneficiaries.
(3). Participating in charity carnivals, selling second-hand goods, and donating to the Changhua Family Support Center.
(4). Donating to the Huashan Social Welfare Foundation's "Love for the Elderly, Love for Reunion" event, supporting 120 sets of Chinese New Year dishes.
2. Care for education:
(1). Providing scholarships for financially disadvantaged students in junior high schools, senior high schools, and vocational schools of neighboring towns (Hemei Township, Xianxi Township, and
Shengang Township) In 2022, a total of 79 scholarships were granted.
(2). Donating to the Taiwan Reading Culture Foundation's "Library of Love" project. (A total of 7 "Libraries of Love" have been donated till now)

3.Sponsorship of medical institutions: Donated 674 pieces of working clothes, working pants, and treatment towels to National Taiwan University Hospital.
4.Environmental care: Participated in beach cleaning and tree planting activities. In 2022, a total of two events were organized, with 63 participants.
5.Health care: To comply with government epidemic prevention policies, the company encourages employees to receive the COVID-19 vaccine and provides rewarding bonuses. A bonus of NTD
1,000 will be given for the first dose, NTD 2,000 for the second dose, and an additional NTD 2,000 for the third dose.

(3) Awarded the 1st "Work-Life Balance Award" from the Ministry of Labor, Executive Yuan.

(4) Awarded Four-Star Award for "Energetic Changhua Blissful Workplace" by the Changhua County Government.

(5) Awarded the 3rd 'Group Award for Exemplary Labors' from the Ministry of Labor.

(6) Obtained the Sporting Enterprise Certification issued by the Sports Administration, Ministry of Education.

(7) Awarded outstanding member of the Labour Relations Association of Changhua County.

(8) Obtained the Commonhealth CHR2020 Health Enterprise Citizen Commitment Enterprise Badge.

(9) Awarded Outstand Piece in the Golden Like Award of Labour Proposals.
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(6) Status on the execution of ethical corporate management and its discrepancy to '"Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies'', and the reasons that accounted for the discrepancy.

Evaluation item

Status of operation

Discrepancy from the
"Ethical Corporate

Management Best
Practice Principles for

signed with them?

company also ensures that its suppliers, customers, and commercial partners, can understand
and acknowledge the company's procedures for ethical management. This is achieved by
incorporating clauses related to ethical practices in commercial contracts. The company
assesses the legitimacy of counterparties and checks for any records of dishonest behavior
through credit limit evaluations, credit investigations, or verification procedures. If any
counterparty involved in business transactions or collaborations is found to have engaged in
dishonest behavior, the company reserves the right to unconditionally suspend or terminate the

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies" and reasons
1. Implementation of ethical corporate management policies and Comply with the
measures The company has stipulated the "Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct," |"Ethical Corporate
(1) Has the Company established an ethical corporate v which was approved by the Board of Directors in March 2017 and revised in March 2020, and is |Management Best
management policy approved by the Board of Directors, publicized on the company's website. On the other hand, the company has developed internal Practice Principles for
and clearly indicated the policy and practices of ethical operational guidelines and internal control systems. The company regularly evaluates its operations| TWSE/TPEx Listed
corporate management in its regulations and external and reports the evaluation results to the Board of Directors. Companies"
documents? Have the Board of Directors and senior The company stipulated the "Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct"
management officials committed to actively implementing according to the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles". It requires all
the policy? employees to uphold high ethical standards, protect the company's reputation, and comply with
laws and regulations, which are of utmost importance.
(2) Has the company established a mechanism for assessing the To ensure that employees maintain awareness of ethical behavior, besides the announcement of]
risk of dishonest behavior and regularly analyzing and "Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct” on the official website that allows
evaluating business activities that are more prone to the v easy access by employees, the company also discloses its status of annual ethical management in
risk of dishonest behavior? Has it used this information to the Annual Report and on the company's website. Regular educational programs are conducted to
develop measures to prevent dishonest behavior, and at raise awareness among employees.
least cover the measures specified in Article 7, Paragraph 2 The company provides channels for reporting any potential violations of professional ethics and
of "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice adopts a serious attitude in investigating and verifying such behavior fairly.
Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies"? The company has stipulated the "Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct"
and specific guidelines for compliance with different laws and regulations. The consequences of
(3) Has the Company defined operational procedures, violating these guidelines are clearly stated in the employee code of conduct. Additionally, a
behavioral guidelines, disciplinary measures for violations, reporting system and complaint channels are established in the Interested Parties' Zone of the
and the establishment of an appeal system to prevent company's website. The audit department plays an important role in ensuring ethical management
dishonest behaviors? Are they effectively implemented and and compliance with laws and regulations.
reviewed regularly for modifications? Internal audits are conducted according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board of
v Directors, and the audit results and subsequent improvement plans are reported to the Board of
Directors and the management level, as well as the implementation of the "Ethical business
operations and Guidelines of conduct".
2. Implementing Ethical Corporate Management Comply with the
(1) Does the Company evaluate the integrity records of its (1) Besides training employees on maintaining the concepts of integrity in business operations, the |"Ethical Corporate
counterparties and include integrity clauses in contracts v

Management Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"

contract.
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Evaluation item

Status of operation

Discrepancy from the
"Ethical Corporate

Management Best
Practice Principles for

education and training system. Moreover, the "Guidelines on ethical business practices and
insider trading" are publicized to new employees.
In 2022, a total of three internal education and training sessions were conducted, with a total
duration of 4.8 hours and the participation of 260 individuals.

Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies" and reasons
(2) Does the company establish a specialized unit under the v (2) The company has established an "Integrity Management Committee", which is composed of the |Comply with the
Board of Directors to promote ethical corporate Management Center of the General Manager's Office and relevant departments. This committee |"Ethical Corporate
management and report to the Board of Directors regularly is responsible for assisting in promoting the company's integrity management. On 28th March |Management Best
(at least once a year) on its ethical management policy, and 28, 2023, the committee reported the implementation status for the year 2022 to the Board of  |Practice Principles for
measures to prevent dishonest behavior and their Directors. TWSE/TPEx Listed
supervision of implementation? Companies"
(3) The company has stipulated clauses on the avoidance of conflict of interest in its Rules of
(3) Does the company establish a policy to prevent conflicts of procedures of Board of Directors meetings and ensures their exact implementation. All
interest, provide appropriate reporting channels, and employees are required to comply with these regulations to uphold the spirit of ethical
implement it? v managements in the company. Additionally, policies to prevent conflicts of interest and
channels for reporting illegal or unethical behavior are clearly defined for senior executives
(4) Has the company established effective accounting and such as directors and managerial officials, and all employees. The company also provides an
internal control systems to ensure ethical corporation employee care mailbox and appropriate channels for statements and reports.
management? Has it established relevant audit plans by the (4) The company values highly on ensuring the accuracy and completeness of financial reporting
internal audit unit based on the evaluation of the risk of v processes and internal controls. Specific internal control systems are designed for operational
dishonest behaviors? Has it used these audit plans to check procedures with higher potential risks of dishonest behavior. Besides that, through annual self-
on compliance with the prevention plan for dishonest assessment of enterprise internal controls, each department of the company must review its
behavior, or has it entrusted an accountant to carry out the internal control system design and the effectiveness of implementation. The internal audit unit
audit? also formulates an annual internal audit plan based on the results of risk assessments and
(5) Has the Company regularly organized internal and external conducts various audits. The audit results are reported to the Board of Directors and the
education and training on ethical management? management level.
(5) Every year, the Management Center of the General Manager's Office promotes education on
ethical management for all employees. Topics such as "Operating procedures for handling
material inside information and prevention of insider trading" and "Ethical business practices",
as well as other matters of awareness are publicized to employees through the internal
v
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Status of operation

Discrepancy from the
"Ethical Corporate
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Yes | No Abstract Illustration TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies" and reasons
3. Operation Status of the Reporting System of the Company Comply with the
(1) Has the company established specific reporting and reward (1) The company's website and internal network have set up an independent reporting mailbox and |"Ethical Corporate
systems, and set up convenient reporting channels, as well | v telephone to allow employees and external individuals to report any instances of financial, legal, [Management Best
as assigned appropriate personnel responsible for the and integrity-related misconduct. These reporting channels also allow anonymous reporting, Practice Principles for
subject being reported for misconduct? TWSE/TPEx Listed
v (2) Within the "Investors' Zone" of the company website, an independent section is established Companies"
(2) Has the Company established standard operating specifically for contact with interested parties. A reporting system is also implemented to allow
procedures for accepting reports, and has it adopted both employees and external individuals to make reports, and they are received and investigated
follow-up actions after investigation and relevant by specialized personnel. The company maintains strict confidentiality regarding the identity of
confidentiality measures? the whistleblower and the content of the report with a written statement, and conducts with a
rigorous approach.
(3) Has the company taken measures to protect whistleblowers | v* (3) When the company accepts a report and starts the investigation, besides ensuring the
from improper treatment as a result of their confidentiality of the whistleblower, the handling, investigation process, findings, and related
whistleblowing? records are treated with utmost confidentiality and rigor. The company is committed to
safeguarding whistleblowers from any improper treatment or punishments as a result of their
reporting
4. Enhancing Information Disclosure Comply with the
Has the company disclosed the content of its regulations | v/ The "Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct" are stipulated under the "Ethical Corporate

on ethical management and its promotion effects on the
company website or Market Observation Post System
(MOPS)?

resolution of the Board of Directors, and the relevant information is publicized on the company
website and Market Observation Post System (MOPS).

Management Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies"

5. Ifthe Company has established its regulation on ethical corporate management in accordance with the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies",

please explain its operation and its discrepancy to relevant regulations:

The company has stipulated the "Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct", and will report the status of implementation annually to the Board of Directors.

6. Other important information that is helpful for understanding the ethical business practices and management of the company: (eg. the status of review and amendment to its Ethical Corporate

Management Best Practice Principles):

The company's guidelines of conduct will be updated and revised in line with current trends. In addition to complying with the laws and regulations, the guideline will be reviewed and amended as
necessary to meet the demands of ethical business practices.
The company will also conduct education and training programs to reinforce ethical business practices and ensure the implementation of concepts.
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(7) If the company has stipulated corporate governance regulations and other related

@®)

regulations, the way to access them shall be disclosed:

1. Relevant regulations regarding corporate governance that are stipulated by the
company are as follows:
(1). Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings
(2). Rules of Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings
(3). Procedures for election of directors
(4). Operating Procedures for acquisition and disposal of assets
(5). Operating Procedures for loaning funds to others
(6). Procedures for endorsements and guarantees
(7). Organizational regulations of the Remunerations Committee
(8). Organizational regulations of the Audit Committee
(9). Operating procedures for handling material inside information and prevention of
insider trading
(10). Procedures for ethical management and Guidelines for conduct
(11). Policies on the diversification of members of the Board of Directors
(12). Corporate governance best practice principles
(13). Information security and risk management

2. Method of inquiry: Inquiry under the item "Investors' Zone" on the company
webpage (http://www.textile-hy.com.tw)

Other material information for increasing understanding of the status of

implementing corporate governance:

1. The company has stipulated "Operating procedures for handling material inside
information and prevention of insider trading" which clearly regulates the
handling of material inside information of the company and disclosure
mechanisms. The prevention of insider trading is also strengthened. Directors,
managerial officers, and employees should comply with these regulations, and
publication sessions will be conducted periodically for all employees.

2. Status of continuing education of managerial officials, auditors, and other related

personnel:
Stud
) y
Name Date Organizer Name of course Hour
S
Head of Continuous training
accountin 2022/9/29 | Accounting Research course for issuers,
Pan Li-Zh% ~ and Development securities firms, 12
(G = 1) 2022/9/30 | Foundation stock exchanges, and
" accounting managers
Practices on
production cycles
Audit 2022/3/29 and key points in 6
Supervisor The Institute of Internal | auditing
Chen Yu Auditors
v )
(Fr %) 2022/10/14 Practices on the 6
audit of subsidiaries
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(9) Implementation status of the internal control system
1. Statement on the Internal Control System

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Statement on the Internal Control System
Date: 28" March 2023
Based on the results of the self-evaluation of the internal control system of the company in
2022, the following is hereby declared:

1. The company is aware that it is the Board of Directors' and the management officials'
responsibility to establish, implement, and maintain an internal control system. The
company has already established such a system. The purpose of this system is to ensure
reasonable assurance on the achievement of these several objectives: The effectiveness
and efficiency of the operations (including profitability, performance, asset security,
etc.), providing reports that are reliable, timely, and transparent, and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

2. Internal control systems have their innate limitations, and no matter how well-designed
they are, they can only provide reasonable assurance for achieving the three objectives
mentioned above. Furthermore, the effectiveness of internal control systems may also
change due to changes in the environment and circumstances. However, the
Company's internal control system includes a mechanism for self-supervision. If any
shortcoming is identified, the company will take action to rectify them immediately.

3. The Company assesses the effectiveness of the design and implementation of the
internal control systems based on the criteria for determining the effectiveness of these
systems stated in "Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems
by Public Companies" (quoted as "Regulations" below for short). The criteria for
determining the effectiveness of internal control systems adopted by the "Regulation"
divides the system into five composing factors according to the process of
management control: 1. Environment control, 2. Risk evaluation, 3. Operations control,
4. Information and communication, and 5. Operations supervision. Each component
factor includes various items. Please refer to the “Regulations" for the items mentioned
above.

4. The company has adopted the aforementioned criteria for evaluating the effectiveness
of the design and implementation of internal control systems.

5. Based on the evaluation results from the preceding item, the company believes that the
design and implementation of its internal control systems (including supervision and
management of subsidiaries) as of 31st December 2022 can reasonably guarantee the
achievement of the following objectives: understanding the degree of achievement of
operational effectiveness and efficiency targets, providing reports that are reliable,
timely and transparent, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

6. This statement will become a major content of the company's Annual Report and
Prospectus, and will be made publicly available. If there is any falsehood, concealment,
or other illegal affairs in the above public content, it may involve legal responsibilities
under the Securities and Exchange Act, including Article 20, Article 32, Article 171,
and Article 174.

7. The statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 28th March 2023. It is
hereby declared that out of the 11 present directors, no one expressed any objections,
and all agreed with the contents of this statement.

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.
Chairman: Ye Ming-Zhou (¥ F? /) Signature
General Manager: Guo Zheng-Pei (5% & /" ) Signature

2. Disclosure of the auditor's review report when the internal control system is reviewed by an
auditor assigned on a project basis: None
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(10) In the most recent fiscal and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report, if there
has been any legal penalty against the company or its internal personnel, or any
disciplinary penalty by the company against its internal personnel for violation of the
internal control system, where the result of such penalty could have a material effect on
shareholder equities or prices of securities, the content of the penalty, the main
shortcomings, and condition of improvements shall be disclosed: None

(11) Important resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting and the Board of Directors in

the

most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report.
1. Important resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting

Date Proposal Resolution and the status of implementation
1. The 2021 Business Report and |The original proposal was approved by a vote of all present
Financial Statement. shareholders and was announced in the important resolution
items of the Shareholders' Meeting.
2. The profit distribution plan for the year|The original proposal was approved by a vote of all present
2021. shareholders: Cash dividends were distributed at NTD 0.5 per
2022/6/21 share and had been distributed on 26th August 2022.

3. Proposal on the amendments to the
“Operational Procedures for
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”.

The original proposal was approved unanimously by all present
shareholders and was announced in the important resolution
items of the Shareholders' Meeting. The "Operational Procedures
for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets” was entered into the
Market Observation Post System (MOPS).

2. Important resolutions of the Board of Directors

Opinion of Result of resolution
Date Proposal independent
directors
. The 2021 Business Report. None [Approved unanimously by all attending
directors
. Proposal on the promotion of managerial officials None |Approved by all present directors after being
of the company. consulted by the chairman: The promotion of
lassociate Pan Cai-Juan (7§ %247 ), associate Cai
'You-Dian (3 f% & ), and manager Pan Li-Zhe
7% 2 47) was effective starting from 1st
January 2022; the promotion of manager
Zhang Pei-Hong (3& 32 £) was effective
starting from 1st February 2022
. Proposal on the adjustment of the salary of| None [The interested parties of this proposal
managerial officials for the year 2022. temporarily abstained from voting due to
recusal, and the proposal was approved by the
remaining directors present after being
2022/1/18 consulted by the acting chairman
4. Proposal on the distribution of year-end bonuses None  [The interested parties of this proposal
and operation performance bonuses for temporarily abstained from voting due to
managerial officials for the year 2021. recusal, and the proposal was approved by the
remaining directors present after being
consulted by the acting chairman
. Proposal on the appropriation ratio of director and None [Approved unanimously by all attending
employee remunerations for the year 2022. directors, the estimated appropriation rate for
director and employee remunerations in 2022
was set at 3% and 3% respectively
In order to meet the operational funding None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
requirements, the company plans to apply for a directors
renewal and sign a financing facility with the
original financial institution.
. The 2022 Individual and Consolidated Financial None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
Statements of the company. directors
2022/3/22 . Proposal on the change of CPA for Financial None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
Statements after Q1 of 2022. directors
. Evaluation of the independence and suitability of| None |Approved unanimously by all attending

the CPA of the company.

directors
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Opinion of

Result of resolution

Date Proposal independent
directors
4. Proposal of the issuance of 2021“Statement on the None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
Internal Control System” by the company. directors
5. Proposal on the amendments to the “Operational None [Approved unanimously by all attending
Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of directors
Assets”.
6. Proposal on the loaning of funds to the subsidiary. None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
directors
7. Proposal on the convening of the 2022 Annual None [Approved unanimously by all attending
Shareholders' Meeting directors, the Annual Shareholders' Meeting
would be convened at 10 am, 21st June 2022
8. Proposal on the drafting of the 2021 profit None  [The 2021 profit distribution was resolved by
distribution plan. lall present directors and the cash dividends
were set as NTD 0.5 per share, and was
submitted for approval at the shareholders'
meeting.
9. The company's proposal to accept the agendas None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
submitted by shareholders that would be discussed directors
at the 2022 Annual Shareholders' Meeting.
10. Proposal on the distribution of director and None [Approved unanimously by all attending
supervisor  remunerations and  employee directors
remuneration for the year 2021
11. Proposal on the promotion of managerial officials None |Approved by all present directors after being
of the company. consulted by the chairman: the promotion of
executive deputy general manager of the
business department Hong Jin-Chang (i% 44 & )
and manager Hsu Wei-Fang (4 5 %) was
effective starting from 1st April 2022
12. In order to meet the operational funding None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
requirements, the company plans to apply for a directors
renewal with the original financial institution.
1. The Q1 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022. None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
directors
2. Proposal on the distribution of the 2022 Dragon None  [The interested parties of this proposal
Boat Festival (Mid-year) performance bonus to temporarily abstained from voting due to
managerial officials. recusal, and the proposal was approved
unanimously by the remaining directors
2022/5/12 present after being consulted by the acting
chairman
3. Schedule planning for the inspection of greenhouse None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
gases in the company directors
4. Proposal on the establishment of the "Committee None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
for ESG Promotion toward Sustainable directors
Developments".
1. Proposal on the profit distribution in the form of| None |Approved unanimously by all attending
cash dividends for the year 2021 and the drafting directors
of the ex-dividend date and the date of distribution
of cash dividends.
Proposal on the adjustment of suspension period None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
for conversions and converting prices of the directors
Homnyue second domestic unsecured convertible
corporate bonds.
[ For the adjustment of converting prices of the
2022/6/21 second domestic unsecured convertible corporate
bonds, it is proposed that the chairman is
authorized to handle with full authority )
3. In order to meet the operational funding None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
requirements, the company plans to apply for a directors
renewal and sign a financing facility with the
original financial institution.
4. Proposed to apply financing facility for the None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
subsidiary of the company (Honmyue Textile directors
(Zhejiang) Co., Ltd), and a letter of support is
issued to Mega International Commercial Bank.
2022/8/12 1. The Q2 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022. None  |[Approved unanimously by all attending

directors
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Opinion of Result of resolution
Date Proposal independent
directors
. Proposal on the appointment remuneration of CPA None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
for the year 2022. directors
. Proposal on the distribution of "Director and None [Approved unanimously by all attending
Supervisor Remunerations for the year 2021". directors
Proposal on the distribution of "Employee None  [The interested parties of this proposal
Remuneration for the year 2021" to managerial temporarily abstained from voting due to
officials. recusal, and the proposal was approved
unanimously by the remaining directors
present after being consulted by the acting
chairman
. Proposal on the promotion of managerial officials None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
of the company. directors
. Proposal for the amendment of the company's None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
"Procedures for the Payment of Director and directors
Functional Committee Remuneration".
In order to meet the operational funding None  |[Approved unanimously by all attending
requirements, the company plans to apply for a directors
renewal and sign a financing facility with the
original financial institution.
. The Q3 Consolidated Financial Statement of 2022. None [Approved unanimously by all attending
directors
. The company proposes to revise the operational None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
schedule for the self-preparation of the Financial directors
Statement.
. Proposal for the 2023 internal audit plan. None  |[Approved unanimously by all attending
directors
. The appointment of the "Head of Financing" of the None  [Approved unanimously by all attending
company directors
13. The appointment of the "Deputy None [Approved unanimously by all attending
2022/11/11 Spokesperson" of the company directors
. Proposal on the amendment of the company's None [Approved unanimously by all attending
"Procedures for the appropriation and distribution directors
of employee remuneration".
. Proposal on the amendment of the company's None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
"Procedures for the reward of employee directors
performance".
In order to meet the operational funding None  |Approved unanimously by all attending
requirements, the company plans to apply for a directors
renewal and sign a financing facility with the
original financial institution.
(12) In the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report,

if there is any director or supervisor has expressed a dissenting opinion with respect
to a material resolution passed by the Board of Directors, with a record or written
statement, its major contents shall be disclosed: None
(13) A summary of resignations and dismissals, during the most recent fiscal year and as
of the date of publication of the Annual Report, of the company's Chairman, General
Manager, Head of Accounting, Head of Finance, Internal Auditor, Head of Corporate
Governance and Head of Research and Development:

. Date of Date of Reasons for
Title Name . . resignation or
assignment dismissal dismissal
Chen Cang-
Head of Jun 2018/1/19 | 2022/10/31 Retirement
Finance YR
(MAR)
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3.5 Information regarding the company’s audit fee paid to the CPA

(1) Information regarding the company’s audit fee paid to the CPA
Unit: NTD Thousand

Name of Duration of . Non-audit fee
accounting | Name of CPA audit Audit fee (Note) Total Remark
firm
Hong Shu-Hua
. (3% i E) 2022.01.01~
PwC Taiwan Wang Yu-Juan 2022.12.31 2,850 986 3,836
(2 248)

Note: Business travel and transportation expenses, verification fees of transfer pricing, and
tax advisory fees

(2) If there is a change in the accounting firm, and in the year of the change the audit fee is lower
than that in the previous year, the audit fees before and after the change, as well as the reasons,
shall be disclosed: None

(3) If the audit fee is reduced by more than 10% compared to the previous year, the amount of the
audit fee reduced, its proportion, and the reasons for the reduction shall be disclosed: None

3.6 Replacement of CPA
(1) Regarding the former CPA

Replacement date

Since the Q1 Financial Statement of 2022

Due to internal working adjustments of PwC Taiwan, accountants
Liu Mei-Lan (%] # ) and Wang Yu-Juan (% 2 4%) are changed
to accountants Hong Shu-Hua (£ /& #) and Wang Yu-Juan (%

Replacement reasons and explanation

Status Parties CPA The company
Describe whether the company Vol — < N/A
te_rminated or the CPA 'germinated or apci)gin;g;}émtermmatlon 0 N/A
did not accept the appointment No longer accepted N/A N/A
(continued) appointment

Other opinions (except for unqualified
opinions) in the audit reports within the
last two years and their reasons

The Financial Statements of 2021 and 2022 were all issued with
unqualified opinions

Accounting principles or practices

Disclosure of Financial Statements

Audit scope or steps

Yes
Differences with the company Others
None v
Explanation
Other matters to disclosure None

(2) Regarding the succeeding CPA

Name of accounting firm

PwC Taiwan

Name of CPA

Accountant Hong Shu-Hua (7% # %) and Wang Yu-Juan (2 1. 4%)

Date of appointment

Since the Q1 Financial Statement of 2022

Consultation results and opinions
on accounting treatments or
principles with respect to specified

of disagreement toward the former
CPA

transactions and the company's N/A
financial reports that the CPA
might issue prior to the engagement
Succeeding CPA’s written opinion | None

(3) Former CPA's response letter regarding matters in Article 10, Subparagraph 6, Items 1
and 2-3 of these regulations: None
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3.7 Employment of the company's chairman, general manager, or managerial officials
responsible for finance or accounting by the auditing CPA firm or its affiliated
enterprises in the most recent fiscal year: None

3.8 Particulars about changes in shareholding and equity pledge of directors, managerial
officials, and shareholders holding more than 10% of the company's shares in the past
year and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report

2022 he fiscal year as of 28th April
Title Name Increment Increment Increment Increment
(Reduction) in | (Reduction) in | (Reduction) in | (Reduction) in
shareholding equity pledge | shareholding | equity pledge

Chairman Ye Ming-Zhou (£ P #') 23,000 0 8,000 0
Deputy Chairman Chen Jin-Feng (R £ B) 23,000 0 257,000 0
Director PSR
General Manager Guo Zheng-Pei (3% & i) 23,000 0 8,000 0
Director Ye Jun-Lin (¥ & &%) 19,000 0 6,000 0
Director Lai Ming-Yi (¥ P* %) 0 0 0 0
Director Cai Zhen-Hui (33 &) 0 0 0 0
Director Hsu Ren-Xing (37 iz &) 0 0 0 0
Director Wang Mao-Lin (2 75 %) (272,000) 0 0 0
Independent Director Lin Hong-Zhao (++ % ) 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Hsiao Chen-Chi (#% % 3£) 0 0 0 0
Independent Director Zhu Xing-Hua (4 2 #) 0 0 0 0
Executive Deputy
General Manager of the Hong Jin-Chang (i% 4% &) 23,000 0 8,000 0
Business Department
Deputy General Manager
Department Head of Chen Cang-Jun (f £ i) (Note 1) 17,000 0 - -
Finance
Associate of the Business S
Department Ye Bo-Yu (¥ %) 19,000 0 6,000 0
Associate of the
Department of Tsai You-Dian (3% £ ) 24,000 0 6,000 0
Production
Associate of the Business . % %
Department Pan Cai-Juan (7% ¥24% ) 19,000 0 6,000 0
Manager of
Management and
Administration Center, . .
General Manager's Office Zhuo Su-Qing (4 % ) 21,000 0 6,000 0
Head of Corporate
Governance
Manager of Information
Management Center, . —
General Manager’s Chen Shao-Rui (f& % %) 15,000 0 5,000 0
Office
Manager of the
Department of Finance Pang Li-Zhe (% = 4F) 19,000 0 6,000 0
Head of Accounting
M f the Busi . 25 1
D:;:rgtgezt € BUSINESS 1 7hang Pei-Hong (55 # %) (Note 2) 21,000 0 6,000 0
Manager of the Business . Ny e
Department Hsu Wei-Fang (#% % =) (Note 3) 14,000 0 6,000 0
Manager of the
Department of Research | Guo Yan-Hong (3% 3 %) (Note 4) 7,000 0 6,000 0
and Technology
Head of Finance Xie Hui-Na (3 & #%) (Note 5) 2,000 0 4,000 0

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:
Note 7:

Appointed as
Appointed as

manager on 1st February 2022
manager on 1st April 2022

Appointed as manager on 1st September 2022

Appointed as manager on 11st November 2022

The company has no shareholders with more than 10% of the total shares of the company yet

The aforementioned counterparties who are involved in the change of shareholding are not interested parties.

Dismissed on 31st October 2022, Period: 2022/1/1~2022/10/31
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3.9 Relationship Information on the top ten shareholders who are mutually interested
parties, spouses, or relatives within two degrees of kinship

28th April 2023
. |sharcholding by Name and relationship between the top i
. Spouse’s/minor’s . ten shareholders who are mutually 5]
Current shareholding . nominee . . . =)
shareholding interested parties, spouses, or relatives | S
arrangement o L 22
within two degrees of kinship
Name
NS S |Noof| 8 &
S 9| No.of |§ 2 5 @
o o O o o = . .
No. of shares E = % shares 'j:*g ;& | shares E g % Name Relationship
wn = n wn =
ﬁgfigﬁ;‘ﬁj:@jﬁ?ciz (Lfﬁi 8,554,805 6.59 ol o 0 o | Ye Min-Chao (¥ F* 4¢) | Chairman
o 53) ’ 0¥ 4,487,850 345 Ye Zheng-Hua (¥ 5< #) | Supervisor
Chen Jin-Feng (it £ ) FDR
o Ye Bo-Yu (£ ) SDR
Ye Jun-Lin (¥ & &) 6,314,088 4.86 0 0 0 0 Ye Rui-Ke (£ 5.) SDR
Po Yu Invest (Share) Director
Po Yu Invest (Share) Director
. Ye Jun-Lin (¥ & %) FDR
Chen Jin-Feng (fR £ ) 5,886,080 4.53 0 0 0 0 Ye Bo-Yu (£ %) FDR
Ye Rui-Ke (£ 3 i) FDR
Chen Jin-Feng (Mt £ ) FDR
[N Ye Jun-Lin (¥ & %) SDR
- 2 . .
Ye Bo-Yu (£ ) 5,731,132 441 (1,788,507 | 1.38 0 0 Ye Rui-Ke (£ 3.) SDR
Po Yu Invest (Share) Director
Jing Wei Investment Co. Ltd
Representative: Ye Zong Gang 3,566,726 4.29 0 0 0 0 None None
o 0 0
(E=4%)
Po Yu Invest Co., Ltd. 5184351 399 Chen Jin-Feng (Mt £ ) | Chairman
Representative: Chen Jin-Feng 5’ 28 6’ 080 4' 53 0 0 0 0| YelJun-Lin (¥ & &%) Director
(&h) 7 ) Ye Bo-Yu (£# =) Director
Ye Ming-Zhou (¥ P ') FDR
Ye Min-Chao (¥ B 42) 4,487,850 3.45 0 0 0 0 | Ye Zheng-Hua (I #z #) SDR
Ye Zong Gang (¥ 7 4#) SDR
Ye Min-Chao (¥ B 42) FDR
Ye Ming-Zhou (£ B #') 4,297,421 3.31 0 0 0 0 [ Ye Zheng-Hua (¥ 5z &) FDR
Ye Zong Gang (¥ 7 4#) FDR
Chen Jin-Feng (R £ ) FDR
Ye Rui-Ke (£3 &) 3,373,104 2.60 0 0 0 0| YelJun-Lin (¥ % m#) SDR
Ye Bo-Yu (£# =) SDR
Zheng Hong Investments Supervisor
(Shares) FDR
Ye Zheng-Hua (¥ #c &) 2,625,792 2.02 0 0 0 0 [ Ye Ming-Zhou (£ p* ')
. - SDR
Ye Min-Chao (3 # 42) SDR
Ye Zong-Gang (¥ 7 4)

3.10 The total number of shares and total equity stake held in any single invested business
by the company, its directors, managerial officials, and any companies controlled
either directly or indirectly by the company

31st December 2022
Investment by directors, supervisors,
managerial officials, or any .
Invested Business Investment by the company companies controlled either directly Comprehensive investment
(Note) or indirectly by the company
No. of shares Shareh?ldlng No. of shares Shareh(.)ldlng No. of shares Shareh?ldlng
ratio ratio ratio

HONGYU HOLDINGS L.L.C N/A 100.00% 0 0 N/A 100.00%

Honmyue Textile (Zhejiang) Co.,Ltd N/A 100.00% 0 0 N/A 100.00%

ilg_l]lang DeYu Textile Technologies Co., N/A 100.00% 0 0 N/A 100.00%

in Fa Comprehensive Development Co., N/A 100.00% 0 0 N/A 100.00%

Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. N/A N/A 2,300,000 70% 2,800,000 70%

Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. 13,000,000 86.67% 0 0| 13,000,000 86.67%

Note: Investments accounted for using the equity method by the company
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4.1 Capital and shares

(1) Source of capital stock

1. Formation process of capital stock

4. Capital Overview

31% March 2023
Year Isspe Authorized capital Paid-in capital Remarks
and (Jgnﬁe / ital i
th ollar, No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount . Capital increased by
mon Share) (Share) (NTD) (Share) (NTD) Source of capital stock assets other than cash Others
1970.09 10,000 300 3,000,000 300 3,000,000 | Cash None None
1985.03 10,000 2,000 20,000,000 2,000 20,000,000 | Cash capital increase None None
1989.11 10 6,000,000 60,000,000 6,000,000 60,000,000 | Cash capital increase None None
1991.11 10 12,000,000 120,000,000 12,000,000 120,000,000 Cash capltgl increase of NTD 40 million, capitalization of retained earnings of None None
NTD 20 million
1994.09 10 18,000,000 180,000,000 18,000,000 180,000,000 | Cash capital increase of NTD 60 million None None
Cash capital increase of NTD 110 million, capitalization of retained earnings
NTD 63 million
1997.10 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 38,000,000 380,000,000 | Capitalization of capital surplus of NTD 27 million None None
Approved by Letter No. 51871 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission
(Type One), dated 7th July 1997
Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 38 million, capitalization of capital
surplus of NTD 11.4 million
1998.08 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 42,940,000 429,400,000 Approved by Letter No. 55972 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission None None
(Type One), dated 29th June 1998
Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 42,940,000, capitalization of capital
surplus of NTD 12,882,000
1999.08 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 48,522,200 485,222,000 Approved by Letter No. 56519 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission None None
(Type One), dated 22nd June 1999
Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 106,657,350, capitalization of capital
surplus of NTD 16,982,770
2000.09 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 60,886,212 608,862,120 Approved by Letter No. 58476 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission None None
(Type One), dated 18th July 2000
Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 118,728,120, capitalization of capital
surplus of NTD 3,044,310
2001.10 10 80,000,000 800,000,000 73,063,455 730,634,550 Approved by Letter No. 144127 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory Commission None None
(Type One), dated 17th July 2001
Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 87,676,150
2002.08 10 81,831,070 818,310,700 81,831,070 818,310,700 | Approved by Letter No. 0910137456 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory None None
Commission (Type One), dated 9th July 2002
Cash capital increase of NTD 150 million
2003.05 10 141,831,070 1,418,310,700 96,831,070 968,310,700 | Approved for processing by Letter No. 0920118578 of Taiwan Financial None None
Supervisory Commission (Type One), dated 19th May 2003
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Year
and
month

Issue
price
(Dollar/
Share)

Authorized capital

Paid-in capital

Remarks

No. of shares
(Share)

Amount
(NTD)

No. of shares
(Share)

Amount

(NTD)

Source of capital stock

Capital increased by
assets other than cash

Others

2003.09

10

141,831,070

1,418,310,700

103,609,245

1,036,092,450

Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 67,781,750
Approved by Letter No. 0920143501 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory
Commission (Type One), dated 15th September 2003

None

None

2004.03

12.3

141,831,070

1,418,310,700

105,162,935

1,051,629,350

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
15,536,900
Approved by Business Permit No. 09301033040, dated 9th March 2004

None

None

2004.05

12.3

141,831,070

1,418,310,700

106,766,212

1,067,662,120

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
16,032,770
Approved by Business Permit No. 09301075500, dated 3rd May 2004

None

None

2004.07

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

106,766,212

1,067,662,120

Change of total authorized capital to NTD 1,838,310,700 through the amendment
of Articles of Incorporation

Approved for processing by the Ministry of Economic Affairs in 1993 with
Business Permit No. 09301121290

None

None

2004.08

12.4

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

106,956,294

1,069,562,940

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
1,900,820
Approved by Business Permit No. 09301139710, dated August 2004

None

None

2004.09

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

111,192,893

1,111,928,930

Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 42,365,990
Approved by Business Permit No. 09301139710, dated September 2004

None

None

2004.10

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

111,243,224

1,112,432,240

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
503,310
Approved by Business Permit No. 09301202500, dated October 2004

None

None

2005.01

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

111,990,971

1,119,909,710

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
7,471,470
Approved by Business Permit No. 09401016450, dated January 2005

None

None

2005.05

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

112,450,430

1,124,504,300

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
4,594,590
Approved by Business Permit No. 09401074050, dated May 2005

None

None

2005.07

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

121,444,302

1,214,443,020

Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 89,938,720
Approved by Letter No. 0940129600 of Taiwan Financial Supervisory
Commission (Type One), dated July 2005.

None

None

2006.08

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

132,390,788

1,323,907,880

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
109,464,860
Approved by Business Permit No. 09501166150, dated August 2006

None

Issued at a
discount

2006.10

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

132,571,510

1,325,715,100

Conversion of the First Homnyue convertible bonds into common shares of NTD
1,807,220
Approved by Business Permit No. 09501221720, dated October 2006

None

Issued at a
discount

2008.10

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

137,874,371

1,378,743,710

Capitalization of retained earnings of NTD 53,028,610
Approved by Business Permit No. 09701254920, dated October 2008

None

None

2013.09

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

133,787,969

1,337,879,690

Cancellation of treasury stocks of NTD 40,864,020
Approved by Business Permit No. 10201180180, dated 4th September 2013

None

None

2014.9

183,831,070

1,838,310,700

129,896,969

1,298,969,690

Cancellation of treasury stocks of NTD 38,910,000
Approved by Business Permit No. 10301185980, dated 9th September 2014

None

None
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2. Type of stock

28 April 2023
Unit: Share
Authorized capital
Type of stock Shares outstanding Un-issued Total Remarks
Listed Unlisted shares
Registered 1159 896 969 0| 53,934,101 | 183,831,070
common shares
(2) Shareholders' structure
28" April 2023
hareholders' . . From Other . Foyeign
~structure) Financial | \pijang | juridical | SUMEON | 1 dividual | Total
Quantity institution . and
China person forei
oreigners
Number of 2 1 114 26| 16,180 16,323
people
Shares held 4,000 1 |25,254,945| 441851 104190171150 896,969
Shareholding 0% 0% | 19.44% 034%|  80.22%|  100.00%
percentage (%)
(3) Shareholding distribution status
1. Common shares
28™" April 2023
. No. of Shareholding ratio
Class of shareholding shareholders Shares held (%)
1-999 8,134 442,229 0.34%
1,000 - 5,000 6,052 12,744,898 9.81%
5,001 - 10,000 1,073 8,756,528 6.74%
10,001 -15,000 274 3,567,138 2.75%
15,001 -20,000 221 4,143,623 3.19%
20,001 - 30,000 196 4,998,174 3.85%
30,001 - 50,000 167 6,636,423 5.11%
50,001 - 100,000 100 7,250,770 5.58%
100,001 - 200,000 61 8,416,462 6.48%
200,001 - 400,000 18 5,608,746 4.32%
400,001 - 600,000 6 2,655,580 2.04%
600,001 - 800,000 5 3,580,042 2.76%
800,001 - 1,000,000 1 970,000 0.75%
1,000,001 or above 15 60,126,356 46.29%
Total 16,323 129,896,969 100.00%

2. Preferred stocks: None
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(4) Major list of shareholders:

28" April 2023
Name 0fq1|111aj():'1 sll:la.reholders \ Shares held Sharehoflding
Zheng Hong Investments Co., Ltd 8,554,805 6.59%
Ye Jun-Lin (¥ % &%) 6,314,088 4.86%
Chen Jin-Feng (f £ ) 5,886,080 4.53%
Ye Bo-Yu (¥£# #) 5,731,132 4.41%
Jing Wei Investment Co. Ltd. 5,566,726 4.29%
Po Yu Invest Co., Ltd. 5,184,351 3.99%
Ye Min-Chao (£ ¥ 42) 4,487,850 3.45%
Ye Ming-Zhou (£ P ') 4,297,421 3.31%
Ye Rui-Ke (£ 35 5) 3,373,104 2.60%
Ye Zheng-Hua (& 5z &) 2,625,792 2.02%
(5) Market value per share, net value, earnings, and dividend data in the past two fiscal
years
Year As of 31% March
ltem 2022 2021 2023
Mark |ighest 16.20 21.25 12.65
et
value [Lowest 10.35 11.35 11.95
Eﬁ;re Average 12.94 14.65 (Note 2)
Nelt Before distribution 16.28 15.93 16.17
value
per |After distribution 15.88 (Note) 1) 15.43 (Note 2)
Earni |Weighted average number 129,897
ngs [of shares  (Thousand 129,897 129,897
per [shares)
share |Earnings per share 0.60 1.11 (0.15)
Cash dividends 0.40 (Note 1) 0.50 (Note 2)
Divid [issuance[0 0 0 te 2
end |of bonus (Note 2)
Eer shares |° 0 0 (Note 2)
share .
Accumulated unpaid 0
dividends 0 (Note 2)
Analy|price-to-Earning ratio 21.57 13.20 (Note 2)
sis on
invest|Price-to-Dividend ratio 32.35 29.30 (Note 2)
ment |Cash dividend yield rate 3.09% 3.41% (Note 2)

Price-to-Earning ratio = Average market price per share of the fiscal year / Earnings per share
Price-to-Dividend ratio = Average market price per share of the fiscal year / Cash dividends per share
Cash dividend yield rate = Cash dividends per share / Average market price per share of the fiscal year

Note 1: The cash dividend per share in the profit distribution of 2022 has been approved by the Board of
Directors, but still hasn't been resolved at the shareholders' meeting.
Note 2: The financial summary of Q1, 2023 is adopted, thus becoming not applicable.
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(6) Dividend policy and implementation status

1. Dividend policy formulated by the Articles of Incorporation
The dividend policy of the company aligns with the current and future development plans,
and in consideration of different factors such as the investment environment, capital
requirements, domestic and foreign competitive conditions, and the shareholders' interests,
shareholders' dividends may be distributed in cash or in shares, with cash dividends not
less than 10% of the total dividends. The Board of Directors is authorized to decide the
actual rate of distribution according to the capital condition and budgets of the company.

2. Proposed distribution of dividends by the current Shareholders' Meeting:
The Board of Directors has approved the proposal for the distribution of 2022 profits on
28th March 2023, with a cash dividend ofp NTD 0.4 per share, totaling NTD 51,958,788.

3. Explanation of expected significant changes in the dividend policy: None

(7) The impact on the business performance of the company and earnings per share by the
issuance of bonus shares proposed by the current Shareholders' Meeting: None

(8) Remuneration of employees and directors:

1. The percentage or range of remuneration of employees and directors stated in the Articles of

Corporation:
The Articles of Corporation of the company states that: if there are profits in this fiscal year, a
ratio of not less than 2% of the profits shall be appropriated as employees' remunerations, and
they will be distributed in stocks or cash by the resofution of the Board of Directors, and the
recipients include employees from subsidiaries who fulfill certain criteria. And for the
aforementioned profits of the company, a ratio of not more than 5% shall be appropriated as
directors' remunerations by the resolution of the Board of Directors. Distribution of employee
and director remunerations shall be submitted for report at the Shareholders' Meeting. However,
if the company has accumulated losses, the profits shall be retained to make up for the losses first,
and the remainder allocated as employee and director remunerations afterward according to the
ratio of the preceding paragraph.

2. The basis for estimating the amount of current employee and director remunerations, for
calculating the number of shares to be distributed as employee remunerations, and the accounting
%reatment if there are discrepancies between the actual distributed amount and the estimated
igure:

s (1). The basis for estimating the amount of current employee and director remunerations:
The estimated amount of the current employee and director remunerations is
dependent on the profitability of 2022, and is estimated at 3% and 3% respectively.
The estimated amount is approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors.

(2). The basis for calculating the number of shares to be distributed as employee
remuneration: N/A

(3). The accounting treatment if there are discrepancies between the actual distributed
amount and the estimated figure:
After the end of the fiscal year, when there are changes in the distribution amount
approved by the Board of Directors, the original provisioned annual expenses are
adjusted accordingly. If there are still changes in the amount at the date of the
shareholders' meeting, they will be handled based on the changes in accounting
estimates, and the adjustments for the year will be entered into tﬁe accounts at the
shareholders' meeting resolution.

3. The status of remuneration distribution approved by the Board of Directors:

(1). If there are discrepancies in the amount of employee and director remunerations
distributed in cash or stocks and the estimated amount of the recognized expenses of the
fiscal year, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of treatment shall be disclosed:

2022
Explanation
Item Estimated amount of the | Distribution of on the
recognized expenses remunerations approved by | discrepancy
the Board of Directors
Director remuneration NTD 3,348,930 NTD 3,348,930 N/A
Cash NTD 3,348,930 NTD 3,348,930
Employee N/A
remuneration Stocks None None

(2). The number of shares to be distributed as employee remuneration and its ratio to the
after-tax net profit of the current Individual Financial Statement and the total amount of
employee remuneration: N/A
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4. The actual status of the distribution of employee, director, and supervisor remunerations in
the previous fiscal year, and if this amount has discrepancies to the remunerations of
recognized employees, directors, and supervisors, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of
treatment shall be explained:

2021
Estimated amount | Proposed Explanation
Item of the recognized | distribution amount _ on the
expenses by the Board of discrepancy
Directors

Director and supervisor
remunerations (Note 1) NTD 5,946,308 NTD 5,946,308 N/A
Employee Cash NTD 5,946,808 NTD 5,946,808 N/A
remuneration | gocks None None

Note 1: On 27" August 2021, the company established the Audit Committee to replace
SUpervisors.

(9) The repurchase of company shares by the company: None

4.2 Status of Corporate Bonds

Types of corporate bonds | The second domestic unsecured convertible bonds

Issue (Process) date 26th January 2022

Denomination NTD 100,000

t\r/aellllélaectoif(;lllssuance and Taipei Exchange

Issue price Issued at 109.01% of the denomination
Total price NTD 300 million

Coupon rate Coupon rate 0%

Tenor 3 years Maturity: 26th January 2025
Guarantee agency N/A

Consignee Taishin International Bank Co., Ltd.

Underwriting institution Mega Securities Co., Ltd.

Certified Lawyer ;E}nge‘:{r Chiu Ya-Wen (&% %2 < ) from Handsome Attorneys-
Certified Public Accountant Liu Mei-Lan (%] % %), Wang Yu-Juan(2 2. 4%)
Accountant from PwC Taiwan

With the exception of holders of the convertible corporate
bonds who converts them into common shares of the
company in accordance with Article 10 of this regulation, or
those redeemed in advance by the company in accordance
with Article 18 of this regulation, or repurchase of write-off
bonds from Taipei Exchange, the company shall, within ten
business days after the maturity date of the convertible
corporate bonds, repay the bondholders of the previously
mentioned bonds with a one-time cash repayment according
to the denomination of the bonds, plus an interest
compensation. (The interest compensation at maturity is
1.5075% of the denomination, with an actual yield of 0.5%.)

Outstanding principle NTD 300 million

Method of repayment
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Terms of redemption or
advance repayments

Please refer to the procedure of issuance and conversion of
the second domestic unsecured convertible bonds of the
company

Restrictive clause

Please refer to the procedure of issuance and conversion of
the second domestic unsecured convertible bonds of the
company

Name of credit rating
agency, rating date, rating
of corporate bonds

N/A

As of the date of the
publication of the
Annual Report, the
amount of converted
(exchanged or
subscribed) common
shares, global
depository receipts, or
other securities

Not converted yet

Issuance and
conversion (exchange
or subscription)
method

Other rights attached

Please refer to the procedure of issuance and conversion of
the second domestic unsecured convertible bonds of the
company

Possible dilution of shares
and impact on existing
shareholders’ equity from
the issuance ang
conversion, exchange or
subscription method, and
issuing condition

Assuming under the current conversion price, if all
outstanding corporate bonds are converted to common
shares, about 19,607,843 shares of common shares of the
company will be converted. The company currently has
129,896,969 outstanding shares, and in addition to the
number of convertible shares, the impact on shareholders'
equity is still very limited.

Name of the entrusted
custodian institution for
the exchange target

None

Note: Since 7™ August 2022, the conversion price has been adjusted from NTD 16 to NTD 15.3.

4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8

Status of Preferred Stock: None

Status of Global Depository Receipts: None

Status of Employee Stock Option: None

Status on Employee Restricted Stocks: None

Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisition of Other
Companies’ Shares: None

Implementation of the Funds Utilization Plan:

The company has raised funds through the issuance of domestic corporate bonds, and as
of the end of Q1 of 2023, the implementation of the Funds Utilization Plan is listed in

the following table:

gggg:f COTPOTALe | The second domestic unsecured convertible bonds

Issue date 26th January 2022

Purpose of funds Purchasing machinery and equipment and repayment of bank
utilization loans

Status on the
change of plan

No change

Fundraising Actual receipts of NTD 327,025,200

Purchasing machinery and equipment: Continuously executing
Status of according to the progress of demands
implementation Repayment of bank loans: Completed in Q1 of 2022 according

to the original plan.
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5.1 Business Activities
(1) Business Scope
1. Main areas of business operations

1.

9]

Nello BN Jo))

C302010

2. C301010
3.
4. F104110

C399990

. F204110

. C305010
. C802200

. C805050
. C805070
10.
11.

12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.

C805990
C805010

805020
C805030
F107190
F207190
F401010
CF01011
JE01010

JA03010
H703100
F108031

F208031

7799999

5. Operational Highlights

Weaving of Textiles
Spinning of Yarn

Other Textile and Products Manufacturing

Wholesale of Cloths, Garments, Shoes, Hats, Umbrellas
and Clothing Accessories

Retail Sale of Cloths, Garments, Shoes, Hats, Umbrellas
and Clothing Accessories

Printing, Dyeing, and Finishing

Coating, Paint, Dye and Pigment Manufacturing
Industrial Plastic Products Manufacturing

Reinforced Plastic Products Manufacturing

Other Plastic Products Manufacturing

Manufacture of Plastic Sheets, Pipes and Tubes

Manufacture of Plastic Films and Bags
Plastic Daily Necessities Manufacturing
Wholesale of Plastic Films and Bags
Retail Sale of Plastic Films and Bags
International trading

Retail sale of Medical Equipment
Rental and Leasing

Laundry

Real Estate Leasing

Wholesale of Drugs, Medical Goods
Retail sale of Medical Equipments

All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted
by law, except those that are subject to special approval.

2. Revenue distribution
The company's product categories in 2022 and their revenue distribution are as

follows:
Unit: NTD Thousand
Production item Operating Revenue
revenue distribution
Long-fiber fabrics 2,889,721 90.61%
Short-fiber fabrics 83,404 2.62%
Raw yarn 18,471 0.58%
Medical textiles 76,754 2.41%
Labor services 147,055 4.61%
Sales returns and (26,385) (0.83%)
allowance

Total 3,189,020 100.00%
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3. Main product items of the company

Product types Important usage
Short- | Industrial fabrics |fabric for leather goods such as leather bags and shoes
fiber
fabrics fabric for Shirts, materials for dresses and trousers, casual wear
clothing
Industrial fabrics |Product application: Different types of bags (exterior fabric and lining fabric), baby
strollers, tea bags, horse blankets, shoe materials, running belts, and base fabric.
Product characteristics: Abrasion-resistant, lightweight, moisture-permeable,
waterproof, odor-elimination and anti-mold
Cloth for Product application: Mainly windbreakers and fabric for jackets, surgical gowns, and
garments cleanroom suits.

Product characteristics: UV resistance, crinked, water repellent, waterproof treatment,

anti-static

Fabrics for home |Product application:
Long- furnishing 1. Indoor fabric:
fiber Product application: Tablecloths, shower curtains, curtains, sofas, pillows, placemats,
fabrics indoor sunshades (roller blinds).

2. Outdoor fabric:

Product application: Outdoor seat cushions, lounge chairs, sunshades, rocking chairs,
parasols, tents, hurricane curtains, yacht covers, indoor furniture, outdoor leisure,
and automotive applications.

Product characteristics: High colorfastness to sunlight, UV resistance, flame

resistance, anti-mold, moisture permeability, waterproof breathable, etc. %

Medical fabrics |[Product application: Surgical gowns, surgical drapes and accessories, isolation gowns,
patient gowns, bed sheets, bedding, restraint belts, and other medical garments.

Product characteristics: Antistatic, water-resistant, washable, chlorine-resistant,

antibacterial, flame retardant, and passed on biocompatibility testing.

Raw yarn Raw materials for long and short fiber fabrics
Contract Outsourcing on the work of beam warping and weaving of long and short fiber fabrics
manufacturing to other industrial peers
Others Transaction of materials
(2) Industry Overview

1.Current status and development of the industry

According to the import and export trade statistics from the customs of Taiwan, the total
value of textile exports in 2022 was USD 8.84 billion, a decline of 2%. The total value of imports
was USD 3.945 billion, an increase of 2%. The trade surplus was USD 4.895 billion, a decrease
of USD 269 million or 5% compared to the same period in 2021.

In the analysis of the export value, the main export items were fabrics (72%), followed by
yarn (13%), fibers (5%), garments and apparel (5%), and miscellaneous textile products (5%).
Among the five major export items, fabrics only grew by 2%, while the other products showed a
decline: fibers declined by 14%, yarn declined by 9%, garments and apparel declined by 9%, and
miscellaneous textile products declined by 10%. In the analysis of the import value, the main
import items were garments and apparel (54%), which grew by 10%. Fabrics accounted for 15%
of imports, with a 3% growth, followed by yarn (12%) with a decline of 19%, miscellaneous textile
products (11%) with a decline of 0.4%, and fibers (8%) with a decline of 4%.

In the analysis of the export destinations, Vietnam was the largest export market for our
textile products, followed by mainland China, the United States, Indonesia, and Cambodia,
together accounting for 61% of exports.

Table: Analysis of the export items of Taiwan textiles in 2022

- Bxportvaue | Rato | SO | T | Comparedto |y |Compared o

(100 million USD) (%) period (%) mg:r?éot?)(:ls) period (%) (USD/kg) period (%)

Fibers 4.37 5 -14 32.45 -16 1.35 3

— 62| 13 9 3653 15 3.8 7

Fabrics 63.54 | 72 2 65.29 -6 9.73 8

Garments and apparel 4.30 5 -9 1.89 -14 | 2276 6
Miscellaneous textile products 4571 3 -10 7.61 7 6.00 -16
Towl 88.40 | 100 2 1437 T 615 10

Source of information:
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Due to factors such as high inflation, policy tightening, and financial market
volatility, the global economy has become weaker. In the textile industry, brand owners
continuously stay in the stage of destocking inventory, resulting in conservative
ordering. Additionally, the Russo-Ukrainian War pushed up oil prices, leading to
increased costs of raw materials and affecting demand and input of raw materials.
Moreover, persistent global inflation and sluggish terminal demand have dampened
consumer purchasing willingness, resulting in a decline in textile exports for the whole
year of 2022. Looking ahead to this year (2023), there is a gradual fall in brand owners'
inventory, and the overall recovery situation seems optimistic. The company will
continue to monitor order placement and data changes in the industry.

2.The relationship between upstream, midstream, and downstream in the industry.

The company primarily specializes in the productlon and distribution of long and
short-fiber fabrics, operating as a midstream player in the textile industry. The upstream
suppliers provide us with petrochemical raw materials, which are then processed into
various synthetic fibers such as nylon, polyester, Rayon, and carbon fibers. Then these
fibers are further spun into yarn and woven into fabric through the weaving process. In
the downstream process, the fabric undergoes bleaching, dyeing, printing, coating, and
finishing processes. Finally, the fabric is cut and sewn into garments or other related
textile products.

The textile industry in Taiwan has developed into a well-established industry since
the end of the 1940s with a complete production and marketing system covering the
upstream, midstream, and downstream sectors. The diagram below illustrates the
industry's interconnected relationships:

EHZER - EEEEEENFES

3. Product development trend and status of competition
The textile industry in Taiwan plays a crucial role in the global supply chain of
functional textiles. In response to the carbon-neutral goals set by major brands, it is
imperative for the industry to initiate carbon reduction efforts in various aspects, such
as materials and manufacturing processes. Additionally, the adoption of digital
technology and smart manufacturing is essential to build a digitally integrated supply
chain that can meet the increasing demands for carbon reduction and shorter order lead
times from customers.
(1). Environmental sustainability becomes a standard requirement
As consumers increasingly pay more attention to global climate issues, a
business research company in London predicts that the global sustainable
sportswear market will grow from USD 78 billion in 2021 to approximately USD
115 billion in 2026, with a compound annual growth rate of 7.5%. The report states
that using recycled materials to manufacture new sportswear and shoes is
incrle(asingly popular and is an emerging trend in the sustainable sports and leisure
market.
However, in the global context of high inflation, consumers prioritize
spending on essential expenses. Therefore, affordable sustainability becomes
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crucial in an economic recession environment. It involves cost-effective choices
that focus on quality, durability, and energy efficiency, avoiding unnecessary waste
and considering the link between sustainability and affordability.

Taiwanese textile industry players need to integrate the concept of
sustainability into their design thinking, achieving sustainability from the side of
raw materials. By enhancing the traceability of regenerative materials and
increasing the transparency of the supply chain, providing genuine data disclosure
and sustainability-related information, the credibility of circular statements can be
increased and thus become a responsible supply chain. Collaboration with
academia and research institutions to address social and environmental issues and
continued commitment to ESG (Environmental, Social, and Governance)
investment is essential to maintain international competitiveness.

(2). Acceleration of the planning of digitization
With the acceleration of planning in metaverse virtual business opportunities
for brands and retail markets, Taiwan's supply chain must also accelerate its
planning of digitization. Especially the textile industry still relies heavily on labor,
and although Taiwan takes pride in its advanced manufacturing technologies for
functional textiles and its commitment to sustainable development, however, in the
future, it is essential to integrate technologies such as 5G, Al, cloud computing,
and big data. For example, 1n "digital production,” automated optical inspection
(AOI), Al-powered fabric inspection, and energy usage monitoring systems can be
utilized. In "digital development," tools like Al image recognition, digital fabric,
and simulation can be applied. In "digital order management," solutions combining
OCR optical character recognition and robotic process automation (RPA) can be
used. By embracing intelligent technologies for digital transformation and adapting
to the trend of less volume, more diverse orders with shorter lead times, Taiwanese
textile manufacturers can better respond to the needs of brand customers, achieve
higher value with less manpower and reduced costs, and become a crucial partner
in the global textile value cﬂain and economic system.

(3) Status of Technologies and Research
1. In the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of the Annual
Report, research fees invested and techniques or products successfully developed:

Amount of expenses

Year (Thousand NTD) Results of R&D

2022 19,807 1. Nylon High-Tenacity Eco-Friendly Dyed-Yarn Fabric
2. Lightweight High-Tenacity Recycled Nylon Fabric
3. Eco-Friendly Lightweight Solar Screen Fabric
4. Recycled Textiles Regenerated Fibers Fabric
5. Fine Denier Eco-Friendly Mechanical Stretch Fabric

2023 5,177 1. Fishing-Net-Recycled High-Tenacity Fabric

(January to 2. rPVB Eco-Friendly Outdoor Vinyl Mesh
March) 3. Eco-friendly Cotton-Like Mechanical Stretch Fabric

2. Future research and development plans:

Homnyue is committed to developing high-quality products that meet market
demands. Our direction of project development involves four key aspects:
Environmental sustainability, safety and protection, functional comfort, and
technological fashion. In response to the increasing global environmental awareness
and the goal of achieving net-zero carbon emissions in the textile industry, the
company actively develops environmentally friendly products that align with the
concept of a circular economy, and continuously increases the proportion of
development and sales of environmentally friendly and recycled products, aiming to
further step into the global circular and sustainable supply chain. At the same time,
Homnyue focuses on developing pioneering new product projects and exploring
potential applications in the textile market to enhance overall product research and
development effectiveness. As a key player in the international market for
environmentally friendly and functional textiles, Homnyue also invests in new material
research and environmentally friendly processing technologies and prioritizes low
carbcl)n, circular, and regeneration, continuously developing sustainable and innovative
textiles.

Homnyue plans to establish a Sustainable Innovation Research and Development
Center, upgrade its R&D mindset, cultivate high-level R&D talents, integrate
interdisciplinary research and development resources, and invest in environmental
material research and low-carbon process technology optimization. This includes the
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development of composite coated fibers and mesh fabrics, functional protective textile
technologies, and sustainable innovation and regenerative technologies. Their goal is
to develop more environmentally friendly and sustainable low-carbon materials and
establish a forward-looking layout in the field of environmentally friendly and
functional textiles. We are transforming from cooperative development to forward-
looking and cutting-edge development, cultivating technical-independent R&D
capabi%ities and matching them with brand design and development. This enables us
to create high-value-added products and enhance the competitiveness of the company.
Moreover, we continuously introduce international environmental verification and
evaluation tools and improve the product digital platform, which assists the R&D team
and clients in jointly evaluating tll'ie environmental impact of new materials during the
carly stages of product design and development. By expanding more product lines that
fulfill environmental certification, the company's image in eco-friendly and green
eneggy (Il)roducts can be enhanced and application markets of new products can be
explored.

P To enhance the capability of new product development and verification, this year
the company plans to introduce procedures for certification of laboratory testing and
evaluation. We also aim to assess the procurement of functional product inspection and
testing equipment to strengthen the research and development quality of finished
fabrics. Additionally, in line with the development of new applications in the market,
we plan to establish new prototype testing on raw materials and purchase weaving-
related process development equipment. Combined with the promotion of the trend of
textile digitization in the marketing strategy, Homnyue continuously strives for
government research and marketing project resources and plans to introduce digital
tools for terminal products, upgrade the product development and design system, and
link the global textile sales and promotion platform. Homnyue's research and
development plan and actions demonstrate its commitment to environmental
protection and sustainable development. The company aims to establish independent
R&D capabilities and invest in advanced product design and development to create
high-value-added products and enhance the company's competitiveness.

3. Research and development plans:
3.1 Industrial fabrics for bags

Fabric series Explanation

(1) Recycled Polyester | The project aims to develop a series of new fabric varieties from the
High-Tenacity Eco- | application of recycled polyester core spun eco-friendly high-strength
Friendly Dyed Yarn | colored yarn. It has the property of high color fastness and is able to

Series. reduce water resource consumption. This new fabric is suitable for the
development of functional bags and outdoor equipment.

(2) Fishing-Net- The project aims to develop a series of new fabric varieties from the
Recycled Nylon application of recycled fishing nets and ocean wastes to produce a high-
High-Tenacity Bag strength fiber. After eco-friendly post-processing, this new fabric is
Series suitable for the development of outdoor functional bags and outdoor

equipment.

(3) Eco-Friendly The project aims to utilize differentiated, recycled polyester and nylon

Recycled Yarn New | long and short fiber yarns to develop a series of environmentally
Raw Material Series | friendly and low-carbon fabric varieties.

(4) Eco-Friendly Post- | The project aims to apply eco-friendly post-processing techniques such

Processing Series as TPEE, PET, and processing of the same material, a single-material
recyclable eco-friendly fabric variety used for bags can be designed and
developed.

3.2 Fabric for clothing
Fabric series Explanation
(1) Eco-Friendly The project aims to utilize functional new materials from recycling and
Stretch Functional elastic fibers to develop a series of new fabric varieties which are nylon
Fabric Series and polyester based with high-stretch and can enhance comfort and

fulfill functional requirements.

(2) Eco-Friendly New The project aims to utilize new types of pre-consumer recycled
Raw Material Fabric | materials, textile waste materials, ocean waste materials, biomasses,
Series biodegradable materials, and ultra-fine denier fibers, combined with eco-
friendly post-processing techniques, to develop environmentally friendly
clothing fabrics for outdoor functional and sports leisure purposes.

(3) Eco-Friendly The project aims to use eco-friendly solution-dyed yarn materials and
Solution-Dyed Yarn | incorporate eco-design trends from brand customers to develop new
Fabric products for outdoor lightweight and workwear applications.
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3.3 Fabrics for home furnishing

Fabric series Explanation
(1) Eco-Friendly By utilizing environmentally friendly recycled polyester colored yarn
Lightweight Solar and recycling new materials from textile waste, along with flame-
Screen Fabric retardant processing technology, and combining the wide-width

processing equipment, a series of light permeable and lightweight eco-
friendly sun shading fabrics is developed. These fabrics can be applied
to various indoor and outdoor roller blind products.

(2) rPVB Eco-Friendly | The project involves utilizing recycled and regenerated PVB materials in

Vinyl Mesh combination with eco-friendly coating yarn production processes to
design and develop a series of weather-resistant, environmentally
friendly high-tenacity mesh fabrics. These fabrics can be used for home
decorations in an outdoor setting.

(3) New Type of High- | The project involves the application of high-performance fiber

Tenacity Hurricane composite coating processes and through rigorous testing and

Shade Fabric verification of its anti-tear strength, an advanced version of high-tenacity
protective net fabric is designed and developed and can be applied in
products for outdoor safety and protective purposes.

New Series of Eco- The project involves the application of eco-friendly differentiated new
friendly Composite composite materials and the development of same-material and
Materials different-material coating yarn technologies. The goal is to move

towards a recyclable process in combination with the fabric structure
design. Then a series of new fabrics that respond to the demand for
environmental protection is developed.

3.4 Fabrics for the new application market

Fabric series Explanation

(1) High protection Plan to develop textiles that meet the market demand for industrial
industrial fabric fabrics in the United States, combining high-performance fibers with
series functional, flame-retardant, anti-mold, and waterproof processing to

enhance product protection capabilities.

(2) High-level Plan to utilize environmentally friendly and advanced materials,
workwear fabric combined with functional processing, to develop fabrics that meet the
series requirements for high-level work environments, providing occupational

safety and protective needs.

(4) Long and short-term business development plan
To achieve business targets, the company formulates long and short-term plans as follows:
1. Short-term business development plan
(1). Changing the product structure to increase the ratio of garment fabrics

With the rise of the middle class in developing countries, the global sports and leisure
industry is booming, leading to increasing demand for sports functional fabrics year by year.
Homnyue has the most water-jet looms in Taiwan and continues to focus on nylon Oxford
and polyester industrial fabrics. It is also actively expanding into various application markets,
especially garment fabric development. It has developed high-density fabrics with excellent
hand feel and installed wide-width new machines in 2021 to produce and promote mechanical
stretch fabrics. The machines are gradually renewed and in coordination with dyeing,
finishing, and diversified post-processing, the group's market share in garment fabrics is
expanded.

(2). Integrating existing dyeing and finishing factory resources to increase the ratio of finished

fabrics
Starting from 2019, after the acquisition of the dyeing and finishing business, Homnyue has
been transferring its existing fabric processing supply chain to its own integrated factory. It
has also targeted potential greige customers and integrated the advantages of the group's
weaving, dyeing, and finishing processes to deliver finished fabrics directly to clients.
Currently, the matchup of specific fabric types and customers has been targeted. By
leveraging the integration of weaving and dyeing processes within the integrated factory, the
competitiveness in receiving orders is enhanced, thereby increasing the group's revenue and
profit.

(3). Maximizing the utilization of production capacity and resources across both sides of the

Taiwan Strait through integration

Homnyue's strategy is to maximize its profits by integrating business orders and production
capacity across the Taiwan Strait. It aims to establish a cross-strait business and production
platform, optimize product production according to customer demands, and allocate
production to suitable facilities on both sides of the strait based on different quality and
delivery requirements.
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The Taiwan plant can cater to customers' unique and specialized product development needs,
focusing on high-value-added fabrics. The mainland plant is planned to focus on the sale of
mass-market products with price sensitivity.
In particular, the completion and inauguration of the Jiujian plant in 2023 will further
enhance the integration of resources across both sides of the Taiwan Strait, enabling the
company to pursue maximum sales and minimize costs, thus achieving the strategic goal of
maximizing group profits.

(4). Specialized division of finished fabric team focusing on customer demands
In today's textile industry, the application areas are extensive and highly specialized, with
significant differences in demand across various terminal application areas. To enhance
service efficiency and cultivate expertise in the finished fabric business, the company has
established professional teams based on the terminal applications markets. These teams
consist of experienced personnel familiar with the market and customer models to provide
customers with professional and highly effective services. Furthermore, these teams
collaborate closely with the strong research and development capabilities and production
strength of the group to develop satisfactory products to meet customer demands.

2. Long-term business development plan

(1). Increase the breadth and depth of existing product lines
The application of textiles is extremely diverse, and the company not only focuses on
continuously cultivating existing customer products but also develops a wide range of new
applications based on customer needs. Taking market demand into consideration, higher
value-added products are developed with the collaboration of customers. In addition,
international political and economic situations are closely monitored, as well as trade
conditions in different terminal markets. Different marketing strategies are formulated for
different regions and global sales channels are established by close integration of the sales
and production teams.

(2). Promoting green sustainable eco-friendly products
The global textile industry is driving the trend of environmentally sustainable products and
aiming for sustainability and net-zero carbon emissions as the ultimate goals.
Major brands have been declaring to promote green and sustainable strategic directions. Ten
years ago, Homnyue was the pioneer in using environmentally friendly yarn made from PET
bottles. In recent years, we have also invested in the development of Solution Dyed
technology, which involves adding color masterbatch during the yarn extrusion process,
solving the need for dyeing after weaving, and reducing water use, energy, wastewater, and
gas emissions in the dyeing process, contributing to a greener supply chain.
In addition to promoting green products, Homnyue is committed to continuous process
optimization for environmental protection and energy efficiency. The company has obtained
various environmental certifications such as Bluesign, GRS (Global Recycled Standard),
Higg index FEM (Facility Environmental Module), and GREENGUARD. These
certifications have enabled the company to successfully enter the green supply chains of
international brands. We actively collaborate with brand certifications and optimize our
supply chain, emphasizing corporate social responsibility and striving for the sustainable
development of both our company and the planet.

(3). Deepening the development of medical fabrics
Due to the global impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, there has been a significant increase
in demand for medical protective products in the market. With the certification of Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP) for medical devices, besides providing medical fabrics to
domestic medical facilities, Homnyue has expanded its production capacity and broadened
the range of medical textiles and successfully explored the overseas sales market.

5.2 Market and Sales Overview
(1) Market Analysis
1.Market shares
In the aspect of the production of woven products, Homnyue demonstrated significant advantages
through its extensive weaving equipment and strong production capacity. Among all the products,
the capacity of long-fiber woven faﬁrics is one of the tops in Taiwan, and in the aspect of industrial
textiles, the company possesses a very high market share. In recent years, the company activel
develops in the field OIP garment fabrics, especially the enhancement in the development of stretc
fabrics. Furthermore, Homnyue continues to innovate and research in areas such as home
furnishings, outdoor sunshade blinds, eco-friendly composite mesh fabrics, and high-strength
composite mesh fabrics to enhance its market competitiveness.
2.Th(e1 Sieémanld and supply and the growth potential of markets in the future
Supply:
Thg Ié(}),st of raw materials rises in 2022, but it is still difficult to completely convert the costs
to downstream products due to the decline in terminal demands.
A. Supply condition of synthetic fibers
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After the outbreak of the Russo-Ukrainian War at the end of February 2022, the oil prices
further surged, reaching a peak of USD114.38 per barrel for West Texas Intermediate crude
oil in May 2022. This increase in oil prices also led to a corresponding rise in the prices of
textile synthetic fibers. Taking the example of the nylon supply chain, the domestic price of
nylon 6 chips increased from NTD 68 per kilogram in February 2022 to NTD 75 per kilogram
in May 2022, representing a 10.3% increase. The price of nylon filament yarn (70 denier,
round bright) rose from NTD95 per kilogram (equivalent to USD 3,390 per metric ton) in
February 2022 to NTD 100 per kilogram (equivalent to USD3,441 per metric ton) in May
2022, reflecting a 5.3% increase. However, the price increases of textile synthetic fibers were
relatively lower compared to the surge in oil prices, as they were influenced by the slowdown
in demand in the midstream and downstream sectors.
B. Changes in the supply chain:
The prolonged delivery time in the supply chain due to the pandemic has led to continuous
) orderin% by brands, resulting in an oversupply situation upon the arrival of goods at the port.
.Demand:
High inflation has curbed terminal consumer demands, ultimately leading to increased
inventory for brand customers and delayed or reduced orders for Taiwanese textile suppliers.
It is estimated that the export of functional fabrics will gradually improve from the second
quarter of 2023, but the timing for overall market recovery still depench on factors such as oil
prices, the Russo-Ukrainian War, the inflation situation, and buying sentiment during holidays
in the European and American markets.

3. Competitive niche and favorable and unfavorable factors of the development prospects and
response strategies:
(1). Favorable factors

A. Integrated resources on combined processes of weaving and dyeing
The new Homnyue plant in Jiujiang has officially started operations and focuses on
manufacturing high-quality nylon greige fabrics for industrial and garment use. To meet
market demands, we have shifted our focus towards the manufacturing of finished garments,
which has become our primary business.
Following the stable operation of our new factory, we are planning to introduce phases two
and three gradually, with the expansion project expected to be completed this year. Our
production capacity will reach the scale of 736 weaving machines, enabling us to further
meet market demands. Besides that, we expect the gross profit margin of the new plant to
be 10% and a net profit margin of 5%. In the fourt% quarter of 2023, we plan to launch a
dyeing and finishing plant to achieve an integrated production process. This plan will further
help increase the gross profit margin and provide us with more competitive advantages.

B. Sustainable products x (Egital marﬁeting
In recent years, Homnyue has been committed to achieving the goal of "sustainable products
x digital marketing" to reduce the overall carbon footprint of the products. To accomplish
this goal, the company has been continuously promoting environmental sustainability and
recently introduced brand new types of environmentally friendly high-strength nylon fabrics,
including "NiiPalette HT" and "NiiCycle Nylon HT."
"NiiPalette HT" is designed with a fabric color palette concept, with the adoption of low-
pollution and low-energy consumption processes. It offers saturated colours and high colour
fastness in a high-strength and environmentally friendly nylon fabric. Compared to
conventional nylon fabrics, "NiiPalette HT" has increased strength by 1.5 times while
reducing water consumption by 85% and carbon emissions by 84%, making it a high-quality
product with a competitive advantage in the industry.
Furthermore, "NiiCycle Nylon HT" is made entirely from recycled nylon and can be covered
by nylon film. The uniformity of raw materials leads to easier recycling and reuse. These
environmentally friendly nylon fabrics not only meet the sustainability requirements of
international brands, but also demonstrate Homnyue's philosophy of environmental
sustainability.
Through the introduction of these environmentally friendly nylon fabrics, Homnyue has
made significant progress in developing sustainable products. And by adopting digital
marketing strategies, the company's ideas on environmental protection can be effectively

delivered to consumers.  In the future, the company will continue to strive for
environmental sustainability and provide customers with more choices of eco-friendly
products.

(2).Unfavorable factors
A. Global political situations

In terms of the global political situation, the Russo-Ukrainain War and the tensions in the
Taiwan Strait may affect the stability of raw material prices and supply chains in the textile

industry in 2023.

B. Inflation
High inflation issues will continue to impact consumer demand for textile products.
However, as different countries implement tightening monetary policies, it shall help to
curb the ongoing deterioration of inflation. Nevertheless, it is important to continue
monitoring the situation in the short future.

C. Sustainab%e regulations involving carbon emission and taxes, and challenge to business
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operations by the mechanism
Since the whole world is increasing awareness of the issue of sustainable development, the
European Union (EU) has taken the lead in proposing the Carbon Border Adjustment
Mechanism (CBAM), which is expected to be activated in 2027. This mechanism follows
the principle of "polluter pays" and aims to set a price for carbon emissions generated by
products exporte({) to the EU. Many countries are preparing to follow suit. For example, on
7th June 2022, the United States Senate introduced a legislative proposal for a Carbon
Border Adjustment Mechanism (CBAM) and discussed the formulation of the Clean
Competition Act (CCA). It is expected that the imposition of a carbon tax will be
implemented in 2024.
In response to the global trend of carbon reduction, international brands and customers have
set sustainable development goals. For example, sportswear brands like NIKE, Adidas, and
Under Armour have established targets to reduce their carbon emissions in the supply chain
by 30% by 2030, based on science-based targets (SBT). Furthermore, NIKE aims to make
80% of its products from recycled materials and reduce freshwater usage in dyeing and
finishing by 25% by 2025. Adidas has set targets to use 100% recycled polyester by 2024
and have 90% of its products sourced from sustainable technology, materials, or design by
2025. Lululemon aims to achieve a 50% reduction in freshwater usage in its manufacturing
processes by 2025, and 75% of its products will be made from sustainable materials. For
Taiwan's textile industry, complying with the sustainability standards of various countries
and international brands comes with an inevitable cost. Failing to proceed and meet these
standards may result in exclusion from the supply chain.
(3).Response strategies
A. Digital transformation
While continuously promoting the integration of physical upstream and downstream supply
chains, Homnyue also keeps exploring digital manufacturing supply chains and is
committed to cultivatin% talents ané) mindgsets or digital vertical and horizontal integration.
Facing the shift of challenges from issues such as shortening lead times and refining costs
to digital manufacturing supply chains, we propose the "end-to-end digitization" strategy,
aiming to integrate various digital manufacturing supply chains to enhance competitiveness
and meet international market demands.
B. Low-carbon transformations and circular economy
To achieve the goal of zero carbon emissions in 2050. Companies need to actively invest
in environmentally friendly equipment that meets international standards and focus on
different measures in product designs such as material selection, process improvement, and
the promotion of circular economy to achieve sustainable development goals. These
actions will hel;})1 to strengthen companies' competitiveness and seize more business
opﬁortunities in the international market.
C. High-level transformations
Homnyue is at the core of developing high-added-value industrial textiles and continues to
increase the development of high-level functional textiles to enhance the additional value of
products, which leads to the improvement of the company's revenue and profitability
performance. Meanwhile, we actively increase the proportion of ODM (Original Design
Manufacturer) to improve product production efficiency and customer satisfaction. In the
future, Homnyue will continue to commit to the research and innovation of high-value-added
products, and continuously enhance product line differentiation and innovation capabilities
to satisfy market and customer demands. Simultaneously, we will strive to improve
manufacturing capabilities and production efficiency to achieve better product quality and
higher customer satisfaction.
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(2) The manufacturing process of products

Sizing agents

and auxiliaries

Organization \ |-
analysis armd design v v
> Warping Sizing (yarn) Beaming | Drawing-in
l
L Reeding [—%| Weavin > Quality inspection Packaging Finished product storage

—»| Drying

(3)The supply condition of major raw materials:

Item Name of raw Supplier _Supply
Formosa Chemicals and Fibers
Corporation
Acelon Chemicals & Fiber
Nylon yarn Corporation Normal
L Li Peng Enterprise Co., Ltd.
fl ontg Chain Yarn Co., Ltd.
tlament yarn Italon Fiber Co., Ltd.
Polvester textured Nan Ya Plastics Co., Ltd.
arr}ll Lealea Enterprise Co., Ltd. Normal
y China Man-made Fiber Corporation
Long fiber
Others comprehensive Lissom Chemical Industrial Ltd. Normal
pulp
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4) Name of customers who accounted for more than 10% of total purchases(sales) within the past two years, along with their purchase/sales
p p y g p

amount and percentage:

1. Procurement:
Major supplier for the past two years
Unit: NTD Thousand

2021 2022 2023 as of the previous quarter
Item
Name Amount  (Percentage | _ Name Amount Percentage | _ Name Amount [Percentage .
accounted |5 o accounted |< o accounted for the |< o
for the £S5 for the g5 net purchases as | £ S
annual net |EE § annual net |EE & of theend of Q1 |EE Eg
purchases [T % 2 purchases |G & 3 of the fiscal year |G % 2
1 (227617 251,798 13.01 |None 226047 58,478 14.16 |None
2 849636 43,058 10.43 |None
Others 1,683,114 86.99 Others 1,677,792 100.00 Other 311,391 75.41
Amount  of Amount of Amount of net
net purchases 1,934,912 100.00 net purchases 1,677,792 100.00 purchases 412,927 100.00

Note: Due to contractual obligations, the names of suppliers or trading parties shall not be disclosed, thus they are referred to by code names.

2. Sales:
Major customer of sales for the past two years
Unit: NTD Thousand
2021 2022 2023 as of the previous quarter
It
me Name Amount |Percentage| o, Name Amount |Percentage | o, Name Amount Percentage | o
accounted |= accounted |= accounted for £
for the £ o for the £ o the net sales as| € ©
annual net % i 5 annual net % i 5 of the end of ‘% i S
sales (%) | E 2 sales (%) |TE 2 Q1 of the fiscal| 5 = 2
24 24 year (%) & =4
1
2 |Others 3,503,869 100.00 Others 3,189,020 100.00 Others 622,285 100.00
Amount of] Amount of] Amount of]
net sales 3,503,869 100.00 net sales 3,189,020 100.00 net sales 622,285 100.00

Note: Due to contractual obligations, the names of suppliers or trading parties shall not be disclosed, thus they are referred to by code names.
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(5) Production values in the past two years

Unit: NTD Thousand

Year
| Production 2021 2022
Capacity | Quantity Value Capacity | Quantity Value

(or department ) .

Long-fiber fabrics| 169 934| 148,727| 2.250.802| 144384| 124.720| 2,085,017
(thousand yards)

Short-fiber —  fabricsi 5550|4940 64,361 5.003|  3.859 72,102
(thousand yards)

Raw yarn (Ton) 6,000 5798 146,155 6,000 6237 166,901
Contract manufacturing ;6 4531 42656  275.947|  14.064| 13,077 84.238
(thousand yards)

Total 251257| 202,121| 2.737.265| 169451| 147,893 | 2.408258

Note: Production capacity refers to the quantity that a company can produce under normal
operating conditions, taking into account necessary downtime, holidays, and other
factors, and using existing production equipment and collaboration with external
manufacturing partners.

(6) Sales value in the past two years

Unit: NTD Thousand

Sales Year
olume 2021 2022
Domestic sales Foreign sales Domestic sales Foreign sales
Major prodycts
Cor Quantit
department ) Quantity| Value |Quantity| Value |Quantity|V a l u e y Value

Long-fiber 103,645 | 1,991,988 | 30,082 | 874,770
fabrics 126,328 | 2,161,351 | 36,740| 921,799
(thousand yards)
Short-fiber 4,744 82,534 5 521
fabrics 4,837 63,340 10 848
(thousand yards)
Raw yarn (ton) 196 24,133 4 905 134 16,974 6 1,182
Contract 20,865 | 144,927 0 0
manufacturing 28,494 | 251,404 0 0
(thousand yards)
Medical fabrics 1,648 80,089 0 0 958 75,765 4 359
(thousand yards)
Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 161,503 | 2,580,317 | 36,754 | 923,552 | 130,346 2,312,188 | 30,097 | 876,832
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5.3 Human Resources
Number of working employees, average years of service, average age and distribution
ratio of education in the past two fiscal years and as of 31% March 2023

vear 2021 2022 315t March 2093
5 § Direct workforce 494 persons 480 persons 508 persons
>
2- é_ Indirect workforce 234 persons 256 persons 256 persons
) Total 728 persons 736 persons 764 persons
Average age 42.38 years old 42.62 years old 42.63 years old
Average years of service 8.62 years 8.70 years 8.62 years
o PhD 0 0 0
§ | Masters degree 2.93% 2.81% 2.86%
,§ '% College degree 29.29% 28.51% 28.83%
"é ';5 Senior high school 19.67% 27.31% 26.58%
& | Below senior high 48.11% 4137% 41.72%
school

5.4 Environmental Protection Expenditure

(1) In the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report, losses
(including compensations) due to pollution of the environment and the amount of penalties:
None

(2) Future response measures (including improvement measures) and potential expenses
(including estimated amounts for potential losses, penalties, and compensations in case of not
adopting any response measures. If it is impossible to make a reasonable estimation, the facts
of the inability to estimate reasonably shall be explained): N/A

5.5 Labor Relations
1. Measures for the welfare of employees and their status of implementation,
agreements between labors and employers, and various measures on the protection of
labor rights:

(1). Welfare measures:

A. Bonuses: Dragon Boat Festival bonus, Chinese New Year bonus, year-end bonus,
outstandinc% employee reward, long-service employee reward, performance bonus,
and reward for improvement proposals.

B. Leave benefits: Special leave, pregnancy checkup leave, paternity leave, parental
leave, menstrual leave, family care leave, maternity leave, marriage leave,
bereavement leave, pandemic care leave, quarantine leave, vaccination leave, etc.
52% of the company's employees are female. The company is committed to
providing employees with maternal health protection and a gender-equality working
environment. Application of unpaid parental leaves in the recent two years is as

follows:
Item No. of Remark
people

Application for unpaid 1 All have returned to

parental leave in 2021 work and are still
employed

Application for unpaid 1 Period of the unpaid

parental leave in 2022 leave (2022/9/27 ~
2024/9/26)

C. Insurance benefits: Labor Insurance, National Health Insurance, group accident
insurance for employees/family members, special insurance for employee business
travel, and labor pension reserve.

D. Catering benefits: The Catering Committee provides employees with healthy and
nutritious meals, meal subsidies for employees who miss meals, and snacks for
afternoon shift and night shift employees.

E: Clothing benefits: Summer and winter uniforms for employees.

F: Housing benefits: Employee dormitory, breastfeeding room, and library.

G. Transportation benefits: Free parking space and carparks with automatic LED
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sensor lightings, business travel fuel subsidies, free charging for electric vehicles,

interest-free car loans, and subsidies for employees.

H. Subsidy benefits: Marriage subsidy, maternity subsidy, on-the-job training subsidy
for employees, scholarships for outstanding academic performance, educational
subsidies and scholarships for outstanding academic performance for children,
funeral subsidies for employees and their dependents, etc.

I. Other benefits

a. Various gifts: Gifts for Chinese New Year, International Worker's Day, Dragon
Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn Festival, employee birthday gifts, birthday cakes for
their parents, Father's (Mother's) Day cakes or gifts.

b. Leisure and entertainment: Annual domestic and international travel subsidies,
biannual outings subsidies, welfare committee club activities (table tennis,
outdoor excursions, singing, basketball, badminton, fitness, handicrafts,
traditional arts, etc.)

c. Others: Long-term and retirement/resignment appreciation bonuses,
hospitalization allowance, housewarming gifts, discounts at contracted stores for
food, clothing, accommodation, and transportation, Chinese New Year
celebrations and lucky draw, free annual health check-ups, social gatherings for
retired and resigned employees of Homnyue.

(2). Retirement system and its status of implementation

A. The company deeply recognizes that employees are its most valuable assets. In
order to allow employees to focus on their work and ensure a stable retirement life
for them, the company has established a labor retirement system in accordance
with the law, and established the Supervisory Committee of Labor Retirement

Reserve. Every month, 2% of the total salary expenses are allocated to the

retirement reserve fund, which is held in a trust account at the Bank of Taiwan, to

safeguard the rights and interests of the labor force. For employees who joined the
company after July 2005 and chose to apply the Labor Pension Act, a monthly
contribution of 6% of the total salary amount is deposited into the employee's
personal pension account.

And according to the law, the company will estimate the balance of the labor

retirement reserve account before the end of each fiscal year to ensure it is

sufficient to cover the retirement reserve for eligible retired employees in the
following year. In 2022, there were a total of 5 retirees.
B. The requirements for retirement are as follows:

a. Voluntary retirement: Employees may voluntarily retire if they meet one of the

following conditions.

® Worked for fifteen years or above and reached the age of fifty-five or above

@ Worked for twenty-five years or above

® Worked for ten years or above and reached the age of sixty or above

b. Mandatory retirement: The company may order the retirement of an employee if

they meet one of the following conditions.

@ reached the age of sixty-five or above.

@ If an employee experiences mental incapacity or physical disability that leads to
the inability to perform their job duties, and this condition is verified by a public
hospital or a hospital designated by Labor Insurance.

(3). Continuing education and training

To align with the key opening areas of the annual strategic plan and integrate with

competency and strategic gaps, the company has formulated an education and

training plan to support its development and organizational change, which aims to
enhance the quality of the company's human resources. Status of implementation:

The company has incorporated the personal education and training records of

employees into an electronic system, allowing for a better grasp of the overall

condition of personnel education and training as well as learning outcomes. The
results of education and training and the analysis of courses in 2022 are as follows:

] Total no. of
Total no. of sessions Total no. of hours participants
152 sessions 914 hours 849 individuals

Type of courses: 40 sessions on textile industry, 28 sessions on management and
administration, 25 sessions on general management, 47 sessions on
production management, 11 sessions on human resources management,
and 1 session on financial management.

(4). Status of labor-management agreement: The labor-management relationship is
harmonious, with regular labor-management meetings attended by representatives
from both sides. There are no circumstances of labor disputes.
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(5). Working environment and protective measures on the personal safety of employees

Item Content

Access Strict access control security and plant safety inspection systems are implemented

control during daytime and at night, safeguarding the factory plant and its surroundings.

security Security guards are stationed during daytime and at night. They are responsible for
ensuring the safety of working personnel and manufacturing partners at the
crossroads of the factory plant.

Workplace 1. Adequate lighting or illumination should be provided at workplace entrances,

safety stairs, corridors, safety doors, and safety ladders in accordance with the provisions
of laws and regulations. Emergency lighting systems should be installed in
important passageways and safety doors for use in case of a failure of the regular
lighting system.

2. Safety shoes are provided for employees who engage in heavy lifting operations,

and employees are urged to use them properly.

3. To prevent employees from operating or approaching machinery in operation,
where there is a risk of their hair getting caught in the machine, protective caps are
provided and employees are urged to wear them properly.

4. An independent first-aid kit is provided and maintained in the workplace for use by

employees when needed.

5, To prevent employees from being exposed to excessive noise in the workplace and
causing damage, earplugs, earmuffs, and other protective equipment are provided.
Employees are educated on the points of notice when using these types of
equipment and they are required to wear them properly.

Maintenance | 1. Fire inspections should be outsourced annually in accordance with the regulations

and of the Fire Services Act.

inspection of | 2. Regular maintenance and inspections should be conducted on high and low-voltage

equipment electrical equipment, elevators, water dispensers, vehicles, fire extinguishers, and
other equipment as required by regulations.

3. All hazardous machinery equipment should be inspected regularly in accordance
with the laws and regulations, and operators should obtain professional licenses and
undergo regular on-the-job training.

Disaster A "Disaster Prevention and Emergency Response Plan" and an emergency response

prevention command system are established, clearly defining the responsibilities and missions of

measures personnel at all levels in responding to material emergencies, before and after the

and incident. Moreover, regular safety protection drills are conducted by specialized units.

emergency

responses:

Energy 1. Plastic pallets are purchased as they have better reusability and reduce the waste of

saving and resources from the lack of durability in wooden pallets.

carbon 2. Actively promoting various energy-saving projects, including the transition to LED

reduction: lighting equipment, and projects that reduce the energy consumption of power and
heating equipment/systems.

Occupational | Qualified occupational environment assessment institutions are commissioned to

environment | conduct regular environmental noise measurements in accordance with the

assessment "Regulations for the Implementation of Occupational Environment Measurements".

The measurement results are evaluated if they comply with the legal requirements. If
there is any abnormality in the results, improvements and corrective actions are
implemented to ensure personnel safety.

Health care
and
management

1. Employees are entitled to free annual health check-ups that exceed legal
requirements. The participation rate in 2022 is 88%. Meanwhile, subsidies for high-
end health check-ups are provided to senior employees.

2. Special examinations, such as examinations on the impairment of hearing, are
conducted for workers who are exposed to specific health hazards like noise.
Management measures are implemented with different classifications based on the
results of these special health examinations, and assistance is provided to
individuals for their awareness of health conditions and maintaining good health
habits.

3. The company arranges medical and nursing staff to provide health consultations to
employees on-site. Periodic preventive health care seminars are organized (eg.
common cancers among Taiwanese and discussion on aortic dissection), with a
total of 70 participants. In 2022, a total of 129 consultations were conducted by the
company's medical and nursing staff.

4. Employees are encouraged to participate in various company sports clubs and
outdoor excursion activities. Professional coaches are hired to conduct yoga classes
and fitness activities.

5. Losses due to labor disputes in the past three years: None.
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5.6 Cyber Security Management

(1) Explanation of the structure of cyber security and risk management, cyber security

policies, substantial management plans, and resources to be invested in information

security management.

The company established the "Cyber security and risk management Committee". Its

members are responsible for reviewing the governance, planning, supervision, and

implementation of cyber security policies in each business unit, thus constructing
defense capabilities of cyber security and fine awareness of cyber security among
colleagues.

To strengthen cyber security management and ensure the security of information,
systems, equipment, and networks, the company has stipulated cyber security policies to
achieve the goals of cyber security risk management.

The company has engaged in personnel management and training on cyber security,
computer systems security management, network security management, access control
of systems, systems development and management on security maintenance, security
management of information and communication assets, physical and environmental
safety management, and planning and management of the sustainable business
operations plan.

Status of implementation in 2022:
1. In the first quarter, a session on publicizing information security was conducted,
which was a one-hour training on "Understanding and preventing network social
engineering" and "Common techniques of computer ransomware attacks." A total of
198 participants, including managerial officials and employees, attended the session.
2. A data restoration drill was conducted in September with a guarantee of 99.5%
availability in the Service Level Agreement (SLA).
3. A server host vulnerability scan was conducted in October, and necessary patches
or preventive measures had already been implemented for identified vulnerabilities.
4. In the fourth quarter, an email social engineering drill was conducted in the whole
company, along with cybersecurity reinforcement training for employees who open
emails and click on links.

(2) In the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of the Annual
Report, losses, possible impacts, and measures taken in grave information security
events, and if a reasonable estimation could not be made, the facts on the inability to
estimate reasonably shall be explained: None

5.7 Important contracts

Starting and . .
Nature of . . Main Restrictive
contract Party involved ending date of contents clause
contract
Mid-term Loan . Working
Agreement Bank of Taiwan | 2019.08~2024.08 capital tumover None
Mid-term Loan . Working
Agreement Bank of Taiwan | 2020.10~2025.10 capital tumover None
Mega
Mid-term Loan | International Working
Agreement Commercial 2019.11~2026.11 capital turnover None
Bank
Mega
Mid-term Loan | International Working
Agreement Commercial 2021.05~2028.05 capital turnover None
Bank
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6. Financial Information

6.1 Five-Year Financial Summary

(1) Individual Condensed Balance Sheet
Unit: NTD Thousand

Y Financial
Item car Financial summary for the past five years (Note 1) Sugl;}r;ﬁ;aas
of
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 3 15;(1;/%0}1
Current assets 1,939,648 | 1,736,438 | 1,767,077| 1,731,352| 1,555,255
Prol’gggi’pﬂfgg and 672,326 705,497 689,984 757,196 793,242
Intangible assets 2,987 2,291 1,297 1,341 12,095
Other assets 855,521 865,031 967,289 | 1,221,321 1,265,933
Total assets 3,470,482 | 3,309257| 3,425647| 3,711,210 3,626,525
Current dis?g,g?fgon 1,430,955 | 1,063,665| 1,025,609 | 1,047,011 788,021
liabiliti
taptities distArifotziion 1,469,924 | 1,063,665 1,077,568 1,111,959 (Note 2)
Non-current liabilities 143,739 368,802 423,865 594,812 723,272
Total dis?g,g?fgon 1,574,694 | 1,432,467| 1,449474| 1,641,823 | 1,511,293
liabiliti
1apiities distl(?i{)tﬁiion 1,613,663 | 1432,467| 1,501,433 1,706,771 (Note 2) Not
Equity attributable to Applicable
shareholders of the 1,895,788 | 1,876,790 | 1,976,173 | 2,069,387 | 2,115,232
parent company
Capital stock 1,298,970 | 1,298,970 | 1,298,970| 1,298,970| 1,298,970
Capital Surplus 5,887 5,887 5,887 5,887 50,735
Retained dis?g,g?fgon 627,128 635,266 733,949 823,507 833,696
catnings distl(?i{)tﬁiion 588,159 | 635,266 681,990 758,559 (Note 2)
Other equity interest (36,197) (63,333) (62,633) (58,977) (68,169)
Treasury Stock 0 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling interest 0 0 0 0 0
Total di S?ﬁ{;?fgon 1,895,788 | 1,876,790 | 1,976,173 | 2,069,387 | 2,115,232
B
quity disﬁﬂgﬁ{ion 1,856,819 | 1,876,790 | 1,924214| 2,004,439 (Note 2)

Note 1: The financial summary for Year 2018~2022 is audited and certified by accountants.
Note 2: The 2022 profit distribution plan has been approved by the Board of Directors, but
still hasn't been resolved at the shareholders' meeting.
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(2) Individual statement of comprehensive income

Unit: NTD Thousand

(Except earnings per share is in NTD)

Year Financial summary for the past five years (Note) Financial
Item summary as
of 31%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 March 2023
Operating revenue | 2,910,407 |2,606,016 |2,180,015 | 2162 12 484 812
Operating gross 292,257 | 271,101 | 336,858 | 378,460 | 324,713
profit
Operating profit 95,982 80,139 129,292 | 152,826 110,370
Net non-operating
income and 42,779 | (1,002) | (6,511) | 23,835 | (5,437)
expenditure
Netprofitbefore | 138761 | 79,137 | 122,781 | 176,661 | 104,933
Continuing
operations 112,796 | 51,970 | 107,344 | 143,963 | 77,429
net profit of the
current period Not
Loss from Applicable
discontinuing 0 0 0 0 0
operations
Net profit (loss) of | 115 796 | 51,970 | 107,344 | 143963 | 77,429
the current period
Other
comprehensive
income of the
current period (17,564) | (28,400) (6,809) 3,113 | (11,484)
(Net amount after
tax)
Comprehensive
income of the 95,232 23,564 100,535 | 147,076 65,945
current period
Earnings per share 0.87 0.40 0.83 1.11 0.60

Note: The financial summary for Year 2018~2022 is audited and certified by accountants.
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(3) Consolidated condensed balance sheet

Unit: NTD Thousand

Year
Item

Financial summary for the past five years (Note 1)

Financial
summary as
of 31% March

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 [2023
(Note 1)
Current assets 2287,175| 2,130,955| 2,414,029| 2,561,412| 2,143,543 | 2,176,603
Property, plant, and 1,199,988 | 1,188,384 | 1,188,481 1,433,967 1,492,068 1,484,022
equipment
Intangible assets 17,013 14,045 12,230 11,303 21,421 21,880
Other assets 296,354 287,388 247354| 256,117 225,546 229,142
Total assets 3,800,530 | 3,620,772| 3,862,094 | 4262,799| 3.882,578| 3,911,647
Before | 20400 | 1349,676| 1,435,736| 1,536,486 975205 1,061,217
_Cul_‘r_ept distribution
liabilities di After |y 7673091 |  1349,676| 1.487,695| 1,471,538 (Note 2) (Note 3)
istribution
Non-current liabilities 144,186 371,473 430,664 | 638,426 770,501 729,437
Before 1 g9 608 | 1.721,149| 1,866,400 | 2.174.912 1,745,706 1,790,654
' T(ﬁg! distribution
liabilities di After | 911 5771 1721,149| 1.918,359| 2,109,964 (Note 2) (Note 3)
istribution
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the 1,895,788 | 1,876,790 | 1,976,173 | 2,069,387 |  2,115,232| 2,100,882
parent company
Capital stock 1,298,970 | 1,298,970 | 1,298,970 | 1,298,970 1,298,970 1,298,970
Capital surplus 5,887 5,887 5,887 5,887 50,735 50,735
Before
Retained  |distibution| 627128 635,266 733,949 | 823,507 833,696 813,592
earnings After
distribetion| 5885139 635,266 681,990 | 758,559 (Note 2) (Note 3)
Other equity interest (36,197) (63,333)|  (62,633)| (58,977) (68,169) (62,415)
Treasury Stock 0 0 0 0 0 0
Non-controlling 32,134 22,833 19,521 18,500 21,640 20,111
1nterest
 Before 1,927,922 1,899,623 | 1,995,694 | 2,087,887 2,136,872 2,120,993
Total distribution
Equity After
distribetion| 1888953 | 1,899,623 | 1,943,735 | 2,022,939 (Note 2) (Note 3)

Note 1: The financial summary for Year 2018~2022 is audited and certified by accountants;

The financial summary for Q1 of 2023 has been audited by accountants.

Note 2: The 2022 profit distribution plan has been approved by the Board of Directors, but
still hasn't been resolved at the shareholders' meeting.

Note 3: Not applicable because the financial summary is as of Q1 of 2023.
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(4) Consolidated condensed statement of comprehensive income

Unit: NTD Thousand

(Except earnings per share is in NTD)

Year : : Financial
Ttem Financial summary for the past five years (Note) summary as of
2021 2022 315 March
2018 2019 2020 2023
Operating revenue 3,617,559 | 3,452,413 | 2,858,477 3,503,869 3,189,020 622,284
Operating gross profit 413,288 319,630 402,086 515,652 406,044 49,225
Operating profit 94,691 1,724 68,661 140,813 58,889 (26,354)
Net non-operating income 50,112 64,519 45,752 36,911 45,777 5,898
and expenditure
Net profit before tax 144,803 66,243 114,413 177,724 104,666 (20,456)
Continuing operations
net profit of the current 104,626 39,076 100,880 141,039 80,569 (20,535)
period
Loss from discontinuing 0 0 0 0 0 0
operations
Net profit (loss) of the 104,626 | 39076 | 100,880 | 141,039 80,569 | (20,533
current period
Other comprehensive
‘ncomeggrtigfi current (17,564) (28,406) (6,809) 3,113 (11,484) 5,754
(Net amount after tax)
Comprehensive income of 87,062 | 10,670 | 94071 | 144,152 69,085 (14,781)
the current period
Net profits attributable to
shareholders of the parent 112,796 51,970 107,344 143,963 77,429 (20,104)
company
Net profits attributable to
non-controlling interest (8,170) (12,894) (6,464) (2,924) 3,140 (431)
Total comprehensive profits
attributable to shareholders 95,232 23,564 100,535 147,076 65,945 (14,350)
of the parent company
Total comprehensive profits
attributable to non- (8,170) (12,894) (6,464) (2,924) 3,140 (431)
controlling interest
Earnings per share 0.87 0.40 0.83 1.11 0.60 (0.15)

Note 1: The financial summary for Year 2018~2022 is audited and certified by accountants; The financial

summary for Q1 of 2023 has been audited by accountants.
(5) Name and auditing opinions of Certified Public Accountants in the past five years
1. Name and auditing opinions of Certified Public Accountants in the past five years

Year Name of accounting firm Name of CPA Audit opinion
2018 | PwC Taiwan Isﬁﬁ‘j;%iné QTN@ 11){"“*‘5 Unqualified opinion
2019 | PwC Taiwan I{{luu_ Jﬁzgiai ié?’;] (T\I(l?i‘e)é)wang Unqualified opinion
2020 | PwC Taiwan I{{luu_ Jll\l/;enlggai g;%l * W), Wang Unqualified opinion
2021 | PwC Taiwan I{{.luu_ Jllﬁenigliag g;i? * W), Wang Unqualified opinion
2022 | PwC Taiwan gﬁflﬁl SI?(IEH;%;’t‘(ﬁoi)é)Wang Unqualified opinion

Note 1: Starting from Q3 of 2018, the accountants have been changed to Liu Mei-Lan (%] # # ) and Hong Shu-

Hua (i ik £)

Note 2: Starting from Q1 of 2019, the accountants have been changed to Liu Mei-Lan (%] # ) and Wang Yu-

Juan(2 % 4%)

Note 3: Starting from Q1 of 2022, the accountants have been changed to Hong Shu-Hua (7% # %) and Wang

Yu-Juan(2 2 4%)

2. Explanation of the change of accountants in the past five years
The change of accountants in 2018, 2019, and 2021 was collaborating with the internal

working adjustments of PwC Taiwan.
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6.2 Five-Year Financial Analysis
Individual financial analysis

Year Financial analysis in the past five years 315 March
Analyzed item 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022 2923
Debt Ratio 4537%| 43.29% | 4231% | 44.24%]| 41.67%

The ratio of long-term
capital to property,| 303.35% | 318.30% | 347.84% | 351.85% | 357.84%
plant and equipment

Current ratio 135.55% | 163.25% | 172.30% | 165.36% |197.36%
Quick ratio 86.46% | 105.85% | 103.48% | 95.17% [116.10%
Times interest earned 12.71 8.68 13.50 18.21 6.70

Financi
al

Solvency
(%)

Accounts receivablel 459|414 360  430] 473
turnover (times)

Average  collection 30 38 101 85 77
period

Inventory ~ turnover 363 3.64 2.88 3.20 3.27
(times) ' ' ' . .

Accounts — payable| - g, 8.36 6.28 7.15|  7.86 | Not
turnover (times)

Average days in sales 101 100 127 114 112 |Applicable

Property, Plant and
Equipment turnover 4.48 3.78 3.12 3.62 3.21
(times)

Total assets turnover 0.82 0.77 0.65 0.73 0.68
(times)

Return on assets (%) 3.46% 1.78% 342% | 4.26% | 2.51%

Operating capabilities

> |Return on equity (%) 598% | 2.76% | 557%| 7.12% | 3.70%

2 5;?;?;‘2;;‘;{;6({%0'50 10.68%| 6.09%| 9.45%| 13.60%| 8.08%

=

E Net profit margin (%) 3.88% 1.99% | 4.92% 5.50% 3.12%
fgﬁligr%s per share| o7l g4 0.83 111 0.60

§ Cash Flow Ratio (%) | 7.41%| 17.75%| 20.78%| 13.39% | 46.39%

o .

= g/ash adequacy ratio| 5g ceor | 116.65% | 118.33% | 95.51% | 143.50%

4 -

© rca;‘isf(%) remvestment| 4 ggo0 | 5299% | 7.11%| 2.68%| 8.59%

o %Operating leverage 1.53 1.57 2.79 1.31 1.48

- & Financial leverage 1.14 1.15 1.08 1.07 1.20

The reasons for financial ratios having changes of more than 20% in the past two fiscal years:
(If the change does not reach 20% can be exempted from analysis)

1. Quick ratio: Caused by a decrease in short-term loans and shot-term notes payable.

2. Times interest earned: Caused by a decrease in net profits before tax

3. Profitability: The overall profitability has been reduced compared to last year due to a
decrease in revenue and a drop in gross margin.

4. Cash flow: Due to a decrease in short-term loans and short-term notes payable, and a drop
in revenue of the current period, the accounts receivable and negotiable instruments are thus
decreased.
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(3) Consolidated financial analysis

Year Financial analysis in the past five years 52;22?%
Analyzed 1 31
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 March
2023
= @ |Debt Ratio 49.27% | 47.54% | 48.33%| 51.02% 44.96% 45.78%
Q2
§ é The ratio of long-term
iZ. % |capital to property, plant| 172.68% | 191.11% | 204.16% | 190.12% | 194.86% | 192.07%
and equipment
>  |Current ratio 132.33% | 157.89% | 168.14% | 166.71% | 219.80% | 205.10%
g~
2 &2 |Quick ratio 78.29% | 93.92% | 97.81%| 97.38% | 120.89% | 106.83%
Z Times interest earned 8.25 4.75 8.58 13.61 5.72 (2.37)
Accounts  recelvablel 5371 599 445| 495 4.95 5.04
turnover (times)
& |Average collection period 68 70 82 74 74 72
% Inventory turnover (times) 3.57 3.67 2.86 3.25 3.19 2.71
<
S |[Accounts payablel gg7) g5 7.02| 738 7.71 7.95
et turnover (times)
£ |Average days in sales 102 99 128 112 114 135
g Property, plant  and
8‘ equipment turnover 3.37 2.89 2.41 2.67 2.18 1.67
(times)
Total ~assets  turnover 0.93 0.93 0.76 0.86 0.78 0.64
(timmac)
Return on assets (%) 3.09% 1.43% 3.02% 3.75% 2.41% (0.40%)
2 [Return on equity (%) 5.48% 2.04% 5.18% 6.91% 3.81% (0.96%)
‘g |Pre-tax income ratio to| 1y ys00 | 510%| 8.81%| 13.68% 8.06% | (1.57%)
& |paid-in capital (%)
)
& |Net profit margin (%) 2.89% 1.13% 3.53% 4.03% 2.53% (3.30%)
Efrrllling\s per  share 0.87 0.40 0.83 1.11 0.60 (0.15)
> |Cash Flow Ratio (%) 6.37% | 12.14% | 10.27% | 11.37% 37.96% (2.76%)
S
i Cash adequacy ratio (%) | 105.07% | 94.43% | 85.29% | 58.67% 79.15% 24.80%
3
© gafh reinvestment ratiol 1 06%| 3.88%| 4.20%| 3.15% 7.30% | (0.72%)
0o Operating leverage 2.01 75.09 2.09 1.90 3.27 (0.22)
-8 Financial leverage 1.27 (0.11) 1.28 1.11 1.60 0.81

The reasons for financial ratios having changes of more than 20% in the past two fiscal years:
(If the change does not reach 20% can be exempted from analysis)

1. Solvency: Caused by a decrease in short-term loans and short-term notes payable, and a drop
in profits before tax.
2. Profitability: The overall profitability has been reduced compared to last year due to a
decrease in revenue and a drop in gross margin.
3. Cash flow: Caused by an increase in cash flow from operating activities, a decrease in
current liabilities of the current period, acquisition of properties, and an increase in plants and
equipment.
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Note: The calculation formulas are as follows:
1. Financial Structure
(1) Debt ratio=Total liabilities / Total assets
(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment=( Total Equity + Non-
current liabilities ) / Property, plant, and equipment balance
2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio= Current assets / Current liabilities
(2) Quick ratio=(Current assets — Inventory — Prepaid Expenses) / Current liabilities
(3) Times interest earned = Profit before income taxes and interest costs / Interest
expenses of the current period
3. Operating capabilities
(1) Accounts receivable (including accounts receivable and receivable negotiable
Instruments generated by operation) turnover = Net credit sales / Balance of average
accounts receivables (including accounts receivable and receivable negotiable
instruments generated by operation)
(2) Average collection period =365 / Accounts receivables turnover
(3) Inventory turnover = Cost of goods / Average inventory
(4) Accounts payable (including accounts payable and payable negotiable instruments

generated by operation) turnover = Cost of goods / Balance of average accounts
payables (including accounts payable and payable negotiable instruments generated by
operation)

(5) Average days in sales =365 / Inventory turnover
(6) Property, plant, and equipment turnover = Net credit sales / Net credit property, plant,
and equipment
(7) Total assets turnover = Net credit sales / Average total assets
4. Profitability
(1) Return on total assets= ( Post-tax profit + interest costs x (1 — tax rate) / Average
total assets
(2) Return on equity=Post-tax profit / Average total equity
(3) Profit ratio= Post-tax profit / Net credit sales
(4) Earnings per share= (Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent — dividends of
preferred stocks) / Weighted average number of shares
5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio=Net cash flow of operating activities/ Current liabilities
(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio=Net cash flow of operating activities in the past five years /
(Capital expenditure + Inventory increase + Cash dividends) in the past five years
(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow of operating activities — Cash dividends) /
(Gross property, plant, and equipment + Long term investments + Other non-current
assets + Working capital)
6. Leverage
(1) Operation leverage = (Net operating profits — Variable operating costs and expenses
/ Operating profits
(2) Financial leverage = Operating profits / (Operating profits — Interest Expenses)
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6.3 Audit Committee’s Audit Report on Financial Statements in the most recent fiscal year

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd
Audit Committee’s Audit Report

The Board of Directors produced the company’s 2022 Business Report, Financial
Statement, and proposal for the distribution of profits. Among them the financial
statement had been audited by PwC Taiwan and an audit report was issued and certified.
After the audit of the aforementioned Business Report, Financial Statement, and proposal
for the distribution of profits by the Audit Committee, it was considered that no
discrepancies were found. According to relevant regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Act and the Company Act, the report is now submitted and asked for a review.

Best regards,

2023 Shareholders' Meeting, Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd

Convenor of the Audit Committee

Hsiao Chen-Chi (% ¥ 3£ )

6.4 Financial Statement in the most recent fiscal year

Please refer to "Attachment 1: Financial Statement in the most recent fiscal year" in this
Annual Report. (pp. 90~160)

6.5 Individual Financial Statement audited and certified by accountants in the most recent
fiscal year
Please refer to "Attachment 2: The accountant-audited Individual Financial Statement of
the most recent fiscal year" in this Annual Report. (pp. 161~247)

6.6 The impact on the financial situation of the company if the company or its affiliates have

experienced financial difficulties in the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of
publication of the Annual Report: None
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7. Review and Analysis of Financial Status and Financial Performance, and Risk Matters

7.1 Analysis of Financial Status
Major reasons for and the impacts from material changes to the company's consolidated
assets, liabilities, and equities during the past two fiscal years. If the impact is significant,
response measures in the future shall be explained:
Unit: NTD Thousand

e Year 2022 2021 Amolsllferences -
Current assets 2,143,543 2,561,412 (417,869) | (16.31%)
Property, plant, and 1,492,068 | 1,433,967 58,101 4.05%
equipment
Intangible assets 21,421 11,303 10,118 89.52%
Other assets 225,546 256,117 (30,571) | (11.94%)
Total assets 3,882,578 4,262,799 (380,221) (8.92%)
Current liabilities 975,205 1,536,486 (561,581) | (36.53%)
Non-current liabilities 770,501 638,426 132,075 20.69%
Total liabilities 1,745,706 2,174,912 (429,206) | (19.73%)
Equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent 2,115,232 2,069,387 45,845 2.22%
company
Capital stock 1,298,970 1,298,970 - -
Capital surplus 50,735 5,887 44,848 | 761.81%
Retained earnings 833,696 823,507 10,189 1.24%
Other equity interest (68,169) (58,977) (9,192) 15.59%
Treasury stock 0 0 - -
Non-controlling interest 21,640 18,500 3,140 16.97%
Total Equity 2,136,872 2,087,887 48,985 2.35%
Explanation of the change in percentage of over 20%

1. Intangible assets: Replacement of the ERP new system.

2. Current liabilities: Decrease in short-term loans and short-term notes payable.

3. Non-current liabilities: Increase in corporate bonds payable and decrease in long-term

lga%slpital surplus: Mainly from stock warrants generated from the issuance of corporate
onds

Measures to be taken in response in the future:

The company will still continuously focus on the improvement of operating performance
and stable growth in profitability, and also the reinforcement of the financial structure of
the company to relieve the financial burden.
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7.2 Analysis of financial performance
Major reasons for material changes to the company's consolidated assets, net operating
profits, and net profits before tax during the past two fiscal years, along with the expected
sales and their basis, here is their effect on the financial business of the company in the future

and its response measures:

Unit: NTD Thousand

Year Change
Ttem 2022 2021 Amount Changing
percentage %

Net operating revenue 3,189,020 3,503,869 (314,849) (8.99%)
Operating costs 2,782,976 2,988,217 (205,241) (6.87%)
Operating gross profit 406,044 515,652 (109,608) (21.26%)
Operating expenses 347,155 374,839 (27,684) (7.39%)
Operating profit 58,889 140,813 (81,924) (58.18%)
Net non-operating income and 45777 36,911 8,866 24.02%
expenditure

Net profit before tax 104,666 177,724 (73,058) (41.11%)
Income tax expenses 24,097 36,685 (12,588) (34.31%)
Net profit of current period 80,569 141,039 (60,470) (42.87%)
Explanation of the change in percentage of over 20%:

A decline in overall profitability due to a decrease in operating revenue, a rise in production costs, and a drop in gross
profits.

The expected sales and their basis: It is expected that the sales of products in the coming year
are about 170 million yards, and this figure is evaluated by factors such as the strengthening
of the quality of products, differentiation of productions, considering customers' orders, and
the prediction on the change of future trends.
The effect on the financial business of the company in the future and its response measures:
Engaging in the development of new materials and innovation in post-processing applications

and strengthening competitive advantage to achieve profit goals.

7.3 Analysis of cash flow

1. Analysis and explanation of changes in cash flow and improvement plans for the lack of
fluidity in the recent fiscal year:

Unit: NTD Thousand

Cash balance at| Year net cash flow | car cash Cash remaining | Remedies to cash deficiencies
the starting from operating . deficiencies . .
period (1) activities (2) inflow (3) D+2)—@3 Investment plan |Financial plan
604,986 370,187 344,686 630,487 None None

1. Operating activities: Net cash inflow of NTD 370,187,000, which is an increase of NTD
195,537,000 compared to the previous period, mainly due to the decrease in accounts
payable and notes payable.

2. Investment activities: Net cash outflow of NTD 78,780,000, which is a decrease of NTD
313,722,,000 compared to the previous period, mainly due to the decrease in capital
expenditure of the group.

3. Fundraising activities: Net cash inflow of NTD 268,931,000, which is an increase of NTD
362,503,000 compared to the previous period, mainly due to the repayment of long-term
and short-term loans.

2.Analysis of cash fluidity for the coming year:

Unit: NTD Thousand

Cash balance at

Estimated year net

Estimated year

Estimated cash

Remedies to estimated cash

the starting Casgpgf;"ﬁrfrgom cash outflow (d{cefl“}z?ciarrlli:nia) deficiencies
period (1) activities (2) 3) ()+(2)—(3) Investment plan| Financial plan
630,487 420,000 550,000 500,487 None None

Remedies to estimated cash deficiencies and fluidity analysis: None

83



7.4 The effect on financial operations from significant capital expenditure in the most recent fiscal

year: None

7.5 Investment policy in the most recent fiscal year, main causes for profits or losses, improvement
plans, and the investment plans for the coming year:

Investment policy: Investment in the group is based on long-term strategic targets, and undergoing
the consolidation of the development of midstream and downstream of the current core business -
industrial fabric. This is the basis for the decision in investment.

Major reasons for profits or losses: Foreign investment companies: The sales of the Zhejiang Homnyue
Plant are affected by the quarantine policy during the pandemic in Mainland China. On the other hand,
the Jiangxi Plant just entered the pilot production stage. So both plants are at losses.
Domestic investment companies: After years of strategic planning on branding businesses, this year
there is a significant growth of sales for Nuwa, generating substantial profits. On the other hand, Utex
Innovation is sustainably reorganizing and improving.
Improvement plans and the investment plans for the coming year:
1. The production focus in Mainland China is gradually shifting from the Zhejiang Plant to the Jiangxi
Plant, while efforts will be made to seek more efficient utilization of land in parts of the Zhejiang Plant.
2. Expanding on the business of medical equipment.

7.6 Analysis and evaluation of risk matters in the most recent fiscal year and as of the publication
date of the Annual Report:

(1) The impact on the income of the company from inflation and changes in interest rates and

exchange rates, along with future response measures to it:

1. The impact on the income of the company from changes in interest rates and exchange rates:

Interest rate risks mainly come from bank loans with floating interest rates. When the loan
interest rate fluctuates by=0.1%, the net profit after tax in 2022 will increase or decrease by
NTD 608,000 respectively, mainly due to fluctuating interest expenses caused by loans with
floating interest rates.
The exchange rate risk primarily relates to the operating activities and net investments in
foreign operating agencies. in which mainly US dollars and RMB. When the exchange rate
fluctuates by 1%, the net profit after tax in 2022 will increase or decrease by NTD 4,259,000.

2. The impact on the income of the company from inflation:

With the effects of inflation and interest rate hikes, the market demand is sluggish and the
industry chain continuously adjusts its inventory. In addition to factors such as geopolitics,
crude oil prices, and fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, result in fluctuations in the
cost of purchasing materials and the price of products, which lead to a rise in costs and
reduced profitability.

3. Future response measures:

(1). To mitigate the interest rate risks, changes in the interest rates of the market are
monitored persistently. Besides loaning in banks, the company also facilitates various
fundraising tools and locks in advantageous long-term fixed-rate liabilities depending on
market conditions. Thus the funds for operational needs can be raised.

(2). The company's foreign exchange earnings are roughly balanced between US dollars
and RMB. A flexible natural hedging operation is adopted and through continuous
monitoring of fluctuations of the exchange rate in the market, impacts caused by significant
fluctuations of the exchange rate can be responded to promptly.

(3). The trend of international raw materials will still be monitored closely so that a
marketing strategy that is the most advantageous to the company can be formulated.

(2) Engagement in high-risk and high-leverage investments, loaning funds to others, making

endorsements and guarantees, and policies of the transactions of derivatives, main reasons for
profit or loss, and future response measures:

1. Engaging in high-risk and high-leverage investments: None.

2. Loaning funds to others: The loaning of funds within the group to others refers to the

provision of financial loans between parent and subsidiary companies. It is handled in
accordance with the established procedures for loaning funds to others.

3. Endorsement and guarantees: The company's handling of endorsement and guarantees are

in accordance with the provision of procedures for endorsement and guarantees of the
company. To meet the financing needs of subsidiary companies, the company provides
endorsement and guarantees, with the amount not exceeding 40% of the net value in the
latest Financial Statement.

4. Derivative trading: The company has established procedures for handling derivative

transactions, which regulate related strategies of foreign exchange operations, and control
processes to monitor foreign exchange fluctuations.
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(3) Future R&D plans and the estimated amount of R&D expenses to be invested:

1. In response to the development in the post-pandemic era, the R&D of high-performance
and safety and protection textiles is actively invested. They include functional products that
are lightweight but strong, anti-mold and antibacterial, for medical and protection purposes,
flame retardant and wear-resistant, and with sun shading effect and weather resistance. They
can enhance the performance and value of terminal products.

In response to the accelerating change of the industry environment and global circular
economy, and other trending issues like digital transformation and net-zero carbon
emissions, there are three major directions in the core focus of the R&D of medium to long-
term products, which are environmental sustainability, safety and protection, and
functionality and comfort.

Relevant international environmental certification systems are continuously promoted,
with the expansion of product lines that include more environmentally certified products.
This will help to strengthen the corporate image as a provider of environmentally friendly
and green energy products and explore the application market of new products.

There are plans to introduce relevant testing equipment for the inspection of functional
products to enhance the R&D quality of our finished fabric types. Additionally, equipment
related to the development of new raw materials and weaving techniques is planned to
establish to align with the expansion of product lines in home decorations and garment
products.

2. The estimated amount of R&D expenses to be invested composes of 1%~2% of the operating
expense ratio.

(4) Impact on the company's financial operations by significant domestic and foreign policies and
legal changes and response measures to it:
The company constantly pays attention to significant domestic and foreign policy and legal
changes and collects relevant information to provide the management level as references in
decision-making. This can help to adjust the company's operational strategies accordingly. In
the recent fiscal year, there have been no significant domestic and foreign policy and legal
changes that have affected the company's financial operations.

(5) Impact on finance and business of the company by changes in technology (including information
security risks) and industry, and response measures to it:

The company continues to research and develop new products and improve customer
satisfaction. We also pay attention to industry trends and market information, evaluating their
impacts on the company's operations to maintain market competitiveness.
The company regularly reviews and evaluates risk levels related to information security and
adopts risk management proposals accordingly.
In the recent fiscal year, changes in technology and the industry have not affected the company's
financial operations.

(6) Impact on corporate risk management by changes on corporate image and response measures to
it:
The company has been dedicated to maintaining its corporate image for years and complied
with the provision of the law. To date, there have been no circumstances that would affect the
corporate image of the company.

(7) Expected benefits and potential risks for mergers and acquisitions and response measures to them:

(8) Expected benefits, and potential risks for expanding the factory plant and response measures to
them:

The expansion of the factory plant can enhance productivity and the capacity to receive more
orders from customers, leading to an increase in revenue and profits and also an opportunity to
expand the market share. Once production capacity reaches an economy of scale, the
production costs can also be reduced significantly.
When idle capacity is generated, it is still necessary to allocate for depreciation of the factory
equipment. This risk will become one of the burdens for the company.
The expansion of production capacity is carried out through meticulous planning of capital
expenditure. The management team strictly evaluates its cost-effectiveness and traces its
implementation results to assist the company's strategy in long-term development, financial
planning, and operational performance.

(9) Risks of the concentration of purchases or sales and response measures to them:

The company has established good cooperative relationships with suppliers, and the supply of
main raw materials is provided by at least two suppliers, thus minimizing the risk of
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concentrated procurement.
Moreover, the company has developed strong partnerships with its top ten customers, which
mitigates the risk of sales concentration.

(10) Impacts and risks regarding significant transfer or replacement of shares by directors, supervisors,
or major shareholders with shareholding over 10%, and response measures to them:
The Chairman and other directors of the company have long-term participation in decision-
making discussions of the company, focusing on core business operations. To date, the
company has no significant risks from substantial transfer or replacement of equities.

(11) Impacts and risks from the change of management rights and response measures to them: None
(12) Ligitation or non-litigation events: None
(13) Other significant risks and response measures to them:

The company has established emergency response plans and recovery plans for the detection
and prevention of business risks, in order to achieve sustainable business operations.

7.7 Other Important Matters: None
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8. Special Disclosure

8.1 Summary of Affiliated Enterprises:
(1) Affiliated enterprise Consolidated Business Report
Affiliated enterprise overview
1. Organizational chart of affiliated enterprises

Homnyue Enterprise Co.,

v

v

Ltld.
v v
1009 100% - 5
HOIQIOG/OYU Jlujlang DeYu Wen Fa Clor(:lﬂ)r hensiv Utef?r‘ng\ﬁtlon
HOLDING L.L.C Textile Technologies e omprehensive X Innove
B Co. Ltd Development Co., Ltd. 0., td.

100%
Honmyue Textile

(Zhejiang) Co.,Ltd

38.17%

Co., Ltd

Hongde Development

v

100%

Zhejiang Yaoliang
Textile Co., Ltd.

2. Basic information of affiliated enterprises

70%
Nuwa Enterprise
Co., Ltd.

Paid-in capital
. Establishment (Note) Major business or
Name of enterprise date (A.D.) Address (Unit: Thousand production items
NTD)
HONGYU 2001.6.28 3411 Silverside Road, Engaging in investments
HOLDINGS Ta'tnal.l Building #104, in Mainland China and
L.L.C. Wilmington De 19810, 586,561 other foreign countries,
New Castle County, and is the offshore holding
US.A. company of the company.
Honmyue Textile 2004.6.28 268 Jiahu Road, Xiuzhou Manufacturing and sales
(Zhejiang) Co.,Ltd District, Jiaxing City 525,141 of cotton-silk fabric
products
Hongde 2006.6.16 11/F., Block A, Chung
Development Co., Mei Centre,15 Hing Yip . .
Ltd Street, Kwun Tong, 160,920 | Professional investments
Kowloon Hong Kong
Zhejiang Yaoliang | 2007.1.31 268 Jiahu Road, Xiuzhou Dyeing and post-
Textile Co., Ltd. District, Jiaxing City 55,012 | processing of high-end
textile fabrics
Wen Fa 2014.10.30 1F., No. 503, Sec. 1,
Comprehensive Zhongzheng Rd., . .
Development Co., Changhua City 60,000 | Professional investments
Ltd.
Nuwa Enterprise 2012.2.1 6F.-2, No. 17, Taiyuan International trading and
Co., Ltd. Rd., Datong Dist., Taipei 40,000 sales of textile fabrics
City
Utex Innovation 2018.7.25 No. 7, Gongxi 2nd Rd., Dyeing and post-
Co., Ltd. Xidi Village, Shengang 150.000 processing of high-end
Township, Changhua ’ textile fabrics
County
Jiujiang DeYu 2018.12.10 South of North 4th Rd., Dyeing and post-
Textile West of Chuangxin Ave., processing of high-end
Technologies Co., Fenglin Industrial Dist., 507,610 | textile fabrics
Ltd. Dean County, Jiujiang
City, Jiangxi Province

Note: All The figures in this table that involve foreign currencies are presented in NTD based on
the relevant exchange rate as of the date of the balance sheet
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3. According to Article 369-3 of the Company Act, if there are any presumed controlled
and affiliated parties: None

4. The overall business scope of affiliated enterprises: Textile and fabrics manufacturing

and import and export trading.

5. Information on directors and supervisors of affiliated enterprises

Shares held
. Name or Capital
Name of company Title representative contribution Percentase
(Thousand NTD) g
(Note)
HONGYU HOLDINGSLL.C. | Chairman | Y° ?%inp%‘ih)ou 681,716 100%
Chairman z%hi;é“;)n
Director Hong Jin-Chang
Honmyue Textile (Zhejiang) (E45) 536.721 100%
Co., Ltd Director Ye Min-Chao ? 0
(ERA4)
S isor Lin Hui-Zhu
pere (&%)
H . Ye Lian-Fa o
ongde Development Co., Ltd Chairman (5 %) 60,580 38.17%
Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., . Ye Ming-Long o
Ltd Chairman (P 12) 65,692 38.17%
Wen Fa Comprehensive . Ye Bo-Yu
Development Co., Ltd. Chairman (E# =) 60,000 100%
Chairman Lin Hui-Zhu
(Hr & 3%)
Director Chen Zhong-Fu
Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd (1% £ ) 28,000 70%
P i Director Huang Su-Juan ’ ?
(% & 4)
Supervisor Wu Zhi-Yi
(£ )
Chairman Ya?%geif){an
. BN 0
Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. Supervisor ZhEl? iul%ing 130,000 86.67%
§ %
Chairman Ye( Min-Chao
ERAZ)
Director Cai You Dian
Jivjiang DeYu Textile (EimL) 497.590 100%
Technologies Co., Ltd. Di Cai Guo-Liang ’ 0
irector GER 2)
Supervisor thﬁ iu;%mg
Note:
1. Capital contributions listed in this table are direct or indirect investments by the Taiwan parent
company.

2. The accumulated amount of investments remitted from Taiwan is converted based on the
exchange rate of the original investment.

88



6. The financial status and operation results of affiliated enterprises
Summary of the operation of affiliated enterprises in 2022

Unit; NTD Thousand

Net
L profit or
Paid-in . .
. . Total Total Operating | Operating loss
Name of Enterprise capital assets liabilities Net Revenue Profits in the
(Note)
current
period
HONGYU HOLDINGS L.L.C. | 586,561 | 473,459 133 | 473,325 0 0| (17,869)
Iégnintﬁue Textile (Zhejiang) 525,141 | 699,674 | 229,516 | 470,158 570,129 | (44,141)| (17.867)
f?f‘ang Yaoliang Textile Co., 55012 | 66,873 | 82,389 | (15,516) | 304,443 6,259 5,337
Wen Fa Comprehensive
Dovelopment Co. L. 60,000 | 69,766 299 | 69,467 152 (187) 9,937
Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 40,000 | 79,482 | 35414 | 44,068 230,777 14,800 | 15,979
Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. 150,000 | 112,911 | 49,764 | 63,147 118,280 | (13,144) | (12,402)
Jiujiang DeYu Textile
Toehmologies Co. Ltd. 507,610 | 523,742 | 40,436 | 483,306 2,780 | (13,460) | (10,822)

Note: All The figures in this table that involve foreign currencies are presented in NTD based on
the relevant exchange rate as of the date of the balance sheet

(2) Consolidated Financial Statements of affiliated enterprises: Please refer to "Attachment 1: The
Financial Statement of the most recent fiscal year". (pp. 90~160)

(3) Report of Affiliated Enterprises: Please refer to "Attachment 1: The Financial Statement of the
most recent fiscal year". (pp. 90~160)

8.2 Private placement securities in the most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of

the Annual Report: None

8.3 Acquisition and disposal of shares of the company by subsidiaries in the most recent fiscal year
and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report: None

8.4 Other necessary supplementary notes: None

9. Events with significant impact on shareholder equity or prices of securities as referred
to in Article 36, Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 2 of the Securities and Exchange Act in the
most recent fiscal year and as of the date of publication of the Annual Report: None
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[ Attachment 1) The Financial Statement of the Most Recent Fiscal Year

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Declaration of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Companies

We hereby declare that for the fiscal year 2022 (covering the period from January 1, 2022 to
December 31, 2022), the companies required to prepare consolidated financial statements for
affiliated companies, as stipulated under the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation
Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises,” and International Financial Reporting Standard No. 10, are identical. In addition,
the information that is required to be disclosed in the consolidated financial statements for
affiliated companies has been comprehensively disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements for parent and subsidiary companies. As such, we have determined that the
preparation of separate consolidated financial statements for affiliated companies is not

necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

YEH, MING-ZHOU

Chairman, Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.
March 28, 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report
(2023) Ministry of Finance approved No. 22005332

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have conducted an audit on the consolidated financial statements of Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.
and subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, which
include the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity, and
statements of cash flows for the period from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021. We have also
reviewed the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which contain a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements presented herein, which were prepared in
accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,"
and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC
Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, fairly
present the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, as well as
its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the period from January 1 to
December 31, 2022 and 2021, in all material respects.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants™ and the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
in the Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibility under these standards is explained further in
the section titled "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements."
Our firm's staff members subject to independence requirements comply with the Codes of Professional
Ethics for Certified Public Accountants in the Republic of China and have maintained their
independence from the Group, fulfilling other ethical responsibilities as per the Codes. We are of the
opinion that we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming
our opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters refer to those matters that, in our professional judgment, were most significant in the
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audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year 2022. These matters were addressed
as part of our overall audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we do not express a separate
opinion on them.

The key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year 2022 are as follows:
Cutoff Point for Revenue Recognition

Description

For accounting policies on revenue recognition, please refer to Note 4(29) in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. For statement of operating revenue, please refer to Note 6(20). The Group mainly engages
in the manufacturing and sales of various cotton, wool, silk, and synthetic fiber textiles. Revenue from
sales is recognized when control of the goods is transferred upon arrival at the destination port, based
on the terms of the transaction, and is recognized at the end of each month through manual checking of
the transaction date and the actual arrival date. This revenue recognition process involves many manual
judgments and operations, which may result in revenue being recorded in the wrong period. Therefore,
the cutoff date for revenue from sales is regarded as one of the key audit matters to be audited this year.

Audit Procedures Undertaken in Response to the Matter

Our auditor's main audit procedures performed on the specific aspects described in the key audit matter

are as follows:

1. Obtain an understanding of and evaluated the sales transaction operation procedures and internal
controls, and tested these controls to assess the effectiveness of management's control over the
timing of the recognition of sales revenue.

2. Verify sales transactions for a certain period before and after the balance sheet date by checking the
transaction documents to confirm that sales transactions were recorded in the appropriate period.

Allowance for Inventory Valuation Losses

Description

Regarding the accounting policies for inventory valuation, please refer to Note 4(14) in the consolidated

financial statements. For the significant accounting estimates and assumptions related to inventory

valuation and their uncertainties, please refer to Note 5 in the consolidated financial statements. For the
explanation of inventory provision for impairment, please refer to Note 6(4) in the consolidated financial
statements. As of December 31, 2022, the inventory and allowance for inventory valuation losses of the

Group amounted to NT$926,786 thousand and NT$111,926 thousand, respectively.

The Group mainly engages in the manufacturing and sales of various cotton, wool, silk, and synthetic

fiber textiles. For inventory that has been held for a specific period of time or that has been identified as

impaired, the Group measures the inventory at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower, and
provides for inventory write-downs based on the usability of inventory that has been identified as
obsolete or damaged. Given that the provision for inventory valuation losses has a significant impact on
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the financial statements of the Group and that the valuation of inventory at net realizable value at the
balance sheet date requires judgement and estimation, the assessment of the provision for inventory
valuation losses is regarded as one of the key audit matters to be audited this year

Audit Procedures Undertaken in Response to the Matter

Our auditor's main audit procedures performed on the specific aspects described in the key audit matter

are as follows:

1. Understand the operation and nature of the Group, evaluate the reasonableness of its inventory
provision policy for assessing inventory impairment losses.

2. Review the annual inventory counting plan of the Group and participate in the annual inventory
count to assess the effectiveness of management's segregation and control of obsolete inventory.

3. Review the supporting documents related to the inventory aging report to verify the dates of
inventory movements, confirm the proper classification of inventory into aging categories, and
recalculate the aging report in accordance with the Group's policies.

4. Obtain the net realizable value reports of all inventory items, verify that the calculation logic is
consistently applied, test the basis for the estimation of the net realizable value of inventory,
including checking supporting documents such as sales prices, purchase prices, etc. Re-calculate
and evaluate the reasonableness of the inventory valuation.

Other matter - Parent company only financial statements

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. has prepared the parent company only financial statements for the years

2022 and 2021, which have been audited by us and on which we have issued unmodified audit opinions.

These reports are available for reference.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements in compliance with the

Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International

Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC

Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, and maintaining adequate

internal controls related to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements to ensure that there

are no significant misrepresentations due to fraud or error.

Management is responsible for evaluating the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing

relevant matters, and using the going concern basis of accounting when preparing the consolidated

financial statements, unless management intends to liquidate the company or cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the supervisory committee) of the Group are responsible for

overseeing the financial reporting process.
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Responsibilities of the Auditor for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The purpose of our audit of the consolidated financial statements is to obtain reasonable assurance that

they are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error, and to issue an audit report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that the audit, performed in

accordance with ROC GAAS, will always detect a material misstatement when one exists.

Misstatements can result from fraud or error and are considered material if they could reasonably be

expected, individually or in aggregate, to influence the economic decisions of users based on these

financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with the ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform the following procedures:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements,
whether caused by fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures that are appropriate to
address those risks, and obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support our opinion. The
risk of failing to detect a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than that of one due to error,
because fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Design appropriate audit procedures in the given circumstances, and obtain necessary understanding
of internal control that is relevant to the audit. However, our objective is not to express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

3. Evaluate appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted by management, and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates and related disclosures

4. Assess the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and
determine whether any events or conditions exist that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, based on the audit evidence obtained. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we will draw attention to the related disclosures in the financial
statements in our audit report or modify our opinion if such disclosures are inadequate. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report. However, it
should be noted that future events or conditions may lead to the Group's inability to continue as a
going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the related disclosures, and determine whether the consolidated financial statements
provide a fair representation of the underlying transactions and events in a manner that is appropriate.

6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group in order to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for directing, supervising and performing the group audit, and for
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forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on the results of our audit.
We communicate with the governance entity regarding various matters, such as the audit's planned scope
and timeline, as well as significant audit findings, which may include significant deficiencies in internal
control identified during the audit process.
We also provide those charged with governance with a declaration that the personnel of our accounting
firm who are subject to independence requirements have complied with the Code of Ethics for CPAs in
the Republic of China concerning independence, and communicate to them any relationships and other
matters that may be perceived to affect our independence, as well as any relevant safeguards.
After communicating with those charged with governance, we determine the key audit matters that are
of most significance in our audit of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year 2022. We
disclose these matters in our audit report, unless it is prohibited by law or regulation or, in exceptional
cases. We decide not to communicate a specific matter in our report due to the potential negative impact
on the public interest outweighing the benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan
Hung, Shu-Hua
CPA
Wang, Yu-Chuan

Former Securities Commission of the Ministry of Finance
Approval -certified No.: (85) Tai-Cai-Certificate (6) 68701

Financial Supervisory Commission
Approval -certified No.: Jin-Guan-Certificate No. 1020028992

March 28, 2023
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets Notes Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSET
1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 630,487 16 604,986 14
Financial assets at fair value through
1110 profit or loss - current 6(1) 9,127 - 13,504 -
Financial assets at amortized cost -
1136 current 6(3), 8 - - 53,580 1
1150 Notes receivable 6(4) 76,085 2 194,509 5
1160 Notes receivables - related parties 7(2) 296 _ 1,302 _
1170 Accounts receivable 6(4) 384,883 10 468,803 1
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties 7(2) 40,681 1 122,958 3
1200 Other receivables 34,084 1 32,000 1
130X Inventories 6(5) 814,860 21 931,683 22
1410 Prepayments 6(6) 149,755 4 133,483 3
1470 Other current assets 3,285 _ 4,604 _
11XX Total current asset 2,143,543 55 2,561,412 60
NONCURRENT ASSET
Financial assets at fair value through
1517 other comprehensive income - 6(7)
noncurrent 59,718 2 88,133 2
Financial assets carried at amortized
1535 cost - noncurrent 6(3), 8 11,600 - 16,391 -
Investment accounted for using
1550 equity method 6(8) 128 - 128 -
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(9), 8 1,492,068 38 1,433,967 34
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(10) 70,076 2 68,858 2
1780 Intangible assets 21,421 1 11,303 -
1840 Deferred tax assets 6(26) 42,955 1 37,590 1
1900 Other noncurrent assets 8 41,069 1 45,017 1
15XX Total noncurrent asset 1,739,035 45 1,701,387 40
1xxx TOTALASSET $ 3,882,578 100 4,262,799 100
(Continued)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Liabilities and Equity Note Amount % Amount %
CURRENT LIABILITIES
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(11) 238,361 6 491,879 12
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable  6(12) - - 159,722 4
2130 Current contract liabilities 6(20) 25,257 1 39,890 1
2150 Notes payable 122,138 3 232,502 5
2160 Notes payable - related parties 7(2) 22 - 3,144 -
2170 Accounts payable 143,368 4 219,962 5
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7(2) 372 - 163 -
2200 Other payables 6(13), 7(2) 208,318 5 224,966 5
2230 Current income tax liabilities 6(26) 37,909 1 44,257 1
B0 e eyt 609) 170666 4 n7000 3
2399 Other current liabilities 6(10), 9 28,794 1 3,001 -
21XX Total current liabilities 975,205 25 1,536,486 36
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
2530 Bonds payable 6(14) 287,569 7 - -
2540 Long-term loan 6(15) 350,357 9 521,023 12
2570 Deferred tax liabilities 6(26) 68,184 2 68,318 2
2600 Other noncurrent liabilities 6(10)(16) 64,391 2 49,085 1
25XX Total noncurrent liabilities 770,501 20 638,426 15
2XXX Total liabilities 1,745,706 45 2,174,912 51
EQUITIES
Equities attrib. to owner of the parent
Share capital 6(17)
3110 Common shares 1,298,970 33 1,298,970 31
Capital reserve 6(18)
3200 Capital reserve 50,735 1 5,887 -
Retained earnings 6(19)
3310 Legal reserve 231,804 6 217,652
3320 Special reserve 182,752 5 182,752 4
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 419,140 11 423,103 10
Other equity interest
3400 Other equity interest 68,169) ( 2) ( 58,977) ( 1)
31XX Equity attrib. to owners of the parent 2,115,232 54 2,069,387 49
36xx Non-controlling interest 21,640 1 18,500 -
3XXX Total equity 2,136,872 55 2,087,887 49
Commitments and contingencies 9
3X2X Total liabilities and equity $ 3,882,578 100 $ 4,262,799 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Zhou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan, Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Except for earnings per share expressed in New Taiwan Dollar)

Year ended December 31

2022 2021
Item Notes Amount % Amount %
4000  Operating Revenue 6(20), 7(2) $ 3,189,020 100 $ 3,503,869 100
5000  Operating costs 6(5), 7(2) ( 2,782,976) ( 87) ( 2,988,217) ( 85)
5900 Operating margin 406,044 13 515,652 15
Operating expenses 6(24)(25)
6100 Sales and marketing expenses ( 115,847) ( 4) ( 127,384) ( 4)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 171,075) ( 5) ( 175,263) ( 5)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 62,250) ( 2) ( 76,634) ( 2)
6450 Expected credit impairment loss 12(2) 2,017 - 4,442 -
6000 Total Operating Expenses ( 347,155) ( 1) ( 374,839) ( 11)
6900  Operating profit 58,389 2 140,813 4
Non-operating income and expenses

7100 Interest income 5,403 - 6,456 -
7010 Other income 6(21), 7(2) 58,313 2 37,704 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(22) 4,247 - 6,841 -
7050 Finance costs 6(23) ( 22,186) ( 1) ( 14,090) -
7000 Total non-operating income 45,777 1 36,911 1
7900  Pretax profit 104,666 3 177,724 5
7950 Income tax expense 6(26) ( 24,097) ( 1) ( 36,685) ( 1)
8200  Net profits $ 80,569 2 9 141,039 4

(Continued)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Except for earnings per share expressed in New Taiwan Dollar)

Year ended December 31
2022 2021
Item Notes Amount % Amount %

Other comprehensive income (net)
Not reclassified to profit or loss

8311 Measure on defined benefit plans  g(16) ($ 2,865) - (S 680) -

Unrealized gains and losses on
valuation of investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income ( 28,415) ( 1) 8,559 -
Income tax related to components
that are not reclassified 6(26)
subsequently to profit or loss 6,345 - ( 2,037) -
Total not reclassified to profit or
loss ( 24,935) ( 1) 5,842 -
Components that may be
reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference arising
from translation of foreign
operation financial statements 13,451 L ( 4,257) -
Income tax related to items not
reclassified to profit or loss 6(26) - - 1,528 -
Total Items that may be
reclassified to profit and loss 13,451 1 ( 2,729) -

8300 Other comprehensive net
gains/losses (8 11,484) -3 3,113 -

8316 6(7)

8349

8310

8361

8399

8360

8500 Total comprehensive gains/losses $ 69,085 2 3 144,152 4

Profit, attrib. to:

8610 Owners of the parent $ 77,429 2 $ 143,963 4
8620 Non-controlling interest 3,140 - ( 2,924) -

Total $ 80,569 28 141,039 4

Comprehensive income (loss)
attrib. to:

8710 Owners of the parent $ 65,945 2 3 147,076 4

8720 Non-controlling interest 3,140 - ( 2,924) -

Total $ 69,085 2 % 144,152 4

Earnings per share 6(27)

9750 Basic earnings per share $ 0.60 $ 1.11

9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 056 $ 1.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Zhou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan, Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Equity Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Capital Surplus Retained Earnings Other Equity Interest
Unrealized
Exchange gains or losses
differences from  on financial
translating assets at fair
foreign value through
Unappropriated operating other
Share capital -  Treasury stock  Employ stock retained financial comprehensive Non-controlling
Notes common stock  transactions option Legal reserve  Special reserve earnings statements income Total interest Total equity
Year ended December 31, 2021
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 1298970 $ 5887 § - 0§ 207,784 0§ 182,752 $ 343413 (3 45514) (8 17,119) $ 1,976,173 $ 19,521 § 1,995,694
Net income - - - - - 143,963 - - 143,963 ( 2,924 ) 141,039
Other comprehensive income  6(7) - - - - - 543 ) ( 2,729 ) 6,385 3,113 - 3,113
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 143,420  ( 2,729 ) 6,385 147,076 ( 2,924 ) 144,152
Earnings allocation and 6(19)
distribution in 2020
Legal reserve - - - 9,868 - 9,868 ) - - - - -
Cash dividends - - - - - 51,959 ) - - 51,959 ) - ( 51,959 )
Increase in non-controlling 4(3)
interests - - - - - ( 1,903 ) - - ( 1,903 ) 1,903 -
Balance at December 31,2021 $ 1298970 $ 5887 $ - $ 217652 $ 182752 § 423103 ($  48243) ($__ 10,734) $ 2069387 § 18500 S 2,087,887
Year ended December 31, 2022
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 1,298,970 § 5887 § - $ 217652 0§ 182,752 S 423,103 (3 48243) (5 10,734) $ 2,069,387 $ 18,500 $ 2,087,887
Net income - - - - - 77,429 - - 77,429 3,140 80,569
Other comprehensive income ~ 6(7) - - - - - 2,292) 13451 ( 22,643 ) ( 11,484 ) - 11,484 )
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 75,137 13451  ( 22,643 ) 65,945 3,140 69,085
Earnings allocation and 6(19)
distribution in 2020
Legal reserve - - - 14,152 - 14,152 ) - - - - -
Cash dividends - - - - - 64,948 ) - - 64,948 ) - 64,948 )

Recognition of stock options as 6(14)(18)
a component of equity due to
the issuance of convertible
bonds - - 44,848 - - - - - 44,848 - 44,848

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 1,298,970 $ 5,887 $ 44,848 $ 231,804 $ 182,752 S 419,140 (8 34792) ($  33377) $ 2,115,232 $ 21,640 $ 2,136,872

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Zhou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan, Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Pretax profit
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit(loss)

Depreciation expense (investment properties and

right-of-use assets)
Amortization expense

Reversal of expected credit loss recognized in

profit or loss

Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal or retirement of property, plant

and equipment

Interest expense

Interest income

Dividend income

Government grant income
Benefit from lease modification
Gain on disposal of investments
Unrealized foreign exchange loss

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets, net
Notes receivable - net

Notes receivable - related party, net

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable - related parties

Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments

Other current assets
Other noncurrent assets

Liabilities net change related to operation

activities
Contract liabilities - current
Notes payable
Notes payable - related parties
Accounts payable

Accounts payable - related parties

Other payables
Other current liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Cash inflow from operation activities
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Income tax refunded

Net cash flows from operating activities

Notes 2022 2021
$ 104,666 177,724
6(22)(24)
110,654 111,243
6(24) 2,215 2,376
12(2)
( 2,017) ( 4,442)
6(2)(22)
6,165 ( 1,889)
6(22)
( 1,586) ( 4,202)
6(23) 22,186 14,090
( 5,403) ( 6,456 )
6(21) ( 855) ( 290)
6(21) ( 1,383) ( 509)
6(10) ( 5) ( 3)
6(22) ( 965) ( 1,805)
2,327 23,763
120,279  ( 59,461)
1,006 ( 877)
86,745 ( 25,245)
82,277 ( 19,764 )
( 1,507) ( 1,260 )
119,647 ( 26,182)
( 14,495) ( 30,825)
1,319 ( 410)
595 ( 1,841)
( 15,183) 2,580
( 110,364 ) 70,206
( 3,122) ( 1,842)
( 78,336 ) ( 15,156)
( 466) ( 3,818)
( 19,058) 3,958
35 ( 124)
2,154 ( 68)
407,525 199,471
855 290
4,928 6,427
( 14,783 ) ( 13,903 )
( 31,067) ( 17,635)
2,729 -
370,187 174,650
(Continued)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ($ 16,457) ($ 6,491)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss 18,904 8,974
Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost ( 4951 ( 77,709)
Disposal of financial assets at amortized cost 60.021 32.991
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 6(28) ( 156,293 ) ( 350,427 )
Disposal of property, facility and equipment 1,586 4401
Acquisition of intangible assets ( 11,180 ) ( 7.017)
Decrease in refundable deposits 4220 ( 7.404)
Receipt of grants 25370 10.180
Net cash outflow from investing activities ( 78.780) ( 392,502 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term borrowings 969210 1.673.908
Decrease in short-term borrowings ( 1228693 ) ( 1,760,208 )
Increase in short-term notes and bills payables 235.000 730.000
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payables ( 395.000) ( 750,000 )
Lease principal repayment 6(29) ( 2.113) ( 1.881)
Issuance of corporate bonds 6(29) 321,827 )
Outstanding Number of long-term borrowings 326.000
Repayments of long-term borrowings 6(29) ( 117.000) ( 72,541 )
Increase in guarantee deposits received 6(29) 12,786 753
Cash dividends paid 6(29) ( 64.948) ( 51,959 )
Net Cash outflow from financing activities ( 268,931 ) 93.572
Effects of foreign exchange rates 3025 ( 5.016)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25501 ( 129,296 )
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 604.986 734982
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period S 630.487 S 604.986

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Zhou

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Financial Statement Notes
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

1. The History of the Company

Established in September 1970, Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. (hereafter referred to as "the
Company") and its subsidiaries (hereafter collectively referred to as "the Group") mainly engage
in the manufacturing, trading, domestic and international sales of various cotton, wool, silk, and
synthetic fiber textiles.

2. Financial Statement Review Date and Procedures

The consolidated financial statements were released on March 28th, 2023, following approval by
the Board of Directors.
3. Application of Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations

(1)

(2)

Impact of Newly Adopted and Effective International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
that are approved and published by the Financial Supervisory Commission (hereafter
referred to as FSC)

The following table summarizes the new, amended, and revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Interpretations that were approved and published by the
FSC and were applicable in 2022:

Effective date  of ITASB
publications

Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations

Amendment to IFRS No. 3 “Indexes to Conceptual Framework” January 1, 2022

Amendment to IFRS No. 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended January 1, 2022

Use”
Amendment to IFRS No. 37 “Loss-making contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract” January 1, 2022
Annual improvement cycle for 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

After evaluating the aforementioned standards and interpretations, the Group has determined
that they have no significant impact on the Group’s financial condition and performance.
Impact of New or Revised International Financial Reporting Standards not yet Adopted by
the FSC

The following table summarizes the new, amended, and revised IFRS and Interpretations
that were approved and published by the FSC and were applicable in 2023.

Effective  date  of IASB

Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations

publications
Amendment to IFRS No. 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” January 1, 2023

Amendment to IFRS No. 12 “Deferred income taxes related to assets and liabilities

generated from a single exchange” January 1, 2023
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After evaluating the aforementioned standards and interpretations, the Group has determined

that they have no significant impact on the Group’s financial condition and performance.
(3) Impact of IFRS that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IMAB) but have not yet been recognized by the FSC

The following table summarized the new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations

of IFRS that have been issued by the IASB but have not yet been adopted by the FSC.

Effective date of IASB
Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations publications
Amendment to IFRS No. 10“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and Pending decision by the IASB
its Associate or Joint Venture”

Amendment to IFRS No. 16 “Lease liabilities in sale and leaseback arrangements”  January 1, 2024
Amendment to IFRS No. 17 “Insurance contract” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 17 Revision of “Insurance contract” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 17 “Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - ComparativeJanuary 1, 2023
information”

Amendment to IFRS No. 1 “Classification of liabilities as current or non-current” January 1, 2024
Amendment to IFRS No. 1 “Non-current liabilities with contractual terms” January 1, 2024

After evaluating the aforementioned standards and interpretations, the Group has determined
that they have no significant impact on the Group’s financial condition and performance.
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
this consolidated financial statement. Unless otherwise stated, these policies have been
consistently applied throughout all reporting periods.
(1) Compliance with Standards
This consolidated financial statements is prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting Standards, Interpretations
and Interpretive Releases that have been approved and issued by the Financial Supervisory
Commission. It adheres to the effective.
(2) Basis of Preparation
1. The consolidated financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following significant items:
A. Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.
B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
C. The net amount recognized for defined benefit liabilities, which is the aggregate
of the fair value of plan assets and the present value of defined benefit obligations,
reduced by the effect of any asset ceiling, is recognized in the balance sheet as a
liability.
2. Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations of
IFRS that are approved and issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission requires
the use of certain significant accounting estimates and the exercise of management’s
judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. Such estimates and judgments
involve items that are highly subjective or complex, or relate to significant assumptions
and estimates used in the preparation of parent company only financial statements.
Please refer to Note 5 for details.
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(3) Consolidation Basis

1. Consolidated Financial Reporting Principles:

A. All subsidiaries controlled by the Group (including structured entities) are
included in the consolidated financial statements. Control over a subsidiary is
obtained when the Group has the power to influence the variable returns from its
involvement with the subsidiary and is exposed to or has rights to those variable
returns. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date control is obtained and are deconsolidated from the date control ceases.

B. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses within the
Group are eliminated. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

C. Components of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent and to non-controlling interests; the total comprehensive
income is also attributed to the owners of the parent and to non-controlling
interests, even if this results in a deficit in the non-controlling interests.

D. Changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in loss of control
(transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as equity
transactions, i.e. as transactions with the owners of the parent. The difference
between the adjustment to the non-controlling interest and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity.

E. When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the remaining investment in the
former subsidiary is remeasured to fair value and recognized as either the fair
value of the asset when it was initially recognized, or the cost of the investment
in an associate or joint venture, with any difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. All amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income relating to that former subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
directly disposed of, i.e. if previously recognized in other comprehensive income,
then reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

2. Subsidiaries in Consolidated Financial Statements:

Percentage of Ownership

December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Nature of Business 2022 2021 Notes
The Company Hongyu Holding L.L.C.  Re-investment 100% 100%
0 0
The Company Wenfa Development Professional Investment and 100° 100°
L.L.C. Medical equipment retail % %
The Company Utex Innovation Co., LTD. High-end woven fabric
dyeing, finishing, and 86.67% 86.67% 2)
processing.
The Company Jiujiang Deyu Textile High-end woven fabric
Technology Co., Ltd. dyeing, finishing, and 100% 100% (1
processing.
Hongyu Holding L.L.C. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Manufacturing and selling
Co., Ltd. silk fiber products and 100% 100%
finishing processes.
fa Devel L.L.C. E i ., Ltd. i
Wenfa Development C. Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. Outsourced processing and 70% 70%

sales of finished fabrics.
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(4)

Due to the overall operational development needs of the Group:

A.

B.

Investment in Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd.:

a~ A total of CNY 500 million (equivalent to NT$2.176 billion based on the
exchange rate at the time of the transaction) was remitted for investment from
May to November 2021. In June and July 2022, a total of CNY 200 million
(equivalent to NT$892.5 million based on the exchange rate at the time of the
transaction) was remitted for investment in Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology
Co., Ltd.

b~ As of December 31, 2022, the accumulated investment amount was CNY 1.15
billion.

Investment in Utex Innovation Co., LTD.:

a~ On March 29, 2021 and May 12, 2021, Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. and the
Board of Directors of the Group respectively passed a resolution to increase
capital by NT$300,000 thousand. As the Group did not subscribe to the full
amount according to its sharcholding ratio, its shareholding percentage
increased to 86.67%. As the result, the retained earnings decreased by
NT$1,903 thousand.

3. Subsidiaries not listed in Consolidated Financial Statements
No such subsidiaries.

4. Adjustments and treatment for subsidiaries with different accounting periods
No such subsidiaries.

5. Material Limitation
No material limitation.

6. Subsidiaries with non-controlling interests that are significant to the Group
No such subsidiaries.

Foreign Currency Translation

Items enlisted in the financial statements of each entity within the Group are presented in
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in the functional
currency of the Group, which is the New Taiwan Dollar.

1. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances:

A.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date or measurement date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognized in the current period’s profit or loss.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are revalued at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in the current period’s profit or loss.

Foreign currency non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value through profit or loss are revalued at the exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in the
current period’s profit or loss. Those that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income. Those that
are not measured at fair value are translated using the historical exchange rates on
the initial transaction date.

All exchange differences are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income under the item "other income and expenses."

106



(5)

(6)

(7)

2. Foreign Operation Translation

A. For all individual companies, related enterprises, and joint agreements whose
functional currencies are different from the reporting currencies, the operating
results and financial positions are converted into the reporting currencies using
the following methods:

a. Assets and liabilities presented in each balance sheet are converted using the
closing exchange rate on the balance sheet date

b. Revenues and expenses presented in each income statement are converted
using the average exchange rate for the period

c. All translation differences arising from translation are recognized in other
comprehensive income

B. Translation differences of net investments in foreign operations are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

C. When a partial disposal or sale of foreign operations occurs, the translation
differences under other comprehensive income are proportionally reclassified to
profit or loss as a component of the gain or loss on disposal

The Classification Criteria for Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities

1. Assets meeting any of the following criteria shall be classified as current assets:

A. Assets expected to be realized in the normal operating cycle or intended to be sold
or consumed.

B. Assets held primarily for trading purposes.

C. Assets expected to be realized within twelve months after the balance sheet date.

D. Cash or cash equivalents, except for those with restrictions on exchange or use for
settlement of liabilities for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All assets that do not meet the above criteria are classified as non-current by the Group.

2. Liabilities meeting any of the following criteria shall be classified as current liabilities:

Liabilities expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle.

Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes.

Liabilities expected to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Liabilities cannot be deferred unconditionally beyond twelve months after the

balance sheet date, except for liabilities with terms that may be settled by issuing

equity instruments at the option of the counterparty, which do not affect their
classification.

All liabilities that do not meet the above criteria are classified as non-current by the Group.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term investments that are highly liquid and can be converted

into a fixed amount of cash at any time, with minimal risk of value fluctuations. Time

deposits that meet the aforementioned criteria and are held for the purpose of fulfilling
short-term cash commitments in operations are classified as cash equivalents.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

1. Refers to financial assets that are not measured at amortized cost or measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

2. Trade date accounting for financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
that meet customary trading criteria is used by the Group.

3. The group measures financial assets at fair value upon initial recognition, and recognizes
transaction costs in profit or loss. Subsequently, any gains or losses on these financial
assets are recognized in profit or loss.

4. The Group recognizes dividend income in profit or loss when the right to receive
dividends is established, and the economic benefits related to dividends are likely to
flow in, and the amount of dividends can be reliably measured.

00w >
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(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

1. Refers to financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:

A. Assets held under a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows.

B. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Trade date accounting to financial assets measured at amortized cost that meet trading
customary trading criteria is used by the Group.

3. The Group holds short-term fixed deposits that do not qualify as cash equivalents and
are measured at cost due to the short-term nature of the deposits and the immateriality
of the effect of discounting.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

1. Refers to a non-revocable choice made at the initial recognition to report the fair value
changes of equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive
income, or to debt instrument investments that meet both of the following conditions:

A. Assets held under a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell the asset.

B. The contract terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specific dates,
consisting entirely of the repayment of principal and the payment of interest on
outstanding principal.

2. Trade date accounting to financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income that meet trading customary trading criteria is used by the Group.

3. When initially recognized, the Group measures equity instruments at their fair value plus

transaction costs, and subsequently measures them at fair value:
The fair value changes of equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss when derecognized. Instead, they are
transferred to retained earnings. When the right to receive dividends is established and
the economic benefits related to dividends are likely to flow to the Group, and the
dividend amount can be reliably measured, the Group recognizes dividend income in
profit or loss.

Accounts and Notes Receivable

1. Refer to the accounts and notes receivable that represent the right to receive payment
for the consideration received from the transfer of goods or services, without any
conditions attached.

2. For short-term accounts and notes receivable without interest, the impact of discounting
is not significant, the Group measures them at the original invoice amount.

Impairment of Financial Asset
The Group measures its financial assets at amortized cost on each balance sheet date, taking
into consideration all reasonable and supportable information (including forward-looking
information) related to credit risk, and recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
based on a 12-month expected credit loss amount for financial assets for which the credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, and based on the lifetime
expected credit loss amount for financial assets for which the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, the Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses based
on the lifetime expected credit loss amount.
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(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Derecognition of Financial Assets
When the Group’s contractual rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset have
expired, the financial asset is derecognized.
Operating Leases - Lease Transactions of the Lessor
The lease income from operating leases, which is not contingent on any incentives granted
to the lessee, is recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease term.
Inventories
Inventory is accounted for using the perpetual inventory system, with costs calculated using
the weighted average method. Fixed manufacturing overhead is allocated based on the
normal production capacity of the equipment, while any unallocated fixed manufacturing
overhead is recognized as cost of goods sold in the period incurred. Inventory is measured
at the lower of cost or net realizable value at the end of each period, with a comparison of
the cost and net realizable value made using the individual-item approach. Net realizable
value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion, estimated selling expenses, and applicable taxes.

Investments in Equity Method - Associated Companies

1. An associated company refers to an entity in which the Group has significant influence
but not control, typically through direct or indirect ownership of more than 20% of the
voting rights. The Group accounts for its investment in associated companies using the
equity method and recognizes the investment at cost upon acquisition.

2. The Group recognizes its share of profit or loss of an associate in the income statement
and its share of other comprehensive income of an associated company in other
comprehensive income after its acquisition. If the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (including any other receivable that is not
secured), the Group does not recognize further losses unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

3. When there is an equity change in the associated company that is not related to profit or
loss and does not affect the shareholding percentage in the associated company, the
Group will recognize the equity change attributed to the Group’s interest in the
associated company in proportion to its shareholding as "Capital Surplus".

4. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
affiliated companies have been eliminated based on their respective ownership interests
in the affiliated companies, unless there is evidence that the transferred assets have been
impaired. The affiliated companies’ accounting policies have been adjusted as necessary
to conform to the accounting policies used by the Group.

5. When the Group disposes of an associated enterprise and loses significant influence over
it, all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income related to that
associated enterprise shall be accounted for in the same manner as the disposal of assets
or liabilities directly related to the Group’s disposal, that is, any previously recognized
gains or losses in other comprehensive income will be reclassified as income when the
assets or liabilities are disposed of. If the group still has significant influence over the
associated enterprise, the amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
shall be reclassified proportionally in the manner described above.
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(16) Property, Plant and Equipment

1.

2.

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at acquisition cost and interest related to
the acquisition or construction period is capitalized.

Subsequent costs are only included in the carrying amount of an asset or recognized as
a separate asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of a replaced part should be derecognized. All other maintenance costs are
recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost model subsequently. They are
depreciated using the straight-line depreciation method based on the estimated useful
life, except for land, which is not depreciated. If a component of property, plant, and
equipment is significant, it is separately depreciated.

The Group reviews the residual value, useful life, and depreciation method of each asset
at the end of each financial year. If the expected residual value and useful life are
different from previous estimates, or there has been a significant change in the expected
consumption pattern of the future economic benefits of the asset, then the accounting
estimates are adjusted in accordance with International Accounting Standard 8§
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” from the date of the
change. The useful life of each asset is as follows:

Buildings and structures: 2 to 50 years

Machinery and equipment: 2 to 20 years

Transportation equipment: 2 to 10 years

Office equipment: 3 to 10 years

Other assets: 2 to 20 years

(17) Leases - Right-of-Use Assets / Lease Liabilities for Lessees

1.

When a leased asset becomes available for use by the Group, it is recognized as a right-
of-use asset and a lease liability. For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets,
lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The lease liability is recognized on the lease commencement date as the present value
of the remaining lease payments not yet paid, discounted at the incremental borrowing
rate of the Group. Lease payments include fixed payments, net of any lease incentives
that may be receivable.

The subsequent measurement is based on the effective interest rate method and is
measured using the amortized cost method. Interest expense is recognized during the
lease term. When there is a change in the lease term or lease payments caused by a non-
contractual modification, the lease liability is re-measured and the re-measurement
amount is adjusted to the right-of-use asset.

The right-of-use asset is recognized at cost on the lease commencement date, which
includes:

A. The initial measurement of the lease liability.

B. Lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

C. Initial direct costs incurred; and
Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model, and
depreciation expense is recognized over the asset’s useful life or the lease term,
whichever is shorter. When the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset
is adjusted for any revaluation amount of the lease liability.

D. For lease modifications that result in a reduction in the lease scope, the lessee
shall reduce the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or
full termination of the lease, and recognize the difference between it and the
amount of the lease liability remeasurement in profit or loss.
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(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

Intangible Assets

1. Computer software is recognized at cost and is amortized on a straight-line basis over
its estimated useful life of 2 to 5 years.

2. Pollution rights are recognized at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis over
their useful life of 20 years.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Group assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there are any indicators of
impairment for its assets, and estimates their recoverable amounts. If the recoverable
amount is lower than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. For assets that were previously impaired, if the circumstances that led to the
impairment no longer exist or have improved, the impairment loss is reversed. However, the
carrying amount of an asset after impairment reversal cannot exceed what the carrying
amount would have been if no impairment loss had been recognized, net of any depreciation
or amortization.

Borrowings

The term "borrowings" refers to long-term or short-term funds borrowed from banks. The

Group initially measures these borrowings at fair value less transaction costs. Subsequently,

any differences between the carrying amount of the liability and the redemption amount are

recognized as interest expense over the borrowing term using the effective interest method,
which amortizes the difference between the proceeds and the redemption value over the
period of the borrowing as a finance cost in the income statement.

Accounts Payable and Notes Payable

1. Refers to liabilities incurred for the purchase of raw materials, goods, or services and
for operating and non-operating expenses payable by notes.

2. Accounts payable and notes payable are short-term liabilities that do not have a
significant impact from discounting, and are measured at their original invoice amounts
by the Group.

When the Group’s rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset have expired, the
asset is derecognized.

Convertible Bonds Payable

Convertible bonds payable issued by the Group contain embedded conversion options (the

bondholders have the right to convert the bonds into a fixed number of ordinary shares of

the Group) as well as put and call options. The initial issuance price is classified as a

financial asset, financial liability, or equity based on the terms of the issue. The approach

taken in accounting for this is as follows:

1. Embedded put and call options are initially recognized at their fair value net of any
transaction costs as “financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”.
Subsequently, at each balance sheet date, they are measured at their fair value, and any
changes are recognized in “gain or loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss”.

2. The main contract of the corporate bond is initially measured at fair value, and any
difference between the redemption amounts is recognized as the discount on payables.
Subsequently, the effective interest method is used to amortize the discount over the
term of the bond, and the interest expense is recognized as an adjusting item of "financial
costs" in the income statement.

3. The embedded conversion option (qualifying as equity) is initially recognized at the
issuance date by deducting the fair value of the “financial asset or liability at fair value
through profit or loss” and “payable bonds” from the issuance proceeds, and the
remaining value is recorded as “capital surplus - stock options”. Subsequently, no re-
measurement is made.

4. The direct transaction costs incurred in the issuance are allocated to the respective
components of liabilities and equity in proportion to their respective initial carrying
amounts as described above.

5. When the holder exercises their right to convert, the liability component (including
"payable convertible bonds" and "financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss") is processed according to its subsequent measurement method
classification, and the book value of the liability component is added to the book value
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of "capital surplus - stock subscription rights" to calculate the issuance cost of the
exchanged common shares.

(23) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities
The financial liabilities shall be derecognized by the Company upon the fulfillment,
cancellation, or expiration of the obligations specified in the contract.

(24) Offset of Financial Assets and Liabilities

When there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts of financial assets
and liabilities, and the intention to settle the asset and discharge the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously, the financial assets and financial liabilities may be offset and presented
on a net basis in the balance sheet.

(25) Employee Benefits

1.

Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of expected
payment and recognized as an expense when the related service is provided.
Pensions
A. Defined Contribution Plan

For a defined contribution plan, the amount of pension contribution that should be

provided is recognized as the current period’s pension cost based on the principle

of liability incurred. Prepaid contributions are recognized as assets within the
scope of refundable cash or reduced future payment.
B. Defined Benefit Plan

a. The net obligation of defined benefit plans is measured by discounting the
future benefit amounts earned by employees for services rendered in the
current or prior periods, and reducing it by the fair value of plan assets at the
balance sheet date. The net obligation of the defined benefit plan is calculated
annually using the projected unit credit method by an actuary, and the
discount rate is based on the market yield of government bonds (at the balance
sheet date) that have the same currency and maturity as the benefit obligation
of the defined benefit plan.

b. The remeasurements of defined benefit plans are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise and are presented in
retained earnings.

c. The related expenses of prior service cost are recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Severance Benefits

Severance benefits are benefits provided to employees upon termination of their
employment prior to their normal retirement date or when employees accept a company
offer to terminate their employment in exchange for benefits. The Group recognizes the
expense of severance benefits when it is no longer able to withdraw the offer of such
benefits or when the recognition of related restructuring costs is earlier. Severance
benefits that are not expected to be settled in full within 12 months after the balance
sheet date should be discounted.
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4. Employee, Director and Supervisor’s Compensation
Employees’, directors’, supervisors’ compensation are recognized as expenses and
liabilities when there is a legal or constructive obligation and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Any difference between the estimated and actual amounts
distributed by the Board of Directors is recognized as an accounting estimate change. In
the case of stock-based employee compensation, the number of shares is calculated based
on the closing price on the day prior to the Board of Directors’ decision.

(26) Income Taxes

1. The income tax expense includes current and deferred taxes. Except for income taxes
related to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, income
taxes are recognized in income.

2. The Group calculates current income tax based on the legislated tax rates in the countries
where it operates and generates taxable income as of the balance sheet date. The
management assesses the status of income tax filings in accordance with applicable tax
laws and estimates the income tax liabilities based on the expected tax payments to tax
authorities, as appropriate. The undistributed earnings are subject to income tax in
accordance with the income tax law, and income tax expenses on undistributed earnings
are recognized only after the annual general meeting approves the distribution of the
actual earnings in the following year.

3. Deferred income tax is recognized based on the balance sheet method, which means that
temporary differences between the tax base and the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet are recognized. If the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction (excluding a
business combination) that at the time of the transaction did not affect accounting profit
or taxable income (tax loss), it shall not be recognized. If temporary differences arising
from the subsidiary can be controlled by the Group as to the timing of reversal, and it is
probable that such temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, they
shall not be recognized. Deferred income taxes are measured based on the tax rates
expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets are realized or the deferred tax
liabilities are settled, as of the balance sheet date.

4. Deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary differences that are very likely to be
utilized to offset future taxable income within the scope of recognition. These deferred
tax assets are re-evaluated at each balance sheet date for amounts not recognized and
already recognized.

5. When there is a legal right to offset the recognized current income tax assets and
liabilities and there is an intention to settle the net amount or simultaneously realize
assets and settle liabilities on a net basis, then the current income tax assets and
liabilities shall be offset. if there is a legal right to offset the current income tax assets
and liabilities and there is an intention to settle the net amount on a net basis or
simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability, and the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are levied on income tax by the same tax authority as the same
taxpayer, the deferred income tax assets and liabilities shall be offset.

(27) Share Capital

Common stock is classified as equity. The net amount after deducting income tax directly

attributable to the increase in cost of issuing new shares or stock options is recorded as a

deduction from equity in the statement of financial position.

(28) Dividend Distribution

The dividends distributed to the shareholders of the Company are recognized in the financial

statements when they are approved by the Company’s shareholders’ meeting. Cash dividends

are recognized as liabilities.
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(29) Revenue Recognition
Sales of goods
1. The main business of the Group is the manufacturing, printing, dyeing, and processing
of various cotton, wool, silk and synthetic fiber textiles for domestic and international
sales. Revenue is recognized when control over the product is transferred to the customer,
which occurs when the product is delivered to the customer. The customer has the
discretion to determine the sales route and price of the product, and the Group has no
remaining performance obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. When the product is shipped to the designated location, the risks of
obsolescence, deterioration, and loss have been transferred to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the product according to the sales contract, or there is objective
evidence that all acceptance criteria have been met, the point of delivery has occurred.
2. Sales revenue is recognized as net of estimated sales returns and allowances based on
the contract price. Payment terms for sales transactions typically range from 30 to 120
days after shipment. As the time period between transferring goods or services to
customers and their payment does not exceed one year, the Group does not adjust
transaction prices to reflect the time value of money.
3. The contract liability for customer prepayments in the sales contract of the Group is
recognized as revenue when control of the product is transferred to the customer.
(30) Government Grants
Government grants are recognized at fair value when it is reasonably certain that the entity
will comply with the conditions attached to the grant and that the grant will be received. If
the nature of the government grant is to compensate the Group for expenses incurred, the
grant is recognized as income in the statement of comprehensive income systematically on
a basis consistent with the recognition of the related expenses.
(31) Operating Segments
The information of the operating segments of the Group provided to the primary operating
decision-makers in the internal management report is reported consistently. The primary
operating decision-makers are responsible for allocating resources to the operating
segments and evaluating their performance.
5. Main Sources of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Assumptions Uncertainty
When preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management of the Group has exercised
judgment in determining the accounting policies to be adopted and has made accounting estimates
and assumptions b based on reasonable expectations of future events as of the date of the balance
sheet. The significant accounting estimates and assumptions made may differ from actual results,
and such estimates and assumptions will be continually evaluated and adjusted in consideration
of historical experience and other factors. These estimates and assumptions have the potential to
cause significant adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial
year. Please see below for a detailed explanation of the main sources of significant accounting
judgments, estimates, and assumptions uncertainties:
Valuation of Inventory
Due to the inventory must be valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group needs
to exercise judgment and estimation to determine the net realizable value of inventory as of the
balance sheet date. The Group evaluates inventory as of the balance sheet date based on the
amount that is expected to be realized from normal usage, obsolescence, or lack of market demand,
and reduces the inventory cost to the net realizable value. The inventory valuation is mainly based
on the estimation of product demand within a specific future period, and therefore, may involve
significant changes.
As of December 31, 2022, the carrying amount of inventory was NT$814,860 thousand.

6. Explanation of Significant Accounting Items
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Cash on Hand and Working Capital $ 4,995 $ 3,117
Checking Deposits and Current Deposits 435,820 462,405
Time Deposits 189,672 139.464
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Total $ 630,487 $ 604,986
Interest Rate Range

Time Deposit 1.20% to 4.35% 1.60%~2.40%

1. The financial institutions with which the Group has transactions have good credit quality,
and the Group deals with multiple financial institutions to diversify credit risk. The
likelihood of default is expected to be very low.

2. Time deposits with original maturities exceeding three months and time deposits that are
restricted and do not meet the criteria for being classified by the Group as short-term
cash commitments as “financial assets measured at amortized cost.” The amounts as of
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were NT$11,600 thousand and NT$69,971
thousand, respectively. Please refer to Note 6(3) for details.

(2) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - Current

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Current Assets:

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or

Loss Measured at Mandatory Basis

Listed Company Stock $ 11,551 $ 13,033

Convertible Bonds Redemption Rights 3,270 -

Revaluation Adjustments ( 5,694) 471
Subtotal $ 9,127 $ 13,504

1. Details of Financial Asset at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - current are recognized

in the income statement as follows:
2022 2021
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (s 6.165) $ 1.889

Measured at Mandatory Basis

2. The Group did not pledge any of its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- current.
(3) Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current Assets:
Restricted time deposits $ - $ 48,812
Time deposits with maturities over three months - 4,768
$ - $ 53,580
Non-current items:
Restricted bank deposits $ 11,600 $ 16,391
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Assuming no collateral or other credit enhancements, the most representative financial
assets at amortized cost held by the Group had maximum credit risk exposure of
NT$11,600 thousand and NT$69,971 thousand as of December 31, 111 and December 31,
110, respectively.

Please refer to Note 8 for details regarding financial assets pledged as collateral by the
Group.

Please refer to Note 12(2) for credit risk information related to financial assets measured
at amortized cost. The counterparty of the Group’s investment in time deposits is a
financially sound institution, and the possibility of default is expected to be very low.

(4) Accounts and Notes Receivable

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Account Receivable $ 76,085 $ 194,509
Trade Receivable $ 395,275 $ 481,326
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ( 10,392) ( 12,523)
$ 384,883 $ 468.803
1. Accounts Receivable Aging Analysis:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Account Receivable  Trade Receivable  Account Receivable  Trade Receivable
Not Overdue $ 382,945 $ 76,085 $ 464,848 $ 194,509
1-90 days 6,434 - 10,582 -
91-180 days 897 - 470 -
Over 181 days 4,999 - 5,426 -
$ 395,275 $ 76,085 $ 481,326 $ 194,509

Aging analysis based on the number of days past due as above.

The balances of accounts receivable and notes receivable as of December 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021 were all generated from customer contracts. As of January 1, 2021,
the balances of trade receivable and account receivable from customer contracts were
NT$458,751 thousand and NT$82,512 thousand, respectively.

Assuming no collateral or other credit enhancements, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Group’s accounts receivable from promissory notes was NT$76,085 thousand and
NT$194,509 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The maximum
credit risk exposure of the Group’s accounts receivable was NT$384,883 thousand and
NT$468,803 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Related credit risk information on trade receivable and account receivable can be found
in Note 12(2).
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(5)

(6)

Inventories

December 31, 2022

Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts

Cost And Impairment Loss Book Value
$
Raw Materials 229,872 ) 12,993) $ 216,879
Material 3,361 - 3,361
Work in Process 131,128 ( 1,856) 129,272
Finishing Goods 562.425 ( 97.077) 465,348
£
Total 926,786 ) 111,926) $ 814,860
December 31, 2021
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts
Cost And Impairment Loss Book Value
$
Raw Materials 338,550 (% 12,959) $ 325,591
Material 3,506 - 3,506
Work in Process 144,518 ( 1,705) 142,813
Finishing Goods 557,768 ( 97.995) 459,773
Total $ 1,044,342 ($ 112,659) $ 931,683

The Inventory Cost Recognized by the Group as Expenses in the Current Period:

Cost of Goods Sold

Unamortized Fixed Manufacturing Overhead

Inventory Write-Down and Reversal of
Provisions for Inventory Obsolescence

Inventory Gain/Loss

Sales of Scraps

The inventory turnover benefit for the Group in 2022 and 2021 refers to the increase in net
realizable value of inventory due to the disposal of inventory previously written down for

losses.
Prepayments

Deferred Tax Assets
Advances to Suppliers
Other Prepaid Expenses

2022 2021
$ 2,787,576 $ 3,011,639
19,494 15,819
( 2,071) ( 11,767)
( 1,219) 4,991
( 20,804) ( 32.465)
$ 2,782,976 $ 2,988,217

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

$ 93,898  $ 81,259
36,816 29,539
19,041 22.685
$ 149,755 _$ 133,483
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(7) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - Non-current

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Non-current Assets:
Equity Instruments
Non-publicly Traded Companies $ 96,423 $ 96,423
Revaluation Adjustments of Financial Assets at
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income ( 36.705) ( 8.290)
Total $ 59,718 $ 88,133

1. The Group has chosen to classify its stock investments, which are strategic or held for
stable dividend income, as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The fair values of these equity instruments were NT$59,718 thousand and
NT$88,133 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

2. Recognition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income in
profit or loss and comprehensive income are as follows:

2022 2021
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income - Equity Instruments
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income for Fair
Value Changes (3 22,643) $ 6,385
Recognized in Dividend Income in Profit or Loss Still $ 20 $ 20

Held at the End of the Period

3. The Group did not provide any pledge for the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - non-current.

(8) Investments Accounted using the Equity Method

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Honglongfa Development $ 128 $ 128
Hongde Development - -
$ 128 $ 128

Individually insignificant affiliated companies of the Group is presented below:
Shareholding %

Company Region December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Honglongfa Development Co., Ltd. ~ Taiwan 37.50% 37.50%
(Note 1)

Hongde Development Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 38.17% 38.17%
(Note 2)

Note 1: approved for dissolution registration by the Ministry of Economic Affairs on July 30,
2021, but is still in the process of liquidation.

Note 2: The Group has recognized investment losses on affiliated companies up to the carrying
amount of the investments accounted for using the equity method; therefore, no further
losses are recognized.
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(9)

Property, Plant, and Equipment

119

2022
Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Transfer Exchange Rate Impact Ending Balance
Cost
Land $ 363,610 $ - 8 - 8 -3 - $ 363,610
Building and Construction 725,885 3,578 - 4,584 4,810 738,857
Machinery and Equipment 1,181,223 17,034 ( 21,012) ( 53,005) 7,760 1,132,000
Transportation and Equipment 33,962 1,430 - ( 256) 205 35,341
Office Equipment 14,775 540 ( 264) ( 429) 54 14,676
Other Equipment 175,050 7,593 ( 70) ( 22,259) 934 161,248
Leased Assets 38,000 - - - 612 38,612
Idle Assets 3,019 - - 100,868 ( 295) 103,592
Construction in Progress/ 283,956 121,356 - ( 25.499) 4,603 384,416
Equipment under Testing
$ 2,819,480 _$ 151,531 ($ 21,346) _$ 4,004 §$ 18,683 $ 2,972,352
Accumulated Depreciation
Building and Construction (3 401,389) ($ 27,019) $ - 8 - (8 2,624)  ($ 431,032)
Machinery and Equipment ( 800,396) ( 62,732) 21,012 41,082 ( 5,572) ( 806,606)
Transportation and Equipment  ( 23,845) ( 3,012) - 106 ( 156) ( 26,907)
Office Equipment ( 10,264) ( 1,065) 264 418 ( 48) ( 10,695)
Other Equipment ( 125,190) ( 11,350) 70 7,058 ( 485) ( 129,897)
Leased Assets ( 21,410) ( 1,857) - - ( 340) ( 23,607)
Idle Assets ( 3.019) - - ( 48.664) 143 ( 51.540)
3 1,385.513) ($ 107,035) _$ 21,346 _$ - ($ 9,082) &) 1.480,284)
$ 1,433,967 $ 1,492,068




2021

Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Transfer Exchange Rate Impact Ending Balance
Cost
Land $ 363,610 $ - S -3 -5 - $ 363,610
Building and Construction 724,072 3,120 - 463 ( 1,770) 725,885
Machinery and Equipment 1,138,833 71,715 ( 38,541) 12,128 ( 2,912) 1,181,223
Transportation and Equipment 28,236 5,834 ( 206) 168 ( 70) 33,962
Office Equipment 14,751 498 ( 457) - ( 17) 14,775
Other Equipment 168,369 7,017 ( 1,676) 1,662 ( 322) 175,050
Leased Assets 38,226 - - - ( 226) 38,000
Idle Assets 3,019 - - - - 3,019
Construction in Progress/

Equipment under Testing 30,936 267,047 - ( 13,899) ( 128) 283,956

$ 2,510,052 355,231 (§ 40,880) _$ 522 ($ 5,445) $ 2,819,480

Accumulated Depreciation

Building and Construction ($ 375,648) ( 26,642) $ -3 -3 901 (3 401,389)
Machinery and Equipment ( 775,817) ( 64,857) 38,342 - 1,936 ( 800,396)
Transportation and Equipment ( 21,130) ( 2,971) 206 - 50 ( 23,845)
Office Equipment ( 9,761) ( 977) 457 - 17 ( 10,264)
Other Equipment ( 116,492) ( 10,572) 1,676 - 198 ( 125,190)
Leased Assets ( 19,704) ( 1,823) - - 117 ( 21,410)
Idle Assets ( 3.019) - - - - ( 3.019)
(3 1,321,571) (8§ 107,842) _$ 40,681 _§ - $ 3,219 (3 1,385,513)

$ 1,188,481 $ 1,433,967

1.

A. Starting from March 10, 2022, the Group recognizes its buildings and structures, machinery and equipment,
transportation equipment, office equipment, and other equipment to rental assets based on their usage.

B. The Group reclassified the relevant leased assets for dyeing and finishing to buildings and structures and idle assets,
respectively, in accordance with their nature, as the lease and use of such assets were ceased based on the local
government’s policy in December 2022.

C. The transfer in the current period is due to the transfer of prepaid equipment payment.
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2. Please refer to Note 8 for details on information provided as collateral using real estate,
factory buildings, and equipment.
3. The Group did not capitalize interest in 2022 and 2021.

(10) Lease Transactions - Lessee

1. The assets leased by the Group include land, buildings, and machinery and equipment,
and the lease terms typically range from 2 to 46 years. The lease agreements are
individually negotiated and include various different terms and conditions. There are no
restrictions imposed other than that the leased assets may not be used as collateral for
borrowings.

2. The information on the book value of the right-of-use assets and the related depreciation
expense is as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Book Value Book Value
Land $ 68,760 $ 66,747
Buildings 1,307 1,989
Machinery and Equipment 9 122
$ 70,076 $ 68,858
2022 2021
Depreciation Expense Depreciation Expense

Land $ 2,824 $ 2,622
Buildings 682 661
Machinery and Equipment 113 118
$ 3,619 $ 3,401

3. The increase in right-of-use assets of the Group was NT$5,270 thousand and NT$2,271
thousand for the years ended 2022 and 2021, respectively.
4. Information on income and expense items related to lease agreements is as follows:
2022 2021
Items affecting current period income and expenses:

Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities $ 57 $ 32
Expense Related to Short-term Lease Agreements_$ 1,347 $ 1,619
Lease Modification Gain/Loss $ 5 $ 3

5. The total cash outflows for lease payments of the Group in 2022 and 2021 were NT$3,517
thousand and NT$3,532 thousand, respectively.
6. The current and non-current balances of lease liabilities of the Group are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Lease Liabilities - Current $ 1,962 $ 1,587
Lease Liabilities - Non-current $ 4,595 $ 3,298
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(11) Short-term Borrowings

Loan Nature: December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Unsecured Loan $ 140,703 $ 470,037
Secured Loan 97,658 10,798
Purchase Loan - 11,044

$ 238,361 $ 491,879

Range of interest rates for borrowing
from financial institutions: 1.40%~6.35% 0.88%~1.83%

1. Short-term loan of NT$3,000 thousand was borrowed by Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. on
December 31, 2021, with the Small and Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee Fund as the
guarantor, without substantial collateral. The loan is categorized based on the guarantee
regulations, with 70% or NT$2,100 thousand as secured loan and 30% or NT$900
thousand as unsecured loan.

2. Please refer to Note 8 for information on collateral provided for loans.

(12) Short-term Notes Payable

December 31, 2021

Accounts Payable - Commercial Paper $ 160,000
Less: Discount on Accounts Payable - Commercial Paper ( 278)

$ 159,722
Interest Rate Range 1.03%~1.11%

1. None such event occurred on December 31, 2022.
2. The above accounts payable commercial paper is guaranteed by Ta Ching Bills Finance
Corporation, China Bills Finance Corporation, International Bills Finance Corporation,
Mega Bills Finance Corporation., Dah Chung Bills Finance Corporation, and Grand Bills
Finance Corporation.
(13) Other Payables

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accrued Salaries Payable $ 86,536 $ 94,045
Accrued Processing Fees Payable 26,786 40,127
Accounts Payable for Construction and Equipment 12,722 12,383
Accounts Payable for Utilities 11,926 9,865
Accounts Payable for Repairs and Maintenance 8,719 14,411
Other 61,629 54,135

$ 208,318 $ 224,966

(14) Bonds Payable

December 31, 2022

Payable Corporate Bonds $ 300,000
Plus: Interest Compensation 1,375
Less: Discount on Payable Corporate Bonds ( 13.806)

$ 287,569
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1. None such event occurred on December 31, 2021.
2. Convertible corporate bonds issued by the Company domestically.
A. The terms and conditions of the second unsecured convertible corporate bond
issuance by the Company in the domestic market are as follows:

a.

The Company has been approved by the competent authority to raise and issue
its second unsecured convertible corporate bonds in the domestic market. The
total issuance amount is NT$300,000 thousand, with a coupon rate of 109.01%
and a three-year maturity period. The circulation period runs from January 26,
2022 to January 26, 2025. The bonds will be redeemed at maturity at their
face value plus 1.5075% interest compensation, payable in cash. The bonds
were listed and traded on the Taipei Exchange (TPEx) on January 26, 2022.
From three months after the issuance date of this convertible bond until the
maturity date, the bondholders can request to convert this convertible bond
into common stocks of the Company at any time, except for i) Suspension
period of common shares transfer according to laws and regulations; ii) the
period from fifteen business days before the ex-dividend date, ex-rights date
or ex-bonus share date of the Company’s stock until the record date; iii) the
period from the reduction record date of the Company until the day before the
start of trading of the new shares issued due to the reduction; iv) the period
from the suspension of the conversion of stocks due to stock split to the day
before the trading day of the new shares issued by the stock split. The
bondholders can make the request through their securities broker and notify
the Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation, which is the stock registrar
of the Company, to convert the convertible bond into common stocks of the
Company in accordance with this regulation. The rights and obligations of the
common stocks obtained through the conversion shall be the same as those of
the previously issued common stocks of the Company.

The conversion price of this convertible corporate bond is determined
according to the pricing model specified in the conversion rules. In case of
anti-dilution provisions triggered by the Company, the conversion price will
be adjusted based on the same pricing model. As of December 31, 2022, the
conversion price of this convertible corporate bond is set at NT$15.3 per share.
When the convertible bonds have been outstanding for three months from the
date of issuance until 40 days prior to the end of the issuance period, if the
closing price of the Company’s common stock exceeds 130% of the then
conversion price for thirty consecutive business days, or if the outstanding
balance of the Convertible Bonds in circulation is less than 10% of the
original issuance amount, the Company may, at any time thereafter, redeem
all the Convertible Bonds in cash at their face value.

According to the conversion rules, all redeemed (including those bought back
by securities firms), repaid, or converted convertible bonds of the Company
shall be cancelled and may not be resold or issued again, and their attached
conversion rights shall also be extinguished.

B. As of December 31, 2022, the principal amount of the convertible corporate bonds
has not been converted into common shares.

3. When issuing convertible bonds, the Company separated the equity component of the
conversion right and each liability component element in accordance with International
Accounting Standard 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation." As of December 31, 2022,
the "Capital Surplus - Subscription Rights" was recorded as NT$44,848 thousand. The
embedded call option was also separated from the host contract liability instrument in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 9 "Financial Instruments"
as it was not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract
liability instrument. The net amount of the embedded call option was then recorded as
"Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss." The effective interest rate of the
host contract liability instrument after separation was 2.3%.
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(15) Long-term Borrowings

Type of Borrowings

Borrowing Period

Secured Borrowings

From August 13, 2019 to August 13, 2024
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting from
November 13, 2021

From November 20, 2019 to November 20, 2026
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting from
December 20, 2019

From October 13, 2020 to October 13, 2025
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting from
January 13, 2023

From May 20, 2021 to May 20, 2028
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting from June
20,2021

From November 25, 2021 to November 25, 2026
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 48 installments starting from
December 25, 2022

Unsecured Borrowings From November 25, 2021 to November 25, 2026

Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 48 installments starting from
December 25, 2022

Less: Long-term borrowings due within one year

Interest Rate Range

Type of Borrowings

(Intentionally left blank)

December 31, 2022

$ 116,667

83,928

150,000

154,762

12,533

3.133

$ 521,023

( 170,666)
$ 350,357
1.84%~2.23%

Borrowing Period December 31, 2021

Secured Borrowings

From August 13, 2019 to August 13, 2024
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting from
November 13, 2021

From November 20, 2019 to November 20, 2026
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting from
December 20, 2019

From October 13, 2020 to October 13, 2025
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting from
January 13, 2023

From May 20, 2021 to May 20, 2028
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting from June
20, 2021

From November 25, 2021 to November 25, 2026
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 48 installments starting from
December 25, 2022

Unsecured Borrowings From November 25, 2021 to November 25, 2026

Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 48 installments starting from
December 25, 2022
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$ 183,333

105,357

150,000

183,333

12,800

3.200




$ 638,023

Less: Long-term borrowings due within one year ( 117,000)

$ 521,023

Interest Rate Range 1.20%~1.60%

2.
(16) Pen

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the long-term borrowings of Utex Innovation Co.,
Ltd. were NT$15,666 thousand and NT$16,000 thousand, respectively. These borrowings
were guaranteed by the Small and Medium Enterprise Credit Guarantee Fund, and had
no substantive collateral. Based on the proportion defined in the guarantee regulations,
80% of the borrowings were secured borrowings, and 20% were unsecured borrowings.
Please refer to Note 8 for details of the collateral for secured borrowings.

sion

1.

A. The Company has established a retirement plan with defined benefits in accordance
with the Labor Standards Act. The plan applies to the service years of all regular
employees before the implementation of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005, as
well as the subsequent service years of employees who choose to continue to be
subject to the Labor Standards Act. Retirement benefits are calculated based on
years of service and the average salary in the last 6 months before retirement. For
those with service years of 15 years or less, two months’ basic salary is provided
for each year of service. For those with service years exceeding 15 years, one
month’s basic salary is provided for each year of service, with a maximum of 45
months’ basic salary. The Company contributes 2% of total salary as a monthly
provision for retirement benefits, which is deposited in a special account in the
name of the Labor Retirement Reserve Supervisory Committee at the Bank of
Taiwan. In addition, the Company estimates the balance of the Labor Retirement
Reserve account at the end of each fiscal year. If the balance is insufficient to
cover the estimated retirement benefits for employees who are expected to retire
in the following year, based on the above calculation, the Company will make up
the difference by the end of March of the following year.

B. The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation $ 54,861 $ 49,674
Fair value of Pan Assets ( 34,689) ( 31,705)
Net Defined Benefit Lability $ 20,172 $ 17,969

C. Changes in Net Defined Benefit Liability:

Present Value of Fair Value of Plan Net Defined Benefit
Defined Benefit Assets Liability
Obligation
2022
Balance as of Jan. 1 $ 49,674 ($ 31,705) $ 17,969
Current Service Cost 271 - 271
Interest Expense (Income) 248 ( 161) 87
50,193 ( 31,866) 18.327

Remeasurement Items:

Plan Asset Return (Excluding - ( 2,493) ( 2,493)
amounts included in interest

income or expense)

Financial Assumption 951 - 951
Change
Experience Adjustment 4.407 - 4.407
5358 ( 2.493) 2,865
Provision for Retirement - ( 1,020) ( 1,020)
Benefit
Payment of Retirement Benefit( 690) 690 -
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Balance as of Dec. 31 $ 54,861 ($ 34,689) _$ 20,172

Present Value of Fair Value of Plan Net Defined Benefit

Defined Benefit Obligation Assets Liability
2021
Balance as of Jan. 1 $ 48,403 $ 30,349) $ 18,054
Current Service Cost 282 - 282
Interest Expense 363 ( 240) 123
(Income)

49,048 ( 30,589) 18,459

Remeasurement Items:
Plan Asset Return - ( 285) ( 285)
(Excluding amounts
included in interest
income or expense)
Financial Assumption 965 - 965
Change
Experience - - -
Adjustment

965 ( 285) 680
Provision for Retirement - ( 1,170) ( 1,170)
Benefit
Payment of Retirement ( 339) 339 -
Benefit
Balance as of Dec. 31 $ 49,674 (3 31,705) $ 17,969

The assets of Company’s defined benefit retirement plan fund are entrusted to
Taiwan Bank to operate according to the investment and utilization plan set for
the fund year, based on the proportion and amount range of commissioned business
items stipulated in Article 6 of the Regulations Governing Receipt and Utilization
of Income and Expenditures of Labor Retirement Funds (depositing in domestic
and foreign financial institutions, investing in domestic and foreign securities
listed on stock exchanges, over-the-counter markets, or privately issued securities,
and investing in securitized commodities of domestic and foreign real estate, etc.).
The related utilization situation is supervised by the Labor Pension Fund
Supervisory Committee. The minimum income distribution for the fund’s operation
and utilization each year shall not be less than the income calculated based on the
two-year fixed deposit interest rate of the local bank. If there is any shortfall, it
shall be supplemented by the National Treasury after approval by the competent
authority. As the Company has no right to participate in the operation and
management of the fund, it is unable to disclose the classification of the plan
assets’ fair value in accordance with paragraph 142 of International Accounting
Standard No. 19. Please refer to the labor retirement fund utilization report for
each year as announced by the government for the fair value of the total assets of
the fund as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.
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E.

Summary of actuarial assumptions for retirement benefits:

2022 2021
Discount Rate 1.25% 0.50%
Future Salary Increase Rate 3.00% 2.00%

The assumptions for future mortality rates for the years 2022 and 2021 are
estimated based on the 2" Life Table for Annuity Insurance of Taiwan Life
Insurance Industry.

The analysis of the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligation
due to changes in the main actuarial assumptions adopted is as follows:

Discount Rate Future Salary Increase Rate
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
0.25% 0.25% 1% 1%
Dec. 31, 2022
Impact on the Present Value of
Defined Benefit Obligations  ($ 936) $ 966 $ 4024 (3 3,610)
Discount Rate Future Salary Increase Rate
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
0.25% 0.25% 1% 1%
Dec. 31, 2021
Impact on the Present Value of
Defined Benefit Obligations  ($ 964) $ 998 $ 4239 (8 3,756)

The sensitivity analysis presented above is based on the assumption that all other
variables remain constant while only one variable changes. In practice, however,
changes in one variable may be interrelated with changes in other variables. The
sensitivity analysis is consistent with the method used to calculate the net
retirement benefit liability in the balance sheet.

The methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis for the
current period are consistent with those used in the previous period.

The Company anticipates making a contribution of NTD 1,020 million to the
retirement plan in 2023.

As of December 31, 2022, the weighted average remaining service period of the
retirement plan is 9.9 years.

Since July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution retirement
plan for its employees who are nationals of Taiwan, in accordance with the Labor
Pension Act. Under this plan, the Company contributes 6% of each employee’s
monthly salary to his/her individual account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
Upon retirement, the employee may choose to receive monthly pension payments
or a lump sum payment, based on the balance in his/her individual account and the
accumulated investment income.

All subsidiaries of the Group in China contribute a certain percentage of the local
employees’ total salaries each month to the pension insurance system in
accordance with the regulations of the government of the People’s Republic of
China. The contribution rates were 14% and 15% for the years 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The retirement benefits of each employee are managed and arranged
by the Chinese government, and the Group has no further obligations beyond the
monthly contributions.

The retirement benefit costs recognized by the Group in accordance with the
above-mentioned retirement benefit plan for the years 2022 and 2021 were
NT$15,045 thousand and NT$16,450 thousand, respectively.
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(17) Share Capital

1

As of December 31, 2022, the authorized capital of the Company was NT$1,838,311
thousand, and the paid-in capital was NT$1,298,970 thousand, with a par value of NT$
10 per share.
The number of outstanding common shares of the Company was adjusted as follows at
the beginning and end of the period:
Unit: Thousand Shares
2022 2021

Beginning Share (Ending Share) 129,897 129,897

(18) Capital Surplus

According to the Company Law, the capital surplus obtained from issuing stocks above
par value and the capital surplus obtained from receiving gifts shall, except for offsetting
losses, be distributed as new shares or cash to shareholders in proportion to their original
shareholding when the Company has no accumulated losses. In addition, according to
relevant regulations of the Securities and Exchange Act, when the above-mentioned
capital surplus is allocated to capital, the total amount shall not exceed 10% of the paid-
in capital each year. If the Company still has insufficient funds to cover the capital
deficiency after using the legal reserve, it may not use the capital surplus to make up
for the shortfall.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Can be used to offset losses, distribute cash, or
allocate to share capital
Treasury Stocks Transaction $ 5,887 $ 5,887

Cannot be used to offset losses, distribute cash, or

allocate to share capital

Recognition of equity component resulting from S

the issuance of convertible corporate bonds 44.848 $ -

(19) Retained Earnings

1.

According to the Company Act, after deducting the losses from previous years, 10% of
the remaining balance of the Company’s after-tax profits must be set aside as a legal
reserve. The rest of the balance, together with the accumulated undistributed profits
from the previous year, shall be considered as distributable profits. The legal reserve
may only be used to offset the Company’s losses or to increase its capital. However,
when increasing the capital, the legal reserve shall not exceed 25% of the paid-in capital,
and only half of the reserve may be used.

If there is a net profit in the annual financial statements of the Company, taxes and other
dues shall be paid in accordance with the law, and 10% of the balance, after offsetting
accumulated losses, shall be appropriated as the legal reserve. However, when the legal
reserve has reached the Company’s paid-in capital, no further appropriation is required.
The remaining balance shall be appropriated or transferred to the special surplus reserve
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. If there is still a balance, it shall be
combined with the accumulated undistributed profits and proposed by the Board of
Directors for approval at the Shareholders’ Meeting for the distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

The distribution of dividends to the shareholders is based on both stock dividends and
cash dividends. For the next year, the cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the
total amount of dividends. The actual distribution ratio is subject to the authorization of
the Board of Directors based on the Company’s financial condition and capital budget.
When distributing profits, this company must first allocate a portion to the special
reserve for undistributed earnings, which is derived from the debit balance in other
equity items as of the year-end balance sheet date in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. Only after this reserve is set up can profits be distributed. If the debit
balance in other equity items is reversed in the future, the amount of the reversal can be
included in the distributable profits.
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Contract
Revenue

Contract
Revenue

4. The dividend distributions for the year 2021 and 2020, which was approved by the
shareholders’ meetings on June 21, 2022, and August 27, 2021, respectively, are as

follows:
2021 2020
o D Do
Legal Reserve $ 14,152 $ 9,868
Cash Dividend 64,948 $ 0.50 51,959 $ 0.40
Total $ 79,100 $ 61,827

5. The dividend distribution proposal for the year 2022, proposed by the Board of Directors
on March 28, 2023, is as follows:

2022
Dividend per
Amount Share (NT$)
Legal Reserve $ 7,514
Cash Dividend 51,959 $ 0.40
Total $ 59,473

Above proposal is still pending approval by the shareholders’ meeting as of March 28,
2023.
6. Please refer to Note 6(25) for information regarding employee compensation and director
and supervisor remuneration.
(20) Operating Revenue
1. Breakdown of customer contract revenue.
The Group’s revenue is derived from the transfer of goods at a certain point in time.

2022

Honmyue Hongyu Zhejiang Nuwa Other Total
Asia Europe America Other Asia America Asia America Asia

$2,230,664 $18,722 $86.,047 $1,739 $567.651 $2,523 $220.,955 $873 $59.846 $3,189.020

2021

Honmyue Hongyu Zhejiang Nuwa Other Total

Asia Europe America Other Asia America Asia America Asia

$2,178,049 $15.,604 $87.806 $2.191 $1,030,856 $116 $133.,796 $1,117 $54.334 $3,503.869

2. Contract Liabilities
The Group recognizes the following contract liabilities related to customer contract

revenue:
Dec. 31, 2022 Dec. 31,2021 Jan. 1, 2021
Contract Liabilities -
Advance from
Customers $ 25,257 $ 39,890 $ 37,602
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3. Beginning contract liabilities and revenue recognized in the current period are as follows:

2022 2021
Beginning Contract Liabilities and Revenue
Recognized this period $ 34,726 $ 35,373
(21) Other Income
2022 2021

Rental Income $ 36,509 $ 14,869
Government Grands Income 2,888 13,949
Dividend Income 855 290
Other Income - Miscellaneous 18,061 8,596

$ 58,313 $ 37,704

1. On February of 2019, Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd. signed a government
subsidy contract with the De’an County of the People’s Republic of China. The subsidy
of NT$25,451 thousand for the infrastructure construction was recognized as deferred
income (recorded as other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities) in three
phases. The income was recognized annually over a land use right of 50 years. As of
December 2021, Deyu has received the first phase of subsidy of NT$10,180 thousand.
As of December 2022, the balances of deferred income and subsidy income were
NT$23,972 thousand and NT$1,383 thousand, respectively.

2. The government grands income for the year 2022 and 2021 were from the Conventional
Industry Technology Development (CITD) and A-Plus Innovation and Development
program subsidized by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.

(22) Other Gains and Losses

2022 2021
Net Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss $ 10,589 $ 3,019
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant, and
equipment 1,586 4,202
Gain on Disposal of Investments 965 1,805
Depreciation Expense on Leased Assets - ( 1,823)
Gain/Loss on Financial Assets at Fair Value
through P/L ( 6,165) 1,889
Other Income - Miscellaneous ( 2.728) ( 2.251)
$ 4,247 $ 6,841
(23) Financial Costs
2022 2021
Interest Expense $ 14,809 $ 14,058
Interest Expense on Bonds Payable 7,320 -
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 57 32
$ 22,186 $ 14,090
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(24) Additional Information about the Nature of Expenses

2022 2021
Employee Benefits Expenses $ 481,807 $ 510,266
Depreciation Expenses for Property, Plant, and
Equipment 107,035 106,019
Depreciation Expenses for Right-of-use Assets 3,619 3,401
Amortization Expenses for Intangible Assets 2,215 2,376
$ 594,676 _§ 622,062
(25) Employee Benefits Expense
2022 2021
Salary expense $ 414,817 $ 441,169
Labor and Health Insurance Expenses 31,033 30,073
Pension Expenses 15,403 16,855
Other Employee Benefits Expenses 20,554 22.169
$ 481,807 $ 510,266

1. According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if the Company generates profits
in any fiscal year, at least 2% of the profits shall be allocated as employee compensation
and distributed as cash or stock dividends by resolution of the Board of Directors, and
the distribution shall include eligible employees of subsidiary companies meeting certain
conditions. In addition, the Company may allocate up to 5% of the profits by resolution
of the Board of Directors as director compensation. However, if the Company has
accumulated losses, the amount necessary to offset the losses shall be reserved in
advance, and employee compensation and director compensation shall be allocated in
accordance with the aforementioned ratio.

2. Current audit committee was established after the election of the Board of Directors in
August 2021, and is without supervisors.

3. The estimated amounts of employee and director/supervisor remuneration for the
Company in 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Employee Remuneration $ 3,349 $ 5,947
Director/Supervisor Remuneration 3.349 5.947
$ 6,698 $ 11,894

The aforementioned amounts are recorded under the salary expense account. Employee
and director/supervisor remuneration for both 2022 and 2021 were estimated at 3% based
on the earnings up to the respective periods, as determined by the Board of Directors.

4. The amounts recognized for employee remuneration and director/supervisor
remuneration in year 2021, as approved by the Board of Directors, were consistent with
the amounts recognized in the financial statements for year 2021.

5. The information related to employee and director/supervisor remuneration approved by
the Board of Directors can be found on the Market Observation Post System.
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(26) Income Tax
Income Tax Expense

1.

2.

A. Co

mponents of income tax expense:

2022 2021
Current Income Tax
Income Tax Expense for the Current  $ 26,212 $ 33,393
Year
Over-provision of Income Tax in
Prior Year ( 2.961) ( 3,242)
23,251 30,151
Deferred Income Tax
Origination and Reversal of
Temporary Differences 846 6,534
Total $ 24,097 $ 36,685
B. Income tax related to other comprehensive income:
2022 2021
Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets
at Fair Value through Other % 5,772) $ 2,174
Comprehensive Income
Foreign Exchange Differences Related to ) 1,528)
Foreign Operations ’
Ren'leas.urements of Defined Benefit ( 573) 137)
Obligations
(3 6,345) $ 509
The Relationship between Income Tax Expense and Accounting Profit.
2022 2021
Income Tax Calculated Based on Statutory $ 21,092 $ 36,165
Tax Rate on Pre-tax Income
Deductible Amounts as Stipulated by Tax 1,001 3,482
Regulation
Exempt Income as Stipulated by Tax ( 2,289) 2,716)
Regulation ’ ’
Unrecognizeq Deferred Tax Assets Due to 6,078 39
Temporary Differences
Unrecognized Deferred Tax Liabilities Due ) 4,048)
to Temporary Differences ’
Realizability Assessment Changes in ( 1,581) 1,845
Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred Tax Assets for Ta?( Loss 2,480 4,890
Carryforwards not Recognized
.. . . ( 2,961) 3,242)
Over-provision of Income Tax in Prior Year
277 270
Other
Total $ 24,097 $ 36,685
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The amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from temporary differences are
as follows:

2022
Recognized
In Other
Recognizedin  Comprehensive
Jan. 1 Profits or Loss Income Dec. 31
Temporary Differences:
-Deferred Tax Assets:
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -
Out of Adjustment $ 3,964 $ 148 $ - $ 4,112
Inventory Write-down 20,129 ( 460) - 19,669
Ren.leas.urement of Defined Benefit 5,708 ) 573 6.281
Obligations
Unrealized Gains or Losses on
Financial Assets at Fair Value through 1,212 - 5,772 6,984
Other Comprehensive Income
Other 6,577 ( 668) - 5.909
Subtotal $ 37,590 6 980) $ 6,345 $ 420955
-Deferred Tax Liabilities
?;c))(vmon for Land Value Increment S 67,569) S ) $ ~ (8 67.569)
Unrealized Gains on Foreign
Currency Translation ( 749) 164 - >83)
Other - ( 30) - ( 30)
Total ($_ 68,318) $ 134 $ - ($ 68,184)
2021
Recognized
Recognized in In Other
Jan. | Profits or Loss Comprehensive Dec. 31
Income
Temporary Differences:
-Deferred Tax Assets:
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -
Out of Adjustment § 454 € >78) $ ) § 3,964
Inventory Write-down 26,784 ( 6,655) - 20,129
Ren}eas'urement of Defined Benefit 5,571 ) 137 5,708
Obligations
Unrealized Gains or Losses on
Financial Assets at Fair Value through 3,386 - ( 2,174) 1,212
Other Comprehensive Income
Other 13,972 ( 7.395) - 6.577
Subtotal $ 54,255 ($  14,628) ($  2,037) $ 37,590
-Deferred Tax Liabilities
?;())(VISIOI’I for Land Value Increment (S 67.569) $ _ $ - ($ 67,569)
Unrealized Exchange Gain on
Investment using Equity Method ( 3,200) 3,200 ) )
Unrealized Gains on Foreign
Currency Translation ( 3,643) 4,894 - 749)
Other ( 1,528) - 1,528 -
Total $  77,940) $ 8,094 $§ 1,528 (§ 68.318)
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4. The unused tax losses and related amounts of unrecognized deferred tax assets of the
Group are as follows:
December 31, 2022

Original  Unutilized Amount of
Compan Year Filing/Approved o ffése " Offset Unrecognized Final
pany Amount = = Deferred Tax Offset Year
E— Amount Amount
Amount
Utex Innovation 2022 Estimated Filing Amount $ 12,402 $ 12,402 $ 12,402 2032
Utex Innovation 2021 Filing Amount 24,451 24,451 24,451 2031
Utex Innovation 2020 Filing Amount 36,581 36,581 36,581 2030
Utex Innovation 2019 Approved Amount 53,240 53,240 53,240 2029
Utex Innovation 2018 Approved Amount 20,311 20,311 20,311 2028
December 31, 2021
.. .- Amount of
Filing/Approved Original Unutilized Unrecognized Final
Company Year Offset Offset S
Amount Deferred Tax Offset Year
B Amount Amount
Amount
Utex Innovation 2021 Estimated Filing Amount $ 24,451 $ 24,451 $ 24,451 2031
Utex Innovation 2020 Filing Amount 36,581 36,581 36,581 2030
Utex Innovation 2019 Approved Amount 53,240 53,240 53,240 2029
Utex Innovation 2018  Approved Amount 20,311 20,311 20,311 2028
Nuwa Enterprise 2019  Approved Amount 875 875 875 2029
Nuwa Enterprise 2018  Approved Amount 7,189 7,189 7,189 2028
Nuwa Enterprise 2017  Approved Amount 3,428 1,107 1,107 2027

5. Unrecognized temporary differences that are not deductible for deferred tax assets:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
$ 174,598 $ 144,210

Deductible temporary differences

6. The annual corporate income tax of the Company and domestic subsidiaries, as
determined by the tax authority, is listed in the following table:

Company Approved Year
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. 2020
Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. 2019
Wenfa Development L.L.C 2020
Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 2021
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(27) Earnings per Share

2022
Weighted Average .
Amount QOutstanding Shares —g—p—Eam“? et
after Tax ; Share (in NT$)
EEE— (in Thousands)
Basic Earnings per Share
Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company for the Period S 71429 129.897 5 0.60
Diluted Earnings per Share
Net Income Attflbutable to Shareholders of the $ 77429 129.897
Parent Company’s Common Stock
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares:
Employee Compensation - 453
Convertible Bonds 5.856 19,608

Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company for the Period, Adjusted for the Effect of § 83285 149,958 $ 0.56
Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares

2021
Weighted Average .
Amount Outstanding Shares Ea_rmgm
after Tax ; Share (in NT$)
_— (in Thousands)
Basic Earnings per Share
Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company for the Period $ 143963 129,897 $ 1.11
Diluted Earnings per Share
Net Income Att{lbutable to Shareholders of the $ 143,963 129.897
Parent Company’s Common Stock
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares:
Employee Compensation - 453
Net Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company for the Period, Adjusted for the Effect of $ 143,963 $ 130,350 $ 1.10

Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares

In calculating diluted earnings per share, it is assumed that the employee compensation
is fully distributed in the form of stock options. When such potential common shares
have a dilutive effect, they are included in the weighted average number of shares
outstanding.
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(28) Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Partial cash payment for investing activities:

2022 2021

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment $ 155,535 $ 355,753
Add: Beginning Balance of Payable for Construction

and Equipment 12,383 3,298
Less: Ending Balance of Payable for Construction and

Equipment ( 12,722)  ( 12,383)
Less: Beginning Balance of Advances to Construction

Contractors ( 10,340) ( 6,581)
Add: Ending Balance of Advances to Construction

Contractors 11437 10,340
Cash Paid during the Period $ 156,293 $ 350,427

(Intentionally left blank)
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(29) Changes in Liabilities from Financing Activities

Long-term
Borrowings Deposit Total Liabilities
Short-term Short-term Lease Bonds (including those Received Dividends from Financing
Borrowings Notes Payable Liabilities Payable due within one year) for Guarantee Payable Activities
Jan. 1, 2022 $ 491,879 $ 159,722  $ 4,835 $ - 3 638,023 $ 3,384 $ - $ 1,297,893
Changes in Cash Flows
from Financing ( 259,483) ( 160,000) ( 2,113) 321,827 ( 117,000) 12,786  ( 64,948) ( 268,931)
Activities
Effect of Exchange
Rate Changes 5,965 - - - - - - 5,965
Other Non-cash Changes - 278 3,785 ( 34,258) - - 64,948 34,753
Dec. 31, 2022 $ 238,361 _$ - _$ 6,557 _$ 287,569 _$ 521,023 $ 16,170 $ - $ 1,069,680
Long-term
Borrowings Deposit Total Liabilities
Short-term Short-term Lease Bonds (including those Received Dividends from Financing
Borrowings Notes Payable  Liabilities Payable due within one year) for Guarantee  Payable Activities
Jan. 1, 2021 $ 562230 $ 179,882  §$ 4,733  §$ -3 384,564 $ 3,131 § - 3 1,134,540
Changes in Cash Flows
from Financing ( 86,300) ( 20,000) ( 1,881) - 253,459 253 ( 51,959) 93,572
Activities
Effect of Exchange
Rate Changes 15,949 . . . ) . . 15,949
Other Non-cash Changes - ( 160) 2,033 - - - 51,959 53.832
Dec. 31, 2021 $ 491,879 _$ 159,722 _§$ 4885 _§$ - _$ 638,023 $ 3384 _§ - _$ 1,297,893
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7. Related Party Transactions
(1) Name and Relationship of Related Parties

Name of Related Parties
Yeh, Ming-Zhou
Yeh, Jun-Lin

Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., Ltd (Zhejiang Yaoliang)
He Guan Textile Co., Ltd.

Yunite Textile International Co., Ltd.

Cyun Yu International Co., Ltd.

Zhen Hong Investment Co., Ltd.

Yeh-Meng Metal Ind. Co., Ltd.

Li Cheng Venture Capital Co., Ltd.

(2) Significant Transactions with Related Parties

1. Operating Revenue

Sales of Goods
Zhejiang Yaoliang
Other Related Parties
Total

Relationship with the Group

Key management personnel of the Group
Other related parties of the Group
Affiliated companies of the Group
Other related parties of the Group
Other related parties of the Group
Other related parties of the Group
Other related parties of the Group
Other related parties of the Group
Other related parties of the Group

2022 2021
93,140 $ 239,042
15.696 12,922
108,836 $ 251,964

The aforementioned sales transactions are priced in accordance with our general pricing
policies and are subject to a 90-day credit term for collection. It should be noted that
our collection period for general customers ranges from 30 to 120 days.

2. Purchase

2022 2021
Purchase of Goods
Other Related Parties $ 8,044 $ 18,633
Labor (Processing Fees)
Other Related Parties - 225
Total $ 8,044 $ 18,858

The aforementioned purchase transactions are conducted under the same conditions as
those with general suppliers, with payment terms of 30 to 60 days after the end of the
month. The payment period for our general suppliers ranges from 30 to 120 days.

3. Rental Income (listed under other income)

2022

Lessee Rented Property
Zhejiang Yaoliang  Property, Plant and Equipment _$

Collection Method
21,018 Based on actual circumstance

Rental Income
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On March 10, 2022, the Group rented out land, buildings, machinery and equipment,
transportation equipment, office equipment, and other equipment to related parties for a
period of 3 years. The rental price was determined by referencing the rental prices of
adjacent areas at the time of the rental and the rented area. As per the agreement between
both parties, the lessee was required to maintain a minimum amount of CNY 2 million
(approximately NT$9,017 thousand) in a designated bank account. On September 26,
2022, in order to comply with local government policies regarding the closure and
elimination of industrial capacity in the printing and dyeing industry, the Group signed
an agreement with the related party to terminate the lease agreement earlier, on December
31, 2022.
4. Accounts Receivable from Related Parties

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
A. Accounts Receivable and Noted Receivable
Zhejiang Yaoliang $ 40,580 $ 121,098
Other Related Parties 397 3,162
$ 40,977 $ 124,260

Accounts receivable and notes receivable mainly arise from sales transactions. The aging
and amount of overdue accounts are as follows:

Overdue Aging December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Zhejiang Yaoliang 30 to 120 days $ 30,237 $ 5,246
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
B. Other Receivable
Zhejiang Yaoliang $ 12,074 $ -

The other receivables represent the expenses paid on behalf of Zhejiang Yaoliang,
including electricity and natural gas fees.
5. Accounts Payable to Related Parties

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Notes Payable
Other Related Parties $ 22 $ 3,144
Accounts Payable
Other Related Parties $ 372 $ 163
(3) Key Management Compensation
2022 2021
Short-term Employee Benefits $ 27,626 $ 25,265
Post-Employment Benefits 714 589
Total $ 28.340 $ 25,854
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1. Short-term employee benefits comprise salaries, paid annual leave, and the Company’s
portion of labor and health insurance premiums for employees in service.
2. Post-employment benefits comprise to retirement benefits expenses borne by the

Company.

Pledged Assets

The details of assets pledged by the Company as collateral are as follows:

December 31,2021  Purpose of Collateral

Long-term/short-term

$ 324,388 .
borrowings
180,878 Long-term/short-t.erm
borrowings
48,812 Accepted bill payable

Natural gas and steam

16,391 used for production and
operation

Product Warranty

Book Value
Assets December 31, 2022
Real Estate, Plant and Equipment
Land $ 324,388
Building and Constructions 170,590
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost - Current -
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost - Non- 11.600
current ’
Deposit for guarantee 2987
(Presented under Other Non-current Assets) :
$ 508,865

Guarantees
$ 570,469

9. Material Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contractual Commitments

(1) Contingencies:
There are no such contingencies.
(2) Commitments:

1. Capital expenditures that have been contracted but not yet incurred.

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Property, Plant, and Equipment $ 76,506 $ 136,106
Intangible Assets 14,286 24,762
Total $ 90,792 $ 160,868

In September 2022, Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. signed an agreement with Jiaxing
Xiuzhou Photovoltaic Town Development and Construction Co., Ltd., commissioned by
the People’s Government of Jiaxing City, to stop and eliminate the capacity of its
printing and dyeing business. The Group is required to cease production of dyeing and
finishing capacity and clear the dyeing and finishing equipment by December 31, 2022
and June 30, 2023, respectively. The related equipment, relocation expenses, and
compensation for suspended operations and losses in the amount of NT$65,816 thousand
will be paid in three installments. In addition, the contract includes an early incentive
clause to encourage corporate cooperation. As of December 31, 2022, the Group has
received the first installment of compensation of NT$19,745 thousand and an advance
signing bonus of NT$5,625 thousand, therefore recognized a deferred income (recorded
as other current liabilities) of NT$25,370 thousand.
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10. Significant Disaster Loss

No significant disaster loss.

11. Significant Subsequent Events

No significant subsequent events.

12. Other
(1)

(2)

Capital Management

The capital management objective of the Group is to ensure the continued operation of the
Group, maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce funding costs, and provide returns to
shareholders. To maintain the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt. The Group uses the debt-
to-asset ratio to monitor its capital, which is calculated by dividing the total amount of debt
by the total amount of assets.

During the year 2022, the Group continued to pursue the same strategy as in year 2021,
focusing on reducing the debt-to-asset ratio to a reasonable level of risk. As of December
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Group’s debt-to-asset ratios were as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Total Liabilities $ 1,745,706 $ 2,174,912
Total Assets $ 3,882,578 $ 4,262,799
Debt-to-asset Ratio 45% 51%
Financial Instrument
1. Types of Financial Instruments
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Francal At mandacrly measned s B o s b
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Investment in designated equity instruments 59,718 88,133
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Cash and Cash Equivalents 630,487 604,986
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 11,600 69,971
Notes Receivable (Including Related Parties) 76,381 195,811
Accounts Receivable (Including Related Parties) 425,564 591,761
Other Receivables 34,084 32,000
Deposits Paid as Collateral 14,443 18,663
$ 1,261,404 $ 1,614,829
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Short-term Borrowings $ 238,361 $ 491,879
Notes Payable - Short-term - 159,722

Notes Payable — Trade

(Including Related Parties) 122,160 235,646
Accounts Payables

(Including Related Parties) 143,740 220,125

Other Payables 208,318 224,966

Bonds Payable 287,569 -

Long-term Borrowings ‘ 521,023 638,023
(due within one year or operating cycle)

Deposits Received 16,170 3.384

$ 1,537,341 $ 1,973,745

Lease Liabilities $ 6.557 $ 4885

(due within one year or one operating cycle)

2. Risk Management Policy
A. The daily operations of the Group are subject to various financial risks, including
market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk), credit risk,
and liquidity risk.
B. The management of financial risks is carried out by the Company’s finance
department in accordance with the policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The finance department closely collaborates with the various business units and
the Office of the Chairman to identify, assess and mitigate financial risks. The
execution of financial risk management is carried out in accordance with the
Company’s internal management rules and internal control systems. The process
and results of its execution shall comply with legal regulations.
The Board of Directors of the Group oversees the adherence to the financial risk
policies and procedures by the management, and reviews the adequacy of the
framework for managing the relevant financial risks. The internal audit personnel
assist the Board of Directors in its supervisory role by conducting regular and ad
hoc reviews, and reporting the results to the Board.
3. Nature and Extent of Significant Financial Risks
A. Market Risk

Currency Risk

a.

The Group operates globally and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from transactions in functional currencies different from that of
the Company and its subsidiaries, mainly the US dollar and Chinese Renminbi.
The related foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognized assets and liabilities.

The management of the Group has established policies governing the
management of the foreign exchange risk with respect to its functional
currencies. Each company within the Group is required to manage its overall
foreign exchange risk through the Group’s finance department. The
measurement of foreign exchange risk is based on the expected transactions
of highly probable outflows in US dollars and Chinese Renminbi.
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c. The Group’s operations involve several non-functional currencies (the
functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries are New Taiwan
Dollar, Renminbi and US Dollar), and are therefore subject to the impact of
exchange rate fluctuations. The significant foreign currency assets and
liabilities that are affected by exchange rate fluctuations are as follows:
December 31, 2022
Foreign Impact on
(Foreign Currency: Currency Book Value Impact on Other
Functional Currency) Amount Exchange (TWD in Fluctuation Profitand Comprehensive
(thousands) Rate thousand) = Range Loss Income
Financial Assets
Monetary items
USD:TWD $ 7,350 30.71 $225,723 1% $2,257 $ -
RMB:TWD 52,321 4.41 230,947 1% 2,309 -
Financial Liabilities
Monetary items
USD:RMB (Note) $ 1,000 6.9574 § 30,703 1% $ 307 $ -
December 31, 2021
. Foreign Impact on
;i(:(iliirrllzgucr;errrlgzéy) Currency Book Va.1u6 . Impact on Other .
Amount Exchange (TWDin Fluctuation Profit and Comprehensive
(thousands) Rate thousand) Range Loss Income
Financial Assets
Monetary items
USD:TWD $4,741 27.68  $131,232 1% § 1,312 $ -
RMB:TWD 84,527 4.34 367,077 1% 3,671 -
Financial Liabilities
Monetary items
USD:RMB (Note) $ 9,000 6.37  $245,960 1% $ 2,460 $ -

Note: As some of the functional currencies of the entities included in the consolidation
are not New Taiwan Dollar, this has also been taken into consideration in the
disclosure.

The overall exchange gain/loss (realized and unrealized) recognized in the year
2022 and 2021 related to the significant impact of exchange rate fluctuations on
the monetary items of the Group amounted to a net gain of NT$10,589 thousand
and a net gain of NT$3,019 thousand, respectively.

Price Risk

a.

The equity instruments exposed to price risk are the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income. In order to manage the price risk of equity instrument
investments, the Group diversifies its investment portfolio in accordance with
the limits set by the Group.

The Group mainly invests in equity instruments issued by domestic companies,
the prices of which are affected by the uncertainty of the future value of the
investment target. If the prices of these equity instruments rise or fall by 1%
while all other factors remain unchanged, the post-tax net profit for the years
2022 and 2021 will increase or decrease by NT$73 thousand and NT$108
thousand, respectively, due to the gains or losses from equity instruments
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measured at fair value through profit or loss. The gains or losses from equity
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income will
increase or decrease by NT$478 thousand and NT$705 thousand, respectively.

Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

a.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from short-term borrowings,
short-term notes payable, and long-term borrowings issued at floating rates,
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. In 2022 and 2021, the
Group’s borrowings issued at floating rates were primarily denominated in
New Taiwan Dollars and US Dollars.

If the borrowing interest rate increases or decreases by 0.1%, while all other
factors remain constant, the after-tax net profit for the years 2022 and 2021
will increase or decrease by NT$608 thousand and NT$1,032 thousand,
respectively. This is mainly due to the variability of interest expense resulting
from the floating-rate borrowings.

B. Credit Risk

a.

The credit risk of the Group arises from the risk of financial loss due to
counterparties’ failure to fulfill their contractual obligations in transactions
with customers or financial instruments. This risk mainly comes from counter
parties’ inability to settle receivables according to the payment terms.

The Group examines the creditworthiness of banks and financial institutions
with which it deals and accepts them as counterparties only after assessing
their credit quality to be satisfactory. In accordance with the internally
established credit policy, each operating entity within the Group and each
new customer must undergo management and credit risk analysis before the
terms and conditions of payment and delivery are established. Internal risk
management is achieved by evaluating the credit quality of customers through
consideration of their financial condition, past experience, and other factors.
Individual risk limits are established by the Board of Directors based on
internal or external ratings, and the use of credit limits is monitored regularly.
The Group adopts a credit risk management procedure to assess whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial instruments since
their initial recognition. When contractually due payments are past due for
more than 90 days, it is considered that the credit risk of the financial asset
has significantly increased since its initial recognition, and individual
assessment is applied.

The Group classifies its trade receivables and contract assets by customer
credit ratings, and uses a simplified approach based on the loss rate method
to estimate expected credit losses.

The Group first evaluates and recognizes impairment losses for individual
receivables for which objective evidence indicates that they cannot be
collected. For other receivables, the Group estimates expected credit losses
using a simplified approach based on the loss rate method, which is
established based on historical and current information over a specific period
and with future forward-looking considerations. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, the accumulated impairment loss amount for individually assessed
receivables was NT$7,464 thousand and NT$8,465 thousand, respectively.
The Group estimates the impairment loss for other receivables by adjusting
the loss rate established based on historical and current information over a
specific period with future forward-looking considerations, and the
accumulated impairment loss amount was NT$2,928 thousand and NT$4,058
thousand for 2021 and 2022, respectively. The provision matrix is presented
as follows:

Not Overdue 1t090 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total

Dec. 31,2022

Expected Loss Rate 0%-1% 1%-10% 20%-40% 60%-100%
Total Book Value $ 398,014 8§ 6,434 $ 897 $ 2,272 $ 407,617
Loss Allowance ( 1,038) ( 223) ( 259) ( 1,408) ( 2,928)
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Not Overdue 1t090 days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total

Dec. 31,2021
Expected Loss Rate 0%-1% 1%-15% 19%-42% 71%-100%
Total Book Value $ 565,317 $ 10,582 $ 470 $ 3,042 $ 579,411
Loss Allowance ( 1,321) ( 395) ( 95) ( 2,247)  ( 4,058)

f. The table below shows the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts

using the simplified approach for the Group:
2022 2021
Receivable Receivable

Jan. 1 $ 12,523 $ 17,025
Reversal of Impairment Losses ( 2,017) ( 4,442)
Exchange Rate Impact ( 114) ( 60)
Dec. 31 $ 10,392 $ 12,523

C. Liquidity risk

a. The finance department of the Group monitors the forecast of the Group's
liquidity needs to ensure that it has sufficient funds to support its operations
and maintains adequate unused borrowing commitments at all times to avoid

violating relevant borrowing limits or terms.

b. The following table shows the non-derivative financial liabilities of the
Group grouped by the relevant maturity date, and the contractual cash flow
amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted, analyzed based on the
remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contract maturity date.

c. Details of the unused loan facilities of the Group are as follows:

December 31, 2022

Floating Rate

December 31, 2021

Due within One Year $ 1,808,957 $ 1,353,622
Due after One Year - -
Fixed Interest Rate
Due within One Year - 50,000
Due after One Year - -
$ 1,808,957 $ 1,403,622

(Intentionally left blank)
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(3)

d. The table below provides a breakdown of the Group's financial liabilities,
both derivative and non-derivative, that are settled either on a net or gross
basis, categorized according to their respective maturity periods. Non-
derivative financial liabilities are analyzed based on the remaining time from
the balance sheet date to their contractual maturity date, while derivative
financial liabilities are analyzed based on their remaining time from the
balance sheet date to their expected maturity date. Please note that the cash
flow amounts disclosed in the table are not discounted.

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Lessthan 3 Months to 1to2 2t05 Over
Dec. 31, 2022 3 Months 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Short-term Borrowing $100,228 $ 139,349 $ - $ - 3 - $ 239,577
Notes Payable
(Including Related Parties) 122,160 ) ) ) ) 122,160
Accounts Payable
(Including Related Parties) 143,740 ) ) i ) 143,740
Other Payables 208,318 - - - - 208,318
Lease Liabilities 523 1,542 1,997 2,639 - 6,701
Bond Payable - - - 304,523 - 304,523
Long-term Borrowing
(Including those due within 43,510 134,119 158,345 188,406 11,940 536,320
one year)
Deposits Received for Guarantee - - - - 16,170 16,170
Non-derivative Financial Liabilities
Less than 3 Months to 1to2 2to5 Over
Dec. 31, 2021 3 Months 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Short-term Borrowing $ 220,311 $ 273,531 $ - $ - 3 - $ 493,842
Short-term Notes Payable 160,000 - - - - 160,000
Notes Payable
(Including Related Parties) 235,646 ) ) ) ) 235,646
Accounts Payable
(Including Related Parties) 220,125 ) ) ) ) 220,125
Other Payables 224,966 - - - - 224,966
Lease Liabilities 393 1,180 1,469 1,934 - 4,976
Long-term Borrowing
(Including those due within 30,283 91,421 177,126 315,481 40,810 655,121
one year)
Deposits Received for Guarantee - - - - 3,384 3,384

Fair Value Information
1. The definitions of each level of valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments are as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of assets or liabilities measured on the reporting date is based
on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in an active
market. An active market is a market in which transactions for the assets or
liabilities occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. The fair value of the listed equity investments
held by the Group belongs to this level.
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Level 2: The fair value of assets or liabilities is determined using directly or indirectly

observable inputs, but not including quoted prices included in Level 1. Non-
listed equity investments held by the Group belong to this level.

Level 3: The fair value of assets or liabilities is determined using unobservable inputs.

The redemption feature of convertible bonds issued by the Group and equity
instruments without an active market held by the Group belong to this level.

2. Financial Instruments not Measured at Fair Value

A.

The financial instruments of this Group that are not measured at fair value
(including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets measured at amortized cost,
notes receivable (including related parties), accounts receivable (including related
parties), other receivables, deposits received, short-term borrowings, short-term
notes payables, commercial papers payable (including related parties), accounts
payable (including related parties), other payables, long-term borrowings
(including those due within one year or one operating cycle), deposits received
from customers, and lease liabilities (including those due within one year or one
operating cycle)) are reasonably approximated at fair value by their carrying
amounts , except for those listed in the following table:

December 31, 2022

Fair Value
Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities:
Bonds Payable _$ 287,569 $ - $ 287,580 $ -

As of December 31, 2021, the Company did not hold such financial instrument.
The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are as follows:

The bonds payable are measured at the present value of expected future cash flows
using market interest rates as of the balance sheet date.

3. The financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by the Group are
classified based on the nature, characteristics, risk, and fair value hierarchy of the assets
and liabilities. The relevant information is as follows:

A.

December 31, 2022

The instruments are classified by the Group based on the nature of the assets and
liabilities, and the information is presented below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets

Total

Recurring Fair Value

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

-Stocks $

-Convertible Bonds Redemption
Rights

8,947 $ - $ - § 8,947

180 180

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive
Income:

-Unlisted Company Stocks -

December 31, 2021

4,575
4,575

55.143
§ 55323

59,718
§ 68,845

§ 8947 $

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Recurring Fair Value

Financial Assets at Fair Value

through Profit or Loss: Stocks $

13,504 $ - $ - § 13,504

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive

Income: -

4,300 83.833 88,133
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Unlisted Company Stocks

B.

§ 13,504 $ 4300 § 83,833 $ 101,637

The methods and assumptions used by the Group to measure fair value are
described as follows:

a.

b.

The Group uses market quotes as fair value input for Level 1 instruments,
classified by instrument type as follows:

Listed Equity Securities

Market Quotes Closing Price

The investment in Changhua Golf Club Co., Ltd. by the Group is valued using
publicly quoted member certificate prices as the input for fair value
measurement (Level 2).

The output of the valuation models is an estimated fair value, which may not
reflect all relevant factors of the financial and non-financial instruments held
by the Group. Therefore, the estimated fair value is appropriately adjusted
based on additional parameters, such as model risk or liquidity risk.
According to the Group's fair value measurement policies and related control
procedures, the management believes that such adjustments are necessary and
appropriate to reasonably represent the fair values of the financial and non-
financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet. The pricing
information and parameters used in the valuation process are prudently
evaluated and appropriately adjusted based on current market conditions, in
accordance with the Group's fair value measurement policies.

The Group incorporates credit risk adjustments into the fair value
measurement of financial and non-financial instruments to reflect both
counterparty credit risk and the Company’s own credit quality.

4. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during years 2022 and 2021.
The following table shows the changes in Level 3 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

5.

2022 2021
Beginning Balance $ 83,833 75,500
Additions during the Period 3,270 -
Gain or Loss Recognized in P/L
Recognized as Non-operating Income or Expense ( 3,090) -
Slaci;lm;)r Loss recognized in other comprehensive ( 28.690) 8333
Ending Balance $ 55,323 83,833

The Group’s valuation process for Level 3 investments of illiquid equity instruments
involves independent fair value verification by the Group's finance department, using
independent sources of data to ensure that the valuation results are consistent with

market conditions and represent executable prices. The process

includes regular

calibration of valuation models, back-testing, updating of model inputs and data, and
any other necessary fair value adjustments to ensure that the valuation results are
reasonable. The fair value of the bonds payable and convertible bonds redemption rights

is valued by external valuers.
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7. The quantitative information of significant unobservable input used in the valuation
model for Level 3 fair value measurement items and sensitivity analysis of significant

unobservable input changes are described as follows: -

Fair Value at Valuation
Dec. 31,2022 Technique
Non-derivative Equity Instruments
Equity Instruments of Non-listed 5 7 Comparable Company
Companies Analysis
Equity Instruments of Non-listed 54,671 Net Asset Value Method
Companies
Redemption Rights of Convertible 180 Binomial Tree Pricing
Bonds Model
Fair Value at Valuation
Dec. 31,2021 Technique
Non-derivative Equity Instruments
Equity Instruments of Non-listed Comparable Company
. $ 298 .
Companies Analysis
Equity Instruments of Non-listed 83.535 Net Asset Value
Companies ’ Method

Significant Range Relationship

Unobservable  (Weighted between Inputs
Inputs Average) and Fair Value
Higher multiplier
Price-to-Book premiums lead to
Ratio 0.11-0.45 higher fair
values.
Not Applicable - Not Applicable
Higher stock
Stock Price o, price volatility
Volatility 20.6% leads to higher
fair values.
Significant Range Relationship

Unobservable  (Weighted between Inputs
Inputs Average) and Fair Value
Higher multiplier
Price-to-Book premiums lead to
Ratio 0-13~0.57 | ioher fair
values.
Not Applicable - Not Applicable

8. The Group has carefully assessed the selection of valuation models and parameters.
However, the use of different valuation models or parameters may result in different
valuation results. For financial assets and liabilities classified as Level 3, changes in

valuation parameters would
comprehensive income as follows:

December 31, 2022

Recognized in Profit or Loss

impact the current period's profit or

loss or other

Recognized in other

Comprehensive Income

Favorable = Unfavorable  Favorable @ Unfavorable
Input Value Change Impact Impact Impact Impact
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments Price-to-Book +5% $ - -3 24 (§ 24)
Ratio
Convertible Bonds .
. . +59 - - -
Redemption Option Volatility 3% 360
$ 360 - $ 24 (3 24)
December 31, 2021
. . Recognized in other
Recognized in Profit or Loss .
Comprehensive Income
Favorable = Unfavorable Favorable Unfavorable
Input Value Change Impact Impact Impact Impact
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments  Price-to-Book Ratio  +5% $ - $ - $ 15 ($ 15)
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(4)

13. Disclosures

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

Other Matters

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19, the government has implemented various
measures to prevent the spread of the virus. The operations of the Group have not been
materially affected by the pandemic and related measures. In addition, measures have
been taken to prevent the spread of the virus and to manage related matters.

Significant transaction-related information:

1.
2.
3.

Loans to others: Please refer to Table 1 for details.

Endorsement or guarantees for others: There is no such item.

Holdings of securities at the end of the period (excluding investments in subsidiaries,
affiliated enterprises, and joint control): Please refer to Table 2 for details.

Cumulative purchase or sale of the same securities reaches NT$300 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital: There is no such item.

Acquisition of real estate reaches NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: There
is no such item.

Disposal of real estate reaches NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: There is
no such item.

Sales or purchases of goods or services to related parties reach NT$100 million or 20%
of the paid-in capital: There is no such item.

Receivables from related parties reach NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:
Please refer to Table 1 for details.

Derivative transactions: There is no such item.

. Business relationships and significant transactions between the parent company and its

subsidiaries and between the subsidiaries, and the amounts involved: Please refer to
Table 3 for details.

Information on Investment in Subsidiary/Affiliate Companies

Name and location of the invested companies (excluding companies invested in Mainland
China): Please refer to Table 4 for details.

Mainland China Investment Information

1.
2.

Basic information: please refer to Table 5 for details.

Significant transactions occurred between the invested companies in Mainland China and
the Company through a third-party entity or a direct/indirect investment: please refer to
Note 13(1) for details on significant transaction information.

Information on Major Shareholders

Information on major shareholders: please refer to Table 6 in the attached notes.
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14. Segment Information

(1)

(2)

(3)

General Information

The management of the Group has identified reportable
information used by the chief operating decision maker in making decisions and has
organized its business units into subsidiaries, including Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.,
Hongyu Textile (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd., Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd., and other segments. The
reportable segments of the Group are classified based on the operating companies.

Measurement of Segment Information

segments based on the

The Group evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on adjusted pre-tax
income, which excludes the impact of non-recurring expenses within the operating

segments.

Information on the Profit or Loss, Assets, and Liabilities of Operating Segments

1. The segment information provided to the primary operating decision-maker regarding
the reportable segments for year 2022 is as follows:

2022
Honmyue gl%iga};—u Nuwa Total
Revenue
From External Customers $ 2,337,172 $ 570,174 $ 221,828 $ 3,129,174
From Internal Customers 147,640 - 8.949 156,589
Total Revenue $ 2,484,812 $ 570,174 _$ 230,777 § 3,285,763
Segment P/L $ 134,435 (§ 23.245) $ 18,106 $ 129,296
Segment P/L includes
Interest Income $ 3,603 _$ 463 _$ 54 _$ 4,120
Interest Expense $ 18,417 $ 3413 _§ - _$ 21,830
Depreciation and Amortization _$ 48,715 $ 51913 _§ - _$ 100,628
Income Tax Expense $ 27,504 ($ 5376) _$ 2,126 _$ 24,254

(Intentionally left blank)
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2. The segment information provided to the primary operating decision-maker regarding
the reportable segments for year 2021 is as follows:

2021
Honmyue Jonew Nuwa Total
Revenue
From External Customers $ 2283650 $ 1,030,972 $ 134,913 $ 3,449,535
From Internal Customers 332,908 - 3,132 336,040
Total Revenue $§ 2616558 _§ 1,030,972 _§ 138.045 $ 3785575
Segment P/L $ 154,599 _$ 30,889 _$ 1,908 $ 187,396
Segment P/L includes
Interest Income $ 4481 _$ 261_9 3 $ 4,745
Interest Expense $ 10,264 _$ 3,622 $ - $ 13,886
Depreciation and Amortization $ 43,516 _$ 57,645_9% 7 $ 101,168
Income Tax Expense $ 32,698 _$ 3,646 _$ - $ 36,344

3. The main source of revenue for the Group is the manufacturing, subcontracting, trading,
printing, dyeing, finishing, and processing of various cotton, wool, silk, and synthetic
fiber fabrics for domestic and international sales.

4. The Group has not allocated the income tax expense to the reporting segments. The
amount reported is consistent with the information used by the operating decision-

makers.

Adjustment Information for Segment Income Statement:

1. Adjustments to continuing operating segment revenues for the current period are as

follows:

Reportable Segment Revenue

Other Segment Revenue

Total Operating Segment Revenue
Elimination of Intersegment Revenue
Consolidated Revenue

2022 2021
$ 3,285,763 $ 3,785,575
121,212 103,709
$ 3,406,975 $ 3,889,284
( 217.955) ( 385.415)
$ 3,189,020 $ 3,503,869

2. Adjustments to the current period's operating segment profit/loss that should be reported

are as follows:

Reportable Segment Pre-tax Income

Other Segment Pre-tax Income

Total Reportable Segments Pre-tax Income
Elimination of Intersegment Income

Consolidated Pre-tax Income of Operating Segments
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2022 2021
$ 129,296 $ 187,396
( 24,630) ( 9.672)
$ 104,666 $ 177,724
$ 104,666 $ 177,724




(5) Information on Product and Service Segment
External customer revenue is mainly derived from the manufacturing and sales of cotton,
wool, silk, and synthetic fiber textiles for domestic and international markets. The
detailed composition of the revenue balance is as follows:

2022 2021

Product Sales Revenue $ 3,189,020 $ 3,503,869

(6) Information on Geographic Segment
Geographic information for the years 2022 and 2021 by location of customers for revenue
and by location of assets for non-current assets are presented as follows for the Group:

2022 2021

Revenue Non-current Assets Revenue Non-current Assets
Taiwan $ 1,819,464 $ 938,136 $ 1,626,072 $ 902,994
China (Including H.K.) 796,738 672,055 1,439,183 637,488
Other 572,818 - 438,614 -
Total $ 3,189,020 $§ 1,610,191 $ 3,503,869 $ 1,540,482

Non-current assets refer to property, plant and equipment, lease assets, intangible assets,
and other non-current assets, but exclude financial instruments, deposits paid and
deferred tax assets.
(7) Information on Major Customers
The Group does not have any single customer whose sales revenue accounts for more
than 10% of the total operating revenue in the consolidated income statement.
(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Loan to Others
January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 1
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Nature of
Current Actual Fund Business Allowance Limit on funds loaned Total credit limit
No. TrancsactionRelated Maximum Ending  Disbursement Interest Rate Lending Transaction Reason for Short-term for Doubtful Collateral to individual parties  for funds lent
Note 1 Lender Borrower Item Parties Amount Balance Amount Range (Note 2)  Amount Financing Amount Value (Note 3) (Note 3) Note
0 Other .
Hongyu Zhejiang  Receivable - Operating Turnover and
The Company > Yes $ 158,750 $ 53,550 $ 67,750 1.8%-2.5% 2 $ Repayment of External $ $- $ 211,523 $ 846,093 Note 4
Textile Co., Ltd. Related
. Debt
Parties
0 . Other
Jigjiang Deyu Receivable -
The Company TextileTechnology Related Yes 158,750 53,550 - 1.8%-2.5% 2 - Operating Turnover - - - 211,523 846,093 Note 4
Co., Ltd .
Parties
0 Other
The Company 1 'e* Innovation Co., Recelvable -y, 30,000 0,000 - 120% 2 - Operating Turnover - - - 211,523 846,093 Note 4
Ltd. Related
Parties
Note 1: Numbering sequence are as follows:
(1) The Company is shown as ‘0.
(2) The Subsidiaries are numbered in numerical order starting from “1°.
Note 2: The instructions for filling in the nature of the funds loaned are as follows:
(1) For those with business dealings, please refer to 1.
(2) For those with a necessary need for short-term working capital, please refer to 2.
Note 3:
(1) The total amount of funds lent by the Company shall not exceed 40% of the Company's net worth, except for short-term funding necessary between companies or banks, which shall not exceed 10% of the Company's net
worth.

(2) The total amount of funds lent to individual entities shall not exceed 10% of the Company's net worth.
(3) For foreign companies where the Company holds 100% of the voting rights directly or indirectly, the amount of funds lent shall not exceed 40% of the Company's net worth.

(4) For companies or banks with business transactions with the Company, the individual lending amount shall not exceed the amount of business transactions between the two parties, whichever is higher. The amount of business
transactions refers to the higher amount of purchases or sales between the two parties.
Note 4:

On March 22, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the funding loans to Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd., Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd., and Utex Innovation Co., Ltd., in the amounts of USD 5,000 thousand,
USD 5,000 thousand, and TWD 30,000 thousand, respectively. (Calculated based on the spot buying and selling exchange rate of USD to TWD on December 31, 2022, which was 30.71).
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
End-of-Period Holdings of Marketable Securities
(Excluding Investments in Subsidiaries, Associated Companies, and Joint Ventures)

December 31, 2022

Table 2
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Relationship )
with the End-of-Period
Investee Company Type and Name of Securities Held Issuer of the Accounting Category Number of Sh Note
Securities umber of Shares . . . .
held Thousands Carrying Amount  Equity Ownership Fair Value
. . Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value through
Wenfa Development L.L.C. Stock/China Petrochemical Development Corp. No 421 $ 5,700 - $ 4,160
profit or loss - current
Wenfa Development L.L.C. Stock/K Laser Technology Inc. No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value through 180 3,872 - 3,321
profit or loss - current
Wenfa Development L.L.C. Stock/Mobiletron Electronics Co., Ltd. No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value through 30 1,979 - 1,466
profit or loss - current
Valuation Adjustment ( 2,604)
$ 8,947
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.  Stock/Grand and Great Corporation Limited No Fair value adjustr}‘lenF s for financial assets at fair value through 3,000 $ 91,603 9.52 $ 54,671
other comprehensive income - non-current
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.  Stock/Changhua Golf Club Co., Ltd. No  Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value through 60 3,820 0.16 4,575

other comprehensive income - non-current
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.  Stock/Yuan Ta Fiber Co., Ltd. No Fair value adjustr.nen.t s for financial assets at fair value through - 1,000 10.00 472
other comprehensive income - non-current

Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value through

Hongyu Holdings L.L.C. AKKO Global Stock Ledger No L - - - -
other comprehensive income - non-current
Valuation Adjustment ( 36,705)
$ 59718
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Significant Transactions with and Among Subsidiaries

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 3
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Business Transactions
No. Relationship . Ratio to Total Consolidated
(Note 1) Company Counterparty Note2) Account Amount (Note 4and Note5) Transaction Terms Revenue or Total Assets (Note 3)
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. 1 Sales $ 50,886 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 1.60%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts Receivable 22,207 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 0.57%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. 1 Other Receivable 67,750 In accordance with the mutually agreed terms and conditions. 1.75%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1 Sales 91,703 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 2.88%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts Receivable 12,273 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 0.32%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. 1 Processing Fees 58,027 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T payment 1.82%

Note 1: Numbering sequence for parent company and subsidiaries are as follows:
(1) The Company is shown as ‘0.
(2) The Subsidiaries are numbered in numerical order starting from ‘1°.
Note 2: The relationship with the trading party can be categorized as follows:
(1) The parent company to a subsidiary.
(2) A subsidiary to the parent company.
(3) A subsidiary to another subsidiary.

(4) The parent company to an equity method investee.
Note 3: For the calculation of the ratio of transaction amount to total revenue or total assets, if it is an item of assets and liabilities, the calculation is based on the end-of-period balance as a percentage of total assets. If it is an item of income and expenses, the

calculation is based on the accumulated amount as a percentage of total revenue at the end of the interim period.
Note 4: Transactions with an amount less than NTD 10 million do not require disclosure.
Note 5: Transactions have been offset in the consolidated financial statements.
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Information on Investee Company
January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 4 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Initial Investment Amount Shares Held at Dec. 31, 2021 Investee's Net _g—1;3C0 nized
ST nvestment
. Main Business Balance at End of  Balance at End Number of Shares Equity Ownership . Income for the Gain/Loss for the
Investor Investee Location Activities 2022 of 2021 Thousands) % Carrying Amount Period Poriod Note
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.  Hongyu Holdings L.L.C. US.A. Professional Investment $ 681716 $ 681,716 - 10000 $ 473327  ($  17.869) (§  17.869) Sb(ggi‘f;f)ry
Professional Investment Subsidia
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Wenfa Development L.L.C. Taiwan and Medical Equipment 60,000 60,000 - 100.00 69,467 9,937 9,937 (Not l)ry
Retail Industry ote
Weaving, Dyeing, and
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. Taiwan Finishing of High-End 178,000 178,000 13,000 86.67 54,727 ( 12,402) ( 10,748)  Subsidiary
Fabric
Equity method
Hongyu Holdings L.L.C. Hongde Development Co., Ltd. H.K. Professional Investment 60,580 60,580 - 38.17 - - - valuation
(Notel)
Outsourced Fabric
Wenfa Development L.L.C. Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. Taiwan Manufacturing and 28,000 28,000 2,800 70.00 30,848 15,979 11,185  Subsidiary
Sales
Wenfa Development L.L.C. Honglongfa Development Co., Ltd. Taiwan Professional Investment 188 188 19 37.50 128 - - Eq$;K1 :tlgg()d

Note 1: As a limited company, the Company does not have a share count.
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Information of Mainland China Investments

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 5 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Accumulated Cumulative
L. Investment Investme.nt Outﬂoyv or Accumulated , Recognized Investment Investment
Paid-in  Investment - Inflow in the Period InvestmentAamount Investee's Net . .
. . . . . . - Amount —_— Equity Investment Carrying Returns
Investee in Mainland China Main Business Activities Capital Method Transferred f Transferred from  Income (Loss) for o hip (%) Gai L A t at the Repatriated Note
Note ote 1 ransferred from Taiwan at the Dec. the Period whnership (% ain or Loss  Amount at the Repatriated as
(Note) (Note 1) Taiwan at Jan. 1 31. 2022 (Note 7 for the Period Dec. 31,2022 of Dec. 31,
2022 Outflow Inflow 31.2022 (Note 7). 2022
Manufacturing and sales of Note 3
Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. cotton silk fiber products and ~ $ 525,141 2 $ 536,721 $ - $ - $ 536,721 $ 17,869) 100.00 ($ 17,869) $ 473,448 $ - a6
finishing processing. an
Weaving, dyeing, and finishing
Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., Ltd. processing of high-end textile 52,207 2 65,692 - - 65,692 - 38.17 - - - Note 4
fabrics.
Manufacturing and sales of
Jivjiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd. cotton silk fiber products and 507,610 1 408,340 89,250 - 497,590 ( 10,822) 100.00 ( 10,822) 483,305 - Note 5
finishing processing.
Note 1:

(1) Direct investment in mainland China.

(2) Investment in mainland China through a third-party company, Hongyu Holdings L.L.C.
(3) Other methods

Note 2: The relevant figures in this table involve foreign currencies and are converted to New Taiwan Dollars at the exchange rates on the balance sheet date.
Note 3: The actual paid-in capital is USD 17,100 thousand. The accumulated outbound investment amount is USD 14,242 thousand and JPY 299,876 thousand.
Note 4: The actual paid-in capital is USD 1,700 thousand. The accumulated outbound investment amount is USD 2,000 thousand.

Note 5: The actual paid-in capital is RMB 115,000 thousand, and the accumulated outbound investment amount is RMB 115,000 thousand.

Note 6: The investment income or loss recognized in this period is audited by the accounting firm of the Taiwan parent company.

Note 7: The accumulated outbound investment amount from Taiwan at the end of this period is converted at the original investment exchange rate.
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Information of Mainland China Investments
January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 5 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

Accumulated Investment Investment Limit to China according to the

Investment Amount Approved by the Investment

Company Ampunt Transferred from Commission. Ministry of Economic Affairs regulations of Investment' Comm1551on, Ministry of
Taiwan at Dec. 31, 2022 ~-0MmIIIssion, Sumstry ot eonomie Allans Economic Affairs
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. $ 1,076,093 $ 1,281,068 $ 1,269,139

Note 1: The relevant figures in this table involve foreign currencies and are converted to New Taiwan Dollars at the exchange rates on the balance sheet date.
Note 2: The investment limit in mainland China is calculated in accordance with the principles for the examination of investment or technical cooperation in mainland China established by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (60% of the net amount).

Note 3: The cumulative amount of investment transferred from Taiwan to mainland China at the end of this period is US$16,242 thousand, JPY 299,876 thousand, and RMB 115,000 thousand. The approved investment amount by the Investment Commission
of the Ministry of Economic Affairs is US$41,715 thousand, with exchange rates of 30.71 for USD, 0.2324 for JPY, and 4.4140 for RMB.
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Information on Major Shareholders

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 6
Shares
Shareholder Number of Shares (Thousands) Equity Ownership (%)
Zhen Hong Investment Co., Ltd. 8,485 6.53

If the Company obtains this table information from Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation (TDCC), the following notes should be provided:

Note 1:
The major shareholder information in this table is calculated by TDCC based on the total number of ordinary and preferred shares (including treasury stocks) that shareholders have completed transfer without physical
registration as of the last business day of each quarter and have reached 5% or more. The actual number of shares issued and outstanding disclosed in the Company's financial report may differ due to different calculation
bases.

Note 2:
If the above data is related to shares held under trust, it will be disclosed in individual trust accounts opened by the trustee. As for the reporting of internal shareholding exceeding 10% of the total shares outstanding according
to securities laws and regulations, it includes the shares held by the person and those entrusted to them with the decision-making power over trust property. Relevant information on internal shareholding reporting can be
found on the Public Information Observation System.
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[ Attachment 2] The Accountant-Audited Individual Financial Statement of the Most Recent Fiscal Year

Independent Auditors’ Report
(2023) Ministry of Finance approved No. 22004980

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have conducted an audit on the parent company only financial statements of Honmyue Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (referred to as “Honmyue”) for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, which include
the parent company only balance sheets, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity, and statements of cash flows for the period from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021. We
have also reviewed the notes to the individual financial statements, which contain a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the parent company only financial statements presented herein, which were prepared in
accordance with the "Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers,"
fairly present the parent company only financial position of Honmyue as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, as well as its parent company only financial performance and parent company only cash flows for
the period from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and 2021, in all material respects.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants" and the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
in the Republic of China (ROC GAAS). Our responsibility under these standards is explained further in
the section titled "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial
Statements." Our firm's staff members subject to independence requirements comply with the Codes of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants in the Republic of China and have maintained their
independence from Honmyue, fulfilling other ethical responsibilities as per the Codes. We are of the
opinion that we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters refer to those matters that, in our professional judgment, were most significant in the
audit of Honmyue's parent company only financial statements for the year 2022. These matters were
addressed as part of our overall audit of the individual financial statements, and we do not express a
separate opinion on them.

The key audit matters for Honmyue's individual financial statements for the year 2022 are as follows:

Cutoff Point for Revenue Recognition

Description
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For accounting policies on revenue recognition, please refer to Note 4(28) in the Parent Company Only
Financial Statements. For statement of operating revenue, please refer to Note 6(20). For accounting
policies on revenue recognition, please refer to Note 4(28) in the Parent Company Only Financial
Statements. For statement of operating revenue, please refer to Note 6(20). Honmyue mainly engages
in the manufacturing and sales of various cotton, wool, silk, and synthetic fiber textiles. Revenue from
sales is recognized when control of the goods is transferred upon arrival at the destination port, based
on the terms of the transaction, and is recognized at the end of each month through manual checking of
the transaction date and the actual arrival date. This revenue recognition process involves many manual
judgments and operations, which may result in revenue being recorded in the wrong period. As this issue
also exists in the subsidiary companies held by Honmyue, which are accounted for using the equity
method, the cutoff date for revenue from sales is regarded as one of the key audit matters to be audited
this year.

Audit Procedures Undertaken in Response to the Matter

Our auditor's main audit procedures performed on the specific aspects described in the key audit matter

are as follows:

1. We gained an understanding of and evaluated the sales transaction operation procedures and internal
controls, and tested these controls to assess the effectiveness of management's control over the
timing of the recognition of sales revenue.

2. We verified sales transactions for a certain period before and after the balance sheet date by checking
the transaction documents to confirm that sales transactions were recorded in the appropriate period.

Allowance for Inventory Valuation Losses

Description

Regarding the accounting policies for inventory valuation, please refer to Note 4(12) in the individual

financial statements. For the significant accounting estimates and assumptions related to inventory

valuation and their uncertainties, please refer to Note 5 in the individual financial statements. For the
explanation of inventory provision for impairment, please refer to Note 6(4) in the individual financial
statements. As of December 31, 2022, the inventory and allowance for inventory valuation losses of

Honmyue amounted to NT$672,521 thousand and NT$66,049 thousand, respectively.

Honmyue mainly engages in the manufacturing and sales of various cotton, wool, silk, and synthetic

fiber textiles. For inventory that has been held for a specific period of time or that has been identified as

impaired, the Company measures the inventory at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower, and
provides for inventory write-downs based on the usability of inventory that has been identified as
obsolete or damaged. Given that the provision for inventory valuation losses has a significant impact on
the financial statements of Honmyue and that the valuation of inventory at net realizable value at the
balance sheet date requires judgement and estimation, and since the aforementioned matter also exists
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in the subsidiary companies held by Honmyue accounted for using the equity method, the assessment
of the provision for inventory valuation losses is regarded as one of the key audit matters to be audited
this year

Audit Procedures Undertaken in Response to the Matter

Our auditor's main audit procedures performed on the specific aspects described in the key audit matter

are as follows:

1. Understand the operation and nature of Honmyue, evaluate the reasonableness of its inventory
provision policy for assessing inventory impairment losses.

2. Review the annual inventory counting plan of Honmyue and participate in the annual inventory
count to assess the effectiveness of management's segregation and control of obsolete inventory.

3. Review the supporting documents related to the inventory aging report to verify the dates of
inventory movements, confirm the proper classification of inventory into aging categories, and
recalculate the aging report in accordance with the Company's policies.

4. Obtain the net realizable value reports of all inventory items, verify that the calculation logic is
consistently applied, test the basis for the estimation of the net realizable value of inventory,
including checking supporting documents such as sales prices, purchase prices, etc. Re-calculate
and evaluate the reasonableness of the inventory valuation.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent

Company Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing the parent company only financial statements in compliance

with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and

maintaining adequate internal controls related to the preparation of the parent company only financial
statements to ensure that there are no significant misrepresentations due to fraud or error.

Management is responsible for evaluating Honmyue's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing

relevant matters, and using the going concern basis of accounting when preparing the parent company

only financial statements, unless management intends to liquidate the company or cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including the supervisory committee) of Honmyue are responsible for

overseeing the financial reporting process.

Responsibilities of the Auditor for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial

Statements

The purpose of our audit of the parent company only financial statements is to obtain reasonable

assurance that they are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error, and to issue

an audit report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it does not guarantee that the audit,
performed in accordance with ROC GAAS, will always detect a material misstatement when one exists.
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Misstatements can result from fraud or error and are considered material if they could reasonably be

expected, individually or in aggregate, to influence the economic decisions of users based on these

financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with the ROC GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we perform the following procedures:

1.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement in the parent company only financial
statements, whether caused by fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures that are
appropriate to address those risks, and obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to support
our opinion. The risk of failing to detect a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than that of
one due to error, because fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Design appropriate audit procedures in the given circumstances, and obtain necessary understanding
of internal control that is relevant to the audit. However, our objective is not to express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the internal control of Honmyue.

Evaluate appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted by management, and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates and related disclosures

Assess the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and
determine whether any events or conditions exist that may cast significant doubt on Honmyue's
ability to continue as a going concern, based on the audit evidence obtained. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we will draw attention to the related disclosures in the financial
statements in our audit report or modify our opinion if such disclosures are inadequate. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audit report. However, it
should be noted that future events or conditions may lead to the Honmyue's inability to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the parent company only financial
statements, including the related disclosures, and determine whether the parent only financial
statements provide a fair representation of the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
is appropriate.

Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within Honmyue in order to express an opinion on the parent company only
financial statements. We are responsible for directing, supervising and performing the group audit,
and for forming an opinion on the parent company only financial statements based on the results of
our audit.

We communicate with the governance entity regarding various matters, such as the audit's planned scope

and timeline, as well as significant audit findings, which may include significant deficiencies in internal
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control identified during the audit process.

We also provide those charged with governance with a declaration that the personnel of our accounting
firm who are subject to independence requirements have complied with the Code of Ethics for CPAs in
the Republic of China concerning independence, and communicate to them any relationships and other
matters that may be perceived to affect our independence, as well as any relevant safeguards.

After communicating with those charged with governance, we determine the key audit matters that are
of most significance in our audit of Honmyue's parent company only financial statements for the year
2022. We disclose these matters in our audit report, unless it is prohibited by law or regulation or, in
exceptional cases. We decide not to communicate a specific matter in our report due to the potential
negative impact on the public interest outweighing the benefits of such communication.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan
Hung, Shu-Hua
CPA
Wang, Yu-Chuan

Former Securities Commission of the Ministry of Finance
Approval -certified No.: (85) Tai-Cai-Certificate (6) 68701

Financial Supervisory Commission
Approval -certified No.: Jin-Guan-Certificate No. 1020028992

March 28, 2023
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Individual Statements of Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Assets Amount % Amount %
CURRENT ASSET

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 425310 12 349,522 10

Financial assets at fair value through
1110 profit or loss - current 6(1) 180 - - -
1150 Notes receivable 6(3) 61,565 1 113,364 3
1160 Notes receivables - related parties 7(2) 82 - 13,539 -
1170 Accounts receivable 6(3) 281,130 8 330,440 9
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties  7(2) 75,729 2 173,792 5
1200 Other receivables 1,449 - 1,963 -
1210 Other receivables - related parties 7(2) 67,776 2 10,938 -
130X Inventories 6(4) 606,472 17 715,255 19
1410 Prepayments 33,912 1 19,642 1
1470 Other current assets 1,650 - 2,897 -
11XX Total current asset 1,555,255 43 1,731,352 47

NONCURRENT ASSET

Financial assets at fair value through
1517 other comprehensive income - 6(5)

noncurrent 59,718 2 88,133 2

Financial assets carried at amortized
1535 cost - noncurrent 6(6), 8 7,100 - 7,100 -

Investment accounted for using
1550 equity method 6(7) 1,080,826 30 1,007,627 27
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(8), 8 793,242 22 757,196 20
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(9) 6,578 - 4,860 -
1760 Investment property, net 6(10), 8 62,863 2 63,209 2
1780 Intangible assets 12,095 - 1,341 -
1840 Deferred tax assets 6(27) 33,933 1 27,707 1
1900 Other noncurrent assets 14,915 - 22,685 1
15XX Total noncurrent asset 2,071,270 57 1,979,858 53
IXXX TOTALASSET $ 3,626,525 100 3,711,210 100

(Continued)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Individual Statements of Balance Sheets
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Liabilities and Equity Note Amount % Amount %
CURRENT LIABILITIES
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(11) $ 197,658 6 $ 239,742
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable  6(12) . . 159,722 4
2130 Current contract liabilities 6(20) 15,711 - 16,195 -
2150 Notes payable 106,887 3 166,459 5
2160 Notes payable - related parties 7(2) 22 - 4,736 -
2170 Accounts payable 119,998 3 145,014 4
2180 Accounts payable - related parties  7(2) 6,134 - 263 -
2200 Other payables 6(13), 7(2) 144,101 4 165,065 4
2230 Current income tax liabilities 28:072 1 30:761
2280 Leasing liabilities - current 6(9) 1,962 _ 1,587 -
2320 Long-term liabilities within one year 6(15)
or one business cycle 166,667 5 116,666 3
2399 Other current liabilities 809 ; 801 -
21XX Total current liabilities 788,021 22 1,047,011 28
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
2530 Bonds payable 6(14) 287,569 8 - -
2540 Long-term loan 6(15) 338,690 9 505,357 14
2570 Deferred tax liabilities 6(27) 68,052 2 67,902 2
2580 Lease liability - noncurrent 6(9) 4,595 . 3,298 -
2600 Other noncurrent liabilities 6(16) 24366 1 18,255 -
25XX Total noncurrent liabilities 723272 20 594,812 16
2XXX Total liabilities 1,511,293 42 1,641,823 44
EQUITIES
Capital 6(17)
3110 Common shares 1,298,970 36 1,298,970 35
Capital reserve 6(18)
3200 Capital reserve 50,735 1 5,887 -
Retained earnings 6(19)
3310 Legal reserve 231,804 6 217,652
3320 Special reserve 182,752 5 182,752
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 419,140 12 423,103 11
Other equity interest
3400 Other equity interest ( 68,169) ( 2) ( 58,977) ( 1)
3XXX Total equity 2,115,232 58 2,069,387 56
Commitments and contingencies 9
3X2X Total liabilities and equities $ 3,626,525 100§ 3,711,210 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Chou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan-Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Individual Statements of Comprehensive Income
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Except for earnings per share expressed in New Taiwan Dollar)

Year ended December 31

2022 2021
Item Notes Amount % Amount %
4000  Operating Revenue 6(20), 7(2) $ 2,484,812 100 § 2,616,558 100
5000  Operating costs 6(3)(25)(26), 72)  ( 2,160,099 ( 87) | 2238,098) (__ 85)
5900 Operating margin 324,713 13 378,460 15
Operating expenses 6(25)(26)
6100 Sales and marketing expenses ( 89,204 ( 4) 97,331) ( 4)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 105,332 ( 4) 108,062)  ( 4)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 19,807 ( 1)1 24,967)  ( 1)
6450 Expected credit impairment loss 12(2) - - 4,726 -
6000 Total Operating Expenses ( 214,343 ( 9) ( 225,634) ( 9)
6900 Operating profit 110,370 4 152,826 6
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income 6(21), 7(2) 5,081 - 4,481 -
7010 Other income 6(22), 7(2) 18,588 1 27,329 1
7020 Other gains and losses 6(23) 18,813 1 1,776) -
7050 Finance costs 6(24) ( 18,417 ( i 10,264) -
7070 Share of profit or loss of subsidiaries,  6(7)
associates, and joint ventures accounted
for using the equity method ( 29,502 ( 1) 4,065 -
7000 Total non-operating income ( 5437 - 23,835 1
7900 Pretax profit 104,933 4 176,661 7
7950 Income tax expense 6(27) ( 27,504 ( 1)« 32,698) ( 1)
8200 Net profits $ 77,429 3 3 143,963
Other comprehensive income (net)
Not reclassified to profit or loss
8311 Measure on defined benefit plans 6(16) ($ 2,865 -8 680) -
8316 Unrealized gains and losses on
valuation of investment in equity
instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income ( 28,415 ( 1) 8,559 -
8349 Income tax related to components ~ 6(27)
that are not reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss 6,345 - 2,037) -
8310 Total not reclassified to profit or loss ( 24,935 ( 1) 5,842 -
Components that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Exchange difference arising from
translation of foreign operation
financial statements 13,451 1 4,257) -
8399 Income tax related to items not 6(27)
reclassified to profit or loss - - 1,528 -
8360 Total Items that may be reclassified to
profit and loss 13,451 1 2,729) -
8300 Other comprehensive net gains/losses (3 11,484 - 3,113 -
8500 Total comprehensive gains/losses $ 65,945 3 3 147,076 6
Earnings per share 6(28)
9750 Basic earnings per share $ 0.60 § 1.11
9850 Diluted earnings per share $ 0.56 § 1.10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Chou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan, Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Parent Company Only Statements of Changes in Equity
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Capital Surplus Retained Earnings Other equity interest
Unrealized gains or
Exchange losses on financial
differences from  assets at fair value
translating foreign through other
Share capital - Treasury stock Employ stock Unappropriated  operating financial comprehensive
Notes common stock transactions option Legal reserve Special reserve _ retained earnings statements income Total
Year ended December 31, 2021
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 1,298,970 $ 5,887 $ - $ 207,784 § 182,752 $ 343,413 (8 45,514) (% 17,119) § 1,976,173
Net income - - - - - 143,963 - - 143,963
Other comprehensive income 6(5) - - - - - ( 543 ) ( 2,729 ) 6,385 3,113
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 143,420 ( 2,729 ) 6,385 147,076
Earnings allocation and 6(19)
distribution in 2020
Legal reserve - - - 9,868 - ( 9,868 ) - - -
Cash dividends - - - - - ( 51,959 ) - - ( 51,959)
Changes in equity of associates and  6(7)
joint ventures accounted for under
the equity method - - - - - ( 1,903 ) - - | 1,903 )
Balance at December 31,2021 $ 1,298,970 $ 5,887 $ - $ 217,652 $§ 182,752 $ 423,103 (% 48243 ) (% 10,734) $ 2,069,387
Year ended December 31, 2022
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 1,298,970 $ 5,887 $ - $§ 217,652 $§ 182,752 $ 423,103 ($ 48,243 ) (% 10,734) $ 2,069,387
Net income - - - - - 77,429 - - 77,429
Other comprehensive income 6(5) - - - - - ( 2,292) 13,451 ( 22,643 ) ( 11,484)
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 75,137 13,451 ( 22,643 ) 65,945
Earnings allocation and 6(19)
distribution in 2020
Legal reserve - - - 14,152 - ( 14,152) - - -
Cash dividends - - - - - ( 64,948 ) - - ( 64,948 )
Recognition of stock options as a 6(14)(18)
component of equity due to the
issuance of convertible bonds - - 44,848 - - - - - 44,848
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 1,298,970 $ 5,887 $ 44848 $ 231,804 $ 182,752 $ 419,140 (§ 34,792) (8 33377) $ 2,115,232

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Zhou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan, Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Notes 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Pretax profit $ 104,933 $ 176,661
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit(loss)
Depreciation expense (investment properties and  6(23)(25)

right-of-use assets) 47,923 42,350
Amortization expense 6(25) 795 1,166
Reversal of expected credit loss recognized in 12(2)

profit or loss - 4,726 )
Share of other comprehensive loss of 6(7)

subsidiaries on investments in equity instruments

at fair value 29,502 ( 4,065 )
Net gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair 6(23)

value through profit or loss 3,090 -
Gain on disposal or retirement of property, plant  6(23)

and equipment ( 1,552) ( 662 )
Interest expense 6(24) 18,417 10,264
Interest income 6(21) ( 5,081) ( 4,481)
Dividend income 6(5) ( 20) ( 20)
Benefit from lease modification 6(9) ( 5) ( 3)
Unrealized gain(loss) on foreign currency

exchange ( 587) 6,148

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets, net

Notes receivable - net 51,799 ( 46,527 )
Notes receivable - related party, net 13,457 ( 4,189 )
Accounts receivable 48228 ( 43,325)
Accounts receivable - related parties 98,063 50,582
Other receivables ( 346) 163
Other receivables - related parties - 14
Inventories 108,783  ( 29,520 )
Prepayments ( 14,270 ) 421
Other current assets 1,247 ( 397)
Other noncurrent assets 1,408  ( 795)
Liabilities net change related to operation
activities
Contract liabilities ( 484) ( 547)
Notes payable ( 59,572) 16,034
Notes payable - related parties ( 4,714) ( 393)
Accounts payable ( 25,016) ( 4,413)
Accounts payable - related parties 5,871 ( 4,540)
Other payables ( 20,682 ) 8,835
Other current liabilities 8 81)
Other noncurrent liabilities ( 662) ( 763 )
Cash inflow from operation activities 400,533 163,191
Interest received 4,610 4,452
Dividends received 20 20
Interest paid ( 11,014) ( 10,238 )
Income tax paid ( 30,926 ) ( 17,240 )
Income tax refunded 2,331 -
Net cash flows from operating activities 365,554 140,185
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Parent Company Only Statements of Cash Flows
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Notes 2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Other receivables - related parties decrease (increase) ($ 56,838) $ 10,000
Investment using the equity method 6(7) ( 89,250 ) ( 247,598 )
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 6(29) ( 77215) ( 110,573 )

Disposal of property, facility and equipment 1,552 662
Acquisition of intangible assets ( 10,957) ( 6,924 )
Decrease in refundable deposits 1,348 ( 227)
Net cash outflow from investing activities ( 231,360 ) ( 354,660 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in short-term borrowings 924,381 1,309,571
Decrease in short-term borrowings ( 966,465 ) ( 1,348,497 )

Increase in short-term notes and bills payables 235,000 730,000
Decrease in short-term notes and bills payables ( 395,000 ) ( 750,000 )
Lease principal repayment 6(30) ( 2,113) ( 1,881)

Issuance of corporate bonds 6(30) 321,827 -

Outstanding Amount of long-term borrowings - 310,000
Repayments of long-term borrowings 6(30) ( 116,666 ) ( 72,541)
Increase in guarantee deposits received 6(30) 3,909 ( 129)
Cash dividends paid 6(19)(30) ( 64,948 ) ( 51,959 )

Net Cash outflow from financing activities ( 60,075 ) 124,564
Effects of foreign exchange rates 1,669 ( 2,843 )
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 75,788  ( 92,754 )

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 349,522 442,276

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 425,310 $ 349,522

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

Chairman: Yeh, Ming-Zhou Manager: Kuo, Cheng-Pei Chief Accountant: Pan, Li-Che
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Parent Company Only Financial Statement Notes
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

1. The History of the Company

Established on September 4th, 1970, Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. primarily specializes in the
manufacturing, trading, and domestic and international sales of various textiles made of cotton,
wool, silk, and synthetic fibers.

2. Financial Statement Review Date and Procedures

The parent company only financial statements were released on March 28th, 2023, following
approval by the Board of Directors.
3. Application of Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations

(1)

(2)

Impact of Newly Adopted and Effective International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) that are approved and published by the Financial Supervisory Commission
(hereafter referred to as FSC)

The following table summarizes the new, amended, and revised International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and Interpretations that were approved and published by the
FSC and were applicable in the Republic of China in 2022:

Effective date of IASB
Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations publications
Amendment to IFRS No. 3 “Indexes to Conceptual Framework” January 1, 2022

January 1, 2022
Amendment to IFRS No. 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended

Use”
Amendment to IFRS No. 37 “Loss-making contracts - Cost of fulfilling a contract” January 1, 2022
Annual improvement cycle for 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

After evaluating the aforementioned standards and interpretations, the Company has
determined that they have no significant impact on the Company’s financial condition and
performance.

Impact of New or Revised International Financial Reporting Standards not yet Adopted by

the FSC
The following table summarizes the new, amended, and revised IFRS and Interpretations
that were approved and published by the FSC and were applicable in 2023.

Effective date of IASB
Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations publications
Amendment to IFRS No. 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 12 “Deferred income taxes related to assets and liabilities January 1, 2023

generated from a single exchange”

After evaluating the aforementioned standards and interpretations, the Company has
determined that they have no significant impact on the Company’s financial condition and
performance.
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(3) Impact of IFRS that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IMAB) but have not yet been recognized by the FSC
The following table summarized the new, revised, and amended standards and interpretations
of IFRS that have been issued by the IASB but have not yet been adopted by the FSC.

Effective date of IASB
Newly Released and Revised Standards and Interpretations publications
Amendment to IFRS No. 10“Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its ~ Pending decision by
Associate or Joint Venture” the IASB
Amendment to IFRS No. 16 “Lease liabilities in sale and leaseback arrangements” January 1, 2024
Amendment to IFRS No. 17 “Insurance contract” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 17 Revision of “Insurance contract” January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS No. 17 “Initial application of [FRS 17 and IFRS 9 - Comparative January 1, 2023
information”
Amendment to IFRS No. 1 “Classification of liabilities as current or non-current” January 1, 2024
Amendment to IFRS No. 1 “Non-current liabilities with contractual terms” January 1, 2024

After evaluating the aforementioned standards and interpretations, the Company has
determined that they have no significant impact on the Company’s financial condition and
performance.
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
this consolidated financial statement. Unless otherwise stated, these policies have been
consistently applied throughout all reporting periods.
(1) Compliance with Standards
This parent company only financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.
(2) Basis of Preparation
1. The parent company only financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for the following significant items:
A. Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss.
B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.
C. The net amount recognized for defined benefit liabilities, which is the aggregate
of the fair value of plan assets and the present value of defined benefit obligations,
reduced by the effect of any asset ceiling, is recognized in the balance sheet as a
liability.
2. Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations of
IFRS that are approved and issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission requires
the use of certain significant accounting estimates and the exercise of management’s
judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policies. Such estimates and judgments
involve items that are highly subjective or complex, or relate to significant assumptions
and estimates used in the preparation of parent company only financial statements.
Please refer to Note 5 for details.
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(3)

(4)

Foreign Currency Translation

Items enlisted in the financial statements are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency”). The
parent company only financial statements are presented in the functional currency of the
Company, which is the New Taiwan Dollar.

1. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances:

A. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date or measurement date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognized in the current period’s profit or loss.

B. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are revalued at the exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in the current period’s profit or loss.

C. Foreign currency non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value through profit or loss are revalued at the exchange rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in the
current period’s profit or loss. Those that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income. Those that
are not measured at fair value are translated using the historical exchange rates on
the initial transaction date.

D. All exchange differences are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income under the item "other income and expenses."

2. Foreign Operation Translation
A. For all individual companies, related enterprises, and joint agreements whose
functional currencies are different from the reporting currencies, the operating
results and financial positions are converted into the reporting currencies using
the following methods:
a~ Assets and liabilities presented in each balance sheet are converted using the
closing exchange rate on the balance sheet date

b~ Revenues and expenses presented in each income statement are converted
using the average exchange rate for the period

c ~ All translation differences arising from translation are recognized in other
comprehensive income

B. Translation differences of net investments in foreign operations are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

C. When a partial disposal or sale of foreign operations occurs, the translation
differences under other comprehensive income are proportionally reclassified to
profit or loss as a component of the gain or loss on disposal

The Classification Criteria for Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities
1. Assets meeting any of the following criteria shall be classified as current assets:

A. Assets expected to be realized in the normal operating cycle or intended to be sold
or consumed.

B. Assets held primarily for trading purposes.

C. Assets expected to be realized within twelve months after the balance sheet date.

D. Cash or cash equivalents, except for those with restrictions on exchange or use for
settlement of liabilities for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All assets that do not meet the above criteria are classified as non-current by the Company.
2. Liabilities meeting any of the following criteria shall be classified as current liabilities:
Liabilities expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle.

Liabilities held primarily for trading purposes.

Liabilities expected to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date.
Liabilities cannot be deferred unconditionally beyond twelve months after the
balance sheet date, except for liabilities with terms that may be settled by issuing
equity instruments at the option of the counterparty, which do not affect their
classification.

All liabilities that do not meet the above criteria are classified as non-current by the
Company.

Cow>
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(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term investments that are highly liquid and can be converted

into a fixed amount of cash at any time, with minimal risk of value fluctuations. Time

deposits that meet the aforementioned criteria and are held for the purpose of fulfilling
short-term cash commitments in operations are classified as cash equivalents.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

1. Refers to a non-revocable choice made at the initial recognition to report the fair value
changes of equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive
income, or to debt instrument investments that meet both of the following conditions:

A. Assets held under a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell the asset.

B. The contract terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specific dates,
consisting entirely of the repayment of principal and the payment of interest on
outstanding principal.

2. Trade date accounting to financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income that meet trading customary trading criteria is used by the
Company.

3. When initially recognized, the Company measures equity instruments at their fair value
plus transaction costs, and subsequently measures them at fair value:

The fair value changes of equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income

and are not reclassified to profit or loss when derecognized. Instead, they are transferred to

retained earnings. When the right to receive dividends is established and the economic
benefits related to dividends are likely to flow to the Company, and the dividend amount
can be reliably measured, the Company recognizes dividend income in profit or loss.

Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

1. Refers to financial assets that meet both of the following conditions:

A. Assets held under a business model whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows.

B. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

2. Trade date accounting to financial assets measured at amortized cost that meet trading
customary trading criteria is used by the Company.

3. The Company holds short-term fixed deposits that do not qualify as cash equivalents and
are measured at cost due to the short-term nature of the deposits and the immateriality
of the effect of discounting.

Accounts and Notes Receivable

1. Refer to the accounts and notes receivable that represent the right to receive payment
for the consideration received from the transfer of goods or services, without any
conditions attached.

2. For short-term accounts and notes receivable without interest, the impact of discounting
is not significant, the Company measures them at the original invoice amount.
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(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

Impairment of Financial Asset
The Company measures its financial assets at amortized cost on each balance sheet date,
taking into consideration all reasonable and supportable information (including forward-
looking information) related to credit risk, and recognizes an allowance for expected credit
losses based on a 12-month expected credit loss amount for financial assets for which the
credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, and based on the lifetime
expected credit loss amount for financial assets for which the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component, the Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses based
on the lifetime expected credit loss amount.
Derecognition of Financial Assets
When the Company’s contractual rights to receive cash flows from a financial asset have
expired, the financial asset is derecognized.
Operating Leases - Lease Transactions of the Lessor
The lease income from operating leases, which is not contingent on any incentives granted
to the lessee, is recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of
comprehensive income over the lease term.
Inventories
Inventory is accounted for using the perpetual inventory system, with costs calculated using
the weighted average method. Fixed manufacturing overhead is allocated based on the
normal production capacity of the equipment, while any unallocated fixed manufacturing
overhead is recognized as cost of goods sold in the period incurred. Inventory is measured
at the lower of cost or net realizable value at the end of each period, with a comparison of
the cost and net realizable value made using the individual-item approach. Net realizable
value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion, estimated selling expenses, and applicable taxes.

Investments in Equity Method - Associates/Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

1. A subsidiary refers to an entity (including structured entities) controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

2. The unrealized gains and losses arising from transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries have been eliminated. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been
adjusted as necessary to be consistent with those of the Company.

3. The Company recognizes the profit or loss attributable to the subsidiary’s equity as
current period income and the other comprehensive income attributable to the
subsidiary’s equity as other comprehensive income after acquiring a subsidiary. If the
loss recognized by this company equals or exceeds the subsidiary’s equity, the Company
continues to recognize the loss in proportion to its shareholding.

4. An associated company refers to entities in which this company has significant influence
but not control, typically through direct or indirect ownership of more than 20% of the
voting rights. The Company accounts for its investment in associated companies using
the equity method and recognizes the investment at cost upon acquisition.

5. The Company recognizes the profit or loss attributable to its shareholding in the
associated company as current period income, and the other comprehensive income
attributable to its shareholding as other comprehensive income. If the loss recognized
by the Company in any associated company equals or exceeds its interest in that
associated company (including any other unsecured receivables), the Company does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or has
made payments on behalf of the associated company. The investment in associated
companies is accounted for using the equity method, and it is recognized at cost when
acquired.

176



10.

When there is an equity change in the associated company that is not related to profit or
loss and does not affect the shareholding percentage in the associated company, the
Company will recognize the equity change attributed to the Company’s interest in the
associated company in proportion to its shareholding as "Capital Surplus".

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and its
affiliated companies have been eliminated based on their respective ownership interests
in the affiliated companies, unless there is evidence that the transferred assets have been
impaired. The affiliated companies’ accounting policies have been adjusted as necessary
to conform to the accounting policies used by the Company.

If an associate issues new shares and the Group does not subscribe or acquire them in
proportion to its shareholding, causing a change in its ownership interest but still
exerting significant influence over the associate, any resulting change in the equity of
the associate is adjusted in the "Capital reserve" and "Investment in equity method." If
the ownership interest decreases, in addition to the above adjustment, any related gain
or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income related to the equity
component that decreased shall be reclassified to profit or loss when disposing of the
related assets or liabilities, based on the proportion of decrease.

When the Company disposes of an associated company and loses significant influence
over it, all amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income related to that
associated enterprise shall be accounted for in the same manner as the disposal of assets
or liabilities directly related to the Company’s disposal, that is, any previously
recognized gains or losses in other comprehensive income will be reclassified as income
when the assets or liabilities are disposed of. If the Company still has significant
influence over the associated enterprise, the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified proportionally in the manner described above.
According to the financial reporting standards for issuers of securities, the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the individual financial statements should be
allocated to the owners of the parent company in the same manner as the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income attributable to the owners of the parent company in the
consolidated financial statements. The owner’s equity in the parent company only
financial statements should be the same as the equity attributable to the owners of the
parent company in the consolidated financial statements.

(14) Property, Plant and Equipment

1.

2.

Property, plant, and equipment are recorded at acquisition cost and interest related to
the acquisition or construction period is capitalized.

Subsequent costs are only included in the carrying amount of an asset or recognized as
a separate asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of a replaced part should be derecognized. All other maintenance costs are
recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost model subsequently. They are
depreciated using the straight-line depreciation method based on the estimated useful
life, except for land, which is not depreciated. If a component of property, plant, and
equipment is significant, it is separately depreciated.

The Company reviews the residual value, useful life, and depreciation method of each
asset at the end of each financial year. If the expected residual value and useful life are
different from previous estimates, or there has been a significant change in the expected
consumption pattern of the future economic benefits of the asset, then the accounting
estimates are adjusted in accordance with International Accounting Standard 8§
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” from the date of the
change. The useful life of each asset is as follows:
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Buildings and structures: 2 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment: 2 to 15 years
Transportation equipment: 2 to 10 years
Office equipment: 5 to 10 years
Other assets: 2 to 10 years
(15) Leases - Right-of-Use Assets / Lease Liabilities for Lessees

1. When a leased asset becomes available for use by the Company, it is recognized as a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability. For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets,
lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2. The lease liability is recognized on the lease commencement date as the present value

of the remaining lease payments not yet paid, discounted at the incremental borrowing
rate of the Company. Lease payments include fixed payments, net of any lease incentives
that may be receivable.
The subsequent measurement is based on the effective interest rate method and is
measured using the amortized cost method. Interest expense is recognized during the
lease term. When there is a change in the lease term or lease payments caused by a non-
contractual modification, the lease liability is re-measured and the re-measurement
amount is adjusted to the right-of-use asset.

3. The right-of-use asset is recognized at cost on the lease commencement date, which
includes:

A. The initial measurement of the lease liability.

B. Lease payments made at or before the commencement date.

C. Initial direct costs incurred; and
Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model, and
depreciation expense is recognized over the asset’s useful life or the lease term,
whichever is shorter. When the lease liability is remeasured, the right-of-use asset
is adjusted for any revaluation amount of the lease liability.

4. For lease modifications that result in a reduction in the lease scope, the lessee shall
reduce the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease, and recognize the difference between it and the amount of the
lease liability remeasurement in profit or loss.

(16) Investment Property

Investment property is recognized at cost and subsequently measured using the cost model.

Except for land, depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful

life, with a useful life of 18 years for buildings and structures.

(17) Intangible Assets
Computer software is recognized at cost and is amortized on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 3 to 5 years.

(18) Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each balance sheet date, whether there are any indicators of
impairment for its assets, and estimates their recoverable amounts. If the recoverable
amount is lower than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. For assets that were previously impaired, if the circumstances that led to the
impairment no longer exist or have improved, the impairment loss is reversed. However, the
carrying amount of an asset after impairment reversal cannot exceed what the carrying
amount would have been if no impairment loss had been recognized, net of any depreciation
or amortization.

178



(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

Borrowings
The term "borrowings" refers to long-term or short-term funds borrowed from banks. The

Company initially measures these borrowings at fair value less transaction costs.

Subsequently, any differences between the carrying amount of the liability and the

redemption amount are recognized as interest expense over the borrowing term using the

effective interest method, which amortizes the difference between the proceeds and the
redemption value over the period of the borrowing as a finance cost in the income statement.

Accounts Payable and Notes Payable

1. Refers to liabilities incurred for the purchase of raw materials, goods, or services and
for operating and non-operating expenses payable by notes.

2. Accounts payable and notes payable are short-term liabilities that do not have a
significant impact from discounting, and are measured at their original invoice amounts
by the Company.

Convertible Bonds Payable

Convertible bonds payable issued by the Group contain embedded conversion options (the

bondholders have the right to convert the bonds into a fixed number of ordinary shares of

the Group) as well as put and call options. The initial issuance price is classified as a

financial asset, financial liability, or equity based on the terms of the issue. The approach

taken in accounting for this is as follows:

1. Embedded put and call options are initially recognized at their fair value net of any
transaction costs as “financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”.
Subsequently, at each balance sheet date, they are measured at their fair value, and any
changes are recognized in “gain or loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss”.

2. The main contract of the corporate bond is initially measured at fair value, and any
difference between the redemption amounts is recognized as the discount on payables.
Subsequently, the effective interest method is used to amortize the discount over the
term of the bond, and the interest expense is recognized as an adjusting item of "financial
costs" in the income statement.

3. The embedded conversion option (qualifying as equity) is initially recognized at the
issuance date by deducting the fair value of the “financial asset or liability at fair value
through profit or loss” and “payable bonds” from the issuance proceeds, and the
remaining value is recorded as “capital surplus - stock options”. Subsequently, no re-
measurement is made.

4. The direct transaction costs incurred in the issuance are allocated to the respective
components of liabilities and equity in proportion to their respective initial carrying
amounts as described above.

5. When the holder exercises their right to convert, the liability component (including
"payable convertible bonds" and "financial assets or liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss") is processed according to its subsequent measurement method
classification, and the book value of the liability component is added to the book value
of "capital surplus - stock subscription rights" to calculate the issuance cost of the
exchanged common shares.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The financial liabilities shall be derecognized by the Company upon the fulfillment,
cancellation, or expiration of the obligations specified in the contract.

Offset of Financial Assets and Liabilities

When there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts of financial
assets and liabilities, and the intention to settle the asset and discharge the liability
on a net basis or simultaneously, the financial assets and financial liabilities may be
offset and presented on a net basis in the balance sheets.

179



(24) Employee Benefits

1.

2.

3.

(25) Income Taxes
1.

2.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of expected
payment and recognized as an expense when the related service is provided.

Pensions
Defined Contribution Plan

For a defined contribution plan, the amount of pension contribution that should be
provided is recognized as the current period’s pension cost based on the principle
of liability incurred. Prepaid contributions are recognized as assets within the
scope of refundable cash or reduced future payment.

Defined Benefit Plan

A.

a -~

C >

The net obligation of defined benefit plans is measured by discounting the
future benefit amounts earned by employees for services rendered in the
current or prior periods, and reducing it by the fair value of plan assets at the
balance sheet date. The net obligation of the defined benefit plan is calculated
annually using the projected unit credit method by an actuary, and the
discount rate is based on the market yield of government bonds (at the balance
sheet date) that have the same currency and maturity as the benefit obligation
of the defined benefit plan.

The remeasurements of defined benefit plans are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise and are presented in
retained earnings.

The related expenses of prior service cost are recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Severance Benefits

Severance benefits are benefits provided to employees upon termination of their
employment prior to their normal retirement date or when employees accept a company
offer to terminate their employment in exchange for benefits. The Company recognizes
the expense of severance benefits when it is no longer able to withdraw the offer of such
benefits or when the recognition of related restructuring costs is earlier. Severance
benefits that are not expected to be settled in full within 12 months after the balance
sheet date should be discounted.

4. Employee, Director and Supervisor’s Compensation

Employees’, directors’, supervisors’ compensation are recognized as expenses and
liabilities when there is a legal or constructive obligation and the amount can be
reasonably estimated. Any difference between the estimated and actual amounts
distributed by the Board of Directors is recognized as an accounting estimate change. In
the case of stock-based employee compensation, the number of shares is calculated based
on the closing price on the day prior to the Board of Directors’ decision.

The income tax expense includes current and deferred taxes. Except for income taxes
related to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, income
taxes are recognized in income.

The Company calculates current income tax based on the legislated tax rates in the
countries where it operates and generates taxable income as of the balance sheet date.
The management assesses the status of income tax filings in accordance with applicable
tax laws and estimates the income tax liabilities based on the expected tax payments to
tax authorities, as appropriate. The undistributed earnings are subject to income tax in
accordance with the income tax law, and income tax expenses on undistributed earnings
are recognized only after the annual general meeting approves the distribution of the
actual earnings in the following year.
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3. Deferred income tax is recognized based on the balance sheet method, which means that
temporary differences between the tax base and the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet are recognized. If the deferred income tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction (excluding a
business combination) that at the time of the transaction did not affect accounting profit
or taxable income (tax loss), it shall not be recognized. If temporary differences arising
from the subsidiary can be controlled by the Company as to the timing of reversal, and
it is probable that such temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
they shall not be recognized. Deferred income taxes are measured based on the tax rates
expected to apply when the related deferred tax assets are realized or the deferred tax
liabilities are settled, as of the balance sheet date.

4. Deferred tax assets are recognized for temporary differences that are very likely to be
utilized to offset future taxable income within the scope of recognition. These deferred
tax assets are re-evaluated at each balance sheet date for amounts not recognized and
already recognized.

(26) Share Capital

(27)

(28)

(29)

Common stock is classified as equity. The net amount after deducting income tax directly

attributable to the increase in cost of issuing new shares or stock options is recorded as a

deduction from equity in the statement of financial position.

Dividend Distribution

The dividends distributed to the shareholders of the Company are recognized in the financial

statements when they are approved by the Company’s sharcholders’ meeting. Cash dividends

are recognized as liabilities.

Sales Recognition

Sales of Goods

1. The main business of the Company is the manufacturing, printing, dyeing, and processing
of various cotton, wool, silk, and synthetic fiber textiles for domestic and international
sales. Revenue is recognized when control over the product is transferred to the customer,
which occurs when the product is delivered to the customer. The customer has the
discretion to determine the sales route and price of the product, and the Company has no
remaining performance obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
product. When the product is shipped to the designated location, the risks of
obsolescence, deterioration, and loss have been transferred to the customer, and the
customer has accepted the product according to the sales contract, or there is objective
evidence that all acceptance criteria have been met, the point of delivery has occurred.

2. Sales revenue is recognized as net of estimated sales returns and allowances based on
the contract price. Payment terms for sales transactions typically range from 30 to 120
days after shipment. As the time period between transferring goods or services to
customers and their payment does not exceed one year, the Company does not adjust
transaction prices to reflect the time value of money.

3. The contract liability for customer prepayments in the sales contract of the Company is
recognized as revenue when control of the product is transferred to the customer.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognized at fair value when it is reasonably certain that the entity

will comply with the conditions attached to the grant and that the grant will be received. If

the nature of the government grant is to compensate the Company for expenses incurred,

the grant is recognized as income in the statement of comprehensive income systematically

on a basis consistent with the recognition of the related expenses.
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5. Main Sources of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Assumptions Uncertainty
When preparing the consolidated financial statements, the management of the Company has
exercised judgment in determining the accounting policies to be adopted and has made accounting
estimates and assumptions b based on reasonable expectations of future events as of the date of
the balance sheet. The significant accounting estimates and assumptions made may differ from
actual results, and such estimates and assumptions will be continually evaluated and adjusted in
consideration of historical experience and other factors. These estimates and assumptions have
the potential to cause significant adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the next financial year. Please see below for a detailed explanation of the main sources of
significant accounting judgments, estimates, and assumptions uncertainties:
Valuation of Inventory
Due to the inventory must be valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Company
needs to exercise judgment and estimation to determine the net realizable value of inventory as
of the balance sheet date. The Company evaluates inventory as of the balance sheet date based on
the amount that is expected to be realized from normal usage, obsolescence, or lack of market
demand, and reduces the inventory cost to the net realizable value. The inventory valuation is
mainly based on the estimation of product demand within a specific future period, and therefore,
may involve significant changes.
As of December 31, 2022, the carrying amount of inventory was NT$606,860 thousand.

6. Explanation of Significant Accounting Items
(1) Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Cash on Hand and Working Capital $ 3,449 $ 2,536
Checking Deposits and Current Deposits 241,051 216,208
Time Deposits 180.810 130,778
Total $ 425,310 $ 349,522
Interest Rate Range
Time Deposit 1.20%-4.35% 2.30%-2.40%

1. The financial institutions with which the Company has transactions have good credit
quality, and the Company deals with multiple financial institutions to diversify credit
risk. The likelihood of default is expected to be very low.

2. Time deposits with original maturities exceeding three months and time deposits that are
restricted and do not meet the criteria for being classified by the Company as short-term
cash commitments as “financial assets measured at amortized cost.” The amounts as of
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were both NT$7,100 thousand. Please refer
to Note 6(6) for details.

(2) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - Current

December 31, 2022

Current Assets:
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss Measured at Mandatory Basis

Convertible Bonds Redemption Rights $ 3,270
Revaluation Adjustments ( 3.090)
Subtotal $ 180

No such circumstance for 2021.
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1. Details of Financial Asset at Fair Value through Profit or Loss - current are recognized
in the income statement as follows:

2022

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss Measured at Mandatory Basis ($ 3,090)

No such circumstance for 2021.
2. The Company did not pledge any of its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss - current.
(3) Accounts and Notes Receivable

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Account Receivable $ 61,565 $ 113,364
Trade Receivable $ 283,283 $ 332,593
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts ( 2.,153) ( 2.153)
$ 281,130 $ 330,440
1. Accounts Receivable Aging Analysis:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Account Receivable  Trade Receivable Account Receivable  Trade Receivable
Not Overdue $ 276,425 $ 61,565 $ 324,636 $ 113,364
1-90 days 5,363 - 6,248 -
91-180 days 13 - 262 -
Over 181 days 1,482 - 1,447 -
$ 283,283 $ 61,565 $ 332,593 $ 113,364

Aging analysis based on the number of days past due as above.

2. The balances of accounts receivable and notes receivable as of December 31, 2022 and
December 31, 2021 were all generated from customer contracts. As of January 1, 2021,
the balances of trade receivable and account receivable from customer contracts were
NT$287,267 thousand and NT$66,837 thousand, respectively.

3. Assuming no collateral or other credit enhancements, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Company’s accounts receivable from promissory notes was NT$61,565 thousand
and NT$113,364 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
maximum credit risk exposure of the Company’s accounts receivable was NT$281,130
thousand and NT$330,440 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

4. Related credit risk information on trade receivable and account receivable can be found
in Note 12(2).
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(4)

(5)

Inventories
December 31, 2022

Allowance for

Doubtful Accounts
Cost and Impairment Loss Book Value

Raw Materials $ 168,589 (% 9,395) $ 159,194
Material 3,215 B 3,215
Work in Process 100,489 ( 1,087) 99,402

L 400,228 ( 55,567) 344,661
Finishing Goods
Total $ 672,521 S 66,049) $ 606,472

December 31, 2021
Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts
Cost and Impairment Loss Book Value
Raw Materials $ 264,253 $ 10,296) $ 253,957
Material 3,360 - 3,360
Work in Process 110,192 ( 1,085) 109,107
Finishing Goods 406.313 ( 57.482) 348.831
Total $ 784,118 (% 68.863) $ 715,255
The Inventory Cost Recognized as Expenses in the Current Period:
2022 2021
Cost of Goods Sold $ 2,165,308 $ 2,262,003
Unamortized Fixed Manufacturing Overhead 19,494 9,487
Inventory Write-Down and Reversal of
Provisions for Inventory Obsolescence ( 2,814)( 11,767)
Inventory Gain/Loss ( 1,085) 5,156
Sales of Scraps ( 20,804)( 26,781)
$ 2,160,099 $ 2,238,098

The inventory turnover benefit for the Company from January 1 to December 31, 2022 and
January 1 to December 31, 2021 refers to the increase in net realizable value of inventory
due to the disposal of inventory previously written down for losses.
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Non-current Assets:
Equity Instruments
Non-publicly Traded Companies $ 96,423 $ 96,423
Revaluation Adjustments of Financial Assets at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income ( 36.705) ( 8,290)
Total $ 59,718 $ 88,133
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(6)

(7)

The Company has chosen to classify its stock investments, which are strategic or held
for stable dividend income, as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income. The fair values of these equity instruments were NT$59,718 thousand and
NT$88,133 thousand as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Recognition of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income in
profit or loss and comprehensive income are as follows:

2022 2021

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income - Equity Instruments

Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
for Fair Value Changes (S 22,643) $ 6,385

Recognized in Dividend Income in Profit or
Loss Still Held at the End of the Period $ 20 $ 20

The Company did not provide any pledge for the financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - non-current.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost - Non-current

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Non-current Assets:
Restricted time deposits $ 7,100 $ 7,100

Assuming no collateral or other credit enhancements, the most representative financial
assets at amortized cost held by the Company, the maximum credit risk exposure as of
both NT$7,100 thousand.

Please refer to Note 8 for details regarding financial assets pledged as collateral by the
Company.

Please refer to Note 12(2) for credit risk information related to financial assets measured
at amortized cost. The counterparty of the Company’s investment in time deposits is a
financially sound institution, and the possibility of default is expected to be very low.

Investments Accounted using the Equity Method

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Hongyu Holdings L.L.C. $ 473,327 $ 483,358
Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd. 483,305 399,263
Wenfa Development Co., Ltd. 69,467 59,530
Utex Innovation Co., LTD. 54,727 65.476
$ 1,080,826 $ 1,007,627
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Please refer to Note 4(3) of the consolidated financial statements for 2022 of the
Company for information on its subsidiaries.

The share of profits or losses of subsidiaries recognized by the Company using the equity
method is based on the audited financial statements of the respective investee companies
for the same period. For 2022 and 2021, the amounts recognized were losses of
NT$29,502 thousand and profits of NT$4,065 thousand, respectively.

For the overall business development needs, the Company has invested:

A. Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd.

a.

From May to November 2021, a total of CNY 50,000 thousand (equivalent to
NT$217,598 thousand based on the exchange rate at the time of transaction)
was remitted for investment purposes. In June and July 2022, a total of CNY
20,000 thousand (equivalent to NT$89,250 thousand based on the exchange
rate at the time of transaction) was remitted for investment in Jiujiang Deyu
Textile Technology Co., Ltd.

The accumulated investment amount as of December 31, 2022 was CNY
115,000 thousand.

B. Utex Innovation Co., LTD.

a.

On March 29, 2021 and May 12, 2021, the Board of Directors of Utex
Innovation Co., Ltd. and of the Company respectively resolved to carry out a
cash capital increase of NT$30,000 thousand. As the Company did not
subscribe to the entire NT$30,000 thousand in proportion to its shareholding,
its shareholding percentage increased to 86.67%, resulting in a decrease in
retained earnings of NT$19,030 thousand.

(Intentionally left blank)
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(8)

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Cost

Land

Building and Construction
Machinery and Equipment
Transportation and Equipment

Office Equipment
Idle Assets

Other Equipment

Construction in Progress/
Equipment under Testing

Accumulated Depreciation

Building and Construction
Machinery and Equipment
Transportation and Equipment

Office Equipment
Idle Assets

Other Equipment

187

2022

Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Transfer Exchange Rate Impact
$ 304,450 $ - $ - $ - $ 304,450
406,413 3,335 - 4,584 414,332

700,630 15,283 ( 21,012) 24,220 719,121

21,276 989 - - 22,265

11,348 - - - 11,348

3,020 - - 140 3,160

102,365 3,707 - - 106,072

25,859 53,961 - ( 24.,668) 55,152

$ 1,575,361 $ 77,275 (3 21,012) $ 4,276 $ 1,635,900
(S 227,896) ($ 10,583) $ - $ - (5 238,479)
( 478,357) ( 28,731) 21,012 140 ( 485,936)
( 13,906) ( 1,577) - - ( 15,483)
( 7,252)  ( 734) - - ( 7,986)
( 3,019) - - | 140) ( 3,159)
( 87.735) ( 3.880) - - ( 91.615)
(s 818.165) ($ 45,505) $ 21,012 $ - (8 842.658)
$ 757,196 $ 793,242

2021
Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Transfer Exchange Rate Impact




Cost

Land $ 304,450 $ - $ - $ - $ 304,450
Building and Construction 403,293 3,120 - - 406,413
Machinery and Equipment 633,425 68,574 ( 11,898) 10,529 700,630
Transportation and Equipment 16,239 4,940 ( 71) 168 21,276
Office Equipment 11,382 254 ( 288) - 11,348
Idle Assets 3,020 - - - 3,020
Other Equipment 97,687 4,580 1,564) 1,662 102,365
Construction in Progress/

Equipment under Testing 12,349 25,505 - ( 11,995) 25.859

$ 1,481.845 $ 106,973 (3 13,821) $ 364 $ 1,575.361

Accumulated Depreciation

Building and Construction  ($ 217,448) ($ 10,448) $ - $ - (8 227,896)
Machinery and Equipment  ( 466,103) ( 24,152) 11,898 - | 478,357)
Transportation and Equipment ( 12,489) ( 1,488) 71 - 13,9006)
Office Equipment ( 6,806)  ( 734) 288 - ( 7,252)
Idle Assets ( 3,019) - - - 3,019)
Other Equipment ( 85.996) ( 3.303) 1.564 - ( 87,735)
S 791,861) ($ 40,125) $ 13,821 $ - (8 818.165)
$ 689,984 $ 757,196

1.
2.
3.

The current period transfer is due to the transfer from prepaid equipment payment.

Please refer to Note 8 for details on information provided as collateral using real estate, factory buildings, and equipment.

The Company did not capitalize interest in 2022 and 2021.
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(9) Lease Transactions - Lessee

1. The assets leased by the Company include land, buildings, and machinery and equipment,
and the lease terms typically range from 3 to 8 years. The lease agreements are
individually negotiated and include various different terms and conditions. There are no
restrictions imposed other than that the leased assets may not be used as collateral for
borrowings.

2. The information on the book value of the right-of-use assets and the related depreciation
expense is as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Book Value Book Value

Land $ 5,262 $ 2,749
Buildings 1,307 1,989
Machinery and Equipment 9 122

$ 6,578 $ 4,860

2022 2021
Depreciation Expense Depreciation Expense

Land $ 1,277 $ 1,102
Buildings 682 661
Machinery and Equipment 113 118

$ 2,072 $ 1,881

3. The increase in right-of-use assets of the Company was NT$5,270 thousand and
NT$2,271 thousand for the years ended 2022 and 2021, respectively.
4. Information on income and expense items related to lease agreements is as follows:
2022 2021
Items affecting current period income and expenses:

Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 57 $ 32
Expense related to short-term lease agreements _$ 941 $ 1,199
Lease modification gain/loss $ 5 $ 3

5. The total cash outflows for lease payments of the Company in 2022 and 2021 were
NT$3,111 thousand and NT$3,112 thousand, respectively
(10) Investment Properties

2022
Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Transfer Ending Balance
Cost
Land $ 59,160 $ - 8 - 8 - $ 59,160
Building and Construction 6.200 - - - 6.200
§ 65360 $ - S - 8 - $ 65360
Accumulated Depreciation
Building and Construction( 2.151) s 346) _$ - S - ( 2.497)
$ 63209 § 62863
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2021

Beginning Balance Increase Decrease Transfer Ending Balance
Cost
Land $ 59,160 $ -3 -3 - $ 59,160
Building and Construction 6.200 - - - 6.200
$ 65360 $ - 3 - $ - $ 65360
Accumulated Depreciation
Building and Construction 1,807 (3 344) _$ - 8 - ( 2.151)
$ 63,553 $ 63,209
1. Rental income and direct operating expenses of investment properties:
2022 2021
Lease Rental Income Generated from Investment Properties g 4.000 $ 4.000
Direct operating expenses incurred for investment properties
generating lease rental income during the period
$ 465 $ 465
Direct operating expenses incurred for investment properties
not generating lease rental income during the period
$ - $ -

2. The fair value of land held by the Company’s investment property as of December 31,
2022 and 2021 were NT$257,230 thousand and NT$257,230 thousand, respectively,
which were obtained by referencing the transaction prices of adjacent land obtained from
the real estate transaction price inquiry system of the Ministry of the Interior. These
values are classified as level 2 fair values. The fair value of buildings held by the
Company’s investment property as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were NT$35,520
thousand and NT$36,704 thousand, respectively, which were calculated based on the
expected total rental income of the buildings for the next 10 years, taking into account
future economic growth and inflation, and then discounted to present value using the
deposit rates of 2.220% and 1.595% as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
These values are classified as level 3 fair values.

3. Please refer to Note 8 for information on investment properties provided as collateral.

(11) Short-term Borrowings

Loan Nature: December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Unsecured Loan $ 100,000 $ 220,000
Secured Loan 97,658 8,698
Purchase Loan - 11,044

$ 197,658 $ 239,742

Range of interest rates for borrowing
from financial institutions: 1.40%~1.97% 0.88%~1.21%

Please refer to Note 8 for information on collateral provided for loans.
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(12) Short-term Notes Payable
December 31, 2021

Accounts Payable - Commercial Paper $ 160,000
Less: Discount on Accounts Payable - Commercial Paper ( 278)

$ 159,722
Interest Rate Range 1.03%~1.11%

1. None such event occurred on December 31, 2022.

2. The above accounts payable commercial paper is guaranteed by Mega Bills Finance
Corporation, International Bills Finance Corporation, Ta Ching Bills Finance
Corporation, Dah Chung Bills Finance Corporation, and Grand Bills Finance Corporation.

(13) Other Payables

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Accrued Salaries Payable $ 70,434 $ 76,966
Accrued Processing Fees Payable 22,157 30,592
Accounts Payable for Utilities 6,996 6,171
Accounts Payable for Repairs and Maintenance 4,631 7,203
Other 39,883 44,133
$ 144,101 $ 165,065

(14) Bonds Payable

December 31, 2022

Payable Corporate Bonds $ 300,000
Plus: Interest Compensation 1,375
Less: Discount on Payable Corporate Bonds ( 13.806)

$ 287,569

1. None such event occurred on December 31, 2021.
2. Convertible corporate bonds issued by the Company domestically.
A. The terms and conditions of the second unsecured convertible corporate bond
issuance by the Company in the domestic market are as follows:
a. The Company has been approved by the competent authority to raise and issue
its second unsecured convertible corporate bonds in the domestic market. The
total issuance amount is NT$300,000 thousand, with a coupon rate of 109.01%
and a three-year maturity period. The circulation period runs from January 26,
2022 to January 26, 2025. The bonds will be redeemed at maturity at their
face value plus 1.5075% interest compensation, payable in cash. The bonds
were listed and traded on the Taipei Exchange (TPEx) on January 26, 2022.
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b. From three months after the issuance date of this convertible bond until the
maturity date, the bondholders can request to convert this convertible bond
into common stocks of the Company at any time, except for i) Suspension
period of common shares transfer according to laws and regulations; ii) the
period from fifteen business days before the ex-dividend date, ex-rights date
or ex-bonus share date of the Company’s stock until the record date; iii) the
period from the reduction record date of the Company until the day before the
start of trading of the new shares issued due to the reduction; iv) the period
from the suspension of the conversion of stocks due to stock split to the day
before the trading day of the new shares issued by the stock split. The
bondholders can make the request through their securities broker and notify
the Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation, which is the stock registrar
of the Company, to convert the convertible bond into common stocks of the
Company in accordance with this regulation. The rights and obligations of the
common stocks obtained through the conversion shall be the same as those of
the previously issued common stocks of the Company.

c. The conversion price of this convertible corporate bond is determined
according to the pricing model specified in the conversion rules. In case of
anti-dilution provisions triggered by the Company, the conversion price will
be adjusted based on the same pricing model. As of December 31, 2022, the
conversion price of this convertible corporate bond is set at NT$15.3 per share.

d.  When the convertible bonds have been outstanding for three months from the
date of issuance until 40 days prior to the end of the issuance period, if the
closing price of the Company’s common stock exceeds 130% of the then
conversion price for thirty consecutive business days, or if the outstanding
balance of the Convertible Bonds in circulation is less than 10% of the
original issuance amount, the Company may, at any time thereafter, redeem
all the Convertible Bonds in cash at their face value.

e. According to the conversion rules, all redeemed (including those bought back
by securities firms), repaid, or converted convertible bonds of the Company
shall be cancelled and may not be resold or issued again, and their attached
conversion rights shall also be extinguished.

B. As of December 31, 2022, the principal amount of the convertible corporate bonds
has not been converted into common shares.

3. When issuing convertible bonds, the Company separated the equity component of the
conversion right and each liability component element in accordance with International
Accounting Standard 32 "Financial Instruments: Presentation." As of December 31, 2022,
the "Capital Surplus - Subscription Rights" was recorded as NT$44,848 thousand. The
embedded call option was also separated from the host contract liability instrument in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 9 "Financial Instruments"
as it was not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract
liability instrument. The net amount of the embedded call option was then recorded as
"Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss." The effective interest rate of the
host contract liability instrument after separation was 2.3%.

(15) Long-term Borrowings
Type of Borrowings Borrowing Period December 31, 2022
Secured Borrowings From August 13, 2019 to August 13, 2024
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting
from November 13, 2021 $ 116,667
From November 20, 2019 to November 20, 2026
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting
from December 20, 2019 83,928
From October 13, 2020 to October 13, 2025
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting
from January 13, 2023. 150.000
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From May 20, 2021 to May 20, 2028
Monthly interest payment
The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting

from June 20, 2021 154,762

505,357

Less: Long-term borrowings due within one year. ( 166,667)

$ 338,690

Interest rate range 1.84%~1.97%
Type of Borrowings Borrowing Period December 31, 2021

Secured Borrowings From August 13, 2019 to August 13, 2024

Monthly interest payment

The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting from

November 13, 2021 $ 183,333
From November 20, 2019 to November 20, 2026

Monthly interest payment

The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting from

December 20, 2019 105,357
From October 13, 2020 to October 13, 2025

Monthly interest payment

The principal be repaid in 12 installments starting from

January 13, 2023 150,000
From May 20, 2021 to May 20, 2028

Monthly interest payment

The principal be repaid in 84 installments starting from June

20, 2021 183,333

622,023

Less: Long-term borrowings due within one year ( 116,666)
$ 505,357

Interest Rate Range 1.20%~1.35%

(16) Pension
1.

A. The Company has established a retirement plan with defined benefits in accordance
with the Labor Standards Act. The plan applies to the service years of all regular
employees before the implementation of the Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005, as
well as the subsequent service years of employees who choose to continue to be
subject to the Labor Standards Act. Retirement benefits are calculated based on
years of service and the average salary in the last 6 months before retirement. For
those with service years of 15 years or less, two months’ basic salary is provided
for each year of service. For those with service years exceeding 15 years, one
month’s basic salary is provided for each year of service, with a maximum of 45
months’ basic salary. The Company contributes 2% of total salary as a monthly
provision for retirement benefits, which is deposited in a special account in the
name of the Labor Retirement Reserve Supervisory Committee at the Bank of
Taiwan. In addition, the Company estimates the balance of the Labor Retirement
Reserve account at the end of each fiscal year. If the balance is insufficient to
cover the estimated retirement benefits for employees who are expected to retire
in the following year, based on the above calculation, the Company will make up
the difference by the end of March of the following year.

B. The amounts recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Present Value of Defined Benefit $ 54,861 $ 49,674
Obligation
Fair value of Pan Assets ( 34.689) ( 31.705)
Net Defined Benefit Lability $ 20,172 $ 17,969
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C. Changes in Net Defined Benefit Liability:

Present Value of Fair Value of Plan Net Defined Benefit
Defined Benefit Assets Liability
Obligation
2022
Balance as of Jan. 1 $ 49,674 (% 31,705) $ 17,969
Current Service Cost 271 - 271
Interest Expense (Income) 248 ( 161) 87

50,193 ( 31.866) 18,327

Remeasurement Items:

Plan Asset Return - ( 2,493) ( 2,493)
(Excluding amounts

included in interest

income or expense)

Financial Assumption 951 - 951
Change
Experience Adjustment 4.407 - 4.407
5.358 ( 2.493) 2.865
Provision for Retirement - ( 1,020) ( 1,020)
Benefit
Payment of Retirement  ( 690) 690 -
Benefit
Balance as of Dec. 31 $ 54,861 (% 34,689) _$ 20,172
Present Value of Fair Value of Plan Assets Net Defined Benefit
Defined Benefit Liability
Obligation
2021
Balance as of Jan. 1 $ 48,403 ($ 30,349) $ 18,054
Current Service Cost 282 - 282
Interest Expense 363 ( 240) 123
(Income)
49,048 ( 30,589) 18.459

Remeasurement Items:
Plan Asset Return - ( 285) ( 285)
(Excluding amounts
included in interest
income or expense)
Financial 965 - 965
Assumption Change
Experience - - -
Adjustment

965 ( 285) 680
Provision for - ( 1,170) ( 1,170)
Retirement Benefit
Payment of Retirement ( 339) 339 -
Benefit
Balance as of Dec. 31 _$ 49,674 (3 31,705) $ 17,969
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The assets of Company’s defined benefit retirement plan fund are entrusted to
Taiwan Bank to operate according to the investment and utilization plan set for
the fund year, based on the proportion and amount range of commissioned business
items stipulated in Article 6 of the Regulations Governing Receipt and Utilization
of Income and Expenditures of Labor Retirement Funds (depositing in domestic
and foreign financial institutions, investing in domestic and foreign securities
listed on stock exchanges, over-the-counter markets, or privately issued securities,
and investing in securitized commodities of domestic and foreign real estate, etc.).
The related utilization situation is supervised by the Labor Pension Fund
Supervisory Committee. The minimum income distribution for the fund’s operation
and utilization each year shall not be less than the income calculated based on the
two-year fixed deposit interest rate of the local bank. If there is any shortfall, it
shall be supplemented by the National Treasury after approval by the competent
authority. As the Company has no right to participate in the operation and
management of the fund, it is unable to disclose the classification of the plan
assets’ fair value in accordance with paragraph 142 of International Accounting
Standard No. 19. Please refer to the labor retirement fund utilization report for
each year as announced by the government for the fair value of the total assets of
the fund as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Summary of actuarial assumptions for retirement benefits.

2022 2021
) 1.25% 0.50%
Discount Rate
3.00% 2.00%

Future Salary Increase Rate

The assumptions for future mortality rates for the years 2022 and 2021 are
estimated based on the 2"Y Life Table for Annuity Insurance of Taiwan Life
Insurance Industry.

The analysis of the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligation
due to changes in the main actuarial assumptions adopted is as follows:

Discount Rate Future Salary Increase Rate
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
0.25% 0.25% 1% 1%

Dec. 31,2022

Impact on the Present Value of

Defined Benefit Obligations  ($ 936) $ 966 § 4,024 ($_ 3.,610)
Dec. 31,2021

Impact on the Present Value of

Defined Benefit Obligations  ($ 964) $ 998 $ 4239 (§  3,756)
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The sensitivity analysis presented above is based on the assumption that all other
variables remain constant while only one variable changes. In practice, however,
changes in one variable may be interrelated with changes in other variables. The
sensitivity analysis is consistent with the method used to calculate the net
retirement benefit liability in the balance sheet.

The methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis for the
current period are consistent with those used in the previous period.

The Company anticipates making a contribution of NTD 1,020 million to the
retirement plan in 2023.

As of December 31, 2022, the weighted average remaining service period of the
retirement plan is 9.9 years.

Since July 1, 2005, the Company has established a defined contribution retirement
plan for its employees who are nationals of Taiwan, in accordance with the Labor
Pension Act. Under this plan, the Company contributes 6% of each employee’s
monthly salary to his/her individual account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance.
Upon retirement, the employee may choose to receive monthly pension payments
or a lump sum payment, based on the balance in his/her individual account and the
accumulated investment income.

The retirement benefit costs recognized by the Company in accordance with the
above-mentioned retirement benefit plan for the years 2022 and 2021 were
NT$10,536 thousand and NT$10,239 thousand, respectively.

(17) Share Capital
1.

As of December 31, 2022, the authorized capital of the Company was NT$1,838,311
thousand, and the paid-in capital was NT$1,298,970 thousand, with a par value of NT$
10 per share.

The number of outstanding common shares of the Company was adjusted as follows at
the beginning and end of the period:

Unit: Thousand Shares
2022 2021

Beginning Share (Ending Share) 129,897 129,897

(18) Capital Surplus

According to the Company Law, the capital surplus obtained from issuing stocks above
par value and the capital surplus obtained from receiving gifts shall, except for offsetting
losses, be distributed as new shares or cash to shareholders in proportion to their original
shareholding when the Company has no accumulated losses. In addition, according to
relevant regulations of the Securities and Exchange Act, when the above-mentioned
capital surplus is allocated to capital, the total amount shall not exceed 10% of the paid-
in capital each year. If the Company still has insufficient funds to cover the capital
deficiency after using the legal reserve, it may not use the capital surplus to make up for
the shortfall.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Can be used to offset losses, distribute cash, or allocate

to share capital

Treasury Stocks Transaction $ 5,887 $ 5,887

Cannot be used to offset losses, distribute cash, or

allocate to share capital

Recognition of equity component resulting from the
issuance of convertible corporate bonds

$ 44,848 $ -

196



(19) Retained Earnings

1.

According to the Company Act, after deducting the losses from previous years, 10% of
the remaining balance of the Company’s after-tax profits must be set aside as a legal
reserve. The rest of the balance, together with the accumulated undistributed profits
from the previous year, shall be considered as distributable profits. The legal reserve
may only be used to offset the Company’s losses or to increase its capital. However,
when increasing the capital, the legal reserve shall not exceed 25% of the paid-in capital,
and only half of the reserve may be used.

If there is a net profit in the annual financial statements of the Company, taxes and other
dues shall be paid in accordance with the law, and 10% of the balance, after offsetting
accumulated losses, shall be appropriated as the legal reserve. However, when the legal
reserve has reached the Company’s paid-in capital, no further appropriation is required.
The remaining balance shall be appropriated or transferred to the special surplus reserve
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations. If there is still a balance, it shall be
combined with the accumulated undistributed profits and proposed by the Board of
Directors for approval at the Shareholders’ Meeting for the distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

The distribution of dividends to the shareholders is based on both stock dividends and
cash dividends. For the next year, the cash dividends shall not be less than 10% of the
total amount of dividends. The actual distribution ratio is subject to the authorization of
the Board of Directors based on the Company’s financial condition and capital budget.
When distributing profits, the Company must first allocate a portion to the special
reserve for undistributed earnings, which is derived from the debit balance in other
equity items as of the year-end balance sheet date in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. Only after this reserve is set up can profits be distributed. If the debit
balance in other equity items is reversed in the future, the amount of the reversal can be
included in the distributable profits.

The dividend distributions for the year 2021 and 2020, which was approved by the
shareholders’ meetings on June 21, 2022, and August 27, 2021, respectively, are as
follows:

2021 2020
Dividend per Dividend per
Amount Share (NT$) Amount Share (NT$)
Legal Reserve $ 14,152 $ 9,868
Cash Dividend 64,948 $ 0.50 51,959 $ 0.40
Total $ 79,100 $ 61,827

The dividend distribution proposal for the year 2022, proposed by the Board of Directors
on March 28, 2023, is as follows:

2022
Dividend per
Amount Share (NT$)
Legal Reserve $ 7,514
Cash Dividend 51,959 $ 0.40
Total $ 59,473

Above proposal is still pending approval by the shareholders’ meeting as of March 28,
2023.

Please refer to Note 6(26) for information regarding employee compensation and director
and supervisor remuneration.

(20) Operating Revenue

1.

Breakdown of customer contract revenue.
The Company’s revenue is derived from the transfer of goods at a certain point in time.
Revenue can be broken down by the following geographic regions:
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2022

Asia Europe America Other Total

Contract

Revenue $ 2,378,304 $ 18,722 $ 86,047 $ 1739 $ 2,484,812
2021
Asia Europe America Other Total

Contract

Revenue $ 2,510,957 $ 15,604 $ 87,806 $ 2191 $ 2,616,558

2. Contract Liabilities — Current
The Company recognizes the following contract liabilities related to customer contract

revenue:
Dec. 31, 2022 Dec. 31,2021 Jan. 1, 2021
Contract Liabilities
Advance from Customers $ 15,711 $ 16,195 $ 16,742

Beginning contract liabilities and revenue recognized in the current period are as follows:

2022 2021
Beginning Contract Liabilities and Revenue $ 11,664 $ 15,203
Recognized this period
(21) Interest Income
2022 2021
Bank deposit interest $ 5.081 $ 4.481
(22) Other Income
2022 2021
Rental Income $ 8,168 $ 8,117
Government Grands Income 1,509 12,066
Other Income - Miscellaneous 8911 7,146
Total $ 18,588 $ 27,329

The government grands income for the year 2022 and 2021 were from the Conventional
Industry Technology Development (CITD) and A-Plus Innovation and Development
program subsidized by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.
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(23) Other Gains and Losses

2022 2021
Net Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss $ 21,291 $ 2,094)
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant, and equipment 1,552 662
Depreciation of Investment Properties ( 346) ( 344)
Depreciation Expense on Leased Assets ( 3,090) -
Gain/Loss on Financial Assets at Fair Value
through P/L ( 594) -
Other Income - Miscellaneous $ 18,813 (3 1,776)
(24) Financial Costs
2022 2021
Interest Expense $ 11,040 $ 10,232
Interest Expense on Bonds Payable 7,320 -
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 57 32
Total $ 18,417 $ 10,264
(25) Additional Information about the Nature of Expenses
2022
Cost of revenue Operating expenses Total
Employee Benefits Expenses $ 226,525 $ 134,480 $ 361,005
Depreciation Expenses for Property,
Plant, and Equipment 42,333 3,172 45,505
Depreciation Expenses for Right-of-
use Assets 1,390 682 2,072
Amortization Expenses - 795 795
$ 270,248 $ 139,129 $ 409,377
2021
Cost of Revenue Operating Expenses Total
Employee Benefits Expenses $ 225,625 $ 140,442 $ 366,067
Depreciation Expenses for Property,
Plant, and Equipment 36,827 3,298 40,125
Depreciation Expenses for Right-
of-use Assets 1,220 661 1,881
Amortization Expenses - 1,166 1,166
$ 263,672 $ 145,567 $ 409,239
(26) Employee Benefits Expense
2022
Cost of Revenue Operating Expenses Total
Salary expense $ 194,344 $ 109,967 8 304,311
Labor and Health Insurance Expenses 17,504 10,036 27,540
Pension Expenses 6,569 4,325 10,894
Director Remuneration - 6,989 6,989
Other Employee Benefits Expenses 8,108 3.163 11,271
$ 226,525 $ 134,480 $ 361,005
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2021

Cost of Revenue Operating Expenses Total
Salary expense $ 194,216 $ 115,735 $ 309,951
Labor and Health Insurance Expenses 17,478 9,484 26,962
Pension Expenses 6,447 4,197 10,644
Director Remuneration - 7,475 7,475
Other Employee Benefits Expenses 7.484 3,551 11,035
$ 225,625 $ 140,442 $ 366,067

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the total number of employees of the Company were
494 and 500 respectively, and there were 7 directors who were not employees of the
Company.

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, if the Company generates profits
in any fiscal year, at least 2% of the profits shall be allocated as employee compensation
and distributed as cash or stock dividends by resolution of the Board of Directors, and
the distribution shall include eligible employees of subsidiary companies meeting certain
conditions. In addition, the Company may allocate up to 5% of the profits by resolution
of the Board of Directors as director compensation. However, if the Company has
accumulated losses, the amount necessary to offset the losses shall be reserved in
advance, and employee compensation and director compensation shall be allocated in
accordance with the aforementioned ratio.

The average employee benefits expenses for the current year were NT$727 thousand,
which was the same as the previous year.

The average employee salary expenses for the current year were NT$625 thousand,
compared to NT$629 thousand in the previous year.

Adjustments and variations in average employee salary expenses (0.64%)

Current audit committee was established after the election of the Board of Directors in
August 2021, and is without supervisors.

The remuneration for supervisors in 2022 and 2021 were NT$0 and NT$1,120 thousand,
respectively.

The remuneration of the directors and supervisors of the Company includes director
remuneration, transportation and other expenses, and director and supervisor
remuneration. Director remuneration is determined based on industry standards, and
transportation and other expenses are paid based on attendance at board meetings. The
director and supervisor remuneration are allocated in accordance with the Company’s
articles of incorporation, and is subject to review by the Compensation Committee before
being submitted to the Board of Directors for approval, and then to the shareholders’
meeting for ratification. The remuneration of individual directors and supervisors is
calculated based on the principle of proportional allocation as stipulated in the
"Regulations Governing the Payment of Remuneration to Directors, Supervisors, and
Functional Committee Members", and the allocation results are submitted to the
Compensation Committee for review and approval by the Board of Directors before being
paid. The remuneration of executives and employees includes salary, bonuses, and other
employee compensation, which are determined based on their job positions and
responsibilities, with reference to industry standards for the same positions, as well as
performance evaluations based on the “Employee Performance Incentive Program”. The
evaluation results are included in the calculation basis for salary compensation based on
employee assessments. The remuneration of executives is subject to review by the
Compensation Committee and approval by the Board of Directors.

The estimated amounts of employee and director/supervisor remuneration for the
Company in 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

2022 2021
Employee Remuneration $ 3,349 $ 5,947
Director/Supervisor Remuneration 3.349 5,947
$ 6,698 $ 11,894
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10.

The estimated amounts for employee remuneration and director/supervisor remuneration

for year 2022 and 2021 were based on the earnings of each respective year, and were

both estimated at 3% and approved by the Board of Directors. Employee remuneration

will be paid in cash.

The amounts recognized for employee remuneration and director/supervisor

remuneration in year 2021, as approved by the Board of Directors, were consistent with

the amounts recognized in the financial statements for year 2021.

The information related to employee and director/supervisor remuneration approved by

the Board of Directors can be found on the Market Observation Post System.
(Intentionally left blank)

(27) Income Tax

1.

Income Tax Expense
A. Components of income tax expense:

2022 2021

Current Income Tax

Income Tax Expense for the Current Year $ 28,025 $ 31,191

Over-provision of Income Tax in Prior Year ( 790) ( 3.251)

27,235 27,940

Deferred Income Tax

Origination and Reversal of Temporary

Differences 269 4,758
Total $ 27,504 $ 32,698

B. Income tax related to other comprehensive income:

2022 2021

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets at ($ 5,772) $ 2,174
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income
Foreign Exchange Differences Related to - ( 1,528)
Foreign Operations
Remeasurements of Defined Benefit ( 573)  ( 137)
Obligations

3 6,345) $ 509
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2.

3.

The Relationship between Income Tax Expense and Accounting Profit.

2022

Income Tax Calculated Based on Statutory Tax Rate
on Pre-tax Income

Deductible Amounts as Stipulated by Tax Regulation

Exempt Income as Stipulated by Tax Regulation

Unrecognized Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities) Due
to Temporary Differences

Realizability Assessment Changes in Deferred Tax
Assets

Over-provision of Income Tax in Prior Year

Other
Total

2021
$ 20,987 $ 35,332
917 367

158 1,165

5738 ( 4,048)

251 3,133

( 790)  ( 3,251)
243 -

$ 27,504 $ 32,698

The amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising from temporary differences are

as follows:
2022
Recognized
Jan. 1 Recognized in In Other Dec. 31
— Profits or Loss Comprehensive ~—
Income
Temporary Differences:
-Deferred Tax Assets:
Allovs{ance for Doubtful Accounts - Out $ 2451 S 425 S _ 0§ 2876
of Adjustment
Inventory Write-down 13,773 ( 563) - 13,210
Rerpeasprement of Defined Benefit 5.708 ) 573 6.281
Obligations
Unrealized Gains or Losses on
Financial Assets at Fair Value through 1,212 - 5,772 6,984
Other Comprehensive Income
Other 4,563 19 - 4,582
Subtotal $ 27,707 3 119) $ 6,345 $ 33,933
-Deferred Tax Liabilities
%())(wsmn for Land Value Increment ($ 67,569) S ) S - ($67,569)
Unrealized Gains on Foreign Currency
Translation ( 333) ( 118) - ( 41)
Other - ( 32) - ( 32)
Total ($ 67.,902) (3 150) $ - ($68,052)
2021
Recognized
Recognized in In Other
Jan. 1 Profits or Loss Comprehensive Dec. 31
Income
Temporary Differences:
-Deferred Tax Assets: $ 3,393 (% 942) $ - $ 2451
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Out 16,126 (  2,353) - 13,773
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of Adjustment

Inventory Write-down 5,571 - 137 5,708
Ren}eagurement of Defined Benefit 3.386 ) ( 2.174) 1212
Obligations
Unrealized Gains or Losses on Financial
Assets at Fair Value through Other 10,455 ( 5.892) - 4,563
Comprehensive Income
Other $ 38,931 ($ 9,187 ($ 2,037) _$27,707
Subtotal
-Deferred Tax Liabilities ($ 67,569) $ - $ - ($67,569)
Provision for Land Value Increment Tax (  3,200) 3,200 - -
Unrealized Exchange Gain on Investment
using Equity Method ¢ 1,562) 1,229 - ( 333)
Unrealizpd Gains on Foreign Currency ( 1.528) ) 1.528 i
Translation
Other ($ 73,859) § 4429 $ 1,528 (§67,902)

4. Unrecognized temporary differences that are not deductible for deferred tax assets:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Deductible temporary differences $ 171,414 _§ 142,724

5. The income tax of our company’s business has been assessed and verified by the tax
authorities up to the year 2020.

(28) Earnings per Share

2022
Weighted Average .
Amount Outstanding Shares Ea_rmggs_pg
after Tax ; Share (in NT$)
— (in Thousands)
Basic Earnings per Share
Net Profit for the Period $ 77,429 129,897 $ 0.60
Diluted Earnings per Share
Net Profit for the Period $ 77,429 129,897
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares:
Employee Compensation - 453
Convertible Bonds 5.856 19,608
Net Profit for the Period Adjusted for the
. . . $ , $ .
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares 83,28 — 149,958 0.56
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2021

Amount Weighted Average Earnings per
P Outstanding Shares "
after Tax . Share (in NT$)
= (in Thousands)
Basic Earnings per Share
Net Profit for the Period $ 143,963 129,897 $ 1.11
Diluted Earnings per Share
Net Profit for the Period $ 143,963 129,897
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares:
Employee Compensation - 453
Net Profit for the Period Adjusted for the
o . . $ , R $ 10
Effect of Dilutive Potential Ordinary Shares 5143963 —130.350 = LI0

In calculating diluted earnings per share, it is assumed that the employee compensation
is fully distributed in the form of stock options. When such potential common shares
have a dilutive effect, they are included in the weighted average number of shares
outstanding.

(29) Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Partial cash payment for investing activities:

2022 2021
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment $ 81,551 $ 107,337
Add: Beglnn}ng Balance.of Payable for 2,286 374
Construction and Equipment
Less: Ending Balance of Payable for
Construction and Equipment ( 2,199) ( 2,286)
Less: Beginning Balance of Advances to
Construction Contractors ( >.013) ( 363)
Add: Endlng‘Balance of Advances to 590 5.013
Construction Contractors
Cash Paid during the Period $ 77,215 $ 110,573
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(30) Changes in Liabilities from Financing Activities

Long-term
Borrowings Total Liabilities
Short-term Short-term Lease Bonds (including those = Deposit Received Dividends  from Financing
Borrowings Notes Payable Liabilities Payable due within one year)  for Guarantee Payable Activities
Jan. 1, 2022 $ 239,742 $ 159,722 $ 4,885 $ - $ 622,023 $ 285 $ - $ 1,026,657
Changes in Cash Flows from
Financing Activities ( 42,084) (  160,000) ( 2,113) 321,827 ( 116,666) 3,909 ( 64,948) ( 60,075)
Other Non-cash Changes - 278 3785 ( 34.258) - - 64.948 34,753
Dec. 31, 2022 $ 197,658 $ - $ 6,557 $ 287,569 $ 505,357 $4,194 _§ - $ 1,001,335
Long-term e
Short-term Short-term Lease Bonds Borrowings Deposit Received  Dividends W
Borrowings Notes Payable Liabilities Payable (including those for Guarantee Payable .
. Activities
due within one year) E—
Jan. 1, 2022 $ 278,668 $ 179,882 $ 4,733 $ - $ 384,564 $ 414 § -3 848,261
Changes in Cash Flows from
Financing Activities ( 38,926) ( 20,000) ( 1,881) - 237,459 ( 129) ( 51,959) 124,564
Other Non-cash Changes - ( 160) 2,033 - - - 51.959 53.832
Dec. 31, 2022 $ 239,742 $ 159,722 $ 4,885 $ - $ 622,023 $ 285 § - $ 1,026,657
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7. Related Party Transactions
(1) Name and Relationship of Related Parties

Name of Related Parties Relationship with the Company

Yeh, Ming-Zhou Key management personnel of the Company
Yeh, Jun-Lin Other related parties of the Company
Hongyu Holdings L.L.C. (Delaware, USA) Subsidiaries of the Company

Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. (Utex Innovation) Subsidiaries of the Company

Wenfa Development L.L.C. Subsidiaries of the Company

Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiaries of the Company

Hongyu Textile (Zhejiang) L.L.C. Subsidiary’s subsidiary of the Company
Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. Subsidiary’s subsidiary of the Company
Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., Ltd. (Zhejiang Yaoliang) Affiliated Enterprises of the Company
He Guan Textile Co., Ltd. Other related parties of the Company
Yunite Textile International Co., Ltd. Other related parties of the Company
Zhen Hong Investment Co., Ltd. Other related parties of the Company
Yeh-Meng Metal Ind. Co., Ltd. Other related parties of the Company

(2) Significant Transactions with Related Parties
1. Operating Revenue

2022 2021
Sales of Goods
Subsidiaries (Sub-subsidiaries) $ 147,640 $ 332,909
Affiliated Enterprise 98.077 248.119
$ 245,717 $ 581,028

The aforementioned sales transactions are priced in accordance with our general pricing
policies and are subject to a 90-day credit term for collection. It should be noted that
our collection period for general customers ranges from 30 to 120 days.

2. Purchase

2022 2021

Purchase of Goods

Subsidiaries (Sub-subsidiaries) $ 12,147 $ 3,240

Affiliated Enterprise 6,803 16,465
Labor (Processing Fees)

Subsidiaries (Sub-subsidiaries) 58,027 48,254

Affiliated Enterprise - 225
Total $ 76,977 $ 68,184

The aforementioned purchase transactions are conducted under the same conditions as
those with general suppliers, with payment terms of 60 to 90 days after the end of the
month. The payment period for our general suppliers ranges from 30 to 120 days.
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3.

4. Accounts Receivable from Related Parties

Rental Income

2022
Lessee Rented Property
Utex Innovation Land and Buildings
Other Land and Buildings
2021
Lessee Rented Property
Utex Innovation Land and Buildings
Other Land and Buildings

Rental Income Collection Method
$ 4,000 Quarterly or Monthly Payments
571 Quarterly or Monthly Payments
$ 4,571
Rental Income Collection Method
$ 4,000 Quarterly or Monthly Payments
571 Quarterly or Monthly Payments
$ 4,571

The rental price was determined by referencing the rental prices of adjacent areas at the
time of the rental and the rented area.

Accounts Receivable and Noted Receivable
Subsidiaries (Sub-subsidiaries)
Affiliated Enterprise

Zhejiang Yaoliang
Other

Other Receivable
Subsidiaries (Sub-subsidiaries)
Delaware, US
Other

December 31, 2022

$ 35,064
40,580

167

$ 75,811

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

$ 64,033
121,098

2,200

$ 187,331

December 31, 2021

$ - $ 10,912
26 26
$ 26 $ 10,938

Accounts receivable and notes receivable mainly arise from sales transactions. The aging
and amount of overdue accounts are as follows:

Overdue Aging

Zhejiang Yaoliang 30 to 120 days
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5. Accounts Payable to Related Parties

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Notes and Accounts Payable
Subsidiaries (Sub-subsidiaries) $ 5,941 $ 1,692
Affiliated Enterprise 215 3.307
$ 6,156 $ 4,999
Other Payable
Subsidiaries $ 8,326 $ 10,253

The other payables mainly arise from processing fees for dyeing, finishing, and weaving
services.
6. Loans to Related Parties (listed under Other Receivables - Related Parties)
A. Ending Balance

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Zhejiang Hon

yiahe Foneyt $ 67,750 S ;
B. Interest Income
2022 2021

Utex Innovation $ _ $ 36
Zhejiang Hongyu 1.479 .
$ 1,479 $ 36

The loan provided to affiliated companies was subject to repayment within one year
from the date of borrowing, with annual interest rates ranging from 1.80% to 2.50%
in fiscal year 2022. Please refer to Note 13(1)1. for details on loans to others.

(3) Key Management Compensation

2022 2021
Short-term Employee Benefits $ 26,564 $ 24,222
Post-Employment Benefits 714 589
Total $ 27,278 $ 24,811

1. Short-term employee benefits comprise salaries, paid annual leave, and the Company’s
portion of labor and health insurance premiums for employees in service.

2. Post-employment benefits comprise to retirement benefits expenses borne by the
Company.
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8. Pledged Assets

The details of assets pledged by the Company as collateral are as follows:

Book Value

Assets December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Purpose of Collateral
Real Estate, Plant and Equipment
Land Long-tgrm/short-term

$ 265228 $ 265,228 borrowings
Building and Constructions 166,887 176.831 ﬁ(())rr;%-ﬁ;rgéshort-term
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost - Current 59,160 59,160 Accepted bill payable
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost - Non-current 3,703 4,049 Eﬁiﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁed for
Deposit for guarantee
(Presented under Other Non-current Assets) 7,100 7,100 Product Warranty Guarantees

$ 502,078 _$ 512,368

9. Material Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contractual Commitments
(1) Contingencies:
There are no such contingencies.
(2) Commitments:
Capital expenditures that have been contracted but not yet incurred.
December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Property, Plant, and Equipment $ 16,954 $ 12,887
Intangible Assets 14,286 24,762
$ 31,240 $ 37,649

10. Significant Disaster Loss

No significant disaster loss.
11. Significant Subsequent Events

No significant subsequent events.
12. Other

(1) Capital Management

The capital management objective of the Company is to ensure the continued operation of
the Company, maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce funding costs, and provide
returns to shareholders. To maintain the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt. The Company
uses the debt-to-asset ratio to monitor its capital, which is calculated by dividing the total

amount of debt by the total amount of assets.

During the year 2022, the Company continued to pursue the same strategy as in year 2021,
focusing on reducing the debt-to-asset ratio to a reasonable level of risk. As of December
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company’s debt-to-asset ratios were as follows:

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Total Liabilities $ 1,511,293 $ 1,641,823
Total Assets $ 3,626,525 $ 3,711,210
Debt-to-asset Ratio 42% 44%
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(2) Financial Instrument
1. Types of Financial Instruments

Financial Assets

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Investment in designated equity instruments
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Notes Receivable (Including Related Parties)

Accounts Receivable (Including Related Parties)

Other Receivables

Deposits Paid as Collateral

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Short-term Borrowings

Notes Payable - Short-term

Notes Payable — Trade
(Including Related Parties)

Accounts Payables
(Including Related Parties)

Other Payables
Bonds Payable

Long-term Borrowings
(due within one year or operating cycle)

Deposits Received

Lease Liabilities
(due within one year or one operating cycle)

2. Risk Management Policy

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

$ 59,718 $ 88,133
425,310 349,522

7,100 7,100

61,647 126,903

356,859 504,232

69,225 12,901

1,268 2,616

$ 921,409 $ 1,003,274

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

$ 197,658 $ 239,742
- 159,722

106,909 171,195

126,132 145,277

144,101 165,065
287,569 -
505,357 622,023
4,194 285

$ 1,371,920 $ 1,503,309
$ 6,557 $ 4,885

A. The daily operations of the Company are subject to various financial risks,
including market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk),

credit risk, and liquidity risk.
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B. The management of financial risks is carried out by the Company’s finance
department in accordance with the policies approved by the Board of Directors.
The finance department closely collaborates with the various business units and
the Office of the Chairman to identify, assess and mitigate financial risks. The
execution of financial risk management is carried out in accordance with the
Company’s internal management rules and internal control systems. The process
and results of its execution shall comply with legal regulations.

The Board of Directors of the Company oversees the adherence to the financial

risk policies and procedures by the management, and reviews the adequacy of the

framework for managing the relevant financial risks. The internal audit personnel
assist the Board of Directors in its supervisory role by conducting regular and ad
hoc reviews, and reporting the results to the Board.

3. Nature and Extent of Significant Financial Risks

A. Market Risk
Currency Risk
a. The Company operates globally and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange

risk arising from transactions in functional currencies different from that of
the Company and its subsidiaries, mainly the US dollar and Chinese Renminbi.
The related foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognized assets and liabilities.

b. The management of the Company has established policies governing the
management of the foreign exchange risk with respect to its functional
currencies. It is required to manage its overall foreign exchange risk through
the Company’s finance department. The measurement of foreign exchange risk
is based on the expected transactions of highly probable outflows in US
dollars and Chinese Renminbi.

c. The Company’s operations involve several non-functional currencies (the
functional currencies of the Company is New Taiwan Dollar), and are
therefore subject to the impact of exchange rate fluctuations. The significant
foreign currency assets and liabilities that are affected by exchange rate
fluctuations are as follows:

December 31, 2022

. . Impact on
%ic:;li%?lﬁlgl?ggéy) Foreign Currency Book Va}ue . Impact on Other .
Amount Exchange (TWDin Fluctuation Profitand Comprehensive
(thousands) Rate thousand) Range Loss Income
Financial Assets
Monetary items
USD:TWD $ 6,735 30.71 $206,838 1% $ 2,068 $ -
RMB:TWD 52,321 441 230,947 1% 2,309 -
JPY:TWD 63,401 0.23 14,734 1% 147 -
Investments Using Equity Method
USD:TWD $ 13,167 30.71 $404,356 Not Applicable
RMB:TWD 109,593 4.41 483,305 Not Applicable
JPY:TWD 299,876 0.23 68,971 Not Applicable
December 31, 2021
Foreign Impact on
(Foreign Currency: Currency Book Value Impact on Other
Functional Currency) Amount Exchange (TWD in Fluctuation Profit and Comprehensive
(thousands) Rate thousand) Range Loss Income
Financial Assets
Monetary items
USD:TWD $ 4,046 27.68 $111,993 1% $1,120 $ -
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RMB:TWD 84,527 4.34 367,075 1% 3,671 -
Investments Using Equity Method

USD:TWD
RMB:TWD
JPY:TWD

$ 14,862 27.68 $411,388 Not Applicable
91,939 4.34 399,264 Not Applicable
299,876 0.24 71,970 Not Applicable

The overall exchange gain/loss (realized and unrealized) recognized in the year 2022 and
2021 related to the significant impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the monetary items
of the Company amounted to a net gain of NT$21,291 thousand and a net gain of NT$2,094
thousand, respectively.

Price Risk

a.

The equity instruments exposed to price risk are the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income. In order to manage the price risk
of equity instrument investments, the Company diversifies its investment
portfolio in accordance with the limits set by the Company.

The Company mainly invests in equity instruments and funds issued by
domestic companies, the prices of which are affected by the uncertainty of
the future value of the investment target. If the prices of these equity
instruments rise or fall by 1% while all other factors remain unchanged, the
gains or losses from equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income for the years 2022 and 2021 will increase or decrease
by NT$478 thousand and NT$705 thousand, respectively.

Cash Flow and Fair Value Interest Rate Risk

a.

The Company’s interest rate risk arises primarily from short-term notes
payable, short-term borrowings, and long-term borrowings issued at floating
rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. In 2022 and
2021, the Company’s borrowings issued at floating rates were primarily
denominated in New Taiwan Dollars.

If the borrowing interest rate increases or decreases by 0.1%, while all other
factors remain constant, the after-tax net profit for the years 2022 and 2021
will increase or decrease by NT$562 thousand and NT$817 thousand,
respectively. This is mainly due to the variability of interest expense resulting
from the floating-rate borrowings.

B. Credit Risk

a.

The credit risk of the Company arises from the risk of financial loss due to
counterparties’ failure to fulfill their contractual obligations in transactions
with customers or financial instruments. This risk mainly comes from counter
parties’ inability to settle receivables according to the payment terms.

The Company examines the creditworthiness of banks and financial
institutions with which it deals and accepts them as counterparties only after
assessing their credit quality to be satisfactory. In accordance with the
internally established credit policy, each operating entity within the Company
and each new customer must undergo management and credit risk analysis
before the terms and conditions of payment and delivery are established.
Internal risk management is achieved by evaluating the credit quality of
customers through consideration of their financial condition, past experience,
and other factors. Individual risk limits are established by the Board of
Directors based on internal or external ratings, and the use of credit limits is
monitored regularly.

The Company adopts a credit risk management procedure to assess whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial instruments
since their initial recognition. When contractually due payments are past due
for more than 90 days, it is considered that the credit risk of the financial
asset has significantly increased since its initial recognition, and individual
assessment is applied.

The Company classifies its trade receivables and contract assets by customer
credit ratings, and uses a simplified approach based on the loss rate method
to estimate expected credit losses.
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e. The Company first evaluates and recognizes impairment losses for individual
receivables for which objective evidence indicates that they cannot be
collected. For other receivables, the Company estimates expected credit
losses using a simplified approach based on the loss rate method, which is
established based on historical and current information over a specific period
and with future forward-looking considerations. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, the accumulated allowance for doubtful accounts for individually
assessed accounts receivable was both NT$0 thousand. For the remaining
accounts receivable, the accumulated allowance for doubtful accounts was
NT$2,153 thousand, estimated based on expected credit losses. The provision
matrix is as follows:

Not Overdue 1to90days 91 to 180 days Over 180 days Total

Dec. 31,2022

Expected Loss Rate  0%-0.3% 0.3%-10% 12%-50% 55%-100%

Total Book Value $ 337,990 $ 5363 $ 13 3 1,482 $ 344,848
Loss Allowance ( 603) ( 189) ( 6) ( 1,355) ( 2,153)
Dec. 31,2021

Expected Loss Rate  0%-0.5% 0.5%-10% 12%-39% 55%-100%

Total Book Value $ 438,000 $ 6,248 $ 262§ 1,447 $§ 445957
Loss Allowance ( 1,000) ( 90) ( 81) ( 982) ( 2,153)

f. The table below shows the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts
using the simplified approach for the Company:

2022 2021
Jan. 1 $ 2,153 $ 6,879
Provision for Impairment Loss (Reversal) - ( 4,726)
Dec. 31 $ 2,153 $ 2,153

C.

Liquidity risk

a.

The finance department of the Company monitors the forecast of the
Company’s liquidity needs to ensure that it has sufficient funds to support its
operations and maintains adequate unused borrowing commitments at all
times to avoid violating relevant borrowing limits or terms.

The following table shows the non-derivative financial liabilities of the
Company grouped by the relevant maturity date, and the contractual cash flow
amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted, analyzed based on the
remaining period from the balance sheet date to the contract maturity date.
Details of the unused loan facilities of the Company are as follows:
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Floating Rate

Due within One Year $ 1,323,102 $ 871,879
Fixed Interest Rate

Due within One Year - 50,000

Due after One Year - -
$ 1,323,102 $ 921,879

d. The table below provides a breakdown of the Company’s financial liabilities,
both derivative and non-derivative, that are settled either on a net or gross
basis, categorized according to their respective maturity periods. Non-
derivative financial liabilities are analyzed based on the remaining time from
the balance sheet date to their contractual maturity date, while derivative
financial liabilities are analyzed based on their remaining time from the
balance sheet date to their expected maturity date. Please note that the cash
flow amounts disclosed in the table are not discounted.

Non-derivative Financial Liabilities

Less than 3 Months to 1to?2 2to5 Over
Dec. 31, 2022 3 Months 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Short-term Borrowing $100,228 $§ 98213 § - $ - 3 - $ 198,441
Notes Payable
(Including Related Parties) 106,909 ) ) ) ) 106,909
Accounts Payable
(Including Related Parties) 126,132 ) ) ) ) 126,132
Other Payables 144,101 - - - - 144,101
Lease Liabilities 523 1,542 1,997 2,639 - 6,701
Bond Payable - - - - 304,523 304,523
Long-term Borrowing 43,510 129,819 154,134 180,583 11,940 519,986
Deposits Received for Guarantee - - - - 4,194 4,194
Non-derivative Financial Liabilities
Less than 3 Months to 1to2 2to5 Over
Dec. 31, 2021 3 Months 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
Short-term Borrowing $220,311 $ 19,803 $ - 3 -3 - $ 240,114
Short-term Notes Payable 160,000 - - - - 160,000
Notes Payable
(Including Related Parties) 171,195 ) ) ) ) 171,195
Accounts Payable
(Including Related Parties) 145,277 ) ) ) ) 145,277
Other Payables 165,065 - - - - 165,065
Lease Liabilities 393 1,180 1,469 1,934 - 4,976
Long-term Borrowing 30,283 91,067 172,913 303,554 40,810 638,627
Deposits Received for Guarantee - - - - 285 285
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(3) Fair Value Information
1. The definitions of each level of valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments are as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of assets or liabilities measured on the reporting date is based
on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in an active
market. An active market is a market in which transactions for the assets or
liabilities occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2: The fair value of assets or liabilities is determined using directly or indirectly
observable inputs, but not including quoted prices included in Level 1. Non-
listed equity investments held by the Company belong to this level.

Level 3: The fair value of assets or liabilities is determined using unobservable inputs.
The equity instruments without an active market held by the Company belong
to this level.

2. Please refer to Note 6(10) for information on the fair value of investment properties
measured at cost by the Company.
3. Financial Instruments not Measured at Fair Value
A. The financial instruments of this Company that are not measured at fair value
(including cash and cash equivalents, financial assets measured at amortized cost,
notes receivable (including related parties), accounts receivable (including related
parties), other receivables (including related parties), deposits received, short-
term borrowings, short-term notes payable, commercial papers payable (including
related parties), accounts payable (including related parties), other payables, long-
term borrowings (including those due within one year or one operating cycle),
deposits received from customers, and lease liabilities (including those due within
one year or one operating cycle)) are reasonably approximated at fair value by
their carrying amounts, except for those listed in the following table:

December 31, 2022

Fair Value
Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Liabilities:
Bonds Payable ¢ 287,569 $ - S 287580 _$ -

As of December 31, 2021, the Company did not hold such financial instrument.
B. The methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value are as follows:

The bonds payable are measured at the present value of expected future cash flows

using market interest rates as of the balance sheet date.

4. The financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by the Company are
classified based on the nature, characteristics, risk, and fair value hierarchy of the assets
and liabilities. The relevant information is as follows:

A. The instruments are classified by the Company based on the nature of the assets
and liabilities, and the information is presented below:

December 31, 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

Recurring Fair Value

Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss:

-Convertible Bonds Redemption

Rights $ - $ - $ 180 $ 180
Financial Assets at Fair Value

through Other Comprehensive

Income:

-Unlisted Company Stocks - 4,575 55,143 59.718
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$ - § 4,575 § 55323 $ 59,898

December 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Recurring Fair Value
Financial Assets at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive

Income:
-Unlisted Company Stocks $ - $§ 4300 $§ 83,833 $ 88,133

B. The methods and assumptions used by the Company to measure fair value are
described as follows:

a. The Company did not use market quotes as input values for measuring fair
value (i.e. Level 1).

b. The investment in Changhua Golf Club Co., Ltd. by the Company is valued
using publicly quoted member certificate prices as the input for fair value
measurement (Level 2).

c. The output of the valuation models is an estimated fair value, which may not
reflect all relevant factors of the financial and non-financial instruments held
by the Company. Therefore, the estimated fair value is appropriately adjusted
based on additional parameters, such as model risk or liquidity risk.
According to the Company’s fair value measurement policies and related
control procedures, the management believes that such adjustments are
necessary and appropriate to reasonably represent the fair values of the
financial and non-financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet. The
pricing information and parameters used in the valuation process are
prudently evaluated and appropriately adjusted based on current market
conditions, in accordance with the Company’s fair value measurement
policies.

d. The Company incorporates credit risk adjustments into the fair value
measurement of financial and non-financial instruments to reflect both
counterparty credit risk and the Company’s own credit quality.

5. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during years 2022 and 2021.

6. The following table shows the changes in Level 3 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Beginning Balance $ 83,833 $ 75,500
Additions during the Period 3,270 -
Gain or Loss Recognized in P/L
Recognized as Non-operating Income or ( 3,090) )
Expense
Gain or Losg regognlzed in other ( 28.690) 8333
comprehensive income
Ending Balance $ 55,323 $ 83,833

7. The Company’s valuation process for Level 3 investments of illiquid equity instruments
involves independent fair value verification by the Company’s finance department, using
independent sources of data to ensure that the valuation results are consistent with
market conditions and represent executable prices. The process includes regular
calibration of valuation models, back-testing, updating of model inputs and data, and
any other necessary fair value adjustments to ensure that the valuation results are
reasonable. The fair value of the bonds payable and convertible bonds redemption rights
is valued by external valuers.

8. The quantitative information of significant unobservable input used in the valuation
model for Level 3 fair value measurement items and sensitivity analysis of significant
unobservable input changes are described as follows:

Fair Value at Valuation Significant Range Relationship between

216



Dec. 31,2022 Technique Unobservable Inputs ~ (Weighted  Inputs and Fair Value

Average
Non-derivative Equity
Instruments
. Higher multiplier
Equlty Instruments of Non- $ 472 Comparable . Price-to-Book Ratio  0.11~0.45 premiums lead to
listed Companies Company Analysis . .
higher fair values.
Equity Instruments of Non- Net Asset Value . .
listed Companies 54,671  Method Not Applicable . Not Applicable
. . . . Higher multiplier
Redemption Rights of Binomial Tree . - o .
Convertible Bonds 180  Pricing Model Stock Price Volatility  20.6% premiums lead to
higher fair values
Range
Fair Value at Valuation Significant Unobservable (Weighted Relationship between
Dec. 31,2021 Technique Inputs Average) Inputs and Fair Value
Non-derivative Equity
Instruments
. Higher multiplier
Equlty Instmments of Non- $ 298 Comparable . Price-to-Book Ratio  0.13-0.57 premiums lead to
listed Companies Company Analysis hi .
igher fair values.
Equity Instruments of Non- Net Asset Value . .
Jisted Companies 83,535 Method Not Applicable - Not Applicable

9. The Company has carefully assessed the selection of valuation models and parameters.
However, the use of different valuation models or parameters may result in different
valuation results. For financial assets and liabilities classified as Level 3, changes in
valuation parameters would impact the current period’s profit or loss or other
comprehensive income as follows:

December 31, 2022

Recognized in Profit or Recognized in other
Loss Comprehensive Income
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable  Unfavorable
Input Value Change Impact Impact Impact Impact
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments Price-to-Book Ratio 5% $ - S - 8 24 (8 24)
E:gz;r;‘t?éi %‘;ﬁ?jﬂ Volatility +5% 360 : : :
$ 360 $ - _$ 24 ($ 24)
December 31, 2021
Recognized in Profit or Recognized in other
Loss Comprehensive Income
Favorable Unfavorable Favorable  Unfavorable
Input Value Change Impact Impact Impact Impact
Financial Assets
Equity Instruments Price-to-Book Ratio 5% $ - $ - 8 15 (§ 15)

(4) Other Matters
In response to the outbreak of COVID-19, the government has implemented various
measures to prevent the spread of the virus. The operations of the Group have not been
materially affected by the pandemic and related measures. In addition, measures have
been taken to prevent the spread of the virus and to manage related matters.
13. Disclosures
(1) Significant transaction-related information:
1. Loans to others: Please refer to Table 1 for details.
2. Endorsement or guarantees for others: There is no such item.
3. Holdings of securities at the end of the period (excluding investments in subsidiaries,
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affiliated enterprises, and joint control): Please refer to Table 2 for details.
4. Cumulative purchase or sale of the same securities reaches NT$300 million or 20% of
the paid-in capital: There is no such item.
5. Acquisition of real estate reaches NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: There
is no such item.
6. Disposal of real estate reaches NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: There is
no such item.
7. Sales or purchases of goods or services to related parties reach NT$100 million or 20%
of the paid-in capital: There is no such item.
8. Receivables from related parties reach NT$100 million or 20% of the paid-in capital:
Please refer to Table 1 for details.
9. Derivative transactions: There is no such item.
10. Business relationships and significant transactions between the parent company and its
subsidiaries and between the subsidiaries, and the amounts involved: Please refer to
Table 3 for details.
(2) Information on Investment in Subsidiary/Affiliate Companies
Name and location of the invested companies (excluding companies invested in Mainland
China): Please refer to Table 4 for details.
(3) Mainland China Investment Information
1. Basic information: please refer to Table 5 for details.
2. Significant transactions occurred between the invested companies in Mainland China and
the Company through a third-party entity or a direct/indirect investment: please refer to
Note 13(1) for details on significant transaction information.
(4) Information on Major Shareholders
Information on major shareholders: please refer to Table 6 in the attached notes.
14. Information for Operating Segment
Not Applicable

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Statement of Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31, 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Item Description Amount
Cash on hand and petty cash
$ 3,449
Bank Deposits:
NTD Check Deposits
2,546
NTD Demand Deposits
77,744
Foreign Currency Demand Deposits USD 2,814 thousand, exchange rate approximately
1:30.71 86,429
HKD 36 thousand, exchange rate approximately
1:3.938 142
RMB 13,462 thousand, exchange rate
approximately 1:4.414 59,420
EUR 1 thousand, exchange rate approximately
1:32.72 36
JPY 63,401 thousand, exchange rate approximately
1:0.2324 14,734
Time Deposits RMB 2.0,091 thousand, exchange rate
approximately 1:4.414 88,680
USD 3,000 thousand, exchange rate approximately
1:30.71 92,130
$ 425,310
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Net Accounts Receivable

December 31, 2022
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Customer Summary Amount Remarks
Related Parties:
Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., Ltd. $ 40,580
Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd 22,207
Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 12,273
None of the outstanding balances of each
single customers exceed 5% of the balance
Other 669 of this account.
75,729
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -
$ 75,729
Non-related Parties
Customer A $ 53,050
Customer B 51,693
Customer C 14,988
Customer D 14,622
None of the outstanding balances of each
single customers exceed 5% of the balance
Other 148,930 of this account.
283,283
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ( 2,153)
$ 281,130
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Inventories
December 31, 2022

Amount

Item Summary Costs

Raw Materials $ 168,589
Materials 3,215
Work in Progress 100,489
Finishing Goods 400,228
672,521

Less: Allowance for Obsolete and Slow-Moving Inventory  ( 66,049)

§ 606,472
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Market Value Market Valuation Methods
$ 168,754 Revalued cost
3,215 Revalued cost
99,429 Net realizable value
441,936 Net realizable value
$ 713,334



HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Items Beginning Balance Increase for the Period  Decrease for the Period Ending Balance Collateralized or Pledged Remarks
Please refer to Note 6(8) for details of changes in property, plant, and equipment during the period.

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment on Property, Plant and Equipment
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Items Beginning Balance Increase for the Period Decrease for the Period Ending Balance Collateralized or Pledged
Please refer to Note 6(8) for details of changes in property, plant, and equipment during the period.

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Changes in Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Increase for the Period Decrease for the Period
Beginning Balance (Note 3) (Note 4) Ending Balance Market Value or Net Equity )
Collateralized
Items Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Share Equity Ownership Ratio  Amount  Unit Price  Total Price or Pledged Remarks
Hongyu Holdings L.L.C. - $ 483,358 - $ 7,837 - $ 17,868) - 100% $ 473327 - $ 473,327  None Note 1
Wenfa Development Co., Ltd. - 59,530 - 9,937 - - - 100% 69,467 - 69,467  None Note 1
Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. 13,000 65,476 - - - ( 10,749) 13,000 86.67% 54,727 - 54,727  None Note 2
Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd. - 399,263 - 94,864 - ( 10,822) - 100% 483,305 - 483,305 None  Note 1 and Note 2
Total $ 1,007,627 $ 112,638 (6 39,439) $ 1,080,826 $1,080,826

Note 1: The Company is a limited company with no share count.

Note 2: Share count is expressed in thousands of dollars.
Note 3: The increase for the period includes investment income recognized using the equity method of $9,937, increased investment amount of $89,250, and exchange differences arising from the translation of financial statements of
foreign operating entities of $13,451.

Note 4: The decrease for the period includes investment loss recognized using the equity method of ($39,439).
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Creditors

First Bank

Chang Hwa Commercial Bank
CTBC Bank

Fubon Bank

Yuanta Bank

Mega International Commercial Bank

Description
Credit Loans

Credit Loans
Credit Loans
Credit Loans
Credit Loans

Secured Loans

Ending Balance
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
20,000

97,658
$ 197,658

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Short-term Borrowings

December 31, 2022

Contract Term

2022/12/20-2023/03/20
2022/12/01-2023/03/01
2022/11/29-2023/02/24
2022/10/28-2023/01/18
2022/10/24-2023/01/19

2022/11/07-2023/06/17
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Interest Rate Borrowing Amount
1.88%
1.97%
1.81%
1.78%
1.40%

1.53%

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Collateralized or Pledged Remarks
None
None

None
None
None

Land, building, and investment properties



Supplier

Related Parties:

Non-Related Parties:

Supplier A

Supplier B

Supplier C

Supplier D

Supplier E

Other

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Notes Payable
December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Summary Amount Remarks

$ 22

$ 15,685

7,072

6,972

5,000

4,960

No individual supplier
balance exceeds 5% of this
67,198 account.

$ 106,887
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Accounts Payable
December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Supplier Summary Amount Remarks
Related Parties: $ 6.134

Non-related Parties:

Supplier A $ 35,228
Supplier B 16,412
Supplier C 19,824
Supplier D 11,492
Supplier E 12,423
Supplier F 9,029
No individual supplier balance

Other 15,590 exceeds 5% of this account.

$ 119,998
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Other Payable
December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Summary Amount
Please refer to Note 6 (13) for information on other payable.

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Bonds Payable
December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Interest Amount
Payment  Interest Amount Amount Ending Unamortized Carrying Repayment Collateral
Bond Trustee Issue Date Date Rate Issued Repaid Balance Premium/Discount Amount Methods  Situation
BomesticdSecond Mega Securities Co., Ltd. Jan. 26, 2022 Note 109.01% $ 300,000 $ - $301,375 (% 13,806) $ 287,569 Note No Collateral
nsecure
Convertible
Corporate Bonds

Note: Please refer to Note 6(14) for information on interest payment dates and repayment methods.
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Lender
Bank of Taiwan

Bank of Taiwan

Mega International Commercial Bank

Mega International Commercial Bank

Summary
Medium and Long-

Term Borrowings
Medium and Long-
Term Borrowings
Medium and Long-
Term Borrowings
Medium and Long-
Term Borrowings

Less: Long-term borrowings due within one year

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Long-term Borrowings

December 31, 2022

Loan Amount
$ 116,667
150,000
83,928
154,762
( 166,667)
$ 338,690

Contract Period

2019/08/13-2024/08/13
2020/10/13-2025/10/13
2019/11/20-2026/11/20

2021/05/20-2028/05/20
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Interest Rate

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Collateral or Guarantee Remarks

1.84%

1.97%

1.90%

1.90%

Land and building
Land and building
Land, building and investment properties

Land, building and investment properties



HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Operating Revenue
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Quantity

Product Unit (In Thousands) Amount Remarks
Filament fabric Yard 101,218 $ 2,247,124

No individual product balance

exceeds 5% of the balance of this
Other 255,354 account

2,502,478

Less: Sales returns and allowances ( 17,666)
Net sales revenue $ 2,484,812
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Items

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Operating Costs

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Beginning Raw Material

Add: Raw Material Purchased in the Period
Raw Material Inventory Gains

Less: Ending Raw Material
Transferred to Various Expenses

Sales of Raw Material

Raw Material Used in the Period

Beginning Material

Add: Material Purchased in the Period
Less: Ending Material

Sales of Material

Material Used in the Period
Raw Material and Material Used in the Period
Direct Labor

Manufacturing Costs

Production Costs

Add: Beginning Work in Progress

Less: Ending Work in Progress

Work in Progress Inventory Gains

Finishing Goods Cost

Add: Beginning Finishing Goods

Finishing Goods Purchased in the Period
Finished Goods Inventory Gains

Less: Ending Finishing Goods

Transferred to Various Expenses

Cost of Goods Sold
Add: Sales of Raw Material

Less: Sales Return and Allowances

Inventory Write-down Reversal

Inventory Gains

Operating Cost

Amount

$

~

264,253
1,206,193
212
168,589)
2,359)
16,352)
1,283,358
3,360
45,618
3,215)
896)
44,867
1,328,225
168,447
547,525
2,044,197
110,192
100,489)
670
2,054,570
406,313
112,993
203
400,228)
6,297)
2,167,554
17,248
20,804)
2,814)
1,085)
2,160,099
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(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remarks



HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Manufacturing Costs
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Processing Costs $ 241,311
Electricity Costs 77,984
Wage Expenses 48,967
Depreciation 43,723
Repair and Maintenance Costs 40,258
Yarn Costs 35,161

No individual cost balance
) exceeds 5% of the balance of
Other Manufacturing Expenses 60,121 this account

$ 547,525

233



Item

Wage Expenses

Export Expenses

Packaging Expenses

Other Expenses

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Summary

Sales Expenses

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Amount

41,872

15,452

8,407

23,473

89,204
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(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remark

No individual expense balance exceeds 5% of
the balance of this account



Item
Wage Expenses
Insurance Expenses

Labor Compensation

Other Expenses

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.

Management Expenses

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Summary

Amount

$

$

68,892
6,339

5,910

24,191

105,332
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(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Remark

No individual expense balance exceeds
5% of the balance of this account



HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Research and Development Expenses
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Wage Expenses $ 11,729
Insurance Expenses 1,046
No individual expense balance exceeds
Other 7,032 5% of the balance of this account

$ 19,807
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Other Income
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Please refer to Note 6(22) for information regarding other income for the current period.

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Net Other Gains and Losses
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Please refer to Note 6(23) for information regarding other gains and losses.

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Function-wise Summary of Employee Benefits, Depreciation, Amortization and Impairment Expenses in the Period
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

By Functional Year 2022

Cost of Goods Sold Operating Expenses Total

By Nature
Please refer to 6(25)(26) for information on employee benefits, depreciation, amortization and amortization expenses incurred during the current period
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Financial Costs
January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Summary Amount Remarks
Please refer to Note 6(24) for information on Financial Costs.

(Intentionally left blank)
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Loan to Other
January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 1
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Nature of Allowance Limit on funds
Current Actual Fund Business Reason for for loaned to Total credit
No. Trancsaction  Related Maximum Ending Disbursement Interest Rate Lending Transaction Short-term  Doubtful Collateral individual limit for funds
Note 1 Lender Borrower Item Parties Amount Balance Amount Range (Note 2) Amount Financing Amount Item Value parties (Note 3) lent (Note 3) Note
Operating
Hongyu Zhejiang Other Turnover and
0 The Company - Receivable - Y $ 158,750 $ 153,550 $ 67,750 1.8%-2.5% 2 $ - $ - - $- $ 211,523 $ 846,093 Note 4
Textile Co., Ltd. . Repayment of
Related Parties
External Debt
Jivjiang Deyu Other Operatin
0 The Company TextileTechnology =~ Receivable - Y 158,750 153,550 - 1.8%-2.5% 2 - TE rnove% - - - 211,523 846,093 Note 4
Co., Ltd Related Parties
Utex Innovation Co. Othe? Operating
0 The Company Lid * Receivable - Y 30,000 30,000 - 1.20% 2 - Turnover - - - 211,523 846,093 Note 4
’ Related Parties

Note 1: Numbering sequence are as follows:
(1) The Company is shown as ‘0.
(2) The Subsidiaries are numbered in numerical order starting from ‘1°.
Note 2: The instructions for filling in the nature of the funds loaned are as follows:
(1) For those with business dealings, please refer to 1.
(2) For those with a necessary need for short-term working capital, please refer to 2.
Note 3:
(1) The total amount of funds lent by the Company shall not exceed 40% of the Company’s net worth, except for short-term funding necessary between companies or banks, which shall not exceed 10% of the Company’s net worth.
(2) The total amount of funds lent to individual entities shall not exceed 10% of the Company’s net worth.
(3) For foreign companies where the Company holds 100% of the voting rights directly or indirectly, the amount of funds lent shall not exceed 40% of the Company’s net worth.
(4) For companies or banks with business transactions with the Company, the individual lending amount shall not exceed the amount of business transactions between the two parties, whichever is higher. The amount of business transactions refers to the higher
amount of purchases or sales between the two parties.
Note 4: On March 22, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the funding loans to Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd., Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd., and Utex Innovation Co., Ltd., in the amounts of USD 5,000 thousand, USD 5,000 thousand, and
TWD 30,000 thousand, respectively. (Calculated based on the spot buying and selling exchange rate of USD to TWD on December 31, 2022, which was 30.71).
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
End-of-Period Holdings of Marketable Securities
(Excluding Investments in Subsidiaries, Associated Companies, and Joint Ventures)

December 31, 2022

Table
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specifiec
. o End-of-Period
Investee Company Type and Name of Securities Held Relationship with Accounting Category
the Issuer of the Number of Shares Carrying Amount Equity Ownershi Fair Value
Securities Held (Thousands) ying quity SIIp E— Note
Wenfa Development L.L.C Stock/China Petrochemical Development Co No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value 421 $ 5,700 - $ 4,160
P . P P through profit or loss - current
Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value 180 3,872 - 3,321
Wenfa Development L.L.C. Stock/K Laser Technology Inc. No through profit or loss - current
Wenfa Development L.L.C Stock/Mobiletron Electronics Co.. Ltd No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value 30 1,979 - 1,466
P B R through profit or loss - current
Valuation Adjustment 2.604
$ 8,947
Honmvue Enterprise Co.. Ltd Stock/Grand and Great Corporation Limited No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value 3,000 $ 91,603 9.52 $ 54,671
Y s R P through other comprehensive income - non-current
Honmyue Enterprise Co.. Ltd Stock/Changhua Golf Club Co.. Ltd No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value 60 3,820 0.16 4,575
yu P v & v through other comprehensive income - non-current
. . Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value - 1,000 10.00 472
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Stock/Yuan Ta Fiber Co., Ltd. No through other comprehensive income - non-current
Honevu Holdings L.L.C AKKO Global Stock Ledger No Fair value adjustments for financial assets at fair value - - -
gy g8 bbb g through other comprehensive income - non-current -
Valuation Adjustment ( 36.705)
$§ 59718
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Significant Transactions with and Among Subsidiaries

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 3
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)
Business Transactions
No. Relationship . Ratio to Total Consolidated
(Note 1) Company Counterparty (Note2) Account Amount (Note 4and Note5) Transaction Terms Revenue or Total Assets (Note 3)
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. 1 Sales $ 50,886 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 1.60%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts Receivable 22,207 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 0.57%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. 1 Other Receivable 67,750 In accordance with the mutually agreed terms and conditions. 1.75%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1 Sales 91,703 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 2.88%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts Receivable 12,273 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T collection 0.32%
0 Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. Utex Innovation Co., Ltd. 1 Processing Fees 58,027 Monthly settlement with 90-day T/T payment 1.82%

Note 1: Numbering sequence for parent company and subsidiaries are as follows:
(1) The Company is shown as ‘0.
(2) The Subsidiaries are numbered in numerical order starting from ‘1°.
Note 2: The relationship with the trading party can be categorized as follows:
(1) The parent company to a subsidiary.
(2) A subsidiary to the parent company.
(3) A subsidiary to another subsidiary.

(4) The parent company to an equity method investee.
Note 3: For the calculation of the ratio of transaction amount to total revenue or total assets, if it is an item of assets and liabilities, the calculation is based on the end-of-period balance as a percentage of total assets. If it is an item of income and expenses, the

calculation is based on the accumulated amount as a percentage of total revenue at the end of the interim period.
Note 4: Transactions with an amount less than NTD 10 million do not require disclosure.
Note 5: Transactions have been offset in the consolidated financial statements.
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Table 4

Investor

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Hongyu Holdings L.L.C.

Wenfa Development L.L.C.

Wenfa Development L.L.C.

Investee

Hongyu Holdings L.L.C.

Wenfa Development L.L.C.

Utex Innovation Co., Ltd.

Hongde Development Co., Ltd.

Nuwa Enterprise Co., Ltd.

Honglongfa Development Co., Ltd.

HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Information on Investee Company

January 1 to December 31, 2022

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

Initial Investment Amount Shares Held at Dec. 31, 2021 Investee’s Net Recognized

Investment
. . . . .. Balance at End of Balance at End of Number of Shares  Equity Ownership . Income forthe - - 1 or the
Location Main Business Activities 2022 2021 Thousands) (%) Carrying Amount Period = Period Note
US.A. Professional Investment ~ § 681,716 § 681,716 - 100,00 S4BT 8 17869) (8 17809) S
Professional Investment Subsidiary
Taiwan and Medical Equipment 60,000 60,000 - 100.00 69,467 9,937 9,937 (Notel)
Retail Industry
Weaving, Dyeing, and
Taiwan Finishing of High-End 178,000 178,000 13,000 86.67 54,727 ( 12,402) ( 10,748) Subsidiary
Fabric
Equity method
H.K. Professional Investment 60,580 60,580 - 38.17 - - - valuation
(Notel)
. Outsourced Fabric Lo
Taiwan . 28,000 28,000 2,800 70.00 30,848 15,979 11,185 Subsidiary
Manufacturing and Sales
Taiwan Professional Investment 188 188 19 37.50 128 - - Pauy method
aluation

Note 1: As a limited company, the Company does not have a share count.
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD
Information of Mainland China Investments
January 1 to December 31, 2022
Table 5

Accumulated
Investment  Lovestment Outflow or  Accumulated
. . Paid-in  Investment Anvestment Inflow in the Period InvestmentAamoun Investee’s Net
Main Business PRV Amount —

Investee in Mainland China Capital Method

t Transferred from Income (Loss) for

Equity

Recognized
Investment Gain

Activities Transferred from

the Period

Ownership (%) or Loss for the

(Note) (Note 1) Taiwan at Jan. 1 Taiwan at the Dec.
2022 Outflow  Inflow 31,2022 (Note 7).
Manufacturing and sales
Hongyu Textile Zhejiang Co., Ltd. grf(f(;’fc‘ig ;I‘llcll‘ f?r?iznng $ 525141 2 $ 536721 S - 0§ - $ 536,721
processing.
Weaving, dyeing, and
Zhejiang Yaoliang Textile Co., Ltd. finishing processing of 52,207 2 65,692 - - 65,692

high-end textile fabrics.
Manufacturing and sales
of cotton silk fiber
products and finishing
processing.

Jiujiang Deyu Textile Technology Co., Ltd. 507,610 1 408,340 89,250 - 497,590

Note 1: Investment in mainland China through a third-party company, Hongyu Holdings L.L.C.

(1) Direct investment in mainland China.

(2) Investment in mainland China through a third-party company, Hongyu Holdings L.L.C.

(3) Other methods
Note 2: The relevant figures in this table involve foreign currencies and are converted to New Taiwan Dollars at the exchange rates on the balance sheet date.

Note 3: The actual paid-in capital is USD 17,100 thousand. The accumulated outbound investment amount is USD 14,242 thousand and JPY 299,876 thousand.
Note 4: The actual paid-in capital is USD 1,700 thousand. The accumulated outbound investment amount is USD 2,000 thousand.
Note 5: The actual paid-in capital is RMB 115,000 thousand, and the accumulated outbound investment amount is RMB 115,000 thousand.

Note 6: The investment income or loss recognized in this period is audited by the accounting firm of the Taiwan parent company.
Note 7: The accumulated outbound investment amount from Taiwan at the end of this period is converted at the original investment exchange rate.
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($ 17,869)  100.00

- 38.17

( 10,822)  100.00

Period
$ 17,869)
( 10,822)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

Cumulative
Investment Carrying 7Ingeftment
Amount at the Dec. Setms Note
312022 Repatriated as
of Dec. 31
2022
Note 3
$ 473,448 $ © and6
- - Note 4
483,305 - Note 5



HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Information of Mainland China Investments

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 5
Accumulated Investment Investment Limit to China according to the
Investment Amount Approved by the Investment - . .
Company Amount Transferred from Commission. Ministry of Economic Affair regulations of Investment Commission, Ministry of
Taiwan at Dec. 31, 2022 0 Ssion, Sity of Leonomic 5 Economic Affairs
Honmyue Enterprise Co., Ltd. $ 1,076,093 $ 1,281,068 $ 1,269,139

Note 1: The relevant figures in this table involve foreign currencies and are converted to New Taiwan Dollars at the exchange rates on the balance sheet date.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

Note 2: The investment limit in mainland China is calculated in accordance with the principles for the examination of investment or technical cooperation in mainland China established by the Ministry of Economic Affairs (60% of the net amount).
Note 3: The cumulative amount of investment transferred from Taiwan to mainland China at the end of this period is US$16,242 thousand, JPY 299,876 thousand, and RMB 115,000 thousand. The approved investment amount by the Investment Commission

of the Ministry of Economic Affairs is US$41,715 thousand, with exchange rates of 30.71 for USD, 0.2324 for JPY, and 4.4140 for RMB.
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HONMYUE ENTERPRISE CO., LTD.
Information on Major Shareholders

January 1 to December 31, 2022

Table 6
Shares
Shareholder Number of Shares (Thousands) Equity Ownership (%)
Zhen Hong Investment Co., Ltd. 8,485 6.53

If the Company obtains this table information from Taiwan Depository & Clearing Corporation (TDCC), the following notes should be provided:
Note 1:
The major shareholder information in this table is calculated by TDCC based on the total number of ordinary and preferred shares (including treasury stocks) that shareholders have completed transfer without physical
registration as of the last business day of each quarter and have reached 5% or more. The actual number of shares issued and outstanding disclosed in the Company’s financial report may differ due to different calculation bases.
Note 2:
If the above data is related to shares held under trust, it will be disclosed in individual trust accounts opened by the trustee. As for the reporting of internal shareholding exceeding 10% of the total shares outstanding according
to securities laws and regulations, it includes the shares held by the person and those entrusted to them with the decision-making power over trust property. Relevant information on internal shareholding reporting can be found
on the Public Information Observation System.
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